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With a year that saw great progress, we conducted 
the growth that has brought us to where we are 
at this very moment. By channeling our effort into 
improving the way we generate sustainable and 
renewable energy, we have become more efficient 
and effective in delivering on our goals not only within 
the Company but towards our stakeholders, now and 
in the future.

C H A N

N E L I N G

G R O W T H
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Introduction to Our Annual Report

Context and framework of our integrated Annual 
Report 2015/16
Welcome to first integrated Annual Report of Resus Energy 

PLC. The key input capitals, the value creation process and 

impact management have been comprehensively illustrated 

in the Report. The Report covers the economic, social and 

environmental impacts resulting from the value creation 

activities of the Company and its subsidiaries operating 

across the country including Resus’ impact management 

measures and potential impacts. Corporate Governance, Risk 

Management, and Environmental Management System ensure 

that Resus’ value creation process delivers desired outcomes 

to its stakeholders. The Company and its subsidiaries are in 

compliance with laws and regulations and conduct business in 

socially and environmentally responsible manner. The Report 

presents an engaging discussion on these in various sections. 

The Financial Statements of the Company and its Group for 

the year ended 31st March 2016 have been prepared and 

presented in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 

(LKAS and SLFRS), the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, and 

Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. The Company’s 

compliance with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate 

Governance issued jointly by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Sri Lanka are provided from page 101 to 123 of 

the Report. The Board and Board sub-committees comprising 

Independent Non-Executive Directors ensure compliance 

with good governance principles and effectiveness of Group’s 

system of internal control to underpin its value creation 

process. 

The Report also contains the GRI G4 key performance 

indicators required by the Sustainability Reporting Guidelines 

of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI). This information relating 

to sustainability is prepared “In accordance - core” of the GRI 

(G4) guidelines. The organizational profile, vision, mission, 

values, strategy, group structure, Board of Directors and other 

corporate information have been presented in the Report. GRI 

parameters of equity accounted investees (Panasian Power 

PLC, the associate and Heladhanavi Limited, the discontinued 

joint venture in previous year) have been omitted for the 

current year and the previous year for presenting year on year 

comparability in GRI reporting. The GRI (G4) index is available 

from page 88 to 97. The Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate 

Standard and Emission Factors published by the Sri Lanka 

Sustainable Energy Authority have been used to measure and 

report on the Company’s carbon footprint and reduction in 

greenhouse gas emission.

The stakeholder identification process that ensures stakeholder 

inclusiveness is a vital segment of the Report. The Report 

contains an encompassing discussion about various 

stakeholder aspects and their significance to the Company, 

which are detailed from page 36 to 45.

This Annual Report relates to the business operations of 

Resus Energy PLC and its subsidiaries, collectively referred 

to as the ‘Resus Group’, for the 12-month period ended 31st 

March 2016 operating in Sri Lanka. Comparative information 

have been presented for the 12-month period ended 31st 

March 2015. There have been no changes in reporting scope, 

accounting policies and/or boundaries from the previous 

year. Non-financial information in this Report pertaining to 

the previous year has not been restated, unless otherwise 

stated. The non-financial information on the Sustainability 

Reporting contained in this Report was audited by Messrs 

Ernst & Young,Chartered Accountants, according to the Sri 

Lanka Standard on Assurance Engagements (SLSAE 3000): 

“Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of 

Historical Financial Information”. The Assurance Statement is 

available from page 98 to 99. 

The Independent Auditors’ opinion on the Financial Statements 

is given in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 165.

Contact Person 

Please send your inquiries and feedback on this Report to:

Name: Ravi Rathnasekara

Designation: Chief Financial Officer

Resus Energy PLC

250/1, Torrington Avenue,

Colombo 7,

Sri Lanka.

ravi@resusenergy.lk





V I S I O N
RESUS ENERGY STRIVES TO BUILD A COMMERCIALLY 
SUSTAINABLE AND AN ENERGETIC WORLD CLASS 
ORGANIZATION THAT “CARES FOR PEOPLE AND PLANET” 
IN MEETING ELECTRICITY NEEDS OF THE PEOPLE.

M I S S I O N
WE GENERATE ELECTRICITY USING RENEWABLE 
ENERGY SOURCES. IN DOING SO, WE CREATE 
AN ORGANIZATION THAT IS: COMMERCIALLY 
SUSTAINABLE THAT PROVIDES SUPERIOR VALUE TO 
OUR SHAREHOLDERS; CHALLENGING AND FULFILLING 
WORK ENVIRONMENT TO OUR EMPLOYEES; 
CARING FOR STAKEHOLDERS AND OUR NATURAL 
ENVIRONMENT.

C O R E  V A L U E S
•  CREATIVITY 
•  INTEGRITY 
•  CONCERN FOR PEOPLE AND PLANET
•  OBSESSION FOR PERFORMANCE
•  SENSE OF URGENCY
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Our Journey 

2003/04 2004/05 2008/09 2009/10

JUNE
Incorporation of Hemas 

Power (Pvt) Limited as a 

fully-owned subsidiary of 

Hemas Holdings PLC 

SEP
Commissioned the first 

power project, Heladhanavi 

Limited – a 100MW thermal 

power plant as a joint venture 

between Hemas Power (Pvt) 

Limited and Lakdhanavi 

Limited 

OCT
Commissioned the first 

hydropower project, Giddawa 

Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited – 

a 2.0MW hydropower project 

in Digana, Theldeniya

DEC
Acquired an operational 

hydropower project, Upper 

Agra Oya Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Limited – a 2.6MW 

hydropower project in 

Lindula, Talawakelle

SEP
Raised Rs. 626Mn by way of 

an Initial Public Offering and 

listed on the Main Board of 

the Colombo Stock Exchange 

as ‘Hemas Power PLC’



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 9

2011/12 2014/15

2015/16
APR

Secured permits for 

hydropower projects in 

Bundibugyo, Uganda with 

an aggregate capacity of 

10MW under Butama Hydro 

Electricity Company Limited, 

a fully-owned subsidiary 

incorporated in Uganda

SEP
Commissioned Magalganga 

mini hydropower project, 

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) 

Limited – a 2.4MW hydro 

power project in Maliboda, 

Deraniyagala

OCT
Sale of joint venture stake in 

Heladhanavi Limited to Lak-

dhanavi Limited and became 

a 100% Renewable Energy 

Company

DEC
Sale of 75% ownership stake 

in Hemas Power PLC by 

Hemas Holdings PLC to a 

consortium comprising NDB 

Capital Holdings Limited, 

ACL Cables PLC and Trydan 

Partners (Pvt) Limited

DEC
Changed the name of the 

Company to ‘Resus Energy 

PLC’

DEC
Sale of entirety of shares 

of Butama Hydro Electricity 

Company Limited

APR 2015 
SIGNED SPPAs FOR 1.5MW-

MORAGAHA OYA HYDROPOWER 
PROJECT AND 1.4MW-GOMALE OYA 

HYDROPOWER PROJECT

AUG/SEP 2015 
CARRIED OUT CAPITAL REDUCTION 

AND SHARE REPURCHASE 
DISTRIBUTING Rs. 1.6BN 

TO SHAREHOLDERS

SEP 2015 
RAISED Rs. 1.01BN BANK LOANS FOR 

GROUP CAPITAL RESTRUCTURING

OCT 2015 
SIGNED AN SPPA FOR 1.9MW-UPPER 

HULUGANGA HYDROPOWER PROJECT
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Board of Directors as at 31st March 2016

Company Group status as at 

31st March 2016

Nature of Business Name of Directors

Resus Energy PLC Parent Venture Capital 

Company

H A S Madanayake (Chairman), G A K Nanayakkara 

(MD), U G Madanayake, C V Kulatilaka, I S Somaratne, 

Prof. K A M K Ranasinghe, U P Egalahewa PC

Giddawa Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Limited

Subsidiary (100% 

owned by Resus)

2.0MW hydropower 

project - operational

H A S Madanayake (Chairman), G A K Nanayakkara, U 

G Madanayake, C V Kulatilaka, I S Somaratne

Upper Agra Oya Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited

Subsidiary (100% 

owned by Resus)

2.6MW hydropower 

project - operational

H A S Madanayake (Chairman), G A K Nanayakkara, U 

G Madanayake, C V Kulatilaka, I S Somaratne

Okanda Power Grid 

(Pvt) Limited

Subsidiary (100% 

owned by Resus)

2.4MW hydropower 

project - operational

H A S Madanayake (Chairman), G A K Nanayakkara, U 

G Madanayake, C V Kulatilaka, I S Somaratne

Ella Dendro Electric 

(Pvt) Limited

Subsidiary (75% 

owned by Resus)

Under feasibility H A S Madanayake (Chairman), G A K Nanayakkara, 

U G Madanayake, C V Kulatilaka, I S Somaratne, I 

Gallage, C A Naotunna

Gomale Oya Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited

Subsidiary (100% 

owned by Resus)

1.4MW hydropower 

project - under 

construction

H A S Madanayake (Chairman), G A K Nanayakkara, U 

G Madanayake, C V Kulatilaka, I S Somaratne

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) 

Limited

Subsidiary (100% 

owned by Resus)

1.5MW hydropower 

project - under 

construction

H A S Madanayake (Chairman), G A K Nanayakkara, U 

G Madanayake, C V Kulatilaka, I S Somaratne

Upper Huluganga (Pvt) 

Limited

Subsidiary (100% 

owned by Resus)

1.9MW hydropower 

project - under 

construction

H A S Madanayake (Chairman), G A K Nanayakkara, U 

G Madanayake, C V Kulatilaka, I S Somaratne

Rawanakanda Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited

Subsidiary (100% 

owned by Resus)

Under feasibility H A S Madanayake (Chairman), G A K Nanayakkara, U 

G Madanayake, C V Kulatilaka, I S Somaratne

Panasian Power PLC Associate (22.3% 

owned by Resus)

Electricity Generation Dr Prathap Ramanujam (Chairman/CEO), 

D Sooriyaarachchi, G A K Nanayakkara, 

T Someswaran, M R Ameen, H A S Madanayake, R 

Sangani, S M Farook, A L Weerasinghe

U G Madanayake was appointed to the Board of Resus Energy PLC on 26/06/2015.

I S Somaratne was appointed to the Board of Resus Energy PLC and its subsidiaries on 14/10/2015 upon resignation of P K 

Jayawardena on 13/08/2015.

Group Structure

Resus Energy PLC

100%
Upper Agra Oya 

Hydro Power 
(Pvt) Ltd

100%
Okanda Power 
Grid (Pvt) Ltd

100%
Gomale Oya 
Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Ltd

100%
Moragaha Oya 

(Pvt) Ltd

100%
Upper  

Huluganga 
(Pvt) Ltd

100%
Giddawa Hydro 
Power (Pvt) Ltd

2.0MW
hydropower 

plant in 
operation in

Kandy district

2.6MW
hydropower 

plant in 
operation

in Nuwara Eliya
district

2.4MW
hydropower 

plant in 
operation
in Kegalle 

district

1.4MW
hydropower 
plant under 
construction
in Kegalle 

district

1.5MW
hydropower 
plant under 
construction

in Kandy 
district

1.9MW
hydropower 
plant under 

development
in Kandy district

5.4MW
hydropower 

plants in 
operation in 

Ratnapura and 
Nuwara Eliya 

district

6.5MW
hydropower 
plants under 
development 

and construction 
in Nuwara Eliya 

district

22.3%
Panasian Power  PLC
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Overview of hydro electricity generation from a run-of-the-river mini hydropower plant

Overview of electricity distribution

Intake weir 

Channel
Diversion

Forebay tank

Penstock

Tailrace
Power house containing
turbine and generator

132/220 kv
Grid Substation

132/220 kv
Transmission Lines

11 kv

TransformerPower Station

33 kv
Substation

415/230 v

11 kv

33 kv
415/230 v

Distribution
Transformer

Industrial Use

Industrial Use

Commercial Use

Commercial Use

Home Use

Home Use
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Group Structure Contd.

Governance Structure

SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MANAGING DIRECTOR

FINANCE
HUMAN 

RESOURCES
PROJECT 

MANAGEMENT
OPERATIONS ENVIRONMENTAL 

MANAGEMENT

AUDIT 
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE

RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS 

REVIEW COMMITTEE

External Regulations

• Code of Best Practice on Corporate 

Governance issued jointly by SEC and CA 

Sri Lanka

• Corporate Governance rules published by 

the CSE 

• Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 

• Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS and 

SLFRS)

• GRI Guidelines on Sustainability 

• Independent Audit

• Internal Audit

Internal Regulations

• Articles of Association 

• Environmental Management System 

• Project Management Manual

• Code of Business Ethics 

• Internal Control System 

• Enterprise Risk Management Framework

• HR Policies
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Delivery of Value

Rs.2,038.4Mn
Total Capital Deployed in

                          Renewable Energy Sector 

Rs.1.6Bn
Distributions to 

Shareholders

Rs.120.27Mn
Taxes paid to Government

Rs.0.5Mn
Investments in community 

development

Rs.2.24
EPS

Rs.371.1Mn
Hydropower sector Revenue

Rs.200.3Mn
Group PAT

Rs.21.0Mn
Economic Value 

Added

Rs.232.9Mn
Hydropower sector PAT

6%
Employee 

Attrition Rate

16,793 t-CO
2

Reduction in 

Greenhouse gas Emission

24.24GWh
Electricity generation from 

our fully-owned hydropower 

plants

12.0%
Return on Equity
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Financial Highlights

     Restated 

Year Ended 31st March  2016 2015 Change 2014 

  Rs. Rs.  Rs.

Operating Results

Group Revenue (Rs.)  393,049,638 575,575,817 -32% 543,675,974

Profit before finance cost and tax (Rs.)  292,106,787 391,432,344 -25% 373,455,366

Profit before Tax (Rs.)  231,092,451 340,393,565 -32% 332,192,176

Profit after Tax from Continuing Operations  200,316,744 304,552,355 -34% 316,121,980

Loss after Tax from Discontinued Operation  - (280,501,536) -100% (478,711,058)

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (Rs.)  200,316,744 24,050,819 733% (162,589,079)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent  200,455,751 (60,253,848) -433% (259,130,805)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Non-Controlling Interest  (139,007) 84,304,667 -100% 96,541,726

Dividends (Rs.)  - - - 93,900,002

Financial Position Highlights

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent  950,815,795 2,386,984,352 -60% 2,509,113,341

Total Assets (Rs.)  2,097,448,430 2,667,845,062 -21% 3,637,039,086

No of Ordinary Shares  58,390,263 125,200,002 -53% 125,200,002

Gearing (%)  53.1% 6.1% 773% 8.9%

Investor Information

Earnings/(Loss) per Share

 From Profit/(Loss) for the Year (Rs.) 2.24 (0.48) -565% (2.07)

 From Continuing Operations (Rs.) 2.24 1.76 27% 1.75

 From Discontinued Operation (Rs.) - (2.24) -100% (3.82)

Return on Equity (%) 12.0% -2.5% -588% -9.7%

Net Assets per Share (Rs.) 16.28 19.07 -15% 20.04

Interest Cover (Times) 4.86 8.10 -40% 10.58

Distributions - Share Repurchase (Rs.) 1,603,433,736 - 100% -

Dividend per Share (Rs.) - - - 0.75

Dividends Payout (%) - - - 33.2%

Dividend Cover (Times) - - - 3.01

Market Price as at 31st March (Rs.) 22.20 18.90 17% 17.80

Market Capitalisation (Rs.) 1,296,263,839 2,366,280,038 -45% 2,228,560,036
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O U R
I N S P
I R I N G
L E A D E R
S H I P
R E V I E W



“Consequent to the capital reduction exercise, the stated capital of 
the Company was reduced to Rs.300Mn, whereas, through the share 
buyback the Company distributed Rs.1.6Bn to the shareholders.”

“On the development front, the construction work of Gomale Oya project 
was completed in May 2016 and is awaiting the formal commissioning, 
whereas the development work of Moragaha Oya (1.5MW) and Upper 
Huluganga (1.9MW) projects are progressing satisfactorily. With the 
commissioning of these three projects, the total capacity of the group’s 
fully-owned operational projects will stand at 11.8MW.”

“The government’s target to become a nation self-sufficient in energy 
by 2030 shall open up more opportunities for private developers in the 
NCRE segment.”

“Our long-term strategy revolves around the renewable energy, thus we 
are on the lookout for viable renewable energy projects as part of our 
growth agenda.”

Chairman’s Statement 
- Excerpts
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Dear Shareholder,

It is my pleasure to warmly welcome you to the thirteenth 

Annual General Meeting of Resus Energy PLC.

Last year was an eventful one for your Company. It witnessed 

a major capital restructuring exercise. The development work 

of three projects also took off the ground.

The capital restructuring exercise encompassed a capital 

reduction and a share buyback exercise. Consequent to the 

capital reduction exercise, the stated capital of the Company 

was reduced to Rs.300Mn, whereas, through the share 

buyback the Company distributed Rs.1.6Bn to the shareholders.

The three new projects that took off have progressed well.

Operationally, our fully-owned operational plants recorded 

another good year in spite of the prevalence of extreme 

drought conditions towards the later part of the financial year.

The Sector Outlook

Under the “Energy Sector Development Plan for a Knowledge 

based Economy” published by the Ministry of Power and 

Energy in 2015, the energy sector envisages to capture the full 

potential of all renewable and other indigenous resources in 

order that Sri Lanka becomes a nation self-sufficient in energy 

by 2030. This articulates the government’s anticipation to 

completely replace the existing energy supply from petroleum 

sources to renewable energy sources by 2030.

To this effect, we as a business entity that engages in 

renewable energy space have much to contribute to and a lot 

to be hopeful about.

Business Outlook

The Resus Energy group reported a net profit of Rs.200.3Mn 

for the year. This is a significant increase over the previous 

year’s net profit of Rs.24.0Mn. Previous year’s profitability was 

badly impacted by Heladhanavi losses. Heladhanavi was sold 

during the previous financial year.

The group raised Rs.1.01Bn debt capital as part of the capital 

restructuring exercise. As a result, the finance cost increased 

by Rs.10Mn to Rs. 61.0Mn when compared with Rs. 51.0Mn 

recorded in the previous year.

The 3%-increase in avoided-cost-tariff positively impacted the 

financial results despite the marginal reduction in electricity 

generation compared with that of the previous year.

The group now counts for total capacity of 7.0MW from fully-

owned operational hydropower plants. We also account for 

22.3% ownership in Panasian Power PLC which counts for a 

total of 5.4MW operational hydropower capacity.

On the development front, the construction work of Gomale 

Oya project was completed in May 2016 and is awaiting the 

formal commissioning, whereas the development work of 

Moragaha Oya (1.5MW) and Upper Huluganga (1.9MW) 

projects are progressing satisfactorily. With the commissioning 

of these three projects, the total capacity of the group’s fully-

owned operational projects will stand at 11.8MW.

Future Strategic Outlook

The 3%-increase of avoided-cost-tariff in 2015 compared to 

the 28%-increase for 2014, shows that there is pressure on the 

avoided-cost-tariff to decrease in the years to come. Therefore, 

the development of new projects under the cost-based-tariff 

system is imperative to nullify the potential negative impact that 

could arise from the plants operating on avoided-cost-tariff.

Chairman’s Statement
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We are optimistic that the macro-economic factors will 

regain its growth momentum in the medium-term. This could 

contribute to consumption-led growth and an increase in 

the levels of electricity consumption, giving the industry the 

impetus to further grow and expand. The government’s target 

to become a nation self-sufficient in energy by 2030 shall open 

up more opportunities for private developers in the NCRE 

segment.

Our long-term strategy revolves around the renewable energy, 

thus we are on the lookout for viable renewable energy 

projects as part of our growth agenda.

With that summary, I wish to conclude this note. Whilst 

thanking our team for their commitment and hard work to 

bring the Company to this level, I extend my gratitude to my 

colleagues on the Board for steering the Company and guiding 

it at high-level with great success. I also thank all of you, our 

valued shareholders for showing trust and confidence in us.

Suren Madanayake

Chairman

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016





“Operationally, owing to the good performances at our hydropower 
plants, the group reported a consolidated net profit of Rs.200.3Mn for 
the year. It compares favourably against the net profit of Rs.24.0Mn 
reported in the previous year.”

“The Giddawa plant recorded the highest generation out of all our 
plants. Giddawa generated 8.71GWh (11% more than last year) at 
50% plant-utilization-level.” 

“Maximizing the returns to our shareholders is a top priority for the 
business.”

“The interest rates were conducive for the group to be geared and 
with the prevalence of the tax shield, the effective interest cost of 
debt to the group became even less. That made sense for the group 
to leverage and replace part of the equity capital with debt capital.”

Managing Director’s Review  
- Excerpts
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Resus Energy, is now a 100% renewable energy group. The 

last financial year was the first one that we operated as a pure 

renewable-energy outfit.  

During the year the group also undertook a major capital 

restructuring exercise. Accordingly, Rs.1.6Bn was returned 

to the shareholders through the repurchase of shares. This 

coincided with a capital reduction exercise. The objective of the 

capital reduction exercise was to establish an optimal capital 

structure so that the group’s capital structure properly reflects 

the investments made in the portfolio of operational and 

development projects. 

Furthermore, the last year was filled with numerous growth 

initiatives. We started the development work of three 

hydropower projects. Of this, the Gomale Oya project was 

completed in May 2016 and is awaiting formal commissioning. 

When Gomale Oya is commissioned, the aggregate capacity 

of our fully-owned operational hydropower projects will stand 

at 8.4MW. With the expected commissioning of the other two 

projects in the ensuing year, the aggregate capacity of our 

fully-owned operational projects would increase to 11.8MW. 

We also hold a 22.3% stake in Panasian Power PLC. It has two 

operational plants with an aggregate capacity of 5.4MW and 

another 3.5MW project under construction. Despite the sale of 

a 7%-stake that brought down our holding to 22.3% from 29.3% 

held at the beginning of the year, we still remain as the single 

largest shareholder of Panasian Power PLC. The sale enabled 

us to book a disposal gain of Rs.33.6Mn and Rs.15.9Mn for the 

Company and the Group respectively. 

Operational and Financial Performances

Operationally, owing to the good performances at our 

hydropower plants, the group reported a consolidated net profit 

of Rs.200.3Mn for the year. It compares favourably against 

the net profit of Rs.24.0Mn reported in the previous year. At 

the same time the consolidated net profit (attributable to the 

owners) stood at Rs.200.4Mn for the year compared to the 

loss of Rs.60.3Mn reported in the previous year. The previous 

year’s performances were badly impacted by the net loss (our 

share) of Rs.132.0Mn incurred at Heladhanavi and the book 

disposal loss of Rs.148.5Mn recorded at the point of its sale. 

Weather-wise, the last year was an erratic one. Relatively 

high rainfall was experienced in the first nine-months of the 

financial year, whereas in the last three months were effected 

by a severe drought. The combined effect of this led to a slight 

reduction in energy generation to record 42.44GWh for the 

year vis-à-vis 43.79GWh (including generation at Panasian 

Power plants) recorded for the previous year. 

However, chiefly due to the higher finance-expenses, the 

aggregate net profits from our three fully-owned hydropower 

plants stood at Rs.181.0Mn vis-à-vis Rs.245.2Mn recorded for 

the last year. This is a 26% reduction between the two years. 

Our share of net profits at Panasian Power PLC which stood at 

Rs.36.0Mn was also 26% below that of the last year. 

The Giddawa plant recorded the highest generation out of all 

our plants. Giddawa generated 8.71GWh (11% more than last 

year) at 50% plant-utilization-level. On the other hand, Agra 

Oya generated 8.33GWh at 37% plant-utilization-level and 

the Magal Ganga plant generated 7.20GWh at 34% plant-

utilization-level. Generation at both Agra Oya and Magal Ganga 

was less than their respective generation for the previous 

year. Apart from the rainfall effect, the generation at Agra Oya 

plant was hampered by one turbine going offline for over two 

months. The turbine was fully restored eventually and had 

been operational from January 2016.

The total electricity generation from Panasian Power plants 

stood at 18.20GWh compared to 19.25GWh recorded for the 

previous year. Their individual plants showed mixed-results. 

The Manelwala plant performed well generating 7.55GWh 

at 36% plant-utilization-level. This is a 1% increase over the 

last year. On the other hand, the Rathganga plant generated 

10.65GWh at 40% plant-utilization-level. That is 10% below the 

previous year. 

Although, the aggregate electricity-generation at our fully-

owned plants as well as those owned by Panasian Power 

Managing Director’s Review
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in comparative terms was marginally lower than that of the 

previous year, the overall revenues remained flat due to the 

3% increase in the avoided-cost-tariff. Except for the Magal 

Ganga power plant, the avoided-cost-tariff is applicable to our 

fully-owned power plants as well as those held at Panasian 

Power. 

Economic and the Sector Outlook 

Since 2010, until the last year, the country’s overall economy 

grew consistently over six per cent. Low inflation and 

interest rates together with stable exchange rates provided a 

conducive environment for economic activities. It was further 

compounded by favorable weather conditions increasing the 

domestic agriculture-output and hydropower generation. 

However, the year under review was a year full of uncertainty. 

Interest rates are continuously rising. Sri Lankan rupee has 

depreciated severely against the US Dollar and the Euro. The 

Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPLR) shot up from 

7.01% in March 2015 to 9.19% as of end March 2016. This is 

an increase of more than 200 basis points over a year. The Sri 

Lankan Rupee against the US Dollar depreciated 8.5% from 

133.32 to 144.69 over a year. The bank borrowings at fixed 

rates for the long-term are prohibitively expensive now. In 

the absence of a derivatives market locally for interest rate 

fixing or taking hedge-positions, the investors have no option 

but to borrow at astronomically high fixed rates or relatively 

high variable interest rates exposing the corporate earnings 

to interest rate risks thus making the overall cost of capital 

extremely high. 

On the other hand, uncertainty over the tax regime with the 

introduction of super gains tax and enforcement of capital gains 

tax have made the corporate risks greater. The complexity 

in the tax structure leads to administrative inefficiencies. This 

is burdensome to business environment. The sudden shocks 

in the economy – be it through the introduction of new taxes, 

increasing tax rates, interest rates or the exchange rates, would 

certainly undermine the investor confidence. 

Increase in interest rates, exchange rates and the risks 

associated with capital will translate into higher expectation 

on investor returns. That puts the cost of capital up. When that 

happens, number of new investment opportunities have to be 

shelved.

Nevertheless, we remain hopeful for a more consistent and 

transparent economic policy regime and a positive bounce 

back in the economy in the next few years to come. When 

economy becomes active, the consumption is likely to rise. 

Then, the consumption of electricity is also likely to rise. This 

is more likely than not if the access to electricity is at a lower 

level. That is the case at present. Despite the growth in the 

power infrastructure and household electrification reaching 

beyond 90% plus level, our per capita electricity consumption, 

in comparison to many of our South Asian neighbours, is low. 

This means that our electricity demand is bound to increase. 

The policy direction of the energy sector is set out in numerous 

documents and guidelines. The ‘National Energy Policy and 

the Strategies’ gazetted back in 2008 identifies key issues in 

the energy sector. Energy-diversity and security have been 

highlighted as two important issues amongst them. As a 

measure to address energy-diversity and security, a target was 

set to reach a minimum of 10% of electrical energy supplied 

to the grid to be met from NCRE. The target year was 2015. 

Several other initiatives to promote renewable energy such 

as the establishment of the Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy 

Authority, the introduction of cost-based and technology-

specific tariff, so on and so forth emerged alongside. 

Numerous subsequent policy documents such as the “Energy 

Sector Development Plan for a Knowledge based Economy” 

published recently by the Ministry of Power and Energy 

emphasising on “green economy” and “self-sufficient nation in 

energy by 2030” have also proposed pro-renewable energy 

measures and solutions. Whilst all these can be commended 

for, the commitment on the part of the government to 

implement these policies and address the issues that hamper 

implementation, had been somewhat disappointing. We firmly 

believe that if not for the obstacles the developers are faced 

with, largely due to the lack of congruence between policy 
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setting and implementation agencies, the NCRE sector could 

have grown into much greater heights. 

Amidst the issues and the challenges, the NCRE developers 

continue to deliver. The target set in the Energy Policy is 

achieved. Hitherto, since inception in 1996, NCRE sector added 

459.8MW to the national grid through 184 power plants. It 

produced 1,466GWh for the year. Capacity-wise this reflects 

more than 10% of the country’s installed capacity and energy-

wise more than 11% of total energy generation. Of this, the 

small-hydropower sector accounts for 314.5MW from 158 

power plants. 

The existing tariff applicable to new hydropower projects are 

based on historical cost factors prevailed in 2012. However, 

almost all of the major cost factors have changed from the 

ones assumed including exchange rates, inflation rate, and tax 

holidays, etc. Since the tariff is by and large fixed for the tenure 

of the Power Purchase Agreement, given that the tariffs are 

set on outdated historical cost parameters, the development of 

projects with sustainable financial viability becomes extremely 

challenging. 

Strategic outlook of the Company

As a 100% renewable-energy company, our priority is to 

focus initially on small-hydropower segment, which we have 

considerable experience in. 

The revenues from both Giddawa and Agra-Oya plants 

operating on the avoided-cost-tariff, may come under pressure 

in the years to come. Although the tariff increased 3% in 2015, 

the effect of the three-year-average used in the computation 

is likely to exert pressure on the 2016 tariff. This is because 

the power plants in the margin with higher generation cost 

considered for the avoided-cost computation, are likely to 

operate less hours in 2016 with the prevalence of 900MW of 

low-cost coal-fired power plants in the system. As a result, 

we will be more dependent on our new projects for revenue 

growth than the ones we have. Therefore, we have now fast-

tracked the development work of our new projects. 

We completed the Gomale Oya hydropower project in May 

2016 and it is now awaiting the formal commissioning. With 

this the group will count for a total of 8.4MW of operational 

hydropower plants. The development and construction work of 

1.5MW-Moragaha Oya project and 1.9MW-Upper-HuluGanga 

project are moving on track and we expect to commission 

these two projects within the forthcoming financial year. 

Accordingly, we expect to enhance our fully-owned operational 

project portfolio to 11.8MW. 

The business expansion, especially the concurrent 

development of multiple projects require us to position the 

Company and the team appropriately. In this context we have 

already engaged in upgrading our human resources and wider 

use of information technology to ensure success. 

Maximizing the returns to our shareholders is a top priority 

for the business. The group was previously ungeared. The tax 

holidays of both Giddawa and Upper-Agra Oya lapsed. Interest 

cost arising from any debt raised at those two companies was 

subject to the tax shield. The interest rates were conducive 

for the group to be geared and with the prevalence of the tax 

shield, the effective interest cost of debt to the group became 

even less.  As a result the cost of debt vis-a-vis the cost of 

equity appeared significantly less. That made sense for the 

group to leverage and replace part of the equity capital with 

debt capital. Therefore, we were of the view that, barring 

the capital that was required to implement the medium term 

expansion plans, the excess cash held in the group plus the 

capital that can be raised through debt was raised and returned 

to the shareholder via a share buyback exercise. For this, the 

fully-owned subsidiaries borrowed a total sum of Rs.1.01Bn.

This exercise also coincided with the need to optimize the 

capital structure to reflect the investment portfolio we held 

post Heladhanavi exit in 2014. Accordingly, the stated capital 

Managing Director’s Review Contd.
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of the Company was reduced to Rs.300Mn. That followed the 

offer to repurchase the company shares up to a maximum of 

71,542,858 ordinary shares of the Company at a price of Rs. 

24/- per ordinary share. Based on the applications received, 

the Company repurchased a total of 66,809,739 ordinary 

shares from the shareholders. Accordingly, the Company 

distributed a sum of approximately Rs.1.6Bn in September 

2015 to the shareholders who accepted the repurchase offer. 

The number of shares in the Company post repurchase now 

stands 58,390,263 reflecting the stated capital amounting to 

Rs.300Mn.

Conclusion

Needless to say that the achievements of your Company 

has largely been due to the dedication and the efforts of an 

exceptionally committed team which we are fortunate to have. 

Our team-work exemplifies and personifies the commitment 

to each other and our organization. I thank my colleagues who 

have worked hand in hand with me in our quest to taking this 

company into greater heights. 

Let me extend my sincere gratitude to my fellow colleagues 

on the Board and those who were with us in the past and to all 

of you, our valued shareholders, for your trust and confidence 

placed in us. 

Kishan Nanayakkara

Managing Director

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May, 2016
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Board of Directors

Left to right

Mr. C V Kulatilaka, Mr. U G Madanayake, Mr. H A S Madanayake, Mr. G A K Nanayakkara, Professor K A M K Ranasinghe,  

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC, Mr. I S Somaratne

Directors resigned during the year

Mr P K Jayawardena (resigned w.e.f 13/08/2015)
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Mr H A S Madanayake 
Non–Executive Chairman
Appointed to the Board on 6th January 2015 

Skills and Experience: Mr Suren Madanayake had his 
education at Royal College, Colombo and qualified as a 
Mechanical Engineer from the University of Texas at Austin, 
USA.

Membership of Board Sub-Committees: Member of Board 
Remuneration Committee

Current Memberships on Corporate Boards: Non-
Executive Chairman, Resus Energy PLC; Non-Executive 
Director, Panasian Power PLC; Managing Director, ACL 
Cables PLC, ACL Plastics PLC, Lanka Olex Cables (Pvt) Ltd.; 
Deputy Chairman, Kelani Cables PLC; Director, Ceylon Bulbs 
and Electricals Ltd., ACL Metals and Alloys (Pvt) Ltd., ACL 
Polymers (Pvt) Ltd., ACL-Kelani Magnet Wire (Pvt) Ltd., Ceylon 
Copper (Pvt) Ltd., ACL Electric (Pvt) Ltd., SM Lighting (Pvt) Ltd., 
Fab Foods (Pvt) Ltd., and Ceylon Tapioca Ltd.; Chairman, CCC 
Foundation of Sri Lanka, an approved charity.

Mr G A K Nanayakkara 
Managing Director
Appointed to the Board at inception of the Company in June 
2003

Skills and Experience: Mr Kishantha Nanayakkara is a Fellow 
of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, UK 
and an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 
England and Wales. He also holds an MSc in Finance from the 
Birmingham Business School, University of Birmingham, UK 
and the AMP from Said Business School, University of Oxford.

Mr Nanayakkara has held several senior management 
positions and directorships in companies ranging from 
manufacturing to financial services during a career spanning 
over 20 years. He has served on the Board of the Sri Lanka 
Sustainable Energy Authority, as an advisor to the National 
Council for Economic Development and as a Consultant to the 
PERC in the past.

Membership of Board Sub-Committees: Member of Board 
Related Party Transactions Review Committee

Current Memberships on Corporate Boards: Managing 
Director, Resus Energy PLC; Non-Executive Director, Panasian 
Power PLC.

Mr U G Madanayake
Non–Executive Director
Appointed to the Board on 26th June 2015 

Skills and Experience: Mr Upali Madanayake had his early 
education at Ananda College, Colombo. He graduated from 
the University of Cambridge England in 1958, and had his MA 
(Cantab) conferred on him in 1962. He is a Barrister-at-law 
(Lincoln’s Inn) and an Attorney-at-law of the Supreme Court of 
Sri Lanka. 

Mr Upali Madanayake started his working life managing 
family-owned plantations until most of the lands were taken 
over by the State under the Land Reform Law of 1972. He 
still continues to have an active interest in agriculture. He 
joined the Board of Associated Motorways Limited, and 
subsequently became the Deputy Chairman of the Company. 
He became a Director of ACL Cables PLC (then Associated 
Cables Limited) in January 1963, its Managing Director in July 
1978 and Chairman cum Managing Director in May 1990. He 
relinquished his duties as Managing Director in September 
2005 after appointing Mr Suren Madanayake as Managing 
Director. With the acquisition of Kelani Cables PLC by the ACL 
group in October 1999, he was appointed as Chairman of 
Kelani Cables PLC. He has over 50 years’ experience in the 
cable industry. 

Membership of Board Sub-Committees: None

Current Memberships on Corporate Boards: Non-Executive 
Director, Resus Energy PLC; Chairman, Fab Foods (Pvt) Ltd., 
Ceylon Tapioca Ltd., ACL Plastics PLC, Lanka Olex Cables (Pvt) 
Ltd.; Director, ACL Metals and Alloys (Pvt) Ltd., ACL Polymers 
(Pvt) Ltd., Ceylon Copper (Pvt) Ltd., ACL-Kelani Magnet Wire 
(Pvt) Ltd., Ceylon Bulbs and Electricals Ltd., and ACL Electric 
(Pvt) Ltd. 

Mr C V Kulatilaka 
Non–Executive Director
Appointed to the Board on 6th January 2015

Skills and Experience: Mr Vajira Kulatilaka holds a BSc in 
Civil Engineering with First Class Honours from the University 
of Moratuwa; MSc in Industrial Engineering and Management 
from the Asian Institute of Technology, Thailand; a Chartered 
Financial Analyst (CFA) and a Fellow Member of The Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants, UK.

Mr Kulatilaka counts over 30 years of experience in Banking 
and Finance and Capital Market operations in Sri Lanka. He 
has been instrumental in introducing a number of innovative 

Board of Directors Contd.
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financial products to the country. Prior to joining the NDB 
Group, Mr Kulatilaka worked at Sampath Bank, USAID and 
CKN Fund Management (Pvt) Limited.

Membership of Board Sub-Committees: None 

Current Memberships on Corporate Boards: Non-Executive 
Director, Resus Energy PLC; CEO of the Investment Banking 
cluster of the NDB Group; Director, NDB Investment Bank, 
NDB Securities (Pvt) Ltd., and NDB Wealth Management Ltd.; 
Chairman of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Mr I S Somaratne 
Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board on 16th February 2015 as the Alternate 
Director to Mr C V Kulatilaka and appointed as a Non-Executive 
Director w.e.f 14th October 2015

Skills and Experience: Mr Isuru Somaratne holds a BSc in 
Mechanical Engineering from the University of Moratuwa, 
and an MBA in Finance from the UCLA Anderson School of 
Management; An Associate Member of the Chartered Institute 
of Management Accountants, UK. 

Mr Somaratne started his investment banking career in 2007 in 
the Corporate Advisory division at NDB Investment Bank and 
now functions as a Manager at NDB Capital Holdings Ltd. He 
has been involved in many successful transactions carried out 
at NDB Group’s investment banking cluster during his career. 
Previously he had briefly worked at MAS Active Linea Intimo 
and EMC Corporation of the United States.

Membership of Board Sub-Committees: Member of Board 
Audit Committee, and Board Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee.

Current Memberships on Corporate Boards: Non-Executive 
Director, Resus Energy PLC.

Professor K A M K Ranasinghe 
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board on 19th January 2015

Skills and Experience: Prof. Malik Ranasinghe is a Senior 
Professor in Civil Engineering and the immediate past Vice-
Chancellor at the University of Moratuwa; an International 
Professional Engineer, Chartered Engineer and a Fellow of 
the Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka; Fellow of the National 
Academy of Sciences, Sri Lanka; PhD from University of 
British Columbia, Vancouver, Canada in Civil Engineering as 
a Canadian Commonwealth Scholar; Published extensively 

on Engineering and Environmental Economics with Project 
Management; Recipient of accolades and awards including 
the General Research Committee Award for Outstanding 
Contribution to Sri Lankan Science from the Sri Lanka 
Association for Advancement for Science, the Committee of 
Vice-Chancellors and Directors (CVCD) Excellence Award 
for 2012 for the Most Outstanding Senior Researcher in 
Technology and related Sciences, the Award for Outstanding 
Contribution to Education 2012 at World Education Congress 
and the Education Leadership Award 2013 at the 4th Asia’s 
Best B-School Awards, Singapore.

Membership of Board Sub-Committees: Chairman of Board 
Audit Committee, Member of Board Remuneration Committee, 
and Member of Board Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee

Current Memberships on Corporate Boards: Independent 
Non-Executive Director, Resus Energy PLC; Non-Executive 
Director, Sampath Bank PLC; Independent Non-Executive 
Director, Textured Jersey Lanka PLC, Access Engineering PLC, 
and United Motors Lanka PLC.

Mr U P Egalahewa PC 
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board on 19th January 2015

Skills and Experience: Mr Uditha Egalahewa had his basic 
legal education at Sri Lanka Law College followed by a Masters 
in Law (LLM), University of Colombo; a second Masters 
degree (LLM), as a World Bank sponsored scholar, from the 
International Maritime Law Institute of Malta in which he 
graduated with distinction and was awarded the Professor 
Walter Muller Prize. He also holds a Postgraduate Diploma in 
Insurance Law from the University of Colombo. 

Mr Egalahewa counts over 25 years at the Bar. He joined the 
Chamber of the Attorney General of Sri Lanka in 1990 and 
served as counsel attached to the Government Institutions 
Branch, a State Counsel and then as a Senior State Counsel 
for a period of 15 years. He was appointed as a President’s 
Counsel in 2012.

Membership of Board Sub-Committees: Chairman of Board 
Remuneration Committee, Chairman of Board Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee and Member of Board Audit 
Committee.

Current Memberships on Corporate Boards: Independent 
Non-Executive Director, Resus Energy PLC.
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Kavinda Perera
B.Sc. Fin. Mgt, CIMA Passed Finalist 
Senior Finance Manager

Management Team

Ravi Rathnasekara
FCA, MBA (Fin.), M.Sc. (Fin. Econ.) 

Chief Financial Officer

Kishan Nanayakkara
M.Sc. (Fin.), FCMA, ACA (ICAEW), AMP 
(Oxford) 
Managing Director

Krishantha Wimalasiri
Chartered Engineer, B.Sc. Eng. 
(Electrical), Certified Expert in Climate & 
Renewable Energy Finance 

Senior Project Manager

Prasad Mudugama 
B.Sc. Eng. (Mechanical), B.Sc. Defense 
Studies and Military Eng., AMIE (IESL) 

Senior Project Manager

Padmasiri Bandara
B.Sc. Eng. (Mechanical), M.Sc. 
Engineering Mgt., AMIE (IESL) 
Senior Manager, Operations and 

Maintenance

Nirmala Perera
B.Sc. Business Administration (Human 
Resource Mgt.), National Diploma in 
HRM

Head of Human Resources

Sangeeth Silva
B.Sc. Bio Science, MPhil (reading) 
Environmental Management & 

Compliance Officer

Athula Bandara
B.Sc. Eng. (Mechanical) 
Engineer
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Business Value Creation Model

Value creation is the primary objective of Resus. Our business 

model persistently refines the process of value creation to its 

diverse group of stakeholders for many years since the origin. 

The Five Capitals Model (financial, human, environmental, 

social and relationship, and intellectual capital) as set out below 

reflects our efficient and productive capital management to 

ensure that every stakeholder expectation is exceeded in a 

sustainable manner. Value creation is an instilled principle in 

our corporate DNA and all our actions unveil this objective that 

we stand for. 

Impact management is a vital element in our value creation 

protocol. We therefore are extremely vigilant about our impact 

on the economy, society and environment that we operate 

in, to preserve and optimise the value created. The entire 

value creation model is nurtured by the visionary leadership, 

corporate strategy, enterprise risk management, code of 

conduct and governance. Responsible corporate citizenship 

and sustainability are two priorities that we do not compromise 

on in our business conduct. 

We cooperate with all our stakeholders to obtain needed 

contributions for the value creation process. The stakeholders’ 

relentless willingness to cooperate with us is a clear reflection 

of trust and confidence that stakeholders have kept on us 

over many years. We, Resus, as a responsible corporate 

citizen create value through every activity we undertake by 

productively leveraging our core strengths, our expertise and 

our resources to exceed expectations of our stakeholders who 

keep trust and confidence in us.

Social and Relationship Capital 
(Customers, Suppliers, Contractors, 
Government Institutions, and Local 

Communities)

Human Capital  
(Employees)

Intellectual Capital
(Knowledge and Experience) 

Environmental Capital 
(Head and Flow)

Financial Capital
(Invested Capital)

Financial Feasibility and Due 
Diligence

Project Evaluations and 
Acquisitions

Project Management 

Supplier Relationship 
Management

Project Commissioning and 
Operations

Vision, Mission and 
Values

Business Strategy Risk Management
Business Ethics and 

Governance

Group Environmental 
Management System

Resus’ impact on 
Economy, Society and 

Environment

Creating 
Value to our 
Stakeholders

The Five Capital 
Inputs

Build, Own and 
Operate Renewable 

Energy Projects
Outputs
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Resus Strategy

We believe that there is great potential in the renewable 
energy sector in Sri Lanka. Although there is a crowding-out 
threat in the hydropower segment, opportunities in the other 
renewable energy segments are yet to explode. There are 
opportunities emerging in the wind power space. Solar and 
biomass segments too are emerging gradually. Private sector 
participation in the industry is much needed to meet the ever 
increasing demand for energy.

At the same time, the overseas opportunities are continuing to 
emerge, especially in the African continent.

On the other hand, with the probable future reduction in 
‘avoided-cost-tariff’ fueled by the reduction in oil prices and 
low cost of coal-fired power generation, we are required to 
aggressively explore the development opportunities in new 
projects that will operate under the cost-based-and-technology-
specific tariff.

Efficient and productive capital management is also a vital 
aspect to succeed in the sector. We are conscious about our 
returns. Whilst we would strive to maximize the returns from 
the operational and new projects, we would, at the same time, 
rigorously watch our capital structure in order that we exhaust 
the opportunities to maximize returns through its optimization. 
The capital reduction and the share-repurchase exercises 
carried out in the financial year under review, were aligned 
with the objective to maximize returns through the optimum 
capital deployment structure.

Our growth strategy is focused around the hydropower 
segment. We would also cautiously explore the opportunities 
in the other renewable energy spaces such as wind, solar 
and biomass. Through that, we stand to create “Value” to our 
stakeholders and fulfill our “Vision” to build a commercially 
sustainable, energetic world class organization that cares for 
people and planet in meeting people’s electricity needs.
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Aspect Significance 

to the Group

Aspect Boundary Materiality

Internal External To the Group To the 

Stakeholder

ECONOMIC

Economic Performance High * High High

Market Presence Low

Indirect Economic Impact Moderate * Moderate High

Procurement Practices High * High High

ENVIRONMENT

Materials Moderate * Moderate Moderate

Energy High * * High High

Water High * High High

Biodiversity High * Moderate High

Emissions High * High High

Effluents and Waste Moderate * Moderate High

Products and Services Low

Compliance High * High High

Transport Low

Overall Moderate * * Moderate Moderate

Supplier Environment Assessment Moderate * High Low

Environment Grievance Mechanisms High * Moderate High

SOCIAL: LABOUR PRACTICES AND DECENT WORK

Employment High * High High

Labour/Management Relations Low

Occupational Health and Safety High * High High

Training and Education High * High High

Diversity and Equal Opportunity Moderate * Moderate Moderate

Equal Remuneration for Women and Men Low

Supplier Assessment for Labour Practices High * High Moderate

Labour Practices Grievance Mechanisms High * High High

Reporting Parameters - Material Aspects

Material aspect boundaries with regard to reporting on sustainability impacts for GRI content index - Specific Standard 

Disclosures.
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Aspect Significance 

to the Group

Aspect Boundary Materiality

Internal External To the Group To the 

Stakeholder

SOCIAL: HUMAN RIGHTS

Investment Low

Non-discrimination High * High High

Freedom of Association and Collective 

Bargaining

High * High High

Child Labour High * High High

Forced Labour or Compulsory Labour High * High High

Security Practices Low

Indigenous Rights Low

Assessment Low

Supplier Human Rights Assessment Low

Human Rights Grievance Mechanisms High * High High

SOCIAL: SOCIETY

Local Communities High * High High

Anti-Corruption High * High Moderate

Public Policy Low

Anti-Competitive Behaviour Low

Compliance High * High High

Supplier Assessment for Impacts on Society Moderate * Moderate Moderate

Grievance Mechanisms for Impacts on Society High * High High

SOCIAL: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Customer Health and Safety High * High High

Product and Service Labeling Low

Marketing Communications Low

Customer Privacy Moderate * Moderate High

Compliance High * High High
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Stakeholder Engagement

Resus is committed to sustainable development and acknowledge our duty to act responsibly towards our stakeholders. 

Stakeholders have varying interests and Resus has established a protocol to identify stakeholder interests and manage significant 

stakeholder aspects. The capital report and impact management report extensively discuss stakeholder impact from our business 

in fulfilling their expectations. Through our ethical business conduct, environmental management system, human resources and 

financial management functions and relationship management, we ensure that we effectively address stakeholder expectations 

and make positive impact to economy, environment and society from our business. We sense and feel that our management 

approach in fulfilling stakeholder expectations is achieved. 

Management approach for stakeholder identification and engagement
Our project team comprehensively identifies stakeholders at the planning stage of the projects and it is a crucial element in our 

in-house project management policy. Stakeholder expectations are mapped using the data collected from various stakeholder 

groups from initial engagements based on their past experience. Then the stakeholders are ranked according to the likely level of 

stakeholder priority and likelihood of impact on the Group. For this, the management contemplates the following;

• Parties likely to affect by operations of Resus

• Parties who have responsibilities towards Resus

• Parties likely to influence Resus’ operations

Based on above aspects, we determine the importance and the extent of engagement with the stakeholders. The Group engages 

with stakeholders on a periodic basis with a view to identifying stakeholder expectations and assesses the outcomes of its 

engagement. 

Value created for Stakeholders

Stakeholder Value Created

Shareholders 

Shareholders’ Funds

Rs.950.8Mn (2015 – Rs.2,386.9Mn)

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent

Rs.200.4Mn (2015 – Loss of Rs.60.3Mn)

Earnings per Share

Rs.2.24 (2015 - Rs.1.76 from continuing operations)

Economic Value Added

Rs.21.0Mn (2015 – Loss of Rs.67.0Mn)

Distributions

Rs.1.6Bn (2015 – Nil)

Lenders

Borrowings

Rs.1,060.0Mn (2015 – Nil)

Capital repayments

Rs.70.1Mn (2015 – Nil)

Interest charges

Rs.61.0Mn (2015 – Rs.51.0Mn)

Preference share redemptions

Rs.67.5Mn (2015 – Rs.67.5Mn)

Zero default of capital and interest payments
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Stakeholder Value Created

Customers

Signed SPPAs for 4.8MW of hydropower plants during 

the year

Electricity units dispatched from fully-owned hydropower plants

24.24GWh (2015 – 24.54GWh)

Capital investments during the year

Rs.272.1Mn (2015 – Rs.165.8Mn)

Suppliers

Registered local civil contractors 8 (2015 – 4)

Registered European electromechanical suppliers 

5 (2015 – 3)

Payments to local civil contractors

Rs.56.0Mn (2015 – Nil)

Payments to overseas suppliers

Rs.160.0Mn (2015 – Nil)

Employees

Number of Employees

71 (2015 – 65)

Employee Attrition Rate

6% (2015 – 14%)

Average training hours per employee per year

6.65 (2015 – 11.75)

Statutory payments in relation to employees

Rs.15.75Mn (2015 – Rs.10.99Mn)

Number of Employee grievances received 

One (2015 – Nil)

Society and Environment

Natural river water used and fully recycled 

246,605,940m3 (2015 – 241,232,982m3)

Community relationships

Zero non-compliance with environmental regulations

Investments in community infrastructure development

Rs.0.5Mn (2015 – Rs.1.8Mn)

Reduction in carbon emission (t-CO
2
)

16,793 (2015 – 17,002)

Electricity generation from renewable energy sources

Employment opportunities for rural inhabitants

Responsible corporate citizenship

Government

Project approvals from government institutions including 

CEA, SEA and local authorities

Taxes paid/payable

Rs.120.27Mn (2015 – Rs.24.75Mn)

Zero non-compliance with laws and regulations

The table below illustrates how Resus engages with important stakeholder groups, frequency of engagement, major areas under 

consideration, significant stakeholder aspects and the Group’s response for significant stakeholder aspects.
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Significant Stakeholder Aspects

# Significant Stakeholder Aspect

1.a) Highest return on Investment and risk management

2.a) Covenants in loan agreements

3.a) Electricity generation from non-conventional renewable energy sources and settlement for electricity units dispatched at 

applicable tariff rates

4.a) Reliability of electromechanical equipment supplied by European suppliers and timely settlements

4.b) Standards and provisions related to civil construction contracts and timely settlements for work done and certified

5.a) Training for youth

5.b) Employee training and development

5.c) Occupational health and safety

5.d) Employee recognition and rewards

6.a) New employment opportunities for villagers

6.b) Ethical business conduct

6.c) Concerns and needs of local communities

7.a) Compliance with conditions and guidelines stipulated in government approvals, laws and regulations

8.a) Emissions and waste

8.b) Generation of clean and green energy

8.c) Negative Environmental Externalities

8.d) Water

H - High (Issues of High significance on both the stakeholder and the Company. Addressed in more detail in impact management 

section of the Annual Report)

M - Medium (Issues of Medium significance on both the stakeholder and the Company. Addressed in some detail in impact 

management section of the Annual Report)

L - Low (Issues of Low significance)

H

M

L

L                                       M                                   H

 Likelihood of impact on the Group
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(1.a), (3.a), (4.a), 
(5.b), (5.c), (5.d), 
(6.a), (6.b), (7.a), 
(8.a), (8.b), (8.c), 

(8.d)

 (4.b), (5.a), 
(6.c)

(2.a)
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Financial Capital

Financial Capital
Financial Capital is the capital employed in the business to 

create economic value. The Financial Statements present 

the debt and equity employed in the Group’s business in 

monetary terms. The analysis of the financial position, the 

capital structure and the financial performance presented in 

the financial review below provides insights into the financial 

capital of the Group and of the Company. Manufactured capital 

is an integral part of Group’s financial capital.

Financial Review
Face value comparison of the consolidated financial results of 

the year with those of the previous year cannot be made. That 

is because the basis of consolidating the financial results of 

Panasian Power PLC in our books was changed from the full 

(line-by-line) consolidation to equity method of accounting from 

1st December 2014. This was done after our board decided 

to treat Panasian Power as an associate company from a 

subsidiary previously. Therefore, the previous years’ financial 

statements were somewhat distorted with the financial results 

of Panasian Power PLC being fully consolidated as a subsidiary 

for eight months. Therefore, to make any sensible comparison, 

our previous year’s financial statements have to be normalised 

to reflect the results under the equity method of accounting in 

accordance with LKAS-28, ‘Investments in Associates and Joint 

Ventures’. Accordingly, the net profits attributable to equity 

holders provide the most meaningful comparability on year on 

year financial performances.

Profitability
For the year, the Group recorded a net profit of Rs.200.3Mn 

from continuing operations compared to Rs.304.5Mn recorded 

for the previous year. This indicates a 34% reduction. However, 

the net profits for the previous year included Rs.84.3Mn 

attributable to non-controlling shareholders of Panasian Power 

PLC. Accordingly, the net profits attributable to the equity 

holders from continuing operations between the years stood 

at Rs.200.4Mn and Rs.220.2Mn for the year and the previous 

year respectively. This is a 9% reduction over the previous 

year. It primarily was a result of the higher finance cost. The 

higher finance cost arose from bank loans raised as part of 

our capital restructuring exercise. The continuing operations 

represent the Group’s hydropower operations and venture 

capital activities of the parent company - Resus Energy PLC. 

Hydropower operations were satisfactory for both years under 

review. Although the dry weather conditions prevailed in the 

later part of the financial year brought down the generation 

marginally compared to the previous year, the 3% increase 

in the avoided cost tariff enabled us to post steady operating 

profits.

Operating profits before interest and tax amounted to 

Rs.291.2Mn for the year. On the face of the financial 

statements this is a 25% decrease over the previous year. 

However, as said before, this was largely a result of the 

change in the basis of consolidation of Panasian Power PLC.

The consolidated net profits of Rs.200.3Mn recorded for 

the year compares favourably with the previous year’s 

consolidated net profits of Rs.24.0Mn. The previous year’s net 

profits were adversely impacted by the loss of Rs.132.0Mn at 

Heladhanavi (our share) and the loss of Rs.148.5Mn incurred 

at the time of its disposal. Heladhanavi related losses were 

recorded under the discontinued operation. On the other 

hand, if the net profits of Panasian Power PLC for the previous 

year is normalised to reflect it being treated as an associate 

company in our books, the Group would have reported a loss 

of Rs.60.2Mn for the previous year.
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During the year, we disposed approximately 7% of our investment in Panasian Power PLC and brought down our equity stake to 

22.3% as of the reporting date from 29.3% before.

The consolidated profit and loss is segmented and reconciled as follows for clarity:

Table 1: Analysis of consolidated profit/(loss) after tax

Segment Profit/(Loss) for the year 

Rs millions

2015/16 2014/15

Hydropower sector – fully-owned subsidiaries 181.0 245.2

Hydropower sector – Panasian Power PLC (full consolidation as a subsidiary) - 119.5*

Hydropower sector – Panasian Power PLC

only the group’s share of interest, net of tax under the equity 

method of accounting

36.0 13.6

Hydropower sector – Panasian Power PLC

Profit on partial disposal

15.9 -

Total hydropower sector contribution for the consolidated profit/(loss) 232.9 378.3

Others (32.6) (73.8)

Consolidated Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations 200.3 304.5

Thermal sector operational profit/(loss) – 47.06% (Group’s share) - (132.0)

Thermal sector loss – disposal loss - (148.5)

Total Thermal sector - discontinued operation - (280.5)

Total Consolidated Profit/(Loss) 200.3 24.0

Non-controlling interest 0.1 (84.3)*

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the Parent 200.4 (60.3)

* Full consolidation treatment for 8-months up to 30th November 2014 of Panasian Power PLC’s profits

Table 2: Analysis of profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of Resus Energy PLC (the Parent) from Panasian Power PLC

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Rs millions

2015/16 2014/15

Panasian Power PLC – full consolidation as a subsidiary - 119.5*

Panasian Power PLC – as an associate investment

only the group’s share of interest, net of

tax under the equity method of accounting

36.0 13.6

Less: Non-controlling interest - (84.3)*

Profit on partial disposal of shares in Panasian Power PLC 15.9 -

Profit attributable to equity holders of Resus Energy PLC from Panasian Power PLC 51.9 48.8

* Full consolidation treatment for 8-months up to 30th November 2014 of Panasian Power PLC’s profits
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Table 3: Analysis of segmental profit/(loss) attributable to the equity holders of the Parent

2015/16

Rs millions

2014/15

Rs millions

Profit from fully-owned hydropower subsidiaries 181.0 245.2

Profit from Panasian Power PLC attributable to the equity holders of the Parent – Table 2 51.9 48.8

Total contribution from hydropower sector towards consolidated profit/(loss) 

attributable to equity holders of the Parent

232.9 294.0

Profit/(Loss) from Resus Energy PLC, the Parent Company (32.6) (73.8)

Non-controlling interest 0.1 -

Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations attributable to equity holders of the Parent 200.4 220.2

Profit/(Loss) from Heladhanavi Limited attributable to equity holders of the Parent – 

discontinued operation

- (280.5)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the Parent 200.4 (60.3)

Table 4: Analysis of group profit/(loss) excluding results of discontinued operation

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Rs millions

2015/16 2014/15

Total Consolidated Profit/(Loss) as reported in audited financial statements 200.3 24.0

Add: losses from discontinued operation - 280.5

Total Consolidated Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations 200.3 304.5

Non-controlling interest 0.1 (84.3)*

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the Parent from continuing operations 200.4 220.2

* Full consolidation treatment for 8-months up to 30th November 2014 of Panasian Power PLC’s profits

Similarly, the performances of the hydropower operations can also be assessed. Accordingly, the consolidated profits attributable 

to the equity holders of the Company from the hydropower operations shows a 21% reduction to Rs.232.9Mn from Rs.294.0Mn 

reported for the previous year (Table-3). The considerable increase in finance cost resulting from the bank loans raised during the 

year has reduced our profits.
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The group raised Rs.950Mn term-loans and secured a Rs.60Mn overdraft facility (total of Rs.1.01Bn) as part of the capital 

restructuring process. As a result, the Group will benefit from the tax shield on finance cost of the said borrowings.

The 3%-increase in the avoided cost tariff for the calendar year 2015 increased our revenues although the electricity generation 

from our fully-owned hydropower plants was marginally less than the previous year (Table-5.1). On the other hand, power plants 

of Panasian Power PLC recorded a 5% decrease in electricity generation over the previous year (Table-5.2).

Revenue
The Group revenue represents the income derived from sale of electricity to Ceylon Electricity Board from its hydropower plants 

and income earned from the venture capital activities (Table-7). The hydropower operations recorded 42.44Mn units (kWh) of 

electricity generation for the year. Of which, 18.20GWh was derived from the hydropower plants of Panasian Power PLC (Table-5) 

and the balance 24.24Mn Units was derived from our fully-owned plants. The generation from our fully-owned plants were 

marginally lower than the previous year. Nevertheless, the revenue remained virtually flat due to the 3%-increase in avoided-

cost-tariff. On face value, the Group revenue appeared to have decreased to Rs.393.1Mn from Rs.575.6Mn in the previous year, 

whereas the revenue normalized to reflect the equity method of accounting for the previous year stands at Rs.389.3Mn (Table-7).

Table 5: Electricity Generation from hydropower plants of the Group

Electricity Generation units GWh

2015/16 2014/15

Total generation from fully-owned hydropower plants (Table 5.1) 24.24 24.54

Total generation from Panasian Power hydropower plants* (Table 5.2) 18.20 19.25

Total generation from hydropower sector 42.44 43.79

*The Group has only 22.3% stake of this as of the reporting date (29.3% in 2015)

Table 5.1: Electricity Generation from fully-owned hydropower plants

Hydropower Plant Electricity Generation units GWh

2015/16 2014/15

Giddawa plant – Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd 8.71 7.88

MagalGanga plant – Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Ltd 7.20 7.81

Upper AgraOya plant – Upper AgraOya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd 8.33 8.85

Total generation from fully-owned hydropower plants 24.24 24.54

Table 5.2: Electricity Generation from Panasian Power PLC’s hydropower plants - the Group has only 22.3% stake of the 

below as of the reporting date (29.3% in 2015)

Hydropower Plant Electricity Generation units GWh

2015/16 2014/15

Rathganga plant – Panasian Power PLC 10.65 11.78

Manelwala plant – Manelwala Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd 7.55 7.47

Total generation from Panasian Power Group 18.20 19.25
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Table 6: Hydropower Sector Revenue

Revenue Rs millions

2015/16 2014/15

Total revenue from fully-owned hydropower plants 371.1 371.0

Total revenue from Panasian Power hydropower plants - 186.3*

Total Revenue from hydropower sector 371.1 557.3

Table 7: Sector Revenue Analysis

Revenue Rs millions

2015/16 2014/15

Total revenue from fully-owned hydropower plants (Table-6) 371.1 371.0

Revenue from venture capital activities 22.0 18.3

Total 393.1 389.3

Total revenue from Panasian Power hydropower plants (Table-6) - 186.3*

Total Group Revenue 393.1 575.6

 *Reflects 8-months of Panasian Power PLC group’s full revenue up to 30th November 2014

Net Finance Cost
The Group’s net finance cost for the year increased Rs.10.0Mn over that of the previous year to Rs.61.0Mn. This was primarily 

due to the loans raised at fully-owned operational subsidiaries during the year. The loans were raised as part of the capital 

restructuring exercise whereby part of the equity capital was replaced with debt capital through repurchase of shares. The 

previous year’s finance cost includes the finance cost of Panasian Power PLC fully consolidated up to 30th November 2014.

The loans raised aggregated to Rs.950Mn term-loans and Rs.60Mn permanent overdraft. The interest rate applicable on term-

loans are fixed for each year over its tenure, varying from 8.25% to 10.75% per annum. However, the finance cost has been 

accounted for, based on Effective Interest Method in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. As per which, the effective 

interest rate stands at approximately 9.75% for each year.
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At the company level, the net finance cost incurred stood at Rs.5.7Mn. This was on account of the preference-share-dividends 

paid. The preference shares have now been fully redeemed. However, the previous year’s finance cost includes the full year’s 

preference-share-dividends and also the finance cost incurred on a short-term loan obtained by the Company to redeem the 

first tranche of the preference shares amounting to Rs.67.5Mn. Hence, the net finance cost for the year reflects a reduction of 

Rs.14.3Mn over the previous year.

Taxation
The Group tax expense consists of income tax and deferred tax expenses. The Group tax expense for the year amounted to 

Rs.30.8Mn which shows a decrease over that of the previous year which stood at Rs.35.8Mn. This reduction was caused by the 

tax benefits derived from the finance expenses on loans. However, upon expiration of 10% tax regime applicable to Giddawa 

Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited and Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited in the previous year, they now are subject to income 

tax at the rate of 12% in accordance with the Inland Revenue Act.

The Company and its subsidiaries enjoy the following tax and duty reliefs from the Government:

Company Tax and duty reliefs and concessions

Resus Energy PLC Resus Energy PLC, being a venture capital company under the Inland Revenue Act, is liable to pay 

income tax at a concessionary rate of 12%. The Company was not charged for income tax for the year 

due to the tax losses arising from the business.

Giddawa Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Limited

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited entered into an agreement with the Board of Investments of Sri 

Lanka (BOI) on 30th March 2007.

Electromechanical equipment imported for its hydropower project was exempted from customs duty 

under the BOI agreement.

As per the tax legislations, hydropower projects that have entered in to Standardized Power Purchase 

Agreements (SPPA) with Ceylon Electricity Board (CEB) are exempted from VAT and NBT charged 

for imported electromechanical equipment. Accordingly, Giddawa hydropower project received said 

exemptions on electromechanical equipment imported in 2008/09.

The first 5 years from 2008/09 to 2012/13 were exempted from income tax and thereafter 10% was 

charged on profits for two years (2013/14 and 2014/15) and at a cap of 20% for the remaining years 

under the BOI agreement. However, in accordance with section 48C of the Inland Revenue Act, profits 

of the company shall be charged at the lower rate of the BOI agreement and Inland Revenue Act. As 

per section 59E and Fifth Schedule of the Inland Revenue Act, profits of mini hydropower projects 

shall be charged for income tax at the rate of 12%. Accordingly, after expiration of 10% concessionary 

period in 2014/15, the profits of the company shall be charged for income tax at 12%. Hence, for the 

financial year ending 31st March 2016, the profits of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited was charged 

for income tax at 12% in spite of 20% rate applicable under the BOI agreement.
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Company Tax and duty reliefs and concessions

Okanda Power Grid 

(Pvt) Limited

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited entered into an agreement with the BOI on 26th August 2010.

Electromechanical equipment imported for its hydropower project were exempted from customs duty 

under the BOI Agreement.

In accordance with tax legislations, hydropower projects that have entered into an SPPA with CEB 

are granted exemptions from VAT and NBT charged for imported electromechanical equipment. 

Accordingly, Magalganga hydropower project under Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited received the 

said exemption on electromechanical equipment imported for its mini hydropower plant in 2011/12.

The first 5 years from 2011/12 to 2015/16 were exempted from income tax and thereafter 10% is 

applicable on profits for two years (2016/17 and 2017/18) and 20% for the remaining years under the 

BOI agreement. However, in accordance with section 48C of the Inland Revenue Act, profits of the 

company shall be charged at the lower rate of the BOI Agreement and Inland Revenue Act. As per 

section 59E and Fifth Schedule of the Inland Revenue Act, profits of mini hydropower projects shall be 

charged for income tax at the rate of 12%. Accordingly, after expiration of 10% concessionary regime, 

the profits of the company shall be charged for income tax at 12% in spite of 20% rate applicable 

under the BOI agreement. For the financial year ending 31st March 2016, the profits of Okanda Power 

Grid (Pvt) Limited was exempted from income tax under the BOI agreement.

Upper Agra Oya 

Hydro Power (Pvt) 

Limited

Upper Agra Oya Hydropower (Pvt) Limited entered into an agreement with the Board of Investments 

of Sri Lanka (BOI) on 29th January 2004.

Electromechanical equipment imported for its hydropower project were exempted from customs duty 

under the BOI agreement.

In accordance with tax legislations, hydropower projects that have entered in to SPPA with CEB 

are granted exemptions from VAT and NBT charged for imported electromechanical equipment. 

Accordingly, Upper Agra Oya hydropower project (then under Senok Mark Hydro (Pvt) Limited) 

enjoyed the said exemptions on import of electromechanical equipment for its mini hydropower plant 

in 2005/06.

The first 5 years from 2008/09 to 2012/13 were exempted from income tax and thereafter 10% was 

charged on profits for two years (2013/14 and 2014/15) and a maximum of 20% will be applicable for 

the remaining years under the BOI agreement. However, in accordance with section 48C of the Inland 

Revenue Act, profits of the company shall be charged at the lower rate of the BOI agreement and 

Inland Revenue Act. As per section 59E and Fifth Schedule of the Inland Revenue Act, profits of mini 

hydropower projects shall be charged for income tax at the rate of 12%. Accordingly, after expiration 

of concessionary period for tax at 10% in 2014/15, the profits of the company shall be charged for 

income tax at 12%. Hence, for the financial year ending 31st March 2016, the profits of Upper Agra 

Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited was charged for income tax at 12% in spite of 20% rate applicable 

under the BOI agreement.
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Company Tax and duty reliefs and concessions

Gomale Oya Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited entered into an agreement with the BOI on 14th August 2015.

Electromechanical equipment imported for its hydropower project were exempted from customs duty 

under the BOI agreement.

In accordance with tax legislations, hydropower projects that have entered into an SPPA with CEB 

are granted exemptions from VAT and NBT charged for imported electromechanical equipment. 

Accordingly, Gomale Oya hydropower project received the said exemptions on import of 

electromechanical equipment for its mini hydropower plant in 2015/16.

The company was not granted any tax holiday under the BOI Agreement. However, as per section 

59E and Fifth Schedule of the Inland Revenue Act, the profits of mini hydropower projects shall be 

charged for income tax at the rate of 12%. The commercial operation of Gomale Oya Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Limited has not begun as of the reporting date.

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) 

Limited

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Limited entered into an agreement with the BOI on 3rd March 2016.

Electromechanical equipment to be imported for its hydropower project shall be exempted from 

customs duty under the BOI agreement.

In accordance with tax legislations, hydropower projects that have entered in to an SPPA with CEB 

are granted exemptions from VAT and NBT charged for imported electromechanical equipment. 

Accordingly, Moragaha Oya hydropower project will receive the said exemption on import of 

electromechanical equipment for its mini hydropower plant in the ensuing financial year.

The first 5 years from the year of assessment in which the company commences to make profits or 

any year of assessment not later than two years from the date of commencement of commercial 

operations shall be exempted from income tax and thereafter 10% tax shall be charged on profits 

for two years and 20% for the remaining years under the BOI Agreement. However, in accordance 

with section 48C of the Inland Revenue Act, profits of the company shall be charged at the lower 

rate of the BOI Agreement and Inland Revenue Act. As per section 59E and Fifth Schedule of the 

Inland Revenue Act, profits of mini hydropower projects shall be charged for income tax at the rate of 

12%. Accordingly, after expiration of the tax holiday, the lower of the rates applicable under the BOI 

agreement or the Inland Revenue Act will be applicable. The commercial operation of Moragaha Oya 

(Pvt) Limited has not begun as of the reporting date.
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Company Tax and duty reliefs and concessions

Upper Huluganga (Pvt) 

Limited

Upper Huluganga (Pvt) Limited intends to enter into a BOI agreement to enjoy customs duty 

exemptions and tax reliefs that would prevail during that time.

In accordance with tax legislations, hydropower projects that have entered in to an SPPA with CEB 

are granted exemptions from VAT and NBT charged for imported electromechanical equipment. 

Accordingly, Upper Huluganga hydropower project will receive the said exemption on import of 

electromechanical equipment for its mini hydropower plant in the ensuing financial year.

As per section 59E and Fifth Schedule of the Inland Revenue Act, profits of mini hydropower projects 

shall be charged for income tax at the rate of 12%. The commercial operation of Upper Huluganga 

(Pvt) Limited has not begun as of the reporting date.

Panasian Power PLC 

group

Manelwala Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, which is a subsidiary of Panasian Power PLC was liable for 

income tax at the rate of 10% for the year. Panasian Power PLC is currently enjoying a full tax holiday 

under the Section 18A of the Inland Revenue Act which shall continue up to the financial year ended 

31st March 2018.

Super Gain Tax
In accordance with the Finance Bill passed in Parliament on 20th October 2015, the Super Gain Tax (SGT) was levied on each 

company of a group of companies, of which the aggregate of the profits before income tax of all subsidiaries and the holding 

company in that group of companies, exceeds Rs.2.0Bn based on the audited financial statements, for the year of assessment 

commenced on 1st April 2013, at the rate of 25 per centum, on the taxable income of each such company, for such year of 

assessment, notwithstanding that the profit before income tax of any such company does not exceed Rs.2.0Bn.

However, for the purpose of computing taxable income in relation to a company which has entered into an agreement with 

the BOI under section 17 of the BOI Law, No. 4 of 1978 and has become liable to income tax after expiration of its period of 

tax exemption as per such agreement, means the profit before income tax of such company, based on the audited financial 

statements.

Resus Energy PLC (formerly known as Hemas Power PLC) and its subsidiaries being in the Hemas Group during 2013/14 financial 

year where Hemas Group had earned an aggregate of Group profit before income tax exceeding Rs.2.0Bn was liable for Super 

Gain Tax. However, the Company, Resus Energy PLC, was not liable for SGT as it reported a tax loss for the year under concern. 

The subsidiary companies of Resus Energy PLC that have entered into BOI agreements but the tax exemption periods have 

already expired as per such companies were liable for SGT on their accounting profit before income tax based on audited financial 

statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2014. Accordingly, the Resus Energy group’s SGT exposure as calculated in 

accordance with above provisions amounted to Rs.30.1Mn. The said SGT liability was fully paid by those respective companies in 

three equal monthly installments commenced from 31st October 2015.

According to the Part III of the Finance Act No. 10 of 2015, which was certified on 30th October 2015, the Super Gain Tax shall be 

deemed to be an expenditure in the financial statements relating to the year of assessment which commenced on 1st April 2013. 

The Act supersedes the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, hence the expense of Super Gain Tax is accounted 

in accordance with the requirements of the said Act as recommended by the Statement of Alternative Treatment (SoAT) on 

Accounting for Super Gain Tax issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, dated 24th November 2015. As such 

the said SGT payments by the Group have been charged to the opening consolidated retained earnings and restated the same for 

this effect.
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Capital Structure
Shareholders’ funds
It is our intention to maintain a healthy capital structure which is both efficient and well-balanced in meeting business growth that 

drives long-term returns and the short-term returns to the shareholders. In this regard, our Board proposed a capital restructuring 

exercise. The exercise led to a distribution of Rs.1.6Bn to the shareholders through repurchase of shares. Therefore, as of 31st 

March 2016, the total shareholders’ funds attributable to the equity holders of the Company decreased 60% against that of the 

previous year to Rs.950.8Mn. This is further explained in the next section.

Gearing
Consequent to Rs.1.01Bn loans raised as part of the capital restructuring exercise, the net-gearing (net debt to capital employed 

less surplus cash) of the Group now stands at 51.9%.

As at 31st March

Group

2016

Rs. Mn

2015

Rs. Mn

Total long-term interest bearing debt 858.4 -

Total short-term interest bearing debt (current portion of interest bearing debt) 124.6 -

Other long-term Financial Liabilities 86.8 86.6

Other current Financial Liabilities - 66.2

Bank overdraft 12.0 1.8

Total Debt 1,081.8 154.6

Surplus cash 48.4 690.5

Net debt/(cash) 1,033.4 (535.9)

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent 950.8 2,386.9

Non-controlling interest 5.8 2.5

Total equity 956.6 2,389.4

Capital employed (total debt + total equity) 2,038.4 2,544.0

Capital employed less surplus cash 1,990.0 1,853.5

Total gearing (total debt / capital employed) 53.1% 6.1%

Net gearing (net debt / capital employed less surplus cash) 51.9% 0%

The Contractual Obligations to Financial Institutions as at reporting date are given below:

Obligation Amount due Repayment terms and Securities

As at 31st March 2016

Rs millions

As at 31st March 2015

Rs millions

Long-term Borrowings (including 

the current portion)

983.0 - Refer note 13 to the Financial 

Statements

Overdraft 12.0 1.8 On demand

Letter of Credit 67.0 63.0 As per LC conditions

Bank Guarantees 4.4 - As per Guarantee conditions

Total 1,066.4 64.8



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 56

Capital Reduction and Share Repurchase
As explained in the previous section, the Group carried out a capital restructuring exercise during the year. The objective of it was 

to establish an efficient capital structure to reflect our current investment portfolio whilst maximizing returns to our shareholders. 

Therefore, the Board recommended to the shareholders of the Company to reduce the stated capital to Rs. 300,000,000/- (in terms 

of Section 59 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007) and repurchase up to a maximum of 71,542,858 ordinary shares from and out 

of the issued ordinary shares of the Company at a price of Rs. 24/- per share (in terms of Section 56 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 

2007). Consequently, the shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 14th August 2015 approved the following:

i. Reduction of Stated Capital
The stated capital of the Company is reduced to Rs 300,000,000/-. Accordingly, the stated capital as recorded in Companies’ Form 

6 dated 23rd September 2010 filed by the Company with the Registrar General of Companies was Rs. 1,674,882,957/- be reduced 

by Rs. 1,374,882,957/- to Rs. 300,000,000/. However, prior to the said capital reduction, the stated capital shown in the financial 

statements of the Company was Rs. 1,539,882,957/-, excludes the redeemable preference shares issued by the Company. 

Consequently, the reduction in the stated capital in the books of account of the Company is Rs. 1,239,882,957/- to reflect Rs. 

300,000,000/- stated capital after the said capital reduction represented by 125,200,002 ordinary shares. There is no change to the 

number of shares in issue before and after the capital reduction.

ii. Payment of consideration for repurchase of shares
The payment by the Company of the consideration for the repurchase of up to a maximum of 71,542,858 ordinary shares in 

the Company from its shareholders on the basis of four (04) ordinary shares for every seven (07) ordinary shares held by such 

shareholders at a price per share of Rs.24/- amounting to a total sum of Rs. 1,717,028,592/-, being (a) a distribution by the 

Company in terms of Section 56 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and (b) a major transaction of the Company in terms of 

Section 185 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

Share Repurchase by Resus Energy PLC
Out of 71,542,858 ordinary shares offered to be repurchased, the Board resolved to repurchase a total of 66,809,739 ordinary 

shares based on the applications received from the shareholders for the acceptance of the offer. Accordingly, the Company 

distributed a sum of Rs. 1,603,433,736/- on 18th September 2015 to the shareholders who accepted the repurchase offer on a 

fair and reasonable basis determined by the Board. The remaining number of ordinary shares at Resus Energy PLC after the 

cancellation of repurchased shares amounts to 58,390,263.

The repurchase of shares was carried out in accordance with the applicable provisions in the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the 

Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) and the Articles of Association of the Company. The Board was satisfied that, 

the Company will immediately after the repurchase of shares satisfy the solvency as defined in Section 57 of the Companies Act 

No. 7 of 2007. A certificate of solvency has been obtained from the Auditors certifying that the Company will satisfy the solvency 

test upon the payment of consideration for the repurchase of shares along with an opinion from the Auditors that in their opinion 

the repurchase price is a fair value as required in terms of Section 64 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

There were no new shares issued during the financial year. The movement in the stated capital is given in note 12 to the Financial 

Statements.
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The impacted captions in the Financial Statements due to the aforesaid capital reduction and share repurchase are depicted as 

follows;

For the year ended 31st March 2016 (Rs.)

Group Company

Stated Capital:

Stated Capital before the capital reduction as appears in Audited Financial Statements 

as at 31st March 2015

1,539,882,957 1,539,882,957

Capital reduction undertaken upon shareholders’ approval on 14th August 2015 (1,239,882,957) (1,239,882,957)

Stated Capital after the capital reduction as of the reporting date, 31st March 

2016

300,000,000 300,000,000

No. of ordinary voting shares:

No. of Shares outstanding before the capital reduction 125,200,002 125,200,002

Capital reduction undertaken upon shareholders’ approval on 14th August 2015 No change No change

No. of shares outstanding after the capital reduction 125,200,002 125,200,002

No. of shares repurchased (66,809,739) (66,809,739)

No. of shares outstanding after the share repurchase as at 31st March 2016 58,390,263 58,390,263

Retained Earnings:

Retained Earnings before the capital reduction and share repurchase as appears in 

Audited Financial Statements as at 31st March 2015

 834,845,150  624,041,773

Capital reduction undertaken upon shareholders’ approval on 14th August 2015 1,239,882,957 1,239,882,957

Retained Earnings after the capital reduction 2,074,728,107 1,863,924,730

Distribution for share repurchase (on the basis of four (04) ordinary shares for every 

seven (07) ordinary shares held at a price per share of Rs.24/-)

(1,603,433,736) (1,603,433,736)

Retained Earnings after the capital reduction and share repurchase 471,294,371 260,490,994

During the year profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders 200,455,751 56,239,420

Other adjustments (39,103,717) (5,657,842)

Retained Earnings as at 31st March 2016 632,646,405 311,072,572

Distributions by fully-owned subsidiaries
The fully-owned subsidiaries of the Group also undertook a series of dividend payments and repurchases of their own respective 

shares and distributed an aggregate sum of Rs.945.8Mn (net of dividend tax) to the parent company - Resus Energy PLC. For this, 

the fully-owned subsidiaries borrowed a total sum of Rs.1.01Bn under a syndicate loan agreement mortgaging their respective 

project assets. The distribution was made in the form of dividends and consideration on repurchase of shares.

Subsidiary Gross 

Dividends

Rs millions

Consideration 

for share 

repurchase

Rs millions

Total Gross 

Distribution

Rs millions

Gross Borrowings Rs millions

Term-loans Overdraft Total

Giddawa Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Limited

240.4 155.6 396.0 376.0 20.0 396.0

Upper Agra Oya Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited

170.1 64.9 235.0 215.0 20.0 235.0

Okanda Power Grid 

(Pvt) Limited

231.8 147.2 379.0 359.0 20.0 379.0

Total 642.3 367.7 1,010.0 950.0 60.0 1,010.0
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The aforementioned dividends were declared in the previous year and were accordingly accounted for in the respective 

companies. The Group paid Rs.64.2Mn dividend tax for the said dividends.

Investments and Capital Expenditure
During the year, the Company and the Group invested Rs.11.5Mn and Rs.272.1Mn respectively in Property, Plant and Equipment. 

This compares with the respective investments of Rs.5.3Mn and Rs.819.3Mn made in 2015, which also includes the investment 

made by Panasian Power PLC in Padiyapelella Hydro Power Limited. The Group’s capital work-in-progress as at 31st March 2016 

includes the amounts invested in construction of Gomale Oya, Moragaha Oya and Upper Huluganga hydropower projects.

Net Assets per Share
The Group’s Net Assets per Share as at 31st March 2016 stood at Rs.16.28. This is a 15% decrease over the Net Assets of the 

previous year which stood at Rs.19.07 per Share. At the market price of Rs.22/20 recorded at the closure of trading on 31st March 

2016, the price to book ratio of the Company stands at 1.36.

Shareholder Returns
Earnings per Share (EPS)
The EPS of the Group stands at Rs.2.24 for the year. The EPS from continuing operations also stands the same. Comparatively, for 

the previous year, due to the losses arose from the discontinued operation, the EPS stood at negative (Loss per Share) Rs.0.48. 

For the previous year, the continuing operations recorded a positive EPS of Rs.1.76, whereas discontinued operation recorded a 

negative EPS of Rs.2.24.

Notwithstanding the reduction in net profits owing to high finance cost, the substantial reduction in number of shares consequent to 

the share repurchase, led to a considerable increase in the EPS from continuing operations.

Price Earnings Ratio (PER)
The PER as of the reporting date stood at 9.91 times. However, owing to the discontinued operation in the previous year, the 

Company reported a Loss per Share for the previous year. Hence, for a meaningful comparison of the PER, the EPS from 

continuing operations is considered. Accordingly, the PER from continuing operations as of 31st March 2015 stood at 10.74 times. 

On the other hand, in comparison, the PER for the Power and Energy sector stood at 10.30 times whereas the market PER was at 

14.11 times as of 31st March 2016.
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Distributions
As mentioned previously, during the year under review, the Company repurchased 66,809,739 shares at a price of Rs.24/- per 
share from its shareholders and distributed Rs.1.6Bn. At the closure of trading on the date of the EGM at which the shareholders 
approved the said share repurchase, the market price of Resus’ share stood at Rs.23/50. Whilst the shareholders were paid the 
entire Rs.24/- per share, the difference between repurchase price and the market price (Rs.0.50), was considered as a ‘dividend 
distribution’ in accordance with Section 217 of the Inland Revenue Act. The dividend portion was distributed out of dividends 
received from the subsidiaries.

Apart from that, no interim dividends were paid for the financial year under review. For the previous financial year, the Company 
did not pay any dividends.

As required by Section 56 (2) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the Board of Directors confirmed that the Company satisfies the 
solvency test in accordance with Section 57 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, and has obtained a certificate from the auditors, 
prior to declaring all distributions.

Except for 2014/15, the Company made distributions to shareholders consistently every year since its public listing in 2009.

Interest Cover
The increase in Group net finance cost over the previous year is consequential to the bank loans raised at the subsidiaries. The 
loans were raised as part of the capital restructuring exercise. With the expiry of tax-holidays in two of the subsidiaries, it was 
meaningful to restructure their capital to maximize the tax savings that accrues on interest expenses. The proceeds from the 
loans were used for the financing of repurchase of shares at Resus Energy PLC. The interest cover derived based on Earnings 
before Interest and Tax (EBIT) from the continuing operations indicates 5-times for the year and 8-times for the previous year. The 
reduction in interest cover is a result of higher finance cost incurred during the year.

Economic Value Added (EVA)
EVA is a tool for gauging the real economic performance of a business and its ability to create shareholder value. EVA provides 
a means for coupling the two fundamental drivers of economic or shareholder value, namely, operating earnings and capital 
efficiency. EVA is calculated as follows;

EVA = Net Operating Profit After Tax – Capital Charge

For the financial year under review, the Group attributed Rs.21Mn of Economic Profits to its shareholders, which means the 
additional returns over and above the expected rate of return by the shareholders on their invested capital in the business. 
Consequent to capital restructuring undertaken during the year, the Group is now appropriately geared to maximize the returns on 
its capital base.

2015/16

Rs millions

2014/15

Rs millions

2013/14

Rs millions

Net Operating Profit After Tax (NOPAT) 263 352 351

Capital Charge 242 419 651

EVA 21 (67) (300)

NOPAT return on Capital Invested 11.4% 11.5% 8.6%

Hurdle Rate of Return - WACC 10.5% 13.7% 15.9%

Value Added/(Shortfall) % 0.9% (2.2%) (7.3%)

NOPAT and Capital Invested were adjusted for operating lease charges.

Average of invested capital was used for EVA computation, which is the average of the current and prior year total capital 
invested.

Profits from continuing operations were considered for EVA and book depreciation was assumed as economic depreciation.

Cost of equity for hurdle rate was estimated based on 5-Year Treasury Bond yield at the start of the financial year plus 5% for the 
equity risk premium.



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 60

Statutory Payments
The Group made the following statutory payments in relation to its employees on or before their respective due dates.

Employee related statutory Payments Company (Rs. Mn)

Employee 
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Fund
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Employee related statutory Payments - Group (Rs. Mn)
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The Group made the following statutory payments to the Government of Sri Lanka in relation to taxes on or before their respective 

due dates as per the laws and regulations.

Payment of Taxes and Other Duties - Group (Rs. Mn)

Income 
Tax

Economic 
Service 
Charge

Supper 
Gain 
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Stamp 
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Dividend 
Tax
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Payment of Taxes and Other Duties - Company (Rs Mn)
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Economic 
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Gain 
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Dividend 
Tax
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The ‘water flow’ and the ‘head’ are two key parameters in 

the design of a hydropower project. Head is the difference in 

elevation, expressed in feet or meters, between the head-

water-level at forebay tank or the weir (in the absence of a 

diversion channel) and the tail-water-level at the powerhouse. 

Therefore, hydropower projects are location specific. 

Water is the primary environmental-capital input in value 

creation from hydropower generation. The water, after being 

diverted and used for generation of electricity is released back 

to the river without causing any impact to the water resource. 

Hence, the water is used as a renewable source of energy. 

Resus is engaged in developing and operating small 

hydropower projects based on run-of-the-river concept where 

water is not retained in large reservoirs like in large-scale 

hydropower projects. At all our projects, an uninterrupted 

“environmental flow” is released at the weir for the benefit of 

the ecosystem and human livelihood. 

At the project design stage, we optimise design parameters 

in a manner that we optimise the use of the location and the 

water resource economically and environmentally. Deviations 

from an optimum design can cause poor utilization of natural 

resources and at the same time impact the investments 

negatively. 

Therefore, whilst we develop and operate projects in an 

environmentally friendly manner, we contribute to a bigger 

national and a global cause in helping to substitute electricity 

generation from burning fossil fuel and thus help to negate its 

bad effects on the environment. 

Management approach on environmental 
protection
In constructing and operating hydropower projects, 

we consider preserving the natural bio-diversity of 

the environment as our prime responsibility. Our own 

Environmental Management System has the following five 

priorities as objectives and targets:

• Conservation and optimisation of the use of natural 

resources;

• Waste management;

• Minimisation of environmental pollution during construction 

and operation;

• Optimise project design parameters to minimise 

environmental impact;

• Engage with stakeholders to minimise the environmental 

impact from our activities. 

Our Environmental Management System is more fully 

explained in ‘Environmental Impact Management’ from page 

80 to 85 in this Report.

Weir and intake of diversion channel

Water release from powerhouse tailrace

Environmental Capital
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Social and Relationship Capital

Customers
The Ceylon Electricity Board (CEB) is our sole customer. We have built good relationships with those at the CEB over the years. 

CEB is aware that we are an integral part of the national effort to increase the non-conventional renewable energy generation. 

Therefore, we work towards mutual value creation. Our small hydropower plants contribute significantly to the national grid for 

which we get paid in accordance with agreed tariffs and provisions in Standardised Power Purchase Agreements (SPPA), struck 

with the CEB. 

Grid interconnection points of our fully-owned hydropower plants, electricity units dispatched and collections from CEB in financial 

years under review are shown in the table below:

Company CEB inter-

connection 

point

CEB regional 

office

Total capital 

investment 

(Rs millions)

Electricity units dispatched 

(GWh)

Amount collected from 

CEB for electricity units 

dispatched (Rs millions)

2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15

Giddawa Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited

Ukuwela, 

Matale

Kandy 389.0 8.71 7.88 141.0 94.0

Okanda Power Grid 

(Pvt) Limited

Polgaswatte, 

Deraniyagala

Ratnapura 453.0 7.20 7.81 110.0 110.0

Upper Agra Oya 

Hydro Power (Pvt) 

Limited

Henfold estate, 

Lindula

Nuwara Eliya 345.0 8.33 8.85 144.0 111.0

Total 1,187.0 24.24 24.54 395.0 315.0

In accordance with prevailing tax regulations, the imported electromechanical equipment for hydropower projects that have 

entered in to SPPAs with the CEB are exempted from VAT and NBT. 

For connectivity of our projects with the national grid, we invest in the construction of transmission lines through which we 

facilitate expansion of CEB’s transmission network. At locations with regular line interruptions, we have assigned a full-time team 

at our expense to oversee incidents causing line interruptions and take immediate actions to restore such faults together with the 

CEB. This helps speedy restoration of transmission line failures that benefit our projects, the CEB and the electricity consumers. 

We have equipped all our fully-owned hydropower plants with reliable equipment to ensure that our plants operate with least 

interruptions at their maximum capacities. This way, we make the best use of water resources and feed the national grid with 

hydro-electricity supply to reduce usage of electricity generated burning fossil-fuel. We comply with rules and regulations 

stipulated in SPPAs and comply with safety regulations in building and operating our power plants. We as a policy, manage 

relationships on ethical grounds and support good-cause events and programmes of the CEB and other stakeholders. 

The Group did not have any incidents with CEB for non-compliance with laws and regulations, breach of provisions in SPPAs, 

breach of customer privacy and loss of confidential information, unacceptable engineering standards and safety regulations in 

project development, commissioning and operations for the year under review and the previous year.

We value the relationship with our sole customer - CEB, built on trust and mutual benefits. This is a key element of Resus’ 

relationship capital. 
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Government Institutions
We regularly associate with various Government Institutions 

which are our project approving agencies. Following are such 

institutions that we are in close contact with:

• Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority

• Ceylon Electricity Board

• Public Utilities Commission of Sri Lanka

• Central Environmental Authority

• Department of Irrigation

• National Water Supply and Drainage Board

• Forest Department

• Department of Wildlife Conservation

• Divisional Secretariat Offices

• Pradeshiya Sabas

• Board of Investments of Sri Lanka

We manage relationships with Government agencies on ethical 

grounds. We ensure that our projects are constructed and 

operated in accordance with guidelines stipulated in approvals. 

We go beyond the compliance. We actively support for good-

causes at government agencies. For example, recently, we 

undertook a joint programme with the Forest Department 

to eradicate invasive species (‘Mana grass’) and replant 

environmentally conducive species such as ‘Erabadu’ and 

‘Gliricidia’ in the Knuckles Conservation Forest region. 

Suppliers and Contractors
Overseas equipment suppliers
All our fully-owned hydropower plants are sourced with top-

of-the-range Western-European electromechanical equipment 

suppliers from Germany, Italy, Austria and UK. Going beyond 

mere supply contracts, Resus engages in long-term business 

relationships with the suppliers. The relationships with overseas 

suppliers have been built over the years. Our first supplier 

(WKV from Germany), who supplied electromechanical 

equipment to Giddawa hydropower project in 2008 still works 

with us lodging their bids for our new projects and providing 

regular maintenance advices for operational plants. 

Our team visits overseas suppliers and in turn invites them to 

our project sites too in order to strengthen relationships and 

boost confidence between parties. 

Turbine-Generator from WKV-Germany for Giddawa plant

Visit to Zeco Factory in Italy for Factory Acceptance Test (FAT) 

- Gomale Oya plant 

Turbine-Generator from GHE-Austria for Magal Ganga plant
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The value of orders that we placed with overseas electromechanical suppliers are given in the table below:

Company Supplier and country Amount ( Rs millions) Year of investment

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited WKV-Germany 138.0 2008/09

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited GHE-Austria 106.0 2011/12

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited Zeco-Italy 78.0 2015/16

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Limited Gugler-Austria 82.0 2015/16

Total 404.0

Upper Agra Oya hydropower plant was acquired as an operational plant in 2009/10 which uses turbines imported from Gilkes, 

United Kingdom.

Local suppliers
We offer civil construction work to local suppliers and thereby indirectly partake in the economic growth of our country. In 

selecting local civil contractors, Resus considers organizations that share similar values and commitments. 

The amounts that we paid to local civil contractors are given in the table below:

Company Amount (Rs millions) Year of investment

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited 231.0 2008/09

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited 194.0 2010/11

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited 49.0 2015/16

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Limited 7.0 2015/16

Total 481.0

Payments to local civil contractors during the year represent 

about 30% of total capital expenditure incurred on projects 

under development. 

Resus Approach for Supplier Assessment
We engaged two new Western-European electromechanical 

equipment suppliers and six new local civil contractors during 

the year for our hydropower projects under development.

We assess both local and overseas suppliers based on the 

extent of their compliance with technical standards, good 

environmental practices, labour standards, ethical business 

conduct, health and safety at project sites, human rights 

and laws and regulations. We share our own environmental 

regulations with suppliers and make it an integral part of the 

civil construction contracts making our corporate best practices 

compulsory to our contractors. 

At Resus, we always facilitate a win-win proposition to both 

parties in achieving mutual value creation in a compliant 

and responsible work set up. We strive to maintain an open 

communication culture in dealing with both local and overseas 

suppliers and resolve issues and disputes speedily in the most 

amicable way.  

Civil construction work at Moragaha Oya project site

There have not been any significant actual or potential negative 

impacts on society, negative impacts for labour practices or 

negative human rights impacts in the supply chain.

Supplier relationships too are a key element of Resus’ 

relationship capital and suppliers have shown their continuous 

willingness to undertake supply and construction contracts 

repeatedly with Resus Group. 

Social and Relationship Capital Contd.
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Communities
The surrounding communities of our hydropower projects are 
integral parts of our projects. We build strong relationships 
with them based on mutual trust and benefits. As a policy 
as encapsulated in our Code of Ethics, we do not give false 
promises to the communities that we engage with and 
we deliver what we promise to them. The villagers often 
keenly engage in the project development course and our 
team shares day to day working life with the surrounding 
community. In every project budget, we allocate a significant 
amount for community development activities. We offer 

Access road constructed by the Company to Imewatta Village

Above location prior to road construction

employment opportunities to the nearby villagers during 
project development phase and then permanent employments 
to operate the power plants. 

We constructed a 1.5km long access road to Imewatta village 
in Maliboda at an investment of Rs. 17Mn during the year. 
From this, nearly 25 families in Imewatta village are benefited.

There were no significant actual and potential negative impacts 
on local communities from our business operation.
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Human Capital

Resus Approach
We believe our employees are the key driving force behind our success and an essential capital input in our value creation 

process. Human capital plays a centric role by blending all other capital inputs and drive the value creation process. We therefore 

strive to attract and retain the best talent by building a strong employer brand in the market. At Resus, we believe in employee 

satisfaction and motivation through creation of an inspiring and enjoyable work atmosphere. 

We strike a balance between high-performance and people-oriented culture. We reflect our social responsibility in our corporate 

behaviour built on ethical principles that are acknowledged and supported by our employees. 

Employee diversity
Employees of the Group by gender, age and category:

Level Gender Age

<20 21-30 31-40 41-50 51< Total

2015

/16

2014

/15

2015

/16

2014

/15

2015

/16

2014

/15

2015

/16

2014

/15

2015

/16

2014

/15

2015

/16

2014

/15

Board of 

Directors

M - - - - 1 1 2 2 4 3 7 6

F - - - - - - - - - - - -

Senior 

Management

M - - - - 2 2 1 1 1 1 4 4

F - - - - - - 1 1 - - 1 1

Middle 

Management

M - - 1 1 1 1 - - - - 2 2

F - - - - 1 1 - - - - 1 1

Executives M - - - 1 - - 1 1 - - 1 2

F - - 2 1 - - - - - - 2 1

Supervisory 

Staff

M - - - - - - 2 1 3 4 5 5

F - - - - - - - - - - - -

Technical 

Staff

M - - 3 2 - - - - - - 3 2

F - - 1 - - - - - - - 1 -

Power Plant 

Staff

M - - 11 10 16 15 13 12 2 2 42 39

F - - - - - - - - - - - -

Other Non-

Executives

M - - - - 1 1 - - 1 1 2 2

F - - - - - - - - - - - -

Total - - 18 15 22 21 20 18 11 11 71 65

Employees of the Group by regions:

Region 2015/16 2014/15

Male Female Total Male Female Total

Kandy 14 - 14 10 - 10

Kegalle 14 - 14 14 - 14

Nuwara Eliya 21 - 21 21 - 21

Colombo* 17 5 22 17 3 20

Total 66 5 71 62 3 65

*This includes Board of Directors

Except the external civil contractors’ workers at construction project sites, all employees (other than non-executive directors) of the 

Group as reported in above stated tables are legally recognised as full-time basis employees of the Resus Group. 
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New recruits and employee turnover by gender and employee category:

Level Gender New Recruits Employee turnover

2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15

Board of Directors M 2 5* 1 6*

F - - - -

Senior Management M - 1 - 1

F - - - -

Middle Management M - - - -

F - - - -

Executives M - 1 1 -

F 1 - - -

Supervisory Staff M 1 - 1 -

F - - - -

Technical Staff M 1 2 - -

F 1 - - -

Power Plant Staff M 4 1 1 2

F - - - -

Other Non-Executives M - - - -

F - - - -

Total 10 10 4 9

*Appointed new Board of Directors to fill the vacancies of resigned Directors consequent to 75% ownership change from Hemas 

Holdings PLC to a consortium comprising NDB Capital Holdings Limited, ACL Cables PLC and Trydan Partners (Pvt) Limited in 

December 2014.

New recruits and employee turnover by region and age group:

Region New Recruits Employee turnover

2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15

Kandy 4 1 - 2

Kegalle 2 1 2 -

NuwaraEliya - - - -

Colombo 4 8 2 7

Total 10 10 4 9

Age New Recruits Employee turnover

2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15

<21 - - - -

21-30 6 3 1 1

31-40 1 2 1 2

41-50 2 2 1 1

51< 1 3 1 5

Total 10 10 4 9
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Employee training and development
We provide training for staff locally and overseas. Training programmes are evaluated by the employee’s supervisor prior to and 

after attending the programmes to ascertain the suitability and the impact on both the employee and the Company. Employees 

who undergo training share their learning experience with the rest of the team members.

Resus offers on-the-job training to youth and our trainees come from various engineering institutes and Universities. Resus has 

been registered at technical institutes as an employer who offer training. 

Training hours by category and gender:

Level Gender Total No of employees Total No of training hours Per employee training 

hours per year

2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15

Board of Directors M 7 6 - 3 - 0.5

F - - - - - -

Senior Management M 4 4 110 - 27.5 -

F 1 1 - 3 - 3.0

Middle Management M 2 2 16 30 8.0 15.0

F 1 1 - 12 - 12.0

Executives M 1 2 168 168 168.0 84.0

F 2 1 - 16 - 16.0

Supervisory Staff M 5 5 8 66 1.6 13.2

F - - - - - -

Technical Staff M 3 2 40 - 13.3 -

F 1 - 16 - 16.0 -

Power Plant Staff M 42 39 114 466 2.7 11.9

F - - - - - -

Other Non-Executives M 2 2 - - - -

F - - - - - -

Total 71 65 472 764 6.65 11.75

Employee relationship management
We strive to build and strengthen bonds among employees through managing employee expectations, grievance management, 

transparency, performance evaluations, and open communication. We also host numerous socialising activities focused on 

team work, bonding, harmony and unity among employees. Events such as outbound training programmes, trips, formal and 

informal social gatherings are usually featured every year. We provide training sessions to improve soft skills of our employees. 

For example, we nominated and sent two of our senior managers to a training programme on “Creative Memory and Mind 

Management Tactics” organized by CIMA-Sri Lanka during the year.

Resus adopts an ‘open door policy’ for communication and also a ‘whistleblowing policy’ where employees can discuss any 

concern openly with their respective supervisors. If an employee feels that a particular matter cannot be adequately addressed 

by the supervisor, then the employee may choose to make direct contact with the Managing Director (Mr. G A K Nanayakkara) 

and/or Independent Non-Executive Director (Mr. U P Egalahewa PC) to communicate their concerns and grievances under the 

whistleblowing policy. 

Our Head of Human Resources regularly visits the project sites and talks to the site employees to have close dialogues with site 

employees face to face. 

Human Capital Contd.



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 69

We also conduct 360 degree evaluations and organise coaching and counselling sessions with external consultants to assist 

improvements and transformations required to shape up profiles of our employees to effectively cope up with challenges in the 

business environment and lead the institution to success. 

Whistleblowing policy
Resus expects integrity and ethical behaviour from all its employees and believes that a whistleblowing policy will help foster and 

maintain an environment where employees can act appropriately, without fear of retaliation. As one of the many facets of the 

Resus way of doing business, we encourage employees who have concerns about suspected serious misconduct or any breach 

or suspected breach of law or regulation that may adversely impact the Company, to come forward and express such concerns 

without fear of punishment or unfair treatment.

The objectives of the whistleblowing policy are:

• To ensure that business is conducted in an ethical manner and in conformity with applicable laws and regulations;

• To enhance the culture of transparency, accountability and integrity;

• To provide avenues for employees to raise concerns;

• To assure employees reporting concerns in good faith that they will be protected;

• To enable management to be informed at an early stage about acts of misconduct, fraud or illegal activities.

Grievance management
The senior management takes every effort to address employee grievances and provide amicable solutions to such concerns. 

Except for one matter heard in the labour-tribunal, the Group did not receive any grievances about labour practices through formal 

grievance mechanisms or through grapevine during the financial year. 

Performance review
Employee Performance Reviews are carried out annually as part of our performance appraisal system. All employees set goals 

with the consultation of their supervisors at the start of the financial year followed by a mid-year review and final evaluation at 

the closure of the year. At the year-end evaluation, achievement of goals and review of competencies are carried out and training 

needs are addressed for the ensuing financial year. 

Health and Safety
Health and Safety is a crucial element in our business conduct. We care about this aspect when we do projects and impose strict 

guidelines in order that work is carried out under health and safety instructions. 

Description Total number of incidents

2015/16 2014/15

Injuries to our employees 03 Nil

Injuries to public Nil Nil

Occupational diseases Nil Nil

Work related fatalities Nil Nil

Lost working days 25 Nil

Injuries to our employees by region and gender:

Region Gender

Male Female

Kegalle 02 -

Nuwara Eliya 01 -

Total 03 -
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The Company encourages employees on the importance of 

safety procedures and being responsible for their personal 

and professional lives. The Company provides all necessary 

safety equipment to its employees to be used at work and 

made compulsory to wear safety helmets, boots and belts at 

construction sites. The Environmental Officer with external 

consultation as required, monitors health and safety aspects of 

the employees of the Group.

Non-discrimination and Child Labour
As a responsible corporate entity, we adopt non-discriminatory 

and harassment-free work environment. We ensure these 

policies are extended to the contractors’ work force as well. We 

never permit child labour. We comply with laws, environmental 

protection regulations and health and safety standards with 

extreme rigor and vigilance.  

No incidents of child labour or forced/compulsory labour have 

been identified.

Agreements with Employee Trade Unions
Resus has sustained harmony among employees in all 

possible ways. The Group does not have any collective 

bargaining agreements other than a “check-off” agreement 

signed between Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited 

and Plantation Staff Congress, a trade union which the non-

executive employees of Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) 

Limited are registered with.

Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited was acquired 

by Resus Energy PLC in 2009/10 where a total workforce of 

24 employees joined the Group with the said acquisition. All 

non-executive employees of Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Limited had been registered with the said trade union. For 

the financial year under review, Upper Agra Oya hydropower 

project had employed 21 employees. This is approximately 

30% of the total employees of the Group. 

The said “check-off” agreement only covers the mechanism of 

dispute resolution between the company and the employees. 

Return to work after maternity leave
All 5 female employees of the Group are entitled to maternity 

leave. However, no employees of the Group took maternity 

leave for the year and the previous year.

Benefits to our employees
All employees of the Group are on full-time basis.

Our staff annual trip

Safety at our project sites

The Group provides staff loans, reimbursements of professional 

membership fees, gym memberships and health insurance 

covers to its employees. However, these benefits vary based 

on individual grades of employees.

Human Rights and grievance mechanism
The Group did not have any incidents of discrimination for the 

year and the previous year.

The Group did not receive any grievances about Human Rights 

impacts through its formal grievance mechanism for the year 

under review and the previous year. 

Human Capital Contd.
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Intellectual Capital

Knowledge and experience
Our presence in the power sector for more than 12 years and 

in the hydropower sector for about 10 years have brought 

us invaluable expertise and experience to our intellectual 

capital base. This includes: experience in managing projects in 

extremely backward and socially sensitive areas in Sri Lanka; 

overseas exposure in East Africa; and some valuable learnings 

in the biomass segment which ran in to a stand-off due to 

social and political interferences. We use our team’s knowledge 

and experience to gain competitive advantage and transform it 

to superior Economic Value to our stakeholders which can be 

witnessed in our business conduct.

We strive to document the experiences we gain, challenges we 

face and the ways we overcome issues in projects to be used 

as business cases for our next projects. We have instilled and 

facilitated a knowledge sharing culture which we believe is an 

important element to further strengthen our intellectual capital. 

Resus Values
Resus values are vital features inherited in Resus’ culture to 

accomplish its vision and mission. Our values are:

• Creativity 

• Integrity 

• Concern for People and Planet

• Obsession for Performance

• Sense of Urgency

Processes, systems and procedures
The processes, systems and procedures gear up our delivery 

of business promises and achieving our business objectives, 

which are integral elements of our culture. Environmental 

Management System, Project Management Manual, financial 

and accounting controls and systems are developed and 

implemented to ensure that we do business in accordance with 

set parameters and benchmarks. Our systems are reviewed 

from independent parties to ascertain that processes and 

systems are effective to accomplish our objectives.

Awards
Annual Report Awards 2015 – Power and Energy Companies 

Silver Award

Awarded by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 

for the ‘Second Best’ Annual Report in the category of Power 

and Energy Companies.



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 72

Our Business Operation

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited

Project Giddawa mini hydropower project

Project capacity 2.0MW

Date of Standardised Power Purchase Agreement (SPPA) 08/05/2006

Tenure of SPPA 15 Years

Status of the Project Operational

Commissioned Date October 2008

Location Giddawa, Digana

District Kandy

River Huluganga

Head (meters) 26.3

Freehold Land extent 1A-3R-30.90P

Number of buildings Two

Square feet of buildings 4,103 sq. ft.

Electromechanical Equipment supplier WKV-Germany

Turbine Equipment type Fransis

Generator Equipment Hitzinger-Austria

Invested Capital Rs. 389Mn

Tariff Avoided cost tariff

No. of employees 11

Reduction in Carbon emission (t-CO
2
) 6,034 (2015 - 5,455)

Electricity units dispatched during the year (GWh) 8.71 (2015 - 7.88)

Plant factor for the year 50% (2015 - 45%)

Major plant shut downs during the year None

Impairment adjustments if any None
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Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited

Project Upper Agra Oya mini hydropower project

Project capacity 2.6MW

Date of Standardised Power Purchase Agreement (SPPA) 29/04/2005

Tenure of SPPA 15 Years

Status of the Project Operational

Commissioned Date February 2006

Location Lindula, Talawakelle

District Nuwara Eliya

River Agra Oya

Head (meters) 40.0

Freehold Land extent Nil (Project is located on a leasehold land of Watawala 

Plantations PLC)

Number of buildings Two

Square feet of buildings 5,078 sq. ft.

Electromechanical Equipment supplier Gilkes-United Kingdom

Turbine Equipment type Fransis

Generator Equipment Alconza-Spain

Invested Capital Rs. 345Mn

Tariff Avoided cost tariff

No. of employees 21

Reduction in Carbon emission (t-CO
2
) 5,773 (2015 - 6,132)

Electricity units dispatched during the year (GWh) 8.33 (2015 - 8.85)

Plant factor for the year 37% (2015 - 39%)

Major plant shut downs during the year One turbine failure leading to an estimated generation 

loss of 0.485GWh

Impairment adjustments if any None
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Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited

Project Magalganga mini hydropower project

Project capacity 2.4MW

Date of Standardised Power Purchase Agreement (SPPA) 09/02/2010

Tenure of SPPA 20 Years

Status of the Project Operational

Commissioned Date September 2011

Location Dikkellakanda, Maliboda

District Kegalle

River Magalganga

Head (meters) 110.0

Freehold Land extent 0A-3R-31.83P

Number of buildings Two

Square feet of buildings 3,504 sq. ft.

Electromechanical Equipment supplier GHE-Austria

Turbine Equipment type Fransis

Generator Equipment Hitzinger-Austria

Invested Capital Rs. 453Mn

Tariff Cost-based-technology-specific fixed tariff 

(Rs.14.58)

No. of employees 12

Reduction in Carbon emission (t-CO
2
) 4,986 (2015 - 5,414)

Electricity units dispatched during the year (GWh) 7.20 (2015 - 7.81)

Plant factor for the year 34% (2015 - 37%)

Major plant shut downs during the year None

Impairment adjustments if any None

Our Business Operation Contd.
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Fully-owned hydropower projects under construction

Project Gomale Oya mini 

hydropower project

Moragaha Oya mini 

hydropower project

Upper Huluganga mini 

hydropower project

Project capacity 1.4MW 1.5MW 1.9MW

Date of Standardised Power Purchase 

Agreement (SPPA)

28/04/2015 28/04/2015 01/10/2015

Tenure of SPPA 20 Years 20 Years 20 Years

Location Magala, Maliboda Panvila, Theldeniya Panvila, Theldeniya

District Kegalle Kandy Kandy

River Gomale Oya Moragaha Oya Hulu Ganga

Head (meters) 160.0 78.7 63.8

Freehold Land extent 1A-0R-26.91P - -

Number of buildings Two - -

Square feet of buildings 2,518 sq. ft. - -

Electromechanical Equipment supplier Zeco-Italy Gugler-Austria To be finalised

Turbine Equipment type Pelton Fransis Fransis

Generator Equipment Marelli Motori-Italy Marelli Motori-Italy To be finalised

Invested Capital Rs. 249Mn* Rs. 332Mn* Rs. 325Mn*

Tariff Cost-based-technology-

specific three-tier tariff

Cost-based-technology-

specific three-tier tariff

Cost-based-technology-

specific three-tier tariff

No. of employees 2 3 -

Impairment adjustments if any None None None

*Planned investments

Machine Erection at Gomale Oya Powerhouse Unloaded penstock at Moragaha Oya project site
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Economic Impact Management

Resus’ direct and indirect impact on the Economy
During the year, our fully-owned hydropower plants generated and transmitted 24.24GWh of electricity (compared with 24.54GWh 

in 2015). The Group has three fully-owned operational plants with an aggregate capacity of 7.0MW. We also have 22.3% 

ownership in Panasian Power PLC which has two operational plants with a total capacity of 5.4MW. Through them, we supply 

clean and green energy to the country’s national grid. Thus, we contribute directly and indirectly to the country’s economy, the 

national interest and impact on our stakeholders as follows: 

• We generate electricity from renewable energy sources. That supports government’s plan to replace fuel-burning electricity 

generation with renewable energy in the future.

• We create employment opportunities in rural villages and develop rural infrastructure around our projects.

• We develop and operate projects conforming to regulations and guidelines of project approving agencies and in an 

environmentally-friendly manner adhering to comprehensive guidelines as stated in our own Environmental Management 

Plan.

The cumulative investments we have made into the renewable energy sector as of 31st March 2016 amounted to approximately 

Rs. 2.0Bn (including our investment of Rs. 313Mn in Panasian Power PLC). During the year, the capital invested by the Group in 

the development and construction of hydropower plants amounted to Rs. 247.1Mn (Rs. 78.0Mn in 2015). Furthermore, as of the 

financial year end, we have given full-time employment to 45 persons from the villages around our hydropower plants. 

The invested capital and employment opportunities created at our fully-owned plants are given in the table below:

Location Kandy district Nuwara Eliya 

district

Kegalle district Colombo district* Total in the country

As at 31st March 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Invested capital as 

at reporting date 

(Rs millions)

524.0 418.0 345.0 345.0 670.0 527.0 51.5 49.7 1,590.5 1,339.7

Total Employment 

as at reporting 

date (No of 

employees)

14 10 21 21 14 14 22** 20** 71 65

*Investments in Colombo Headoffice

**Includes Board of Directors
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Statement of Financial Value Added
The financial value added statements depicted below demonstrate the distribution of financial value created by the Group among 

different stakeholders.

Group

2015/16 2014/15

Rs. millions % Rs. millions %

Revenue 393.1 575.6

Other Income including share of profits from associates 56.9 25.2

Less: Operating Costs - cost of goods and services bought in (64.6) (390.7)

Total Value Added 385.4 100% 210.1 100%

Distribution of Value Added:

Employees 69.1 18% 64.3 31%

Government 50.4 13% 23.7 11%

Lenders 61.0 16% 51.0 24%

Community 0.2 0% 1.8 1%

Shareholders * - 0% - 0%

Depreciation set aside 34.3 9% 45.2 21%

Economic Value Retained 170.4 44% 24.1 11%

Total Value Added 385.4 100% 210.1 100%

Number of employees 71 65

Value Added per employee 5.4 3.2

* The Company distributed Rs.1.6Bn to its shareholders during the year for share repurchase and no dividends were paid for the 

year and the previous year. The said distribution was made out of previously retained value and capital, not from the value created 

for the year.

Employees 18%

Government  13%

Lenders 16%

Depreciation 9%

Economic value Retained 44%

Financial Value Added 2015/16

Employees 31%

Government  11%

Lenders 24%

Community 1%

Depreciation 21%

Economic value Retained 11%

Financial Value Added 2014/15
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Value Created and Distributed by Regions

The significance of regions for the below assessment is based on operating regions of our fully-owned hydropower plants.

Kandy Kegalle Nuwara Eliya

2015/16

Rs. million

2014/15

Rs. million

2015/16

Rs. million

2014/15

Rs. million

2015/16

Rs. million

2014/15

Rs. million

Revenue 135.86 120.92 104.91 113.93 130.33 136.13

Other Income 0.11 0.10 0.44 0.08 0.10 0.08

Less: Operating Costs - cost of 

goods and services bought in

(20.58) (8.04) (12.53) (7.07) (31.40) (21.63)

Total Value Added 115.39 112.98 92.82 106.94 99.03 114.58

Distribution of Value Added:

Employees 8.22 7.25 7.50 7.45 10.61 9.81

Government 24.39 13.68 0.04 0.03 24.29 9.85

Lenders 25.28 28.30 18.21 - 10.96 20.78

Community 0.07 0.72 0.01 0.51 0.05 0.29

Shareholders * - - - - - -

Depreciation set aside 9.32 9.47 10.74 10.85 6.51 6.49

Economic Value Retained 48.11 53.56 56.32 88.10 46.61 67.36

Total Value Added 115.39 112.98 92.82 106.94 99.03 114.58

Number of employees 14 10 14 14 21 21

Value Added per employee 8.2 11.3 6.6 7.6 4.7 5.5

*The above regions contributed for Company’s share repurchase in the form of a series of share repurchase amounting to a total 

of Rs.367.6Mn and dividend payments amounting to a total of Rs. 642.3Mn during the year. Since the said distributions were made 

out of retained value created in previous years and out of capitals, they are not considered as distributions made to shareholders 

from the value created during the year.

Economic Impact Management Contd.
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Key Economic parameters and their impact on Resus

Indicator Measure Impact on Resus Impact management

Exchange 

rate

The Sri Lankan Rupee depreciated 

against the US Dollar from 

Rs.133.32 as at 31st March 2015 

to Rs.144.69 as at 31st March 

2016, approximately an 8.5% 

depreciation over the year.

Sri Lankan rupee depreciation 

impacts on project development 

cost as major parts of 

electromechanical equipment are 

imported. 

The financial viability of projects 

is assessed after factoring the 

exchange rate risk. Hedging 

strategies are used as practicable 

to avoid exchange rate risk.

Interest rate The Average Weighted Prime 

Lending Rate (AWPLR) increased 

from 7.01% at the commencement 

of the year to 9.19% as at 31st 

March 2016.

Interest rates are relevant to 

Resus in two ways. Firstly, it 

has a bearing on the borrowing 

cost of future projects as lending 

rates are on the increase. This 

would make certain projects 

financially unviable. Secondly, 

higher cost of borrowings might 

slow down the country’s overall 

GDP growth owing to the bad 

effects on consumption and private 

investments.

For our capital restructuring 

exercise, we obtained term loans 

at fixed interest rates, hence not 

exposed to interest rate volatility 

risk. However, three new projects 

under construction and for future 

projects, borrowings will be 

exposed to this risk. Whenever it 

is practical we would attempt to 

secure fixed rate borrowings. 

Inflation As at the end of March 2016, 

year-on-year and annual moving 

average inflation were recorded 

at 2.0% (0.1% in 2015) and 1.1% 

(2.5% in 2015) respectively.

Higher inflation rates lead to higher 

project development cost due to 

increases in cost of construction 

material. 

We negotiate construction contracts 

keeping a balance between fixed-

price contracts and labour supply 

contracts. Latter is encouraged 

when we feel we can benefit from 

sustainable low material costs.

Oil Prices Brent Crude Oil prices have gone 

down to $40 towards end of March 

2016 from $55 in March 2015, a 

37.5% decrease over the year. 

Oil prices have a positive 

correlation with the avoided cost 

based tariff where Giddawa and 

Upper Agra Oya mini hydropower 

plants operate at. Reduction in oil 

prices therefore would depress the 

avoided cost tariff calculated on 

moving average basis.

Resus has no control over the tariff 

setting mechanism. It is part of the 

commercial risks the Company 

is exposed to. Except these two 

projects, others are subject to 

cost-based tariff, where the tariffs 

are mainly fixed under three tiers 

throughout the tenure of the SPPA.

GDP Growth 

rate

The GDP grew by 4.8% in 2015 

compared to a growth rate of 7.4% 

in 2014.

A higher GDP growth rate indicates 

a higher demand for electricity 

from both industrial and domestic 

sectors as investments and 

consumption will increase in the 

economy.

We plan to aggressively grow and 

expand our renewable energy 

portfolio making best use of the 

opportunities available.

Demand for 

electricity

Current annual electricity demand 

in the country is about 12,000GWh. 

This shows a CAGR of 4% over the 

last decade, and at 5% CAGR for 

the ensuing decade the generation 

requirement will stand around 

20,000GWh by 2025.

Government’s intention to be 

self-sufficient in energy by 2030, 

where the demand for electricity 

is expected to meet through 

renewable and other indigenous 

energy resources.

Resus has great potential 

and competitive advantage in 

renewable energy space managing 

its capital inputs more productively 

to create economic value to our 

stakeholders.
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Environmental Impact Management

Resus approach
We are in the business of producing electricity from renewable 

energy sources. This means “clean” and “green” energy. 

Therefore, ours’ is an “environmentally-friendly business”. 

Renewable Energy nullifies the bad effects to our environment 

from fossil-fuel-fired electricity generation. 

We regard water as a prime capital in our value creation 

process. Therefore, we are extremely committed to preserving 

water sources. We develop and operate run-of-the-river small 

hydropower plants. Unlike reservoir type large hydropower 

projects, run-of-the-river small hydropower plants make 

the least impact to the natural water system. We generate 

electricity using water diverted from the river and the water is 

thereafter released back to the river. We construct and operate 

our hydropower plants under strict in-house environmental 

regulations. Our environmental regulations encompasses 

standard guidelines stipulated in the approvals of Central 

Environmental Authority, other connected government 

institutions and also our own guidelines. 

As a responsible corporate citizen, our philosophy revolves 

around the highest level of care to the environment in 

developing and operating hydropower projects. This is 

reflected in our values and our business conduct. We carry out 

catchment protection programmes around our project sites 

to enrich the water retention properties in the catchment and 

maintain natural rainfall cycles in catchments. Our approach 

encourages our suppliers, contractors, and employees to 

practice good environmental practices at our project sites, 

thereby giving an exemplary reflection of Resus’ way of doing 

business to the surrounding communities. 

Our Environmental Management System
‘Resus’ stands for REnewable energy and SUStainability. 

Our plants have been built following a full assessment of the 

environmental impact. Prior to starting a development project, 

we sign off a Project Charter where the guidelines, to ensure 

socially and environmentally responsible behaviour within 

our policies and practices, are set out. At the construction 

stage we ensure full compliance of environmental regulations 

as stipulated by the Central Environmental Authority and 

also our own environmental management policy. Our own 

policies are crafted encompassing the ISO-14001 guidelines 

and some Equator-Principles, thus often go beyond the 

requirements of the state regulations. All these are monitored 

via an Environmental Management Plan. At both development 

and operational stages we constantly monitor environmental 

impacts, be it noise, waste, fauna and flora. We also set a side 

Conducting awareness programmes about environmental 

regulations

Displaying environmental guidelines and sign boards at our 

project sites

Bio cage for kitchen wastes
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considerable amount of capital to maintain excellent aesthetics 

and a pleasant and green environment with tastefully contrived 

landscaping to blend with the natural environment. This way 

we try to ensure that we develop and operate renewable 

energy projects in the best possible way to benefit the 

environment, the staff, the society and the nation. 

Our Environmental Management System focuses on the 

following environmental aspects:

• Noise Management

• Waste Management

• Water Management

• Emissions Management

Noise Management
We regularly carry out noise level tests at our project sites 

engaging professional institutes, such as Industrial Technology 

Institute or National Institute of Occupational Health and 

Safety. Baseline noise level test is carried out before the start 

of construction work at project sites. Thereafter, the tests are 

carried out every six-months for comparisons and monitoring.

As per the Noise Control Regulation No. 1 of 1996 of Schedule 

III of National Environmental Act, we measure noise levels 

against the below benchmarks; 

• Day time – Maximum Level – 75 dB

• Night time – Maximum Level – 50 dB

Location Test Date Time Results

Gomale Oya project 

site at Maliboda

17/06/2015

04/03/2016

Day time 51.0 dB

52.8 dB

Moragaha Oya project 

site at Panvila

08/02/2016 Day time 57.3 dB

All blasting operations are carried out under strict supervision 

of a qualified mining engineer. Civil contractors are not 

permitted to use machineries in bad conditions at project 

sites to ensure that construction activities do not irritate the 

surrounding environment.

Waste Management
We have implemented source separation protocols at all 

project development and power plant locations to separate 

kitchen waste from other waste. Bio cages or compost bins 

are maintained for kitchen waste to be composted whilst other 

wastes are transported to the nearest dump location of the 

local authority.

Testing Noise levels

Composting for replantation

Replantation of endemic species in the project area
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Waste disposals:

Type of waste Unit of measure Type Approx. Quantity disposed Method of disposal

2015/16 2014/15

Kitchen waste kg Non-hazardous 1,308 N/A Composting

Papers and others kg Non-hazardous 3,000 N/A Waste dumping location 

of local authority 

As per our organizational regulations, all contractors must 
clean the site on daily basis and all wastes should be dumped 
in identified locations. Waste burning and use of polythene 
are strictly prohibited at construction sites and at power 
plant premises. Penalties are imposed for any violation of 
regulations. 

Daily inspections are conducted by an assigned representative 
of the project team to observe any deviations from waste 
management procedures. 

Water Management
The water used for power generation is released back to the 
same river without any pollution or consumption whatsoever. 
In fact the water gets cleansed and relatively debris-free in 
the power generation process since bulk of the trash that flow 
along the stream flow gets collected at trash racks placed in the 
diversion channel and removed.

During project construction times, the water in the river 
is regularly tested for water pollution engaging external 
consultants from Industrial Technology Institute or Water 
Board. At our power plants, water tapped from sub-streams 
is consumed for drinking and other purposes, and municipal 
water is not consumed. 

Water consumption 
Regular observations are carried out by our Environmental 
Officer to identify issues which could affect water pollution. 
Contractors are not allowed to put up any structures in close 
proximity to the river. We strictly monitor standard sanitation 
facilities and proper disposal of wastes to ensure that water is 
not polluted by any activities at project sites. Water is regularly 
tested as per the specifications of the water board for drinking 
purposes. 

Description Water usage (m3) Water recycled (m3) Recycled Water 

reused (m3)

Percentage 

recycled

2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15

Municipal 
water

580 N/A - - - - - -

Ground water 5,700 5,130 - - - - - -

Surface water 246,605,940 241,232,982 246,605,940 241,232,982 - - 100% 100%

Total 246,612,220 241,238,112 246,605,940 241,232,982 - -

Testing water quality

Changing the channel design according to the environment to 

minimize damaging the flora

Environmental Impact Management Contd.
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Our fully-owned hydropower plants use water volume of 

18.7 m3/sec when operate at their full capacities. Water is 

fully discharged back to the natural river flow without causing 

any bad impact to the water resource whatsoever from 

powerhouse tailrace. The water discharge destination is located 

within 1km radius of the downstream from the diversion 

point of all our power plants. We release an uninterrupted 

“environmental flow” at the diversion weir of each power plant 

for the benefit of the ecosystem and human livelihood.

Therefore, our business operation does not affect the water 

sources.

Management of Emissions and Discharges
Our hydropower plants operate in zero-emission environment. 

During project construction times, machineries deployed 

by contractors may have emissions and discharges. All 

machineries should be in good condition without unacceptable 

levels of emissions. Machineries in bad conditions are not 

allowed to be used at our project sites. Regular observations 

are carried out by our Environmental Officer in this regard.

All electromechanical equipment at our hydropower stations 

are supplied by top-of-the-range Western-European suppliers, 

which are manufactured under strict European Standards. 

Through this, we ensure that our equipment operate at highest 

efficiency and in accordance with acceptable engineering 

norms and they are environmentally sustainable.

Being engaged in hydropower generation, our business course 

itself helps the environment to reduce the carbon footprint, as 

electricity generation from renewable energy sources replaces 

electricity generation from burning fossil fuel.  

Carbon footprint:

Direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) of the Group occur 

mainly by fuel consumption for generators, machineries at 

project sites and transportation, while indirect greenhouse 

gas emissions (Scope 2) of the Group occur mainly through 

consumption of electricity. Foreign travelling by our employees 

for overseas supplier meetings and factory acceptance tests 

were considered for Scope 3 gas emissions.

Heavy machineries are not used at project construction areas 

and machineries in bad conditions are not allowed to be used 

at project sites. Therefore, emissions due to machineries such 

as concrete mixtures, excavators, and small generators are 

not significant. Our operational power plants partly use self-

generated electricity for internal consumption needs.

As a result, greenhouse gas emissions from these activities 

are not considered significant in the sector we operate. In fact, 

our business operation helps to reduce the carbon foot print 

considerably. 

Emission of t-CO
2

2015/16 2014/15

Scope 1 47.4 36.6

Scope 2 17.9 2.9

Scope 3 10.0 -

Generation of electricity from our fully-owned hydropower 

plants help to reduce the CO
2
 emissions from generation of 

electricity with fossil fuel.

Reduction of t-CO
2 

emission

2015/16 2014/15

Electricity generation from 

fully-owned hydropower 

plants

24.24GWh 24.54GWh

Reduction in t-CO
2
 emission 

from our fully-owned 

hydropower plants

16,793 

t-CO
2

17,002 

t-CO
2

The above calculations are based on three-year generation 

based weighted average grid emission factor of 0.6929 t-CO
2
/

MWh for 2014 published by the Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy 

Authority.

There are no significant emissions of ozone depleting 

substances (ODS), NOx, SOx, and other significant air 

emissions produced from our business.

Materials used at construction sites in quantities:

Type of 

material 

used

Type Unit of 

measure

2015/16 2014/15

Steel Non-renewable Tons 185 Nil

Cement Non-renewable Tons 140 Nil

Sand Non-renewable Cubes 75 Nil

Aggregate Non-renewable Cubes 110 Nil

We have recently initiated the recycling of waste paper at our 

head office which would be later implemented at our power 

plants. 
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Water is our primary input in generation of electricity. Water is 

used as a renewable source of energy where the water used 

for power generation is fully released back to the same river 

flow at the powerhouse tailrace located within a short distance 

from the diversion point. The water volume used and recycled 

is given under “water consumption” on page 82.

Energy consumption:

Description Unit of 

measure

2015/16 2014/15

Diesel for vehicles GJ 392.47 404.65

Petrol for vehicles GJ 292.84 118.94

Electricity* GJ 90.84 14.72

Total GJ 776.15 538.31

*Electricity for our internal uses at hydropower stations are 

partly self-generated.

Monitoring and Review
Prior to commencing project development work, our team 

identifies and plans for significant environmental aspects 

associated with the projects in line with our environmental 

policy, objectives and targets. This becomes part of the 

Environmental Management Plan. Our Environmental Officer 

regularly visits project sites to monitor compliance with the 

Environmental Management Plan and make corrective and 

preventive measures on the issues that arise. Hierarchically, 

the Environmental Officer directly reports to the Managing 

Director. That provides him the teeth to take quick and 

corrective actions. External contractors who work at our project 

sites should also abide by our environmental regulations which 

become a contractual requirement in construction agreements. 

We review the Environmental Management System, at 

planned intervals, to ensure its continuing suitability, adequacy 

and effectiveness. The outcomes from management reviews 

include any decisions and actions related to possible changes 

to environmental policy, objectives, targets and other elements 

of the Environmental Management System, consistent with the 

commitment to continuous improvements. 

Knuckles Programme
Resus initiated a joint environmental management programme 

with the Forest Department of Sri Lanka to eradicate “Mana” 

from the Knuckles Conservation Forest region and plant 

environmentally conducive species such as Gliricidia and 

Erabadu. We deployed our Environmental Officer to coordinate 

and oversee the project with an expected investment of 

approximately Rs.3million over a couple of phases. A 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for this project was 

signed in March 2016 between the Company and the Forest 

Department.

Biodiversity
Our Environmental Management System addresses the 

importance of conservation of biodiversity in the environment. 

Our projects are developed and operated with minimum 

destruction to the natural eco system and livelihood on the 

Earth. 

Magal Ganga and Gomale Oya projects are adjacent to 

protected areas of high biodiversity.

At Magal Ganga power plant, we constructed a covered water 

channel to protect wild animals being fallen into the channel. 

We diverted the channel path to save many trees in the 

surrounding. At project planning stage, we devote considerable 

effort to identify variety of species affected by our project 

development activities to ensure that variability within species, 

between species, and between ecosystems are preserved and 

maintained.

A plant nursery is established for the replantation programme 

to restore any destroyed trees by construction activities at 

Gomale Oya site.

Few number of flora and faunal threatened species were 

found in the area Gomale Oya project is being constructed. 

However, the effects to the faunal species due to construction 

is insignificant. 

Construction is done in a narrow strip on the ground, therefore 

the threatened flora species were not found in the excavated 

and cleared area. 

Fauna and Flora species found at Gomale Oya project site – 

IUCN Red List – 2007

Conservation Status No. of Fauna 

Species 

No. of Flora 

Species

Near Threatened 02 -

Vulnerable 02 08

Critically Endangered - 01

Endangered - 01

Environmental Impact Management Contd.
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Well maintained landscape

Replanting of ground ferns

Non-compliance with environmental laws and 
regulations
The Group was not fined whatsoever for any non-compliances 

with environmental laws and regulations for the financial year 

under review and the previous year.

Environmental Grievance Mechanism
The Group did not receive any significant grievances 

about environmental impacts through its formal grievance 

mechanism for the year under review and previous year. 

Minor issues were resolved through speedy corrective actions.

Environmental Protection Expenditure

Expenditure type Amount Rs. 

2015/16 2014/15

Noise level testing 39,980/- Nil

Water quality testing 42,604/- Nil

Waste disposal 31,299/- Nil

Knuckles Conservation 

Programme*

333,541/-* Nil

Total 447,424/- Nil

*It is expected to extend the project area up to 10 Hectares in 

phases at an estimated investment of Rs.3Mn.

In addition to above, the Group incurred considerable additional 

costs in changing designs of diversion channel paths of our 

hydropower projects to save trees in the environment and 

protect biodiversity in our project areas.
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Social Impact Management

Compliance with laws and regulations
Resus Energy PLC is an uncompromising law-abiding corporate citizen, thus legal compliance comes always high in the list of 
priorities. For development projects, we follow legal and regulatory guidelines of approving-agencies. For both, development 
projects as well as for operational business-units, we follow the relevant protocol to identify all applicable legal needs, monitor and 
document new changes and requirements of the relevant regulatory framework and undertake awareness sessions to educate 
employees to ensure compliance.

Taxes and other duties are paid on time. The Group contributed Rs. 120.26Mn (Rs. 24.75Mn in 2015) by way of taxes and duties to 
the Government.

Tax type  Group  Company

2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15

Rs millions Rs millions Rs millions Rs millions

Income Tax 18.60 23.72 - -

Economic Service Charge 1.63 - 1.63 -

Super Gain Tax 30.13 - - -

Stamp Duty 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

Dividend Tax 69.90 1.20 - -

Total 120.27 24.93 1.64 0.01

Employee related statutory payments are made on time.

Statutory payment Group Company

2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15

Rs millions Rs millions Rs millions Rs millions

Employee Provident Fund 9.82 7.78 7.43 5.63

Employee Trust Fund 1.22 1.04 0.86 0.71

PAYE 4.48 2.16 4.46 2.08

Stamp Duty 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.01

Gratuity 0.21 - 0.21 -

Total 15.75 10.99 12.97 8.43

The Group was not charged with fines for non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Ethical responsibility
Our values and the culture are set out on the principles of good ethics. Employees are encouraged to do right things and in right 
ways so that our actions benefit the society and people in a wider manner. The management strives to ensure that all stakeholder 
rights and interests are well looked after by our actions and strives to ensure that no one unreasonably suffers owing to unethical 
practices. We conduct awareness sessions to propagate our values and all our employees are given a copy of our Code-of-Ethics. 
On the other hand we use numerous mechanisms to monitor ethical compliance through formal and informal channels. We have 
a ‘whistleblowing’ policy to encourage tip-offs and telltales at all levels. This, we believe, encourages good conduct among the 
employees which in turn enhances the organisation’s corporate image. 

The Group did not come across any incidents of corruption for the year under review and previous year.

Discretionary Responsibility
The philanthropic element of our social responsibility encompasses anonymous or low-profile donations and contributions to good 
causes. We support numerous good-cause-projects usually focused on improving the quality of life of the rural communities in and 
around the areas where our operational power plants and project development sites are. By this, we expect to support the success 
of those good-causes and to engage with the communities that we would operate along with. 
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Responsibility to our employees
We believe our employees are the key driving force behind 
our success. Our team consistently shows resilience at volatile 
times and shoulder responsibility to stand out as one unit for 
the betterment and success of the organization under any 
circumstances.

We have a structured performance review system to evaluate, 
recognize and reward performances through a transparent 
basis. The gaps in performances are identified with reference 
to skills, knowledge, and all other aspects will then be 
addressed through continuous training and development 
programmes. Personal development and training thus plays an 
important part in our strategic agenda. 

We also host numerous socialising activities focused on team 
work, bonding, harmony and unity among employees. Events 
such as outbound training programmes, trips, formal and 
informal social gatherings are usually featured every year. 

Our power plants operate in ‘5S” environment. Through which 
we are aiming to enhance workplace safety, efficiency and the 
environmental protection. 

As a policy, we emphasise on the importance of good financial 
discipline. We craft our training plans with the intention to 
meet Company objectives whilst creating opportunities for 
employees to perform their duties in numerous cross-sectional 
platforms. Among many, special emphasis is given to improve 
the soft skills for personal developments and unity in the teams.

Code of Ethics is handled by Head of Human Resources of 
the Group. Employees are given awareness about our Code 
of Ethics at recruitment and then at regular intervals. We 
are planning to organize a series of training sessions to our 
employees on our Code of Ethics and Conduct in the ensuing 
financial year.

We provide on the job training to students who come for 
training from the following institutions;

• Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka

• National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority 
(NAITA) 

• Higher National Diploma in Engineering (HNDE)  

We have witnessed and experienced over the years the 
results of our approach have enabled a sense of pride and 
belongingness amongst the members of our team and between 
the team and the Company.

Donation of a Generator to Giddawa village

Our power plants in 5S environment 

Grievance Mechanism
The Group did not receive any grievances about impacts on 
society through its formal grievance mechanism for the year 
under review and previous year. Minor social issues at project 
sites were resolved amicably.
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Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Index

GRI Content Index for ‘In accordance’ – Core

Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

General Standard Disclosures:

Strategy and Analysis

G4-1, G4-2

Chairman’s Statement, CEO’s Review and description of 

key impacts, risks and opportunities

Chairman’s Statement – page 16 to 19 

Managing Director’s Review – page 21 to 25

Business Value Creation Model and Resus Strategy 

– page 32 to 33

Enterprise Risk Management – page 144 to 150

Yes 

page 98 to 99

Organisation Profile

G4-3 

Name of the Organisation

Corporate Information – Inner Back Cover Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-4

Primary brands, products and/or services

Our Business Operation – page 72 to 75 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-5

Location of organisation’s headquarters

Corporate Information – Inner Back Cover Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-6

Countries of operation

Group Structure – page 10 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-7

Nature of ownership and legal form

Corporate Information – Inner Back Cover

Group Structure – page 10

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-8

Markets served

Our Business Operation – page 72 to 75

Social and Relationship Capital – page 62

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-9

Scale of the reporting organization

Financial Highlights – page 14

Delivery of value – page 13

Group Structure – page 10

Our Business Operation – page 72 to 75

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-10

Total workforce by employment type, employment 

contract and region, broken down by gender

Human Capital – page 66 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-11

Percentage of employees covered by collective 

bargaining agreements

Human Capital – page 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-12

Organisation’s supply chain

Social and Relationship Capital – page 63 to 64 Yes 

page 98 to 99
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Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

G4-13

Significant changes during the reporting period regarding 

size, structure or ownership

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5

Our Journey – page 8 to 9

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-14

Explanation of whether and how the precautionary 

approach or principle is addressed by the organisation

Environmental Impact Management – page 80 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-15

Externally developed economic, environmental and 

social Charters and principles, or other initiatives to 

which the organisation subscribes or endorses

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 05 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-16

Memberships in associations and/or national/

international advocacy organisations

Corporate Information – Inner Back Cover Yes 

page 98 to 99

Identified material aspects and boundaries

G4-17

Organisation entities covered by the report

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5

Group Structure – page 10

Annual Report of the Board of Directors – page 152 

to 153

Notes to the Financial Statements – page 173 to 

174

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-18

Process for defining report content

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-19

Material aspects identified for report content

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5

Reporting Parameters - Material Aspects – page 

34 to 35

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-20

Aspect boundary for identified material aspects within 

the Organisation 

Reporting Parameters - Material Aspects – page 

34 to 35

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-21

Aspect boundary for identified material aspects outside 

the Organisation

Reporting Parameters - Material Aspects – page 

34 to 35

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-22

Explanation of the effect of any restatement of 

information provided in earlier reports and the reason for 

such restatement 

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5 Yes 

page 98 to 99
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Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

G4-23

Significant changes from previous reporting periods in 

the scope, aspect boundaries in the report 

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Stakeholder Engagement

G4-24

List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organisation

Stakeholder Engagement – page 36 to 37 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-25

Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with 

whom to engage 

Stakeholder Engagement – page 36 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-26

Approaches to stakeholder engagement, including 

frequency of engagement by type and by stakeholder 

group 

Stakeholder Engagement – page 38 to 45 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-27

Key topics and concerns raised through stakeholder 

engagement and how the Organisation responded to 

them 

Stakeholder Engagement – page 38 to 45 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Report Profile

G4-28

Reporting period 

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-29

Date of most recent previous report

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-30

Reporting cycle 

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-31

Contact point for questions regarding the report or its 

contents 

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-32

Compliance with GRI G4 guidelines, GRI content index 

and the External Assurance Report 

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5

GRI Index – page 88 to 97

Independent Assurance Report on Sustainability 

Reporting – page 98 to 99

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-33

Policy and current practice with regard to seeking 

external assurance for the Report 

Introduction to our Annual Report – page 5

Independent Assurance Report on Sustainability 

Reporting – page 98 to 99

Yes 

page 98 to 99

Governance

G4-34 

Governance structure of the Organisation, including 

committees under the highest governance body 

responsible for decision-making on economic, 

environmental and social impacts

Group Structure – page 12 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Index Contd.
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Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

G4-38

Composition of the highest governance body and its 

Committees

Board of Directors – page 26 to 29

Corporate Governance – page 112, 118 and 119

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-39

Indicate whether the Chair of the highest governance 

body is also an Executive Officer

Corporate Governance – page 106 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-40

Process and criteria used for nomination and selection 

of members to the highest governance body and its 

Committees

Corporate Governance – page 109 to 110 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-41

Processes in place for the highest governing body to 

ensure conflicts of interests are avoided and managed

Corporate Governance – page 108 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Ethics and Integrity

G4-56

The values, principles, standards and norms of behaviour

Vision, Mission and Values – page 7

Intellectual Capital – page 71

Social Impact Management – page 86 to 87

Yes 

page 98 to 99

Specific Standard Disclosures:

Category: Economic

Material Aspect: Economic Performance

G4-DMA Economic Impact Management – page 76 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EC1

Direct economic value generated, distributed and 

retained

Economic Impact Management – page 77 to 78 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EC3

Coverage of the organization’s defined benefit plan 

obligations

Notes to the Financial Statements – Employee 

Benefits Obligations – page 204 to 205

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EC4

Financial assistance received from government

Financial Capital – page 51 to 54

Social and Relationship Capital – page 62

Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Indirect Economic Impacts

G4-DMA Economic Impact Management – page 76 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EC7

Development and impact of infrastructure investments 

and services supported

Social and Relationship Capital – page 62

Economic Impact Management – page 76

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EC8

Significant economic impact

Economic Impact Management – page 79 Yes 

page 98 to 99
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Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

Material Aspect: Procurement Practices

G4-DMA Social and Relationship Capital – page 63 to 64 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EC9

Proportion of spending on local suppliers

Social and Relationship Capital – page 64 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Category: Environmental

Material Aspect: Materials

G4-DMA Environmental Impact Management – page 80 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN1

Materials used by weight or volume

Environmental Impact Management – page 83 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Energy

G4-DMA Environmental Impact Management – page 80 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN3

Energy consumption within the organization

Environmental Impact Management – page 84 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Water

G4-DMA Environmental Impact Management – page 82 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN8

Total water withdrawal by source

Environmental Impact Management – page 82 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN9

Water sources significantly affected by withdrawal of 

water

Environmental Impact Management – page 82 to 

83

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN10

Percentage and total volume of water recycled and 

reused

Environmental Impact Management – page 82 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Biodiversity

G4-EN11

Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent 

to, protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value 

outside protected areas

Environmental Impact Management – page 84 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN12

Description of significant impacts of activities, products, 

and services on biodiversity in protected areas and areas 

of high biodiversity value outside protected areas

Environmental Impact Management – page 84 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN13

Habitats protected or restored

Environmental Impact Management – page 84 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN14

Total number of IUCN red list species and national 

conservation list species with habitats in areas affected 

by operations, by level of extinction risk

Environmental Impact Management – page 84 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Index Contd.
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Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

Material Aspect: Emission

G4-DMA Environmental Impact Management – page 83 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN15

Direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1)

Environmental Impact Management – page 83 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN16

Energy indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2)

Environmental Impact Management – page 83 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN17

Other indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 3)

Environmental Impact Management – page 83 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN19

Reduction of greenhouse gas emissions

Environmental Impact Management – page 83 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN20

Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS)

Environmental Impact Management – page 83 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN21

NOx, SOx, and other significant air emissions

Environmental Impact Management – page 83 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Effluent and Waste

G4-DMA Environmental Impact Management – page 81 to 

82

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN22

Total water discharge by quality and destination

Environmental Impact Management – page 82 to 

83

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN23

Total weight of waste by type and disposal method

Environmental Impact Management – page 82 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Compliance

G4-DMA Environmental Impact Management – page 84 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN29

Monetary value of significant fines and total number 

of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with 

environmental laws and regulations

Environmental Impact Management – page 85 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Overall

G4-DMA Environmental Impact Management - page 84 to 85 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN31

Total environmental protection expenditures and 

investments by type

Environmental Impact Management - page 85 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Supplier Environmental Assessment

G4-DMA Social and Relationship Capital – page 64 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN32

Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using 

environmental criteria

Social and Relationship Capital – page 64 Yes 

page 98 to 99
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Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

Material Aspect: Environmental Grievances Mechanism

G4-DMA Environmental Impact Management – page 85 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-EN34

Number of grievances about environmental impacts 

filed, addressed, and resolved through formal grievance 

mechanisms

Environmental Impact Management – page 85 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Category: Social

Sub Category: Labour Practices and Decent Work

G4-DMA Human Capital – page 66 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA1

Total number and rate of new employee hires and 

employee turnover by age group, gender, and region

Human Capital – page 67 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA2

Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not 

provided to temporary or part-time employees, by 

significant locations of operation

Human Capital – page 70

Social Impact Management – page 86 to 87

Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA3

Return to work and retention rates after parental leave, 

by gender

Human Capital – page 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Occupational Health and Safety

G4-DMA Human Capital – page 69 to 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA6

Type of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, 

lost days, and absenteeism and total number of work-

related fatalities, by region and by gender

Human Capital – page 69 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Training and Education

G4-DMA Human Capital – page 68 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA9

Average hours of training per year per employee by 

gender and by employee category

Human Capital – page 68 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA10

Programmes for skills management and lifelong learning 

that support the continued employability of employees 

and assist them in managing career endings

Human Capital – page 68 to 69 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Index Contd.
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Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

G4-LA11

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 

and career development reviews by gender and 

employee category

Human Capital – page 69 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Diversity and Equal Opportunity

G4-DMA Human Capital – page 66 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA12

Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of 

employees per employee category according to gender, 

age group, minority group membership, and other 

indicators of diversity

Human Capital – page 66 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Supplier Assessment of Labour Practices

G4-DMA Social and Relationship Capital – page 64 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA14

Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using 

labour practices criteria

Social and Relationship Capital – page 64 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA15

Significant actual and potential negative impacts for 

labour practices in the supply chain and actions taken

Social and Relationship Capital – page 64 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Labour Practices and Grievance Mechanism

G4-DMA Human Capital – page 69 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-LA16

Number of grievances about labour practices filed, 

addressed and resolved through formal grievance 

mechanisms

Human Capital – page 69 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Sub Category: Human Rights

Material Aspect: Non-discrimination

G4-DMA Human Capital – page 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-HR3

Total number of incidents of discrimination and corrective 

actions taken

Human Capital – page 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Child Labour

G4-DMA Human Capital – page 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-HR5

Operations and suppliers identified as having significant 

risk for incidents of child labour, and measures taken to 

contribute to the effective abolition of child labour

Human Capital – page 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99
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Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

Material Aspect: Forced or Compulsory Labour

G4-DMA Human Capital – page 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-HR6

Operations and suppliers identified as having significant 

risk for incidents of forced or compulsory labour, and 

measures to contribute to the elimination of all forms of 

forced or compulsory labour

Human Capital – page 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Human Right Grievance Mechanism

G4-DMA Human Capital – page 69 to 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-HR12

Number of grievances about Human Rights impacts 

filed, addressed and resolved through formal grievance 

mechanisms

Human Capital – page 70 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Sub Category: Society

Material Aspect: Local Communities

G4-DMA Social and Relationship Capital – page 65 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-SO1

Percentage of operations with implemented local 

community engagement, impact assessments and 

development programmes

Social and Relationship Capital – page 65 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-SO2

Operations with significant actual and potential negative 

impacts on local communities

Social and Relationship Capital – page 65 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Anti-corruption

G4-DMA Social Impact Management – page 86 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-SO5

Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken

Social Impact Management – page 86 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Compliance

G4-DMA Social Impact Management – page 86 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-SO8

Monetary value of significant fines and total number of 

non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with laws 

and regulations

Social Impact Management – page 86 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-SO9

Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using 

criteria for impacts on society

Social and Relationship Capital – page 64 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Index Contd.
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Index Reference and Description Section and page number reference in the Annual 

Report

External 

Assurance

Material Aspect: Grievance Mechanisms for Impacts on Society

G4-DMA Social Impact Management – page 86 to 87 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-SO11

Number of grievances about impacts on society filed, 

addressed, and resolved through formal grievance 

mechanisms

Social Impact Management – page 87 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Sub Category: Product Responsibility

Material Aspect: Customer Health and Safety

G4-DMA Social and Relationship Capital – page 62 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-PR2

Total number of incidents of non-compliance with 

regulations and voluntary codes concerning the health 

and safety impacts of products and services during their 

life cycle, by type of outcomes

Social and Relationship Capital – page 62 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Customer Privacy

G4-DMA Social and Relationship Capital – page 62 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-PR8

Total number of substantiated complaints regarding 

breaches of customer privacy and losses of customer 

data

Social and Relationship Capital – page 62 Yes 

page 98 to 99

Material Aspect: Compliance

G4-DMA Social and Relationship Capital – page 62 Yes 

page 98 to 99

G4-PR9

Monetary value of significant fines for non-compliance 

with laws and regulations concerning the provision and 

use of products and services

Social and Relationship Capital – page 62 Yes 

page 98 to 99
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Independent Assurance Report On 
Sustainability Reporting

Independent Assurance Report of Resus Energy 
PLC on the Sustainability Reporting Criteria 
Presented in the Integrated Annual Report 2015-16

Introduction and scope of the engagement
The management of Resus Energy PLC (“the Company”) 

engaged us to provide an independent assurance on the 

following elements of the sustainability reporting indicators 

under the annual report - 2015-16 (“the Report”).

• Reasonable assurance on the information on financial 

performance as specified on page 77 to 78 of the Report.

• Limited assurance on other information presented in the 

Report, prepared in accordance with the requirements of 

the Global Reporting Initiative G4 ‘In accordance’ - Core 

guidelines.

Basis of our work and level of assurance
We performed our procedures to provide limited assurance 

in accordance with Sri Lanka Standard on Assurance 

Engagements (SLSAE 3000): ‘Assurance Engagements Other 

than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information’, 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 

(“CASL”).

The evaluation criteria used for this limited assurance 

engagement are based on the Sustainability Reporting 

Guidelines (“GRI Guidelines”) and related information in 

particular, the requirements to achieve GRI G4 ‘In accordance’ 

–Core guideline publication, publicly available at GRI’s global 

website at “www.globalreporting.org”.

Our engagement provides limited assurance as well as 

reasonable assurance. A limited assurance engagement 

is substantially less in scope than a reasonable assurance 

engagement conducted in accordance with SLSAE-3000 and 

consequently does not enable to obtain assurance that we 

would become aware of all significant matters that might be 

identified in a reasonable assurance engagement.

Management of the Company’s responsibility for 
the Report
The management of the Company is responsible for the 

preparation of the self-declaration, the information and 

statements contained within the Report, and for maintaining 

adequate records and internal controls that are designed to 

support the sustaining reporting process in line with the GRI 

Sustainability Reporting Guidelines.

Ernst & Young’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion as to whether 

we have become aware of any matter that causes us to 

believe that the Report is not prepared in accordance with 

the requirements of the Global Reporting Initiative G4 ‘In 

accordance’ – Core guidelines. This report is made solely to 

the Company in accordance with our engagement letter dated 

04 May 2016. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility 

for any reliance on this report to any person other than the 

Company or for any purpose other than that for which it was 

prepared. In conducting our engagement, we have complied 

with the independence requirements of the Code for Ethics for 

Professional Accountants issued by the CASL.

Key assurance procedures
We planned and performed our procedures to obtain the 

information and explanations considered necessary to 

provide sufficient evidence to support our limited assurance 

conclusions. Key assurance procedures included:

• Interviewing the relevant company’s personnel to 

understand the process for collection, analysis, aggregation 

and presentation of data.

• Reviewing and validation of the information contained in 

the Report.

• Checking the calculations performed by the Company on a 

sample basis through recalculation.

• Reconciling and agreeing the data on financial performance 

are properly derived from the Company’s audited financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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• Comparison of the content of the Report against the criteria 

for a Global Reporting Initiative G4 ‘In accordance’ - Core 

guidelines.

Our procedures did not include testing electronic systems used 

to collect and aggregate the information.

Limitations and considerations
Environmental and social performance data are subject to 

inherent limitations given their nature and the methods used for 

determining, calculating and estimating such data.

Conclusion
Based on the procedures performed, as described above, we 

conclude that;

• The information on financial performance as specified on 

page 77 to 78 of the Report are properly derived from the 

audited financial statements of the Company for the year 

ended 31 March 2016.

• Nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 

that other information presented in the Report are not fairly 

presented, in all material respects, in accordance with 

the Company’s sustainability practices and policies some 

of which are derived from GRI-G4-‘In accordance’-Core 

Sustainability Reporting Guidelines.

Chartered Accountants

19 May 2016

Colombo
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Corporate Governance

Chairman’s Statement
At Resus Energy PLC we aim to create and sustain value 

over the long-term by understanding the external factors 

that present risks and opportunities for our business, thereby 

ensuring our strategy is appropriate; building strong and stable 

relationships with our investors, employees and customers; 

and ensuring that we manage our risks and resources, 

including capital, appropriately. 

In pursuit of achieving the highest standards of Corporate 

Governance, the Company follows an approach that 

complies with all the provisions of the Code of Best Practice 

on Corporate Governance issued jointly by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Securities and 

Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka as well as the disclosure 

requirements of the Colombo Stock Exchange and statutory 

requirements in the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. In addition 

to the mandatory requirements that are complied with, Resus 

has established its own set of internal benchmarks, policies, 

processes and structures to meet accepted best practices in 

governance. 

The Board sets the framework of Corporate Governance within 

the Group by promoting professional standards and corporate 

values. Policies, procedures and processes are key devices 

through which these governance standards and values are 

cascaded down to ensure compliance across the Group. The 

Board is also supported by robust and independent audit 

and compliance functions that provide effective oversight 

over the governance process. In December 2015, with the 

recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the Board 

approved the ‘whistleblowing policy’ with a view to strengthen 

the process by which employees raise their concerns in 

confidence. 

The level of compliance with the Code of Best Practice 

on Corporate Governance issued jointly by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and the 

Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka in 2013 (the 

Code) and the disclosure requirements and continuing listing 

rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange are described in the 

Report below.

As required in the Code, I hereby confirm that, I am not aware 

of any material violations of any of the provisions of the Code 

of Business Conduct and Ethics by any Director or any member 

of the Corporate Management of Resus Energy PLC.

H A S Madanayake

Chairman

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016
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Corporate Governance Framework
The fundamental purpose of any Company is the creation 

and delivery of long-term sustainable shareholder value in 

a manner consistent with its obligations as a responsible 

corporate citizen. The Corporate Governance must be seen in 

this context. Good Corporate Governance practices is in the 

DNA of Resus’ culture and we do our activities within the good 

governance framework. 

The Company operates with an Integrated Governance 

framework with due considerations given to Corporate 

Governance Best Practice issued jointly by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and the 

Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka (SEC) and 

also continuing listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. 

The following sections set out Group’s compliance with 

Corporate Governance rules.

Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued 

jointly by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 

Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Sri Lanka in 2013 (the Code)

This section demonstrates Resus’ level of compliance with the 

above Code comprising the following seven sections; 

A – Directors

B – Directors’ Remuneration

C – Relations with Shareholders

D – Accountability and Audit

E – Institutional Investors

F – Other Investors

G – Sustainability Reporting

Corporate 

Governance 

Principle

SEC and CA 

Sri Lanka Code 

Reference No 

Level of Compliance

A.  Directors

A.1 The Board The Company should be headed by a Board, which should direct, lead and control the Company. 

All Directors except the Managing Director serve the Board in Non-Executive capacity. The Board 

consists of professionals in the fields of Engineering, Legal, Accounting, Finance, Investment Banking and 

Management. All Directors possess the skills, experience and knowledge with a greater sense of integrity 

and independent judgment. The Board gives leadership in setting the strategic direction and establishing 

sound internal control framework for the successful accomplishment of business goals. 

1. Frequency of 

Board Meetings 

A.1.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board generally meets on quarterly basis, but meets more frequently whenever it is 

necessary.

Accordingly, four Board Meetings are scheduled annually to determine the Company’s 

strategic direction, review the Company’s operational and financial performances and to 

provide insight. 

Ad-hoc meetings are also scheduled to discuss and review specific matters which require 

the attention of the Board between scheduled Board meetings.

Apart from taking decisions at Board meetings, the Board also takes decisions via circular 

resolutions which are required to be signed by all the Directors.

The attendance at Board meetings held in the financial year is set out on page 105.
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2.Responsibilities 

of the Board

A.1.2 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board of Directors is responsible to the shareholders for creating sustainable 

shareholder value and all concerned stakeholder interests are safeguarded in business 

decisions. 

The Board adopted the following responsibilities; 

• formulation, implementation and monitoring the business strategy

• placing effective systems to secure the integrity of information, internal controls and 

risk management

• compliance with laws, regulations and ethical standards

• all stakeholder interests are considered in corporate decisions

The Board has delegated some of its functions to Sub-Committees, while retaining 

final decision rights pertaining to matters under the purview of the Committees. The 

composition and the functions of these Sub–Committees are discussed in detail under the 

relevant sections of this Report.

3.Compliance 

with laws 

and access to 

independent 

professional 

advice 

A.1.3 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board collectively and the Directors individually act in accordance with the laws of 

the country of operation which are applicable to the business enterprise. The Board of 

Directors ensures that procedures and processes are in place to ensure that the Company 

complies with all applicable laws and regulations.

A procedure has been put in place for Directors to seek independent professional advice 

from external parties when necessary at the expense of the Company. There were 

instances during the financial year under review that Board members sought such advice 

which were attended to by the Company. 

4.Board 

Secretary 

A.1.4 Adoption status : Adopted

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Board Secretary. The Board 

Secretary ensures that Board procedures, relevant statutory obligations and other 

applicable rules and regulations are complied with.

The Board Secretary had provided the Board with support and advice relating to 

Corporate Governance matters, Board procedures, and applicable rules and regulations 

during the financial year. The Board Secretary ensures that the Board members are 

provided with timely and accurate information to fulfill their duties. 

The appointment and removal of the Board Secretary is a decision taken by the Board as 

a whole.
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5.Independent 

judgment 

A.1.5 Adoption status : Adopted

The Directors exercise independent judgment in all decisions pertaining to strategy, 

performance, resource allocation and standards of business conduct. 

Non-Executive Directors are responsible for bringing independent and objective 

judgment, and scrutinizing the recommendations/proposals made by the corporate 

management led by the Managing Director on issues of strategy, performance, resource 

utilization and business conduct.

6.Dedication of 

adequate time 

and effort by the 

Board and Board 

Committees

A.1.6 Adoption status : Adopted

The members of the Board dedicate adequate time and effort to fulfill their duties and 

responsibilities as Directors of the Company. In addition to attending Board meetings, they 

have attended Sub-Committee meetings and also have contributed to decision making 

through circular resolutions where necessary. The Board Sub-Committees include;

 - Audit Committee

 - Remuneration Committee

 - Related Party Transactions Review Committee 

The number of meetings of the Board, Board appointed Sub-Committees and individual 

attendance by members is shown below;
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Name of 

Director

Directorship 

status

Board Audit 

Committee

Remuneration 

Committee

Related Party 

Transactions 

Review 

Committee

Total No 

of meetings

07 04 03 01

Mr H A S 

Madanayake

Chairman 07/07 - 03/03 -

Mr G A K 

Nanayakkara

MD 07/07 - - 01/01

Mr C V 

Kulatilaka

NED 04/07 - - -

Mr I S 

Somaratne 

(appointed 

w.e.f 

14/10/2015)

NED 07/07 02/04 - 01/01

Mr U G 

Madanayake 

(appointed 

w.e.f 

26/06/2015)

NED 02/07 - - -

Mr P K 

Jayawardena 

(resigned w.e.f 

13/08/2015) 

NED 03/07 02/04 - -

*Prof. K A M 

K Ranasinghe

ID 06/07 04/04 03/03 01/01

**Mr U P 

Egalahewa PC  

ID 07/07 04/04 03/03 01/01

NED – Non-Executive Director

ID – Independent Non-Executive Director

MD – Managing Director

*Chairman – Audit Committee

**Chairman – Remuneration Committee and Related Party Transactions Review 

Committee
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7.Induction and 

Training for 

Directors

A.1.7 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board recognizes the need for continuous training and expansion of knowledge and 

undertakes such professional development as they consider necessary in assisting them 

to carry out their duties as Directors. Directors are therefore encouraged to participate in 

continuous professional and self-development activities.

In addition, an induction programme is in place for newly appointed Directors to 

familiarize them with the Company’s business operation and internal control system. 

A.2 Chairman 
and Chief 
Executive Officer

There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive 
Officer to ensure a balance of power and authority, in such a way that any individual has no 
unfettered powers of decisions.

The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are segregated at Resus. The Chairman’s main 

responsibility is to lead, direct and manage the Board to ensure that it operates effectively and fully 

discharges its legal and regulatory responsibilities. The Managing Director is responsible for the day-to-day 

operations of the Company and the Group. 

8.Separation 

of the 

responsibilities 

of Chairman 

and Managing 

Director 

A.2.1 Adoption status : Adopted

A clear division of responsibility is maintained between the Chairman and the Managing 

Director ensuring that the balance of power and authority is preserved.

The role of the Managing Director is to recommend the strategy to the Board and 

managing the day-to-day running of the Company. The Board has delegated this 

responsibility to the Managing Director and he then leads the corporate management 

team in making and executing operational decisions.

A.3 Chairman’s 
Role

The Chairman should lead and manage the Board, ensuring that it discharges its legal and regulatory 
responsibilities effectively and fully, and preserves order, and facilitates the effective discharge of the 
Board function. (The profile of the Chairman is given on page 28) 
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9.Role of the 

Chairman

A.3.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Chairman in running the Board facilitates the effective discharge of Board 

proceedings. All the Directors are encouraged to participate in decision making and their 

views are obtained to ensure that the Board functions in an efficient manner which is 

beneficial to the stakeholders and the Company. 

The Chairman of Resus Energy PLC is a Non-Executive Director appointed by the Board. 

The Chairman’s role encompasses the following;

- Ensuring that the new Board members are given appropriate induction

- Leading the Board and managing the business of the Board

- Approving the agenda for each Board meeting

- Ensuring that the Board members receive accurate, timely and clear information to 

enable the Board to take sound decisions

- Ensuring regular meetings, the minutes of which are accurately recorded and where 

appropriate include the individual and collective views of the Directors

- Facilitates and encourages discussions among all Directors in the decision making

- Representing the views of the Board to the public

A.4 Financial 
Acumen

The Board should ensure the availability within of those with sufficient financial acumen and 
knowledge to offer guidance on matters of finance.

The Board is equipped with members having sufficient financial acumen and knowledge.

10.Availability of 

sufficient financial 

acumen and 

knowledge 

A.4 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board comprises of several members who possess the necessary knowledge and 

competence to offer guidance on matters pertaining to finance.

The details of Directors’ qualifications and experience have been set out on page 28 to 29.

A.5 Board 
Balance

There should be balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors so that no individual or small 
group of individuals can dominate the Board’s decision-making.

All Directors are Non-Executive Directors except the Managing Director. Each of them bring vast 

experience and the ability to exercise independence and judgment when taking informed decisions. 

11.Presence of 
Non-Executive 
Directors

A.5.1 Adoption status : Adopted

All Directors except for the Managing Director are Non-Executive Directors. The 

requirement as per the Code has been complied with throughout the financial year.

Exective Directors 01

Non-Exective Directors 06

Total Number of Directors 07

The Board possesses the appropriate balance of skills, experience, independence and 

knowledge enabling it to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively. 
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12.Independent 

Directors 

A.5.2 Adoption status : Adopted

Two out of the six Non-Executive Directors are considered independent. The requirement 

as per the Code has been complied with throughout the financial year.

13.Criteria 

to evaluate 

Independence of 

Non-Executive 

Directors

A.5.3 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer Section A.5.5 below.

The Board considers Non-Executive Directors’ independence on an annual basis and 

concluded for the financial year that each of them continues to be free from any business 

or other relationship that could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with the 

exercise of their unfettered and independent judgment. 

14.Signed 

declarations of 

independence 

by the Non-

Executive 

Directors

A.5.4 Adoption status : Adopted

Independent Directors have submitted written declarations of their independence as 

required by Schedule J of the Code and section 7.10.2(b) of the Listing Rules.

15.Determination 

of independence 

of the Directors 

by the Board

A.5.5 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board annually determines the independence of each Non-Executive Independent 

Director based on the declarations submitted by them. Circumstances have not arisen for 

the determination of independence by the Board, beyond the criteria set out in the Code.

The following Directors are considered independent for the financial year under review in 

terms of 7.10.4 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

- Prof. K A M K Ranasinghe 

- Mr. U P Egalahewa PC

16.Alternate 

Directors

A.5.6 Adoption status : Adopted

Mr, I S Somaratne acted as the Alternate Director to Mr. C V Kulatilaka until he was 

appointed as a Director to the Board on 14/10/2015 upon resignation of Mr P K 

Jayawardena on 13/08/2015.

17.Senior 

Independent 

Director

A.5.7 Adoption status : N/A

A senior Independent Director has not been appointed by the Board as the Chairman and 

the Managing Director are separate persons. 

The requirement to appoint a Senior Independent Director does not arise under this Code.

18.Confidential 

discussion 

with the Senior 

Independent 

Director

A.5.8 Adoption status : N/A

Please refer the comment in A.5.7 above.
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19. Meeting of 

Non-Executive 

Directors

A.5.9 Adoption status : Adopted

The Chairman meets with the Non-Executive Directors without the presence of the 

Executive Director on a need basis. However, there were no formal specific meetings 

held with Non-Executive Directors during the year. 

20. Recording of 

concerns in Board 

minutes

A.5.10 Adoption status : Adopted

All concerns raised by the Directors on matters of the Company and wished to be 

recorded have been duly recorded in the Board minutes in sufficient details.

A.6 Supply of 
Information

Management should provide time bound information in a form and of quality appropriate to enable 
the Board to discharge its duties.

Financial and non-financial information are analysed and presented to the Board to make informed and 

accurate decisions.

21. 

Management’s 

obligation 

to provide 

appropriate and 

timely information 

A.6.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board was provided with appropriate and timely information by the management by 

way of Board papers and proposals to discharge its duties. In the event the information 

volunteered by management is not adequate, the Directors are free to make further 

inquiries and obtain the necessary information.

Members of the senior mangement team made presentations to Directors on important 

issues relating to strategy, risk management, new acquisitions and new developments 

in financial and legal aspects. The Chairman ensured that all Directors were briefed on 

issues arising at Board meetings. The Directors have free and open contact with the 

senior management of the Company. 

22. Adequate 

time for effective 

Board meetings

A.6.2 Adoption status : Adopted

The minutes, agenda and connected discussion papers are dispatched to the Directors in 

advance to facilitate the effective conduct of meetings.

A.7 
Appointments to 
the Board

A formal and transparent procedure should be followed for the appointment of new Directors to the 
Board.

The Board assesses the suitability of the prospective nominees to the Board and approves the persons as 

“fit and proper” to serve as a member of the Board. 

Mr. U G Madanayake was appointed to the Board w.e.f 26/06/2015. The profile of Mr. U G Madanayake is 

given on page 28.

Mr. I S Somaratne was appointed to the Board w.e.f 14/10/2015 upon resignation of Mr. P K Jayawardena 

on 13/08/2015. The profile of Mr. I S Somaratne is given on page 29.
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23. Appointments 

to the Board

A.7.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board has not established a Nominations Committee to make recommendations on 

Board appointments. Hence, appointments to the Board are made collectively and with 

the consent of all the Directors.

24. Assessment 

of Board 

composition

A.7.2 Adoption status : Adopted

An assesment is made of the Board composition to ascertain whether the combined 

knowledge and experience of the Board matches the strategic demands facing the 

Company when considering new appointments to the Board.

25. Disclosure 

of details of new 

Directors to 

shareholders

A.7.3 Adoption status : Adopted

Details of new Directors are disclosed to the shareholders at the time of their appointment 

by way of public announcements to the Colombo Stock Exchange as well as in the Annual 

Report, along with a brief resume of the Director which includes;

• the nature of his expertise in relevant functional area

• other Directorships or memberships in Board Sub-Committees 

• whether the Director is considered “Independent”.

A.8 Re-election All Directors should submit themselves for re-election at regular intervals and at least once in every 
three years, and all Non-Executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject to 
re-election.

26. Appointment 

of Non-Executive 

Directors 

A.8.1 Adoption status : Adopted

All Directors are subject to re-election as per the Articles of Associaton of the Company. 

One half of the Directors including the Executive Director retire by rotation at each Annual 

General Meeting in conformity with the Articles of Association of the Company.

27. Election of 

Directors by the 

shareholders

A.8.2 Adoption status : Adopted

A Director appointed during the year by the Board retires at the next Annual General 

Meeting of the Company and seeks re-appointment by the shareholders.

Mr. H A S Madanayake, Mr. C V Kulatilaka and Mr. I S Somaratne will retire by rotation 

at the Annual General Meeting under the Articles of Association of the Company, and they 

have offered themselves for re-election with the unanimous support of the Board.

In addition, a Director who has reached 70 years of age vacates office at the conclusion 

of the Annual General Meeting commencing next after he attains the age of 70 years or if 

he is re-appointed as a Director after attaining the age of 70 years at the Annual General 

Meeting following that re-appointment.
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A.9 Appraisal 
of Board 
Performance

The Board should periodically appraise its own performance against the pre set targets in order to 
ensure that the Board responsibilities are satisfactorily discharged.

28. Appraisal 

of Board 

Performance 

A.9.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board carries out an evaluation of its performance in the discharge of its key 

responsibilities. Each member of the Board and Board Sub-Committees carried out a self 

assessment of his own effectiveness as an individual as well as effectiveness of the Board 

as a team.

29. Annual self-

evaluation of the 

Board and its 

Committees

A.9.2 Please refer the comment for A.9.1

30. Disclosure 

of the method 

of Appraisal of 

Board and Board 

Sub-Committees

A.9.3 Please refer the comment for A.9.1

A.10 Disclosure 
of Information 
in respect of 
Directors

Details in respect of each Director should be disclosed in the Annual Report for the benefit of the 
shareholders.

31. Disclosure 

of information 

in respect of 

Directors 

A.10.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The biographical details of the Directors including their qualifications, nature of expertise 

in relevant functional areas, memberships in Board Sub-Committees and other 

directorships are given on page 28 to 29. Directors’ attendance at Board and Board Sub-

Committee meetings are given on page 105, and Directors’ interest in contracts with the 

Company are disclosed on page 159 to 161 of this Report.

The Board seats held by each Director as at 31st March 2016 is given on ‘Board of 

Directors’ section on page 28 to 29 and ‘Group Structure’ on page 10.

A.11 Appraisal 
of the Chief 
Executive Officer

The Board of Directors should at least annually assess the performance of the Chief Executive Officer.

32. Target/Goals 

for the Managing 

Director 

A.11.1 Adoption status : Adopted

At the commencement of each financial year, the Board in consultation with the 

Managing Director sets financial and non-financial goals based on the short, medium and 

long term objectives of the Company.
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33. Evaluation of 

the performance 

of the Managing 

Director

A.11.2 Adoption status : Adopted

The annual appraisal of the Managing Director is carried out by the Board at pre-agreed 

performance targets at the end of each financial year.

B. Directors’ Remuneration 

B.1 
Remuneration 
Procedure

The Company should have a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive 
remuneration and fixing the remuneration packages of individual Directors. No Director should be 
involved in deciding his/her remuneration in order to avoid the self-review threat.

34. Remuneration 

Committee 

B.1.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on remuneration 

policy for the Executive Director and the corporate management that is consistent with 

the objectives of the Company. 

The Committee determines and agrees with the Board the broad policy framework for the 

remuneration of the Managing Director. The Managing Director participates at meetings 

when deciding the remuneration of the corporate management in order to recruit, retain 

and motivate the corporate management team.

35. Composition 

of the 

Remuneration 

Committee

B.1.2 

B.1.3 

Adoption status : Adopted

The Remuneration Committee consists of two Independent Non-Executive Directors 

and a Non-Executive Director, and the following Directors served on the Remuneration 

Committee during the financial year under review.

Mr U P Egalahewa PC – Chairman

Prof K A M K Ranasinghe

Mr H A S Madanayake

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Non-Executive Director appointed by 

the Board.

Adoption status : Adopted

The names of the members of the Remuneration Committee are indicated on page 138.

A Board approved Terms of Reference of the Committee and a Remuneration Policy for 

the Board of Directors are in place.

The Remuneration Committee Report is given on page 138 to 139.
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36. Remuneration 

of the Non-

Executive 

Directors

B.1.4 Adoption status : Adopted

In terms of the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of Directors as a whole 

determines the fees payable to Non-Executive Directors. 

The Independent Non-Executive Directors receive a fee for being a Director of the Board 

and an additional fee for being a member of a Committee. They do not receive any 

performance related/incentive payments.

37. Consultation 

of the Chairman 

and access to 

professional 

advice

B.1.5 Adoption status : Adopted

The Committee consults the Chairman on proposals relating to the remuneration of the 

Executive Director and has access to professional advice in discharging their duties.

B.2 Level and 
make-up of 
Remuneration

The level of remuneration of both Executive and Non-Executive Directors should be sufficient to 
attract and retain the Directors needed to run the Company successfully. A proportion of Executive 
Directors’ remuneration should be structured to link rewards to the corporate and individual 
performance. 

38. Level and 

make-up of the 

remuneration of 

the Managing 

Director

B.2.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board makes assessments on the fact that the remuneration of Executive and the 

Non-Executive Directors reflects the market expectations and is sufficient enough to 

attract and retain the quality of Directors needed to run the Company. 

The remuneration package of the Managing Director is structured to link rewards to 

corporate and individual performance, ensuring there is strong alignment between the 

short-term and long-term interests of the Company.

39. Comparison 

of remuneration 

with other 

companies

B.2.2 Adoption status : Adopted

The Committee ensures that remuneration of executives at each level of management 

is competitive and in line with their performance. Surveys are conducted as and when 

necessary to ensure that the remuneration is on par with those of competitive companies. 

40. Comparison 

of remuneration 

with other 

companies in the 

Group

B.2.3 Adoption status : Adopted

It also takes into consideration data concerning executive pay among the related group 

companies when determining annual salary increases.

41. Performance 

related payments 

to the Managing 

Director

B.2.4 Adoption status : Adopted

Performance based incentives have been determined by to ensure that the total earnings 

of the Executive Director is aligned with the achievement of objectives and budgets of the 

Company. 
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42. Executive 

share options

B.2.5 Adoption status : N/A

There are no share options that have been offered to the Executive Director and senior 

management. 

43. Deciding 

the Executive 

Directors’ 

Remuneration

B.2.6 Adoption status : Adopted

In deciding the remuneration of the Managing Director, the Committee takes note of the 

provisions set out in Schedule E of the Code. 

44.  Early 

termination of 

Directors

B.2.7 Adoption status : N/A

Not applicable to the Board except for the Managing Director who is an employee of the 

Company and his terms of employment is governed by the employment contract.

45. Early 

termination not 

included in the 

initial contract

B.2.8 Adoption status : N/A

Please refer comment in B.2.7 above.

46. Remuneration 

of Non-Executive 

Directors

B.2.9 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer B.1.4 above.

B.3 Disclosure of 
Remuneration

The Company should disclose the Remuneration Policy and the details of Remuneration of the Board 
as a whole.

47. Disclosure of 

Remuneration

B.3.1 Adoption status : Adopted

Remuneration policy is disclosed in Remuneration Committee Report on page 138 of the 

Annual Report.

The total remuneration paid to the Directors is disclosed in note 30.2 to the Financial 

Statements.

C. Relations with Shareholders 

C.1 Constructive 
use of the 
Annual General 
Meeting 
and Conduct 
of General 
Meetings

The Board should use the Annual General Meeting to communicate with shareholders and encourage 
their active participation.

48. Use of proxy 

votes

C.1.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Company records and counts all proxy votes lodged on each resolution and the 

percentage of votes for and against on each resolution. 

49. Separate 

resolution for all 

separate issues

C.1.2 Adoption status : Adopted

The Company proposes a separate resolution for each item of business at the Annual 

General Meeting giving shareholders the opportunity to vote on each issue separately. 
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50. Availability 

of all Board 

Sub-Committee 

Chairmen at the 

Annual General 

Meeting

C.1.3 Adoption status : Adopted

The Chairpersons of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee were present at 

the 2014/15 Annual General Meeting to answer questions raised by shareholders if so 

requested by the Chairman of the Board.

51. Adequate 

notice of the 

Annual General 

Meeting

C.1.4 Adoption status : Adopted

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the relevant documents are published 

and dispatched to the shareholders 15 working days prior to the meeting as required by 

Section 135(1) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. 

52.Procedures of 

voting at General 

Meetings

C.1.5 Adoption status : Adopted

The procedure governing voting at the Annual General Meeting is circulated with the 

Notice of Meeting. 

C.2 
Communication 
with 
shareholders

The Board should implement effective communication with shareholders.

53. Channel 

to reach all 

shareholders of 

the Company

C.2.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Company disseminates information pertaining to the performance of the Company 

through the publication of the Interim Financial Statements and the Annual Report in a 

timely manner. Information is provided to the shareholders prior to the Annual General 

Meeting to give them an opportunity to raise any issues relating to business of Resus, 

either verbally or in writing prior to the Annual General Meeting.

Immediate announcements are also made to the Colombo Stock Exchange on any 

information which is considered price sensitive.

The Company Secretary could be contacted in relation to any shareholder matter.

54.Policy and 

methodology for 

communication 

with shareholders

C.2.2 Adoption status : Adopted

The Company will focus on open communication and fair disclosure, with emphasis on the 

integrity, timeliness and relevance of the information provided. The Company will ensure 

information is communicated accurately and in such a way as to avoid the creation or 

continuation of a false market.
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55. 

Implementation 

of the policy and 

methodology for 

communication 

with shareholders

C.2.3 Adoption status : Adopted

The Company adopts a two way communication policy with shareholders. At the Annual 

General Meeting, the Company openly welcomes any suggestions from the shareholders 

and shareholders may elect to receive the Annual Report in printed form. The Board of 

Directors is prepared to provide comprehensive explanations for queries of shareholders. 

56.Contact person 

in relation to 

shareholders’ 

matters

C.2.4

C.2.6

Adoption status : Adopted

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly available information 

and provide comments and suggestions to Directors or Management of the Company. 

Such questions, requests and comments should be addressed to the Company Secretary.

57.Process 

to make all 

Directors aware 

of major issues 

and concerns of 

shareholders

C.2.5 Adoption status : Adopted

The Company Secretary shall maintain a record of all correspondence received and will 

deliver as soon as practicable such correspondence to the Board or individual Director/s 

as applicable.

The Board or individual Director/s, as applicable, will generate an appropriate response to 

all validly received shareholder correspondence and will direct the Company Secretary to 

send the response to the particular shareholder.

58.The process 

of responding 

to shareholder 

matters

C.2.7 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer the comment for C.2.5 above.

C.3 Major 
and Material 
Transactions

Directors should disclose to shareholders all proposed material transactions which would materially 
alter the net asset position of the Company, if entered into.

59. Major 

transactions

C.3.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Directors ensure that any transaction that would materially affect the net asset base 

of the Company or Group is communicated to the shareholders and required approvals 

are obtained in accordance with the Statutes.

At an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 14th August 2015, the Board of Directors 

sought shareholder approval for the capital reduction of Rs. 1,374,882,957/- and the 

payment consideration for the proposed share repurchase amounting to a maximum sum 

of Rs. 1,717,028,592/-, being a distribution by the Company in terms of section 56 of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and a major transaction of the Company in terms of section 

185 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. 

Corporate Governance Contd.
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D. Accountability and Audit

D.1 Financial 
Reporting

The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s financial 
position, performance and prospects.

60. Statutory 

and Regulatory 

Reporting

D.1.1 Adoption status : Adopted

Resus Energy PLC has reported a true and fair view of its financial position and 

performance for the year ended 31st March 2016 and at the end of each quarter of 

2015/16 financial year.

The Board ensures that the quarterly and annual Financial Statements of the Company 

and Group are prepared and published in compliance with the requirements of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKASs and SLFRSs) and 

the Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

61. Directors’ 

Report in the 

Annual Report

D.1.2 Adoption status : Adopted

The “Annual Report of the Board of Directors” which is given on page 152 to 161 covers 

all areas of this Section.

62. Statement 

of Directors’ 

and Auditors’ 

responsibility 

for the Financial 

Statements

D.1.3 Adoption status : Adopted

The declarations required to be made by the Board is given in the Annual Report of the 

Board of Directors.

“Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in relation to Annual Financial Statements” in 

preparation of the Financial Statements is given on page 164 of this Report while the 

“Independent Auditors’ Report” on page165 states the Auditors’ Responsibility for the 

Financial Statements. The “Directors’ Statement on Internal Control” is given on page 135.

63. Management 

Discussions and 

Analysis

D.1.4 Adoption status : Adopted

A Management Discussion and Analysis is contained in the “Managing Director’s Review” 

on page 21 to 25 and Capitals Report on page 46 to 71 and Our Business Operation on 

page 72 to 75 and Impact Management Report on page 76 to 87.

64. Declaration 

by the Board that 

the business as a 

Going Concern

D.1.5 Adoption status : Adopted

The declaration by the Board that the Company is a Going Concern is given in the “Annual 

Report of the Board of Directors” on page 152 to 161. 

65. Summoning 

an Extra Ordinary 

General Meeting 

(EGM) to notify 

serious loss of 

capital

D.1.6 Adoption status : N/A

Likelihood of such occurrence is remote. However, should the situation arises, an EGM 

will be called for and shareholders will be notified.
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66. Related party 

transactions

D.1.7 Adoption status : Adopted

The Directors have instituted an effective and comprehensive system of Internal Controls 

for identifying, recording and disclosure of related party transactions.

Steps have been taken by the Board to avoid any conflict of interest that may arise, in 

transacting with related parties. Further, the Board ensures that no related party benefits 

from favourable treatment. The pricing applicable to such transactions is based on the 

assessment of risk and pricing model of the Company and is comparable with that what is 

applied to transactions between the Company and its unrelated parties.

Related Party Transactions Review Committee was established by the Board w.e.f 1st 

January 2016 in accordance with the guidelines of the Code of Best Practices on Related 

Party Transactions issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka with 

the following Board members;

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC (Independent Non-Executive Director) – Chairman

Prof K A M K Ranasinghe (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara – Managing Director 

Mr. I S Somaratne – (Non-Executive Director)

Related Party Transactions Review policy and procedures are discussed in the Related 

Party Transactions Review Committee report on page 140 to 141.

All related party transactions as defined in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard-24 (LKAS 24) 

on “Related Party Transactions” are disclosed in note 30 to the Financial Statements on 

page 215 to 218.

D.2 Internal 
Control

The Board should have a sound system of internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investments 
and Company’s assets.

67. Annual 

evaluation of the 

risks facing the 

Company and 

the effectiveness 

of the system of 

internal controls

D.2.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Board is responsible for establishing a sound framework of risk management and 

internal control and monitoring its effectiveness on a continuous basis. Through such 

an effective framework, Resus manages business risks and ensures that the financial 

information on which business decisions are made and published is reliable, and 

also ensures that the Company’s assets are safeguarded against unauthorised use or 

disposition. 

The Board has appointed a three-member Audit Committee comprising of two 

Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee on quarterly basis reviews 

the Risk Register of the Company and the Group in the context of likelihood and their 

impact to the Group along with the effectiveness of the system of internal controls to 

address them to a satisfactory level.

Corporate Governance Contd.
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68. Internal audit 

function

D.2.2 Adoption status : Adopted

The internal auditors under the direction of the Audit Committee are tasked with 

reviewing the adequacy and the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group. 

Internal audit function is outsourced to a firm of Chartered Accountants and is generally 

carried out annually.

69. Review of 

the process and 

effectiveness of 

risk management 

and internal 

controls by the 

Audit Committee

D.2.3 Adoption status : Adopted

The Audit Committee monitors, reviews and evaluates the effectiveness of the risk 

management and internal control system including the internal controls over financial 

reporting.

The internal auditors review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Internal control 

system and report their findings to the Audit Committee. 

In the financial year under review, the Board of Directors was satisfied with the 

effectiveness of the system of internal controls of the Company. Please refer Directors’ 

Statement on Internal Control on page 135 and Audit Committee Report on page 136 to 

137.

70. 

Responsibilities 

of Directors in 

maintaining a 

sound system of 

internal control

D.2.4 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer Directors’ Statement on Internal Control on page 135.

D.3 Audit 
Committee

The Board should have a formal and transparent arrangement in selecting and applying the 
accounting policies, financial reporting and internal control principles and maintaining an appropriate 
relationship with the Company’s External Auditors. 

71.Composition 

of the Audit 

Committee

D.3.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The following Directors served on the Audit Committee during 2015/16.

 Prof K A M K Ranasinghe – Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)

 Mr. P K Jayawardena – Non-Executive Director (resigned w.e.f. 13/08/2015)

 Mr. U P Egalahewa PC - (Independent Non-Executive Director)

 Mr. I S Somaratne - Non-Executive Director (appointed w.e.f. 14/10/2015)

The said Committee met four (04) times during the year.

The Board Secretary functions as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. 

The Managing Director, Head of Finance, Senior Project Managers, and the External and 

Internal Auditors attend meetings on invitation.
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72.Reveiw of 

Objectivity of the 

External Auditor

D.3.2 Adoption status : Adopted

The Audit Committee monitors and reviews the External Auditors’ independence, 

objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process taking into account relevant 

professional and regulatory requirements.

The Committee sets out the policy for the engagement of the External Auditors to provide 

non-audit services, taking into account:

(a) Relevant regulations with regard to the provision of non-audit services;

(b) The External Auditors’ skills and experience for providing the particular non-audit 

service;

(c)  The nature of non-audit services, the related fee levels individually and in aggregate 

relative to the audit firm.

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for making recommendations on the 

appointment, re-appointment or removal of the External Auditor in-line with professional 

standards and regulatory requirements.

73.Terms of 

Reference of the 

Audit Committee

D.3.3 Adoption status : Adopted

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee has been approved by the Board.

Duties of the Committee encompasses:

- Recommending Financial Statements to the Board for approval

- Company’s compliance with applicable regulations

- Assess the processes to ensure internal controls are adequate, especially in relation 

to financial reporting

- Assess the Company’s ability to continue as a Going Concern

The Audit Committee monitors and reviews the effectiveness and specific requirements of 

Internal Audit function.

The Audit Committee is authorised to obtain external professional advice and to invite 

outsiders with relevant experience to attend if necessary. The Committee also has full 

access to information in order to investigate into matters relating to any matter within its 

terms of reference.

74.Disclosures 

of the Audit 

Committee

D.3.4 Adoption status : Adopted

The names of the members of the Audit Committee are given in the Audit Committee 

Report on page 136. The attendance of the members of the Audit Committee is set out in 

the same report. 

The External Auditor has provided a Confirmation of Independence in compliance with the 

“Guidelines for Appointment of Auditors of Listed Companies” issued by SEC.

Corporate Governance Contd.
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D.4 Code 
of Business 
Conduct and 
Ethics

The Company should develop a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and members of 
the senior management team.

75. Code of 

Business Conduct 

and Ethics

D.4.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the Directors are 

committed to the Code and the principles contained therein.

A set of guidelines for ethical behaviour has also been compiled to assist employees to 

act responsibly and to make the correct decisions in their day to day work. The Code of 

Conduct explains the principles for dealing with business associates, general partners, 

colleagues and the community in which the Company operates. 

The Corporate Governance Report sets out the manner and extent to which the Company 

has complied with the principles and provisions of the Code.

The Board is not aware of any material violations of any of the provisions of the Code of 

Business Conduct and Ethics by any Director or any corporate management member of 

the Company.

76. Affirmation 

by the Chairman 

that there is no 

violation of the 

Code of Conduct 

and Ethics

D.4.2 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer Chairman’s Statement on Corporate Governance on page 101 for details.

D.5 Corporate 
Governance 
Disclosures

The Company should disclose the extent of adoption of Best Practices in Corporate Governance.

77. Disclosure 

of Corporate 

Governance

D.5.1 Adoption status : Adopted

This requirement is met through the presentation of this report.
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E. Institutional Investors

E.1 Shareholders 
voting

Institutional shareholders are required to make considered use of their votes and encouraged to 
ensure their voting intentions are translated into practice.

78. Institutional 

shareholders

E.1.1 Adoption status : Adopted

The Company is committed to maintain good communications with investors.

The Chairman conducts a structured dialogue with the shareholders based on the 

mutual understanding of objectives and ensures that the views of the shareholders are 

communicated to the Board as a whole. 

The Annual General Meeting is used to have an effective dialogue with the shareholders 

on matters which are relevant and concern to the general membership.

The Managing Director has regular discussions with key institutional shareholders to 

share highlights of the Company’s performance and also with the view to obtaining 

constructive feedback. The feedback obtained from institutional shareholders is 

communicated to the entire Board by the Managing Director.

E.2 Evaluation 

of Corporate 

Governance 

initiatives

E.2 Adoption status : Adopted

Institutional investors are encouraged to give due weight to all relevant factors drawn to 

their attention when evaluating the governance arrangements particularly in relation to 

Board structure and composition.

F. Other Investors

F.1 Investing/
Divesting 
decision

79. Individual 

shareholders

F.1 Adoption status : Adopted

Individual shareholders are encouraged to carry out adequate analysis and seek 

the independent advice prior to make investing or divesting directly in shares of the 

Company.

80. Invidividual 

shareholders 

voting

F.2 Adoption status : Adopted

All shareholders are encouraged to participate at meetings of the Company and a Form 

of Proxy accompanies each Notice providing shareholders who are unable to attend such 

meeting the opportunity to cast their vote.

Corporate Governance Contd.
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G. Sustainability Reporting

G.1 Principles 
of Sustainability 
Reporting

Please refer Capitals Reports, Impact Management Reports and GRI Index on page 46 to 97.

81. Economic 

sustainability

G.1.1 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer “Financial Capital” on page 46 to 60 and “Economic Impact Management” on 

page 76 to 79

82. The 

Environment

G.1.2 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer “Environmental Capital” on page 61 and “Environmental Impact 

Management” on page 80 to 85

83. Labour 

practice

G.1.3 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer “Human Capital” on page 66 to 70

84. Society G.1.4 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer “Social and Relationship Capital” on page 62 to 65 and “Social Impact 

Management” on page 86 to 87

85. Product 

and Service 

responsibility

G.1.5 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer “GRI Index” on page 88 to 97

86. Stakeholder 

identification, 

engagement 

and effective 

communication

G.1.6 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer “Stakeholder Engagement” on page 36 to 45

87. Sustainable 

reporting and 

disclosure

G.1.7 Adoption status : Adopted

Please refer “GRI Index” on page 88 to 97

G A K Nanayakkara H A S Madanayake

Managing Director Chairman

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016
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7.1 Dividend 

Payment

7.1.a

The Entity shall, immediately upon authorizing a 

dividend distribution, make an announcement to the 

Exchange

√

(Share repurchase 

by Resus being a 

distribution was notified 

to the Exchange)

Annual Report of the 

Board of Directors 

7.1.f

The Entity shall forward to the Exchange a certified 

copy of the certificate of solvency issued by a firm 

of auditors as soon as the same is issued and in any 

event prior to dispatching the dividend payment

√

Annual Report of the 

Board of Directors

7.4 Interim 

Financial 

Statements

7.4.a (i)

A Listed Entity shall give to the Exchange for public 

release, an Interim Financial Statement prepared on 

a quarterly basis, as soon as the figures have been 

approved by the Board of Directors of the Entity and 

in any event not later than forty five (45) days from 

the end of the first, second and third quarters and 

two (2) months from the end of the fourth quarter

√ Financial Calendar

7.4.b

A Listed Entity shall ensure that the Interim Financial 

Statements fulfill the following requirements;

(i) comply with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 

(LKAS) 34 - Interim Financial Reporting and 

include group and company results separately in 

the case of a Holding Company

(ii) include the additional notes and ratios as set out 

in Appendix 7B to the Rules

(iii) be signed by two Directors

(iv) state that the Interim Financial Statements are 

not audited

√

7.5 Circulation of 

Annual Report

7.5.a

A Listed Entity shall ensure that the Annual Report 

is issued to the Entity’s shareholders and given to 

the Exchange within a period not exceeding five 

(05) months from the close of the financial year of 

the Listed Entity. The Audited Financial Statements 

shall be published in accordance with the Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standards

√

Corporate Governance Contd.
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7.6 Contents of 

Annual Report

A Listed Entity must include in its Annual Report and 

accounts, inter alia;

i) Names of persons who during the financial year 

were Directors of the Entity

ii) Principal activities of the Entity and its 

subsidiaries during the year and any changes 

therein

iii) The names and the number of shares held by 

the 20 largest holders of voting and non-voting 

shares and the percentage of such shares held

iv) The Public Holding percentage

v) A statement of each Director’s holding and Chief 

Executive Officer’s holding in shares of the Entity 

at the beginning and end of each financial year

vi) Information pertaining to material foreseeable 

risk factors of the Entity

vii) Details of material issues pertaining to 

employees and industrial relations of the Entity

viii) Extents, locations, valuations and the number 

of buildings of the Entity’s land holdings and 

investment properties

ix) Number of shares representing the Entity’s 

stated capital

x) A distribution schedule of the number of holders 

in each class of equity securities, and the 

percentage of their total holdings in different 

categories

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Board of Directors

Annual Report of the 

Board of Directors

Share Information

Share Information

Share Information

Enterprise Risk 

Management

Corporate Governance, 

Human Capital 

Notes to the Financial 

Statements (note 3.3), 

Our Business Operation

Notes to the Financial 

Statements, Share 

Information

Share Information
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xi) The following ratios and market price 

information:

• Dividend per share

• Dividend pay out

• Net asset value per share

• Market value per share

 - highest and lowest values recorded during 

the financial year

 - value as at the end of financial year

xii) Significant changes in the Entity’s or its 

subsidiaries’ fixed assets and the market value 

of land, if the value differs substantially from the 

book value

xiii) If during the year, the Entity has raised funds 

either through a public issue, Rights Issue, and 

private placement;

a statement as to the manner in which the  

proceeds of such issue has been utilized;

b if any shares or debentures have been 

issued, the number, class and consideration 

received and the reason for the issue; and,

c any material change in the use of funds 

raised through an issue of Securities

xv) Disclosures pertaining to Corporate Governance 

practices in terms of Rules 7.10.3, 7.10.5 (c) and 

7.10.6 (c).

xvi) Related Party transactions exceeding 10% of the 

Equity or 5% of the total assets of the Entity as 

per Audited Financial Statements, whichever is 

lower. Details of investments in a Related Party 

and/or amounts due from a Related Party to be 

set out separately.

√

√

N/A

√

√

Financial Highlights, 

Five Year Summary, 

Financial Capital, Share 

Information

Notes to the Financial 

Statements (note 3.3)

Corporate Governance

Notes to the Financial 

Statements (note 30.1)

Corporate Governance Contd.
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The details shall include, as a minimum;

i. The date of the transaction

ii. The name of the Related Party

iii. The relationship between the Entity and the 

Related Party

iv. The amount of the transaction and terms of the 

transaction

v. The rationale for entering into the transaction

(This section was repealed on 1st January 2016 

and the Code of Best Practices on Related Party 

Transactions are applicable w.e.f 1st January 2016)

Compliance with Section 7.10 of the Listing Rules on Corporate Governance issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange 

CSE Rule No. Applicable Rule Requirement Status of compliance Section Reference in 

the Annual Report

Board of Directors 

7.10.1 Non-Executive 

Directors (NEDs)

Two or at least one-third of the total 

number of Directors should be NEDs

√

Six NEDs out of total of 

Seven Directors

Corporate 

Governance

7.10.2(a) Independent 

Directors (IDs)

Two or one-third of NEDs (whichever is 

higher) should be independent

√

Two IDs out of Six 

NEDs

Corporate 

Governance

7.10.2(b) Declaration of 

Independence

Each Non-Executive Director should 

submit a declaration of independence/

non-independence in the prescribed 

format

√

NEDs have submitted 

the declaration in the 

prescribed format

Corporate 

Governance

7.10.3(a) Disclosures 

relating to 

Directors

Names of Independent Directors should 

be disclosed in the Annual Report

√

Corporate 

Governance

7.10.3(b) Disclosures 

relating to 

Directors

The basis for determining the 

independence of NEDs, if criteria for 

independence is not met

√

The Board has 

determined that criteria 

for independence is met 

for IDs

Corporate 

Governance

7.10.3(c) Disclosures 

relating to 

Directors

A brief resume of each Director should 

be included in the Annual Report, 

including his area of expertise

√

Board of Directors
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7.10.3(d) Disclosures 

relating to 

Directors

Upon appointment of a new Director a 

brief resume of the Director should be 

submitted to the Exchange

√

CSE Announcements 

dated 04/08/2015 and 

15/10/2015 on change 

in Directorates

Corporate 

Governance

Remuneration Committee 

7.10.5(a) Composition The Committee shall comprise of a 

minimum of two Independent Directors 

or of Non–Executive Directors, a 

majority of whom shall be independent

The Chairman of the Committee shall be 

a Non-Executive Director

√

The Remuneration 

Committee consists of 

three NEDs of which 

two are independent. 

The Chairman of 

the Committee is an 

Independent Non-

Executive Director

Corporate 

Governance

Report of the 

Remuneration 

Committee

7.10.5(b) Functions The Committee shall recommend the 

remuneration payable to the Executive 

Directors and Chief Executive Officer or 

equivalent role

√

Report of the 

Remuneration 

Committee

7.10.5(c) Disclosure in the

Annual Report 

The Annual Report should set 

out the names of the members 

of the Committee, a statement of 

Remuneration Policy and the aggregate 

remuneration paid to Executive and 

Non-Executive Directors

√

Report of the 

Remuneration 

Committee

Corporate Governance Contd.
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CSE Rule No. Applicable Rule Requirement Status of compliance Section Reference in 

the Annual Report

Audit Committee 

7.10.6(a) Composition The Committee shall comprise of a 

minimum of two Independent Directors 

or of Non–Executive Directors, a 

majority of whom shall be independent

The Chairman of the Committee shall be 

a Non-Executive Director

Unless otherwise determine by the 

Committee, the CEO and the CFO shall 

attend meetings

Chairman or one member of the 

Committee should be a member of a 

recognized professional accounting 

body

√

The Audit Committee 

consists of three NEDs 

of which two are 

independent

The Chairman of 

the Committee is an 

Independent Non-

Executive Director

The Managing Director 

and the Chief Financial 

Officer attend Audit 

Committee meetings by 

invitation

One Committee 

member is a member of 

The Chartered Institute 

of Management 

Accountants, UK

Corporate 

Governance

Report of the Audit 

Committee

7.10.6(b) Functions - Overseeing the preparation, 

presentation and adequacy 

of disclosures in the Financial 

Statements in accordance with the 

LKASs and SLFRSs

- Overseeing compliance with 

financial reporting related 

regulations and requirements

- Overseeing the processes to ensure 

that internal controls and risk 

management are adequate

- Assessing the independence 

and performance of the external 

Auditors

- Recommending to the Board the 

appointment, re-appointment and 

removal of the external Auditors and 

approving their remuneration and 

terms of engagement

√

The terms of reference 

of the Audit Committee 

adopted by the Board 

covers the areas 

outlined

Corporate 

Governance

Report of the Audit 

Committee



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 130

CSE Rule No. Applicable Rule Requirement Status of compliance Section Reference in 

the Annual Report

7.10.6(c) Disclosure in the

Annual Report

The names of the members of the Audit 

Committee

The basis of determination of the 

independence of Auditors

A report of the Audit Committee setting 

out the manner of compliance with their 

functions

√

Corporate 

Governance

Report of the Audit 

Committee

Compliance with Section 9 of CSE Listing Rules and the Code of Best Practice on Related Party Transactions issued by the 

Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka w.e.f 1st January 2016

Rule No. Applicable Rule Status of 

compliance

Section Reference 

in the Annual 

Report

9.1 Shareholder Approval Required;

The Listed Entity shall obtain shareholder approval by way of a Special Resolution for the following Related Party 

Transactions:

9.1.1 In the event of non-recurrent transactions;

9.1.1 (a) Any non-recurrent Related Party Transaction or when aggregated with 

other non-recurrent transactions entered into with the same Related 

Party during the same financial year, of a value equal to, or more than 

1/3 of the Total Assets of the Entity as per the latest Audited Financial 

Statements of the Entity 

None w.e.f 1st 

January 2016

9.1.2 In the event of recurrent transactions;

9.1.2 (a) Any recurrent Related Party Transaction or when aggregated with 

other recurrent transactions entered into with the same Related Party 

during the same financial year, of a value equal to, or more than 1/3 

of the gross revenue (or equivalent term for revenue in the Income 

Statement) and in the case of group entity consolidated

group revenue of the Entity as per the latest Audited Financial

Statements of the Entity

None w.e.f 1st 

January 2016

9.2 Related Party Transactions Review Committee

9.2.1 Except for transactions set out in Rule 9.5 (exempted related party 

transactions), all other Related Party Transactions

should be reviewed by the “Related Party Transactions Review 

Committee” as required in terms of the provisions set out in Appendix 

9A of these Rules, either prior to the transaction being entered into or, 

if the transaction is expressed to be conditional on such review, prior 

to the completion of the transaction.

√ Report of the 

Related Party 

Transactions 

Review Committee

Corporate Governance Contd.
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Rule No. Applicable Rule Status of 

compliance

Section Reference 

in the Annual 

Report

9.2.2 The Committee should comprise a combination of non-executive 

directors and independent non-executive directors. The composition 

of the Committee may also include executive directors, at the option 

of the Listed Entity. One independent non-executive director shall be 

appointed as Chairman of the Committee.

√ Report of the 

Related Party 

Transactions 

Review Committee

9.2.3 In a situation where both the parent company and the subsidiary are 

Listed Entities, the Related Party Transactions Review Committee 

of the parent company may be permitted to function as the Related 

Party Transactions Review Committee of the subsidiary. However, 

if the parent company is not a Listed Entity, then the Related Party 

Transactions Review Committee of the parent company is not 

permitted to act as the Related Party Transactions Review Committee 

of the subsidiary. The subsidiary shall have a separate Related Party 

Transactions Review Committee.

√

Resus Energy 

PLC is the parent 

company and 

the Related Party 

Transactions 

Review Committee 

acts as the 

Committee for its 

unlisted subsidiaries 

9.2.4 The Committee shall meet at least once a calendar quarter. The 

Committee shall ensure that the minutes of all meetings are properly 

documented and communicated to the Board of Directors.

√ Report of the 

Related Party 

Transactions 

Review Committee

Corporate 

Governance

9.2.5 Directors of the Committee should ensure that they have, or have 

access to, enough knowledge or expertise to assess all aspects of 

proposed Related Party Transactions, and where necessary, they 

should obtain appropriate professional and expert advice from an 

appropriately qualified person.

√ Report of the 

Related Party 

Transactions 

Review Committee

9.2.6 Where necessary, the Committee shall request the Board of Directors 

to approve the Related Party Transactions, which are under review 

by the Committee. In such instances, the approval of the Board of 

Directors should be obtained prior to entering in to the relevant 

Related Party Transaction.

√ Report of the 

Related Party 

Transactions 

Review Committee

9.2.7 If a director of the Listed Entity has a material personal interest in a 

matter being considered at a directors’ meeting to approve a Related 

Party Transaction as required in Rule 9.2.6 above, such director shall 

not:

(a) be present while the matter is being considered at the meeting, 

and;

(b) vote on the matter.

√ Report of the 

Related Party 

Transactions 

Review Committee
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Rule No. Applicable Rule Status of 

compliance

Section Reference 

in the Annual 

Report

9.3 Disclosures

9.3.1 Immediate Disclosures

9.3.1 (a) 

and (b)

(i) A Listed Entity shall make an immediate announcement to the 

Exchange of any non-recurrent Related Party Transaction or when 

aggregated with other non-recurrent transactions entered into 

with the same Related Party during the same financial year, with 

a value exceeding 10% of the Equity or 5% of the Total Assets 

whichever is lower, of the Entity as per the latest Audited Financial 

Statements

(ii) Listed Entity shall disclose subsequent non-recurrent transactions 

which exceed 5% of the Equity of the Entity, entered into with the 

same Related Party during the financial year

None w.e.f 1st 

January 2016

9.3.2 Disclosures in the Annual Report

9.3.2 (a) In the case of non-recurrent Related Party Transactions, if aggregate 

value of the non-recurrent Related Party Transactions exceeds 10% of 

the Equity or 5% of the Total Assets, whichever is lower, of the Listed 

Entity as per the latest Audited Financial Statements, the following 

information must be presented in the Annual Report:

- Name of the Related Party

- Relationship

- Value of the Related Party Transactions entered into during the 

financial year

- Value of Related Party Transactions as a % of Equity and as a % of 

Total Assets

- Terms and Conditions of the Related Party Transactions

- The rationale for entering into the transactions

√ Notes to the 

Financial 

Statements (note 

30.1)

9.3.2 (b) In the case of recurrent Related Party Transactions, if the aggregate 

value of the recurrent Related Party Transactions exceeds 10% of the 

gross revenue/income (or equivalent term in the Income Statement 

and in the case of group entity, the consolidated revenue) as per the 

latest Audited Financial Statements, the Listed Entity must disclose 

the aggregate value of recurrent Related Party Transactions entered 

into during the financial year in its Annual Report with the following 

information;

- Name of the Related Party

- Relationship

- Nature of the transaction

- Aggregate value of Related Party Transactions entered into during 

the financial year

- Aggregate value of Related Party Transactions as a % of Net 

Revenue/Income

- Terms and Conditions of the Related Party Transactions

√ Notes to the 

Financial 

Statements (note 

30.1)

Corporate Governance Contd.
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Rule No. Applicable Rule Status of 

compliance

Section Reference 

in the Annual 

Report

9.3.2 (c) Annual Report shall contain a report by the Related Party Transactions 

Review Committee, setting out the following: 

- Names of the Directors comprising the Committee

- A statement to the effect that the Committee has reviewed the 

Related Party Transactions during the financial year and has 

communicated the comments/observations to the Board of 

Directors

- The policies and procedures adopted by the Committee for 

reviewing the Related Party Transactions

- The number of times the Committee has met during the Financial 

Year

√ Report of the 

Related Party 

Transactions 

Review Committee

9.3.2 (d) A declaration by the Board of Directors in the Annual Report as an 

affirmative statement of the compliance with these Rules pertaining 

to Related Party Transactions or a negative statement in the event the 

Entity has not entered into any Related Party Transaction/s.

√ Annual Report 

of the Board of 

Directors

9.4 Acquisition and Disposal of assets from/to Related Parties 

9.4.1 Except for transactions set out in Rule 9.5 (exempted Related Party 

Transactions), a Listed Entity shall ensure that neither the Listed 

Entity nor any of its subsidiaries, acquires a substantial asset from, 

or disposes of a substantial asset to, any Related Party of the Entity 

without obtaining the approval of the shareholders of the Entity by way 

of a Special Resolution. An asset is substantial if its value or the value 

of the consideration relating to such asset exceeds 1/3 of the Total 

Assets of the Entity as per the latest Audited Financial Statements

N/A

However, this Rule 9.4.1 does not apply to:

- a transaction between the Listed Entity and a wholly owned 

subsidiary

- a transaction between wholly owned subsidiaries of the Listed 

Entity

- a takeover offer made by the Listed Entity in accordance with 

Takeovers and Mergers Code 1995 (as amended)

- any transaction entered into by the Listed Entity with a Bank as 

principal, on arm’s length terms and in the ordinary course of its 

banking business

N/A

9.4.2 In the event a transaction requires shareholder approval as set out 

in Rule 9.4.1 above, such approval shall be obtained either prior to 

the transaction being entered into or, if the transaction is expressed 

to be conditional on such approval, prior to the completion of the 

transaction.

N/A
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Rule No. Applicable Rule Status of 

compliance

Section Reference 

in the Annual 

Report

9.4.4 The members of the Related Party Transactions Review Committee 

should obtain ‘competent independent advice’ from independent 

professional experts with regard to the value of the substantial assets 

of the Related Party Transaction under consideration. A person who is 

in the same group of the Listed Entity or who has a significant interest 

in or financial connection with the Listed Entity or the relevant Related 

Party shall not be eligible to give such advice. 

N/A

9.4.5 The competent independent advice obtained in terms of Rule 9.4.4 

above should be circulated with the notice of meeting to obtain the 

shareholder approval as set out in Rule 9.4.1 above.

N/A

N/A - Not Applicable 

Disclosures required by the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007

Section reference 

in the Companies 

Act No. 7 of 2007

Disclosure Requirement Reference in the Annual Report

168 (1) (a) The nature of the business of the Group and the Company 

together with any change thereof during the accounting 

period

Notes to the financial statements – page 

173 to 174

168 (1) (b) Signed Financial Statements of the Group and the Company 

for the accounting period completed

Financial Statements and notes to the 

financial statements – page 166 to 225

168 (1) (c) Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements of the Group and the 

Company

Independent Auditors’ Report – page 165

168 (1) (d) Accounting Policies and any changes therein Notes to the financial statements – page 

173 to 187

168 (1) (e) Particulars of the entries made in the Interests Register during 

the accounting period

Annual Report of the Board of Directors – 

page 155

168 (1) (f) Remuneration and other benefits paid to Directors of the 

Company during the accounting period

Notes to the financial statements – page 

208

168 (1) (g) Corporate Donations made by the Company and its 

subsidiaries during the accounting period

Notes to the financial statements – page 

208

168 (1) (h) Information on the Directorate of the Company and its 

subsidiaries during and at the end of the accounting period

Group structure – page 10

168 (1) (i) Amounts paid/payable to the External Auditors as audit fees 

and fees for other services rendered during the accounting 

period

Notes to the financial statements – page 

208

168 (1) (j) Auditors’ relationship or any interest with the Company and 

its subsidiaries

Annual Report of the Board of Directors – 

page 158

Audit Committee Report - page 137

168 (1) (k) Acknowledgement of the contents of this Report and 

signatures on behalf of the Board

Annual Report of the Board of Directors – 

page 152 to 158

Corporate Governance Contd.
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Requirement
The ‘Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance 2013’ 

(The Code) issued jointly by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 

Lanka recommends, Board of Directors to present a statement 

on internal controls.

Responsibility
The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s 

system of internal control and for reviewing its design and 

effectiveness. The Board has delegated this responsibility to 

the Audit Committee for review and report any findings and 

concerns in this regard. 

Internal control process
The Audit Committee of Resus Energy PLC adopts a continuous 

review protocol to ensure the system of internal control both at 

Company level and individual subsidiary levels are operating 

effectively. The Committee obtains quarterly operational 

compliance certificates signed by each Senior Manager of 

the respective functional areas and Managing Director’s 

confirmation as to the system of internal control in the Group 

functions without major control weaknesses and breakdown. 

The Audit Committee carries out annual independent 

discussions with both external and internal auditors of the 

Company and reports to the Board of Directors of any material 

control aspects revealed from such discussions for immediate 

attention of the Board. 

There is an ongoing process in every Audit Committee agenda 

for review of risk matrix of the Company and the Group to 

continuously identify, evaluate, and manage risks faced by 

the Group. The risk register requires the management to 

identify all risks at Company level and individual subsidiary 

levels and prioritize risks based on the set rating framework. 

The Audit Committee reviews the risk rating and obtains 

explanations from the Managing Director and functional heads 

of any updates and risk responses. The risk register with the 

comments of the Audit Committee is tabled at Board meetings 

for consideration of major issues for the Board’s attention and 

Board discussions are carried out on such material issues. 

The Board ensures that the disclosures of risks and mitigation 

actions provide meaningful, information for facilitating the 

decision makers about the Company and do not give a 

misleading impression for their decisions. 

Statement of Confirmation
Based on the said processes, the Board of Directors of Resus 

Energy PLC confirms that the financial reporting system of 

the Company and the Group has been designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for 

external purposes has been done in accordance with applicable 

Accounting Standards and regulatory requirements. The Audit 

Committee with their continuous discussions with management 

and external and internal auditors of the Company obtains 

assurance as to the effectiveness of the financial reporting 

system of the Company and the Group. 

By order of the Board,

Prof Malik Ranasinghe R D Rathnasekara 

Chairman - Audit Committee Chief Financial Officer

G A K Nanayakkara H A S Madanayake

Managing Director Chairman

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016

Directors’ Statement On Internal Controls
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Report of the Audit Committee

Composition of the Committee
The Audit Committee is formally established as a Sub-Committee of the main Board of Resus 

Energy PLC, and comprises of two Independent Non-Executive Directors (Professor K A M K 

Ranasinghe and Mr U P Egalahewa PC) and one Non-Executive Director (Mr I S Somaratne) 

as of the date of this Report. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Non-

Executive Director. 

Mr P K Jayawardena resigned from the Audit Committee during the year and Mr I S Somaratne 

was appointed to fill the vacancy. The names of the Members and their attendance at the Audit 

Committee meetings are shown in the table below.

Member Capacity No of Meetings 

attended

Board Capacity

Professor K A M K Ranasinghe Chairman 4/4 Independent Non-

Executive Director

Mr U P Egalahewa PC Member 4/4 Independent Non-

Executive Director

Mr P K Jayawardena (resigned 

on 13/08/2015)

Member 2/4 Non-Executive Director

Mr I S Somaratne (appointed to 

the Board w.e.f. 14/10/2015)

Member 2/4 Non-Executive Director

Mr I S Somaratne, who is a member of the Audit Committee is an Associate Member of the 

Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA), United Kingdom. 

Mr G A K Nanayakkara, Managing Director and Mr R D Rathnasekara, Chief Financial Officer of 

Resus Energy PLC attended Committee meetings by invitation. The Company Secretary, Nexia 

Corporate Consultants (Pvt) Limited serves as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Other officials were invited to attend whenever required.

The proceedings of the Audit Committee are reported to the Board of Directors.

Meetings
The Audit Committee held four meetings during the period under review, and the attendance of 

the members is shown in the above table. 

Role of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is established for the purpose of assisting the Board in fulfilling their 

responsibilities regarding the integrity of the Financial Statements, risk management, business 

ethics, internal control, compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, review of External 

Auditors’ performance and independence and internal audit.

Compliance with Financial Reporting
The Audit Committee discusses the Company’s quarterly and annual Financial Statements prior 

to publication with management and the External Auditors, including the extent of compliance 

with Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards (LKASs and 

SLFRSs), and the adequacy 

of disclosures required by 

other applicable laws, rules, 

objectives and guidelines. 

The Audit Committee also 

regularly discusses the 

operations of the Company 

and its future prospects with 

management and is satisfied 

that all relevant matters have 

been taken into account in the 

preparation of the Financial 

Statements. 

The Audit Committee 

performs the following; 

• Oversee the preparation, 

presentation and 

adequacy of disclosures 

in the Financial 

Statements in accordance 

with the LKASs and 

SLFRSs.

• Review appropriateness 

and changes in 

Accounting Policies.

• Review significant 

estimates and 

judgments made by the 

management. 

• Oversee compliance 

with financial reporting 

related regulations and 

requirements. 

• Oversee the processes 

to ensure that internal 

controls and risk 

management measures 

are adequate.
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• Assess the independence and performance of the external 

Auditors.

• Recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment 

and removal of the External Auditors and approving their 

remuneration and terms of engagement.

• Review the Company’s ability to continue as a Going 

Concern.

Internal Audit, Risks and Controls
The Internal Audit function is carried out by Messrs 

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Pvt) Limited, a firm of Chartered 

Accountants. Internal Auditors directly submit their findings to 

Audit Committee annually and their reports are made available 

to External Auditors. 

The main focus of the Internal Audit is to provide independent 

assurance on the overall system of internal controls, business 

and associated risk management and governance based on 

internal controls, and compliance with laws and regulations 

and established policies and procedures of the Group. The 

Audit Committee monitors and reviews the scope of Internal 

Audit plan, the follow-up actions taken by the management for 

recommendations of Internal Auditors, and the effectiveness of 

the Internal Audit function.

The Audit Committee also reviews the processes for the 

identification, evaluation and management of all significant 

development and operational risks faced by the Group. The 

Committee reviews the Risk Register on quarterly basis in 

order to identify and assess the risks attached to different areas 

of operation and effectiveness of internal controls. Formal 

confirmations and assurances are obtained from management 

regularly regarding the efficiency of the internal control system 

and risk management system, and compliance with applicable 

laws and regulations. The Board of Directors and Audit 

Committee obtain and are guided by technical advice from 

external consultants as required.

The key risks associated with the business are given in the 

Enterprise Risk Management Report on page 144 to 150.

Independent External Auditors
Ernst & Young were appointed as the External Auditors of the 

Company and its Subsidiaries. Audit plans and scope of work 

and a letter of engagement are formulated in consultation with 

the Finance Division of the Company.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the independence of the 

External Auditors has not been adversely influenced by any 

event or service that could result in a conflict of interest. Due 

consideration has been given to the level of audit and non-audit 

fees received by the External Auditors from Resus Energy PLC 

and its Subsidiaries. 

The Audit Committee meets the External Auditors on annual 

basis and reviews their findings.

The performance of the External Auditors has been discussed 

with the senior management of the Company and the Audit 

Committee has recommended to the Board that Ernst & Young, 

Chartered Accountants be re-appointed as External Auditors 

of Resus Energy PLC for the financial year ending 31st March 

2017, subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual 

General Meeting.

Conclusion
Based on the reports submitted by the External Auditors, the 

Internal Auditors and the Risk Management system of the 

Company, the Audit Committee is satisfied with the control 

environment, and of the implementation of the Group’s 

accounting policies and operational controls and the financial 

position of the Group and is confident that the financial position 

of the Group is secure. 

Professor Malik Ranasinghe

Chairman-Audit Committee

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May, 2016
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

Composition of the Committee
The Remuneration Committee, appointed by the Board of 

Directors of Resus Energy PLC, consists of two Independent 

Non-Executive Directors, namely Messrs U P Egalahewa PC 

(Chairman) and Prof. K A M K Ranasinghe and one Non-

Executive Director (Mr H A S Madanayake). The Chairman of 

the Remuneration Committee is an Independent Non-Executive 

Director. 

There were no new appointments nor resignations from the 

Committee during the year. 

The Committee was established for the purpose of 

recommending the remuneration of the Executive Directors. 

The Committee also approves the remuneration of the 

members of the Senior Management on the recommendations 

made by the Managing Director.

Committee Meetings and Attendance
The Committee met three times for the year under review and 

all members attended all the meetings.

The Managing Director of the Company attends the meetings 

by invitation to discuss the performance of the senior 

executives and to make proposals as deemed necessary 

except where his own remuneration is discussed.  

The Company Secretary functions as the Secretary to the 

Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meetings and members’ 

attendance are given on page 105.

Minutes
The minutes of meetings of the Remuneration Committee are 

circulated to all members of the Board.

Remuneration Policy
The Remuneration policy is to determine appropriate 

remuneration packages for the Executive Director and 

the Senior Management with a view to assessing the 

appropriateness of compensation with market benchmarks.

Role of the Committee
The role of the Remuneration Committee is:

• To determine and recommend to the Board the Company’s 

remuneration philosophy and the principles of its 

remuneration policy, ensuring that these are in line with 

the business strategy, objectives, values and long-term 

interests of the Company.

• To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s 

framework of executive remuneration and its cost, and to 

determine on behalf of the Board specific remuneration 

packages and conditions of employment (including 

compensation entitlements) for Executive Directors; 

• To make recommendations to the Board and monitor 

the level and structure of remuneration for Senior 

Management; 

• To make recommendations to the Board regarding the 

content of the Board’s Annual Report to shareholders on 

Directors’ Remuneration (including the Company’s policy 

on Executive Director’s remuneration, details of individual 

remuneration and other terms and conditions). 

Advisers
The Committee is authorised by the Board to seek appropriate 

professional advice inside and outside the Company as and 

when it considers this necessary.

Remuneration to Directors
The Remuneration paid to Directors during the year under 

review is indicated in note 30.2 to the Financial Statements.
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All Independent Non-Executive Directors receive a fee for 

serving on the Board and serving on Sub-Committees. They do 

not receive any performance related incentive payments.

The Company does not have an Employee Share Ownership 

Plan for Directors and Key Management Personnel (KMPs).

Conclusion
The annual evaluation of the Committee was carried out by the 

Board during the year and it was concluded that the Committee 

continues to operate effectively.

U P Egalahewa PC

Chairman-Remuneration Committee

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016
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Report of the Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee

Composition of the Committee
The Company established the Related Party Transactions 

Review Committee (RPTRC) on 31st December 2015 as 

a Board Sub-Committee. RPTRC comprises the following 

Directors of the Company.

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC - (Independent Non-Executive Director) 

- Chairman

Professor K A M K Ranasinghe - (Independent Non-Executive 

Director)

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara - (Managing Director)

Mr. I S Somaratne - (Non-Executive Director)

Objective
Related Party Transactions Review Committee was formed to 

ensure that the Company complies with requirements of the 

Code of Best Practices on Related Party Transactions issued 

by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka with 

effect from 1st January 2016 which is part of the CSE Listing 

Rules.

The objective of these related party transaction rules is to 

ensure that the interests of shareholders as a whole are taken 

into account when entering into related party transactions by 

the Company.

The Committee specifies a process to capture related party 

transactions and to report to the Board of Directors of Resus 

Energy PLC as per the Code of Best Practices on Related Party 

Transactions.

Scope of the Committee
- The Committee reviews in advance all proposed related 

party transactions to ensure they are carried out on an 

arm’s length basis. 

- At each subsequent scheduled meeting of the Committee, 

the management shall update the Committee as to any 

proposed material changes in any previously reviewed 

related party transactions and seek approval of the 

Committee for such proposed material changes prior to the 

completion of the transaction.

- The Committee reviews related party transactions based 

on rules stipulated in the Code (rules 28 – 33 in the 

appendix to the Code) and the need of special approval 

from shareholders and disclosure requirements for such 

transactions.

- The Committee intends to meet as and when a need arises. 

However, at least quarterly meetings are scheduled to 

review related party transactions of the Company. The 

minutes of all meetings are properly documented and 

communicated to the Board of Directors.

- The Company Secretary, Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) 

Limited serves as the Secretary to the RPTRC.

- Directors of the RPTRC ensures that they have, or have 

access to, enough knowledge or expertise to assess all 

aspects of proposed related party transactions, and where 

necessary, they shall obtain appropriate professional and 

expert advice from an appropriately qualified person.

Role of the Committee
- Recommend and develop terms of reference of the RPTRC 

for adoption by the Board of Directors of the Company.

- Review of related party transactions as required in terms 

of the provisions set out in Appendix 9A of CSE Rules, 

either prior to the transaction being entered into or, if the 

transaction is expressed to be conditional on such review, 

prior to the completion of the transaction.

- The Committee shall update the Board of Directors on the 

related party transactions of the Company on a quarterly 

basis. 

- Where necessary, the Committee shall request the Board of 

Directors to approve the subject related party transactions. 

In such instances, the approval of the Board of Directors 

should be obtained prior to enter into the relevant related 

party transaction.
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- If a Director has a material personal interest in a matter 

being considered at a Directors’ meeting to approve a 

related party transaction, such Director may not be present 

while the matter is being considered at the meeting or may 

not vote on the matter. 

- Make recommendations to obtain shareholder approval for 

applicable related party transactions as per the provisions 

in the Code and Section 9 of CSE Listing Rules. Such 

approval shall be obtained either prior to the transaction 

being entered into or, if the transaction is expressed to be 

conditional on such approval, prior to the completion of the 

transaction.

- Obtain ‘competent independent advice’ from independent 

professional experts with regard to the value of the 

substantial assets of the related party transaction under 

consideration and circulate the same with the notice of 

meeting to obtain the shareholder approval.

- Make immediate market disclosures on applicable related 

party transactions as required by the Listing Rules of CSE.

- Make appropriate disclosures on related party transactions 

in the Annual Report as required by CSE Listing Rules.

- Any concerning transactions, to be highlighted to the 

Board.

Committee Meetings
No Committee meetings were held during the financial year. 

However, one Committee meeting was held for the year to 

review related party transactions for the financial year ending 

31st March 2016. Finance Division submitted a comprehensive 

report on related party transactions to the Committee.

Attendance of the members of the Committee for the said 

meeting is provided on page 105.

Any concerns of the Committee will be reported to the Board of 

Directors on a continuous basis.

The Committee plans to meet at least quarterly, to monitor, 

review and report to the Board on matters pertaining to related 

party transactions.

Conclusion
The Committee confirms that all applicable rules in the Code of 

Best Practice on Related Party Transactions and Section 9 of 

CSE Listing Rules have been complied with by the Group as at 

the date of this Report.

U P Egalahewa PC

Chairman-Related Party Transactions Review Committee

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016
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Responsibility Statement of Managing 
Director and Chief Financial Officer

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Financial Statements of Resus Energy PLC (the Company) 

and the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 

and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended 31st March 

2016 are prepared and presented in compliance with the 

requirements of the followings:

 - Sri Lanka Accounting Standards issued by The Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (SLFRS/LKAS),

 - Companies Act No. 07 of 2007,

 - Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, 

 - Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No. 15 of 

1995 and

 - Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued 

jointly by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 

Lanka and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri 

Lanka.

Financial Reporting
The Significant Accounting Policies used in the preparation 

of the consolidated Financial Statements are appropriate and 

are consistently applied, except unless otherwise stated in the 

notes accompanying the Financial Statements. The Significant 

Accounting Policies and estimates that involved a high degree 

of judgment and complexity were discussed with the Audit 

Committee and Company’s External Auditors. There are no 

departures from the prescribed Accounting Standards in their 

adoption. Comparative information has been reclassified 

wherever necessary to comply with the current presentation.

The Board of Directors and the management of the Company 

accept responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of these 

Financial Statements. The estimates and judgments relating 

to the Financial Statements were made on a prudent and 

reasonable basis, in order that the Financial Statements reflect 

a true and fair view and the form and substance of transactions 

reasonably present the Company’s state of affairs. 

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge, the Financial 

Statements, significant Accounting Policies and other financial 

information included in this Annual Report, fairly present all 

material aspects regarding the financial position, results of the 

operations and the Cash Flows of the Group during the year 

under review. We also confirm that the Group has adequate 

resources to continue in operation and have applied the Going 

Concern basis in preparing these Financial Statements.

System of Internal Control
The Company has taken proper and sufficient care in installing 

a system of internal control and accounting records, for 

safeguarding assets, and for preventing and detecting frauds as 

well as other irregularities, which are reviewed, evaluated and 

updated on an ongoing basis. We have evaluated the internal 

controls and procedures of the Group for the financial period 

under review and confirm, based on our evaluations that there 

were no significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the 

design or operation of internal controls and frauds that involves 

management or other employees. The Internal Auditors 

conduct periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that 

the established policies and procedures of the Group were 

consistently followed. However, there are inherent limitations 

that should be recognised in weighing the assurances provided 

by any system of internal control and accounting. 

Report of Independent Auditors 
The Financial Statements were audited by Messrs Ernst & 

Young, Chartered Accountants, the Independent Auditors and 

their report is given on page 165. 

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee pre-approves the audit and non-audit 

services provided by Messrs Ernst & Young. The Audit 

Committee meets periodically with the Internal Auditors and 

the Independent Auditors to review the manner in which these 

Auditors are performing their responsibilities, and to discuss 

auditing, internal control and financial reporting issues. To 

ensure complete independence, the Independent Auditors and 

the Internal Auditors have full and free access to the members 

of the Audit Committee to discuss any matter of substance.

The Audit Committee Report is given on page 136 to 137.
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Conclusion
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

• The Group has complied with all applicable laws, 

regulations and guidelines and there is no material litigation 

against the Group other than those disclosed in note 29.4 of 

the Financial Statements. 

• The system of internal control is operating effectively.

• The Financial Statements reflect in a true and fair manner, 

the form and substance of transactions, and reasonably 

present the Company’s state of affairs and have applied 

the Going Concern basis in preparing these Financial 

Statements.

• All taxes, duties, levies and all statutory payments by the 

Group and all contributions, levies and taxes payable on 

behalf of and in respect of the employees of the Group as 

at 31st March 2016 have been paid, or where relevant 

provided for.

G A K Nanayakkara R D Rathnasekara

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016
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Overview
The Board and the management of Resus Energy PLC 

continuously face the challenge of striking a balance between 

risk and opportunity to optimize or preserve value creation. 

Therefore, Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) plays a vital 

role in our corporate agenda. ERM is a process, effected 

by an entity’s Board of Directors, management and other 

personnel, applied in strategy setting and across the enterprise, 

designed to identify potential events that may affect the entity, 

and manage risks to be within its risk appetite, to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of entity 

objectives.

At Resus, we consider risk identification, assessment and 

mitigating activities to be vital in maintaining sustainable 

growth and making steady progress towards achievement of 

corporate objectives. We continuously evaluate the framework 

of objective setting, internal control environment, risk 

assessment, risk response, monitoring and communication as 

integral parts of ERM process. 

Risk management structure and process
In the pursuit of opportunities, it is unavoidable that we are 

subject to various risks. The Board is primarily responsible for 

ensuring that risks are identified promptly and appropriately 

managed across the Group. The Board has delegated the 

responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s 

risk management process to the Audit Committee. A well-

structured ERM framework has been estabilished under which 

the risks are being assessed at enterprise level, subsidiary level 

and business unit process level. The identified risks in the Risk 

Register are reviewed by the Audit Committee at the Company 

level as well as at the Group level. Under the Framework, the 

risks are prioritized and business units use both preventive 

and mitigation controls to manage risk exposures within the 

prescribed tolerance limits. Risks are assessed based on their 

likelihood of occurrence and the probable impact of the event. 

Risks are then ranked as very-high, high, medium and low 

considering impact and likelihood factors. The impact of the 

event is assessed by determining the loss or damage it would 

cause and the extent of the impact. Likelihood of occurrence 

is assessed on the basis of past experience and the preventive 

measures in place. Risk Register is updated quarterly and 

discussed at each Audit Committee meeting along with the 

operational compliance statements submitted by the heads of 

business units.

We have introduced various risk management templates into 

our project management process to facilitate project managers 

to adopt risk management protocols at project levels to ensure 

that projects are completed and delivered within anticipated 

parameters. An effective communication network has been 

established to encourage a fruitful dialogue among team 

members to discuss and debate each other in drafting risk 

matrix for their respective projects.

The risk management policy of the Group is to respond to risks 

pro-actively to ensure continued growth within a competitive 

and uncertain business environment to create and sustain 

value to our stakeholders. Accordingly, we operate integrated 

risk management system, while maintaining business flexibility 

to identify, assess and mitigate significant risks associated with 

our business. 

Enterprise Risk Management



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 145

Prioritization

Risk Assessment

Identification

Measurement

Avoid It

Control It

Share or Transfer It

Risk Management

Entity Level

Process Level

Activity Level

Risk Monitoring

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Medium

Low

Very High

High

1

1

3

4

2

3 42

ERM Process

Risk Prioritization framework adopted by the Group based on Impact vs. Probability analysis
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Risks and mitigating actions 
The principal risks in achieving the Company’s objective of enhancing stakeholder value and safeguarding its assets have been 

identified and are set out below. The nature and the scope of risks are subject to change and not all of the factors listed below are 

within the control of the Company.

Description of Risk and Exposure Affected Segment Mitigating Actions Risk Rating

2015/16 2014/15

1. Business Risk

Low returns due to inaccurate projections 

on business parameters. This includes 

deviation from expected rainfall patterns, 

design discrepancies and inaccurate 

assessments of hydrological properties for 

hydropower plants

All Stakeholders • Obtain expert knowledge on 

establishing business parameters

• Utilize in-house capabilities to 

perform cross verifications on 

estimates and assumptions

Medium High

2. Default Risk

Renegotiation of Power Purchase 

Agreements before the termination dates

 

Default of settlements by Ceylon Electricity 

Board (CEB) 

Delays in settlements by CEB

Financial Capital • Standardised Power Purchase 

Agreements (SPPAs) entered into 

with CEB for all power plants

• Carry out necessary and 

appropriate representative efforts

Medium Medium

3. Growth Risk

Slow growth due to lack of viable new 

projects

Government’s plan not to execute SPPAs 

or limit the private developers’ participation 

in development of non-conventional 

renewable energy projects

All Stakeholders • Strengthen business leads 

generation and reference network

• Exert lobbying efforts both at 

Company and industry level

• Explore other countries for viable 

projects that matches risk-return 

profile

Very-

High

Very-

High

4. Adverse movements in tariff

Downward revisions of non-conventional 

renewable energy tariff adversely 

impacting on returns and profitability of 

existing projects (owing to adverse volatility 

of avoided-cost tariff) and viability of future 

projects (owing to adverse volatility of cost-

based-and-technology-specific tariff)

Financial Capital • Participate in representative and 

lobbying efforts through industry 

groups and associations Very-

High

High

Enterprise Risk Management Contd.
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Description of Risk and Exposure Affected Segment Mitigating Actions Risk Rating

2015/16 2014/15

5. Inflation Risk

Spare-parts price increases leading to 

high Operation and Maintenance cost of 

hydropower plants

Capital expenditure overruns of new 

projects under development

Financial Capital • Use of appropriate financial and 

hedging strategies

• Use of top quality electro-

mechanical equipment is 

expected to keep the spare-parts 

requirement at low levels.

Low Low

6. Interest Rate Risk

Adverse impact on profitability due to high 

interest cost resulting from increase in 

interest rates

Financial Capital • Use of appropriate financial and 

hedging strategies

• Maintain an appropriate 

combination of fixed and floating 

rate borrowings

• Negotiate for concessionary 

interest rates using Group 

strength and Resus Energy PLC’s 

strength as a listed Company

High Low

7. Exchange Rate Risk

Losses due to unfavourable movements in 

exchange rates

Financial Capital • Effective management of 

exchange rate exposure using 

financial risk management tools

High Medium

8. Regulatory and Compliance Risk

Introduction of new regulations affecting 

the business adversely and complexity in 

complying with regulatory requirements, 

which includes unexpected tax burdens, 

abolishing of tax and import duty 

concessions and enforce infeasible 

environmental regulations.

All Stakeholders • Monitor compliance with 

regulatory requirements

• Participate in representative 

efforts against regulations that 

could have a negative impact on 

business/industry

Very-

High

Very-

High

9. Credit Risk

Impact on liquidity due to delays/non 

payments by CEB

Financial Capital • Protection through legally 

enforceable agreements

Low Low
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Description of Risk and Exposure Affected Segment Mitigating Actions Risk Rating

2015/16 2014/15

10. Risk arising due to Adverse 

Environmental Conditions

Impact on returns from hydropower plants 

due to adverse environmental conditions 

such as droughts, floods etc

Financial Capital • Carry out preventive maintenance 

work to mitigate the plant 

down-time risk in bad weather 

conditions

• Have a business continuity plan to 

reduce the plant start-up lag after 

a disaster

• Obtain adequate insurance covers 

against natural perils

High High

11. Project Development Risk and 

Crowding Out threat

Delays in project development work due 

to deadlocks leading to loss of revenue. 

This includes social and political issues that 

result in abandoning viable projects. 

Lack of government support to encourage 

credible developers and government’s 

attempt to engage in the sector as a 

developer (crowding out threat)

All Stakeholders • Strengthen project management 

expertise

• Build and maintain good rapport 

with the project stakeholders

• Exert lobbying efforts both at 

Company and industry level

Very-

High

Very-

High

12. Funding Constraints

Unavailability of funding lines at favourable 

terms

Financial Capital • Build and maintain good rapport 

with banks, financial institutions 

and funding agencies

• Maintenance of a desired mix of 

financial slack

• Selecting projects with high 

internal rate of returns for 

development to attract investors/

lenders

High High

Enterprise Risk Management Contd.
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Description of Risk and Exposure Affected Segment Mitigating Actions Risk Rating

2015/16 2014/15

13. Human Resource Risk

Impact on business competitiveness due to 

difficulties in recruiting/retaining required 

talent

Losses from low productivity and low 

employee engagement as a result of 

industrial disputes

Human Capital-

Employees
• Build strong employer brand

• Due importance is given to 

human resource management 

function

• Adoption of best practices in 

human resource management

• Investment in training and 

development, and mentoring 

programmes

• Policy of competitive 

remuneration

• Adoption of ‘whistleblowing 

policy’ and ‘open door policy’

High High

14. Project Cost Overrun Risk

Project cost exceeding budgets and 

estimates impacting the project returns

Financial Capital
• Detailed Planing

• Making accurate project cost 

estimates using expert knowledge

• Having tight budgetary controls 

on development cost

Medium Medium

15. Operational Risk

Losses arising from fraud, human errors, 

inefficient processes, natural perils and loss 

of sensitive information

All Stakeholders • Conduct periodic internal audit 

reviews and report to the Audit 

Committee

• Maintain a business continuity 

plan to ensure disaster 

preparedness

Low Low
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Description of Risk and Exposure Affected Segment Mitigating Actions Risk Rating

2015/16 2014/15

16. Reputational Risk

Potential exposure of the Group to 

financial losses, litigation and unacceptable 

corporate behaviour

Loss of reputation arising from corporate 

behaviour against the interest of the society

Loss of confidence due to the Group not 

being perceived as a responsible corporate

All Stakeholders • Operate within a code of business 

ethics that requires compliance 

with laws and regulations by all 

employees

• Projects are developed 

according to the Environmental 

Management System of the 

Group

• Environmental sustainability is 

within corporate DNA of Resus

• Engagement in various 

community related activities, 

including community 

development in surrounding 

areas of project sites

• Developing the social and 

physical infrastructure in rural 

villages where our projects are 

developed

Medium Medium

Risk Map for 2015/16

Medium

1, 2, 14, 16

Very High

3, 4, 8, 11

Low

5, 9, 15

High

6, 7, 10, 12, 13 

Enterprise Risk Management Contd.
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Resus Energy PLC takes pleasure in 

presenting its report combined with the Audited Consolidated 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2016.

The details set out herein provide the pertinent information 

required by the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and the Colombo 

Stock Exchange’s Continuing Listing Requirements and are 

guided by Recommended Best Practice.

Principal Activities and Review of Business 
Segment Performance
There was no significant change in the nature of business of 

the Company and its subsidiaries during the year that may 

have a significant impact on the state of the Company’s affairs. 

Investing in power generation projects remained the principal 

activity of Resus Energy PLC and its subsidiaries during the 

year under review. 

With the disposal of the stake in Heladhanavi Limited, in the 

previous year (October 2014), now the Group portfolio consists 

of 100% hydropower projects. Accordingly, the strategic intent 

of the Group’s business now focuses on non-conventional 

renewable energy projects. Out of three hydropower projects 

that were under development, the construction work of Gomale 

Oya hydropower project completed and awaits its formal 

commissioning on the date of this Report, whilst Moragaha 

Oya and Upper Huluganga projects are moving on track 

with pre-development and construction work. With expected 

commissioning of all three projects in the ensuing financial 

year, our fully-owned operational hydropower portfolio would 

enhance to 11.8MW.

Resus Energy PLC continued its venture capital activities during 

the year whilst its fully owned subsidiaries, Giddawa Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited, Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) 

Limited and Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited and hydropower 

projects owned by Panasian Power PLC generated and 

supplied electricity to the National Grid. Company’s revenue 

was derived from venture capital activities and Group’s 

revenue chiefly represents economic benefits derived from 

selling of electricity by its hydropower plants. Consequent to a 

partial disposal of shares held in Panasian Power PLC during 

the year (November 2015), the Company’s equity ownership 

in Panasian Power PLC came down to 22.3% from 29.3% 

perviously. The resultant gain for the Company and the Group 

from this partial disposal is recorded in the Statement of profit 

or loss. The details of operational hydropower projects under 

their respective companies for the year ended 31st March 

2016 are depicted in the table below. The Group has 22.3% 

ownership as at 31st March 2016 (29.3% as at 31st March 

2015) of the results of Panasian Power PLC. The Company 

continued to adopt equity method of accounting for recognition 

of Group’s interest in Panasian Power PLC in its Consolidated 

Financial Statements.
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Operational hydropower projects in the Group

Name of Special Purpose Entity Generation 

Capacity of 

hydropower 

plant

Location of the 

hydropower plant

River Electricity Units dispatched 

GWh

2015/16 2014/15

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) 

Limited

2.0MW Giddawa, Digana, in 

the district of Kandy

Hulu Ganga 8.71 7.88

Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Limited

2.6MW Lindula, Talawakelle, 

in the district of 

Nuwara Eliya

Agra Oya 8.33 8.85

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited 2.4MW Maliboda, 

Deraniyagala, in the 

district of Kegalle

Magal Ganga 7.20 7.81

Total from fully-owned 

operational hydropower plants

7.0MW 24.24 24.54

Panasian Power PLC – Rathganga 

hydropower plant

3.0MW Ratnapura Rathganga 10.65 11.79

Manelwala Hydro Power (Pvt) 

Limited

2.4MW Nuwara Eliya Kurundu Oya 7.55 7.46

*Total from hydropower plants 

owned via Panasian Power PLC

5.4MW 18.20 19.25

Total for the Group 13.8MW 42.44 43.79

*Only 22.3% is owned by Resus Energy PLC as at 31st March 2016

Segmental information on Group’s operational performances and assets allocation among different classes of business is given 

in note 31 to the Financial Statements. Business Segmental performance has expansively presented and discussed in Managing 

Director’s Review on page 21 to 27 and in Financial Capital Report on page 46 to 60 of this Report.  

The Directors to the best of their knowledge and belief confirm that neither the Company nor its subsidiaries have been engaged in 

any activity that contravenes laws and regulations. 

Financial Statements
The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group are given on page 166 to 225.



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 154

Results and Appropriations

For the year ended 31st March 

Group Company

2016 

Rs.

2015 

Rs.

2016 

Rs.

2015 

Rs.

Continuing Operations

Revenue  393,049,638  575,575,817  81,076,217  638,730,876 

Gross Profit  319,603,820  485,151,672  81,076,217  638,730,876 

Share of profits of equity accounted investees – 

Associates

 40,150,218  20,693,151  -  -   

Operating profit/(loss) before interest and tax  291,214,150  389,096,351  65,042,639  567,772,480 

Net Finance cost  (60,121,699)  (48,325,867)  (5,678,053)  (20,014,536)

Other operating income/(expenses)  -    (376,919)  -    (723,338)

Profit/(Loss) before tax  231,092,451  340,393,565      59,364,586  547,034,606 

Provision for tax including deferred tax  (30,775,707)  (35,841,210)  (3,125,166)  -   

Profit/(Loss) after tax from continuing operations  200,316,744  304,552,355  56,239,420  547,034,606 

Discontinued operation

Profit/(Loss) after tax from discontinued operation  -    (280,501,536)  -    (68,246,627)

Profit/(Loss) for the Year  200,316,744  24,050,819  56,239,420  478,787,979 

Deficit/(Profit) attributable to non-controlling 

interests

 139,007  (84,304,667)  -    -   

Profit/(Loss) available to Group’s shareholders  200,455,751  (60,253,848)  56,239,420  478,787,979 

Other comprehensive income/(expense)  966,455  (748,689)  187,304  (206,245)

Balance brought forward from the previous year  834,845,150  960,777,707  624,041,773  145,460,039 

Supper Gain Tax paid  (30,130,793)  -    -    -   

Tax on subsidiary dividends  (4,350,000)  (64,930,020)  -  -   

Changes in non-controlling interest  255,767  -    -    -   

Amount available for appropriation  1,002,042,330  834,845,150  680,468,497  624,041,773 

Interim dividends paid  -  -    -  -   

Final dividends declared  -  -    -  -   

*Capital Reduction  1,239,882,957  -    1,239,882,957  -   

*Distribution on Share Repurchase  (1,603,433,736)  -    (1,603,433,736)  -   

Share Repurchase cost  (5,845,146)  -    (5,845,146)  -   

Balance to be carried forward next year  632,646,405  834,845,150  311,072,572  624,041,773 

*Shareholders of Resus Energy PLC approved the Capital Reduction and Share Repurchase by way of special resolutions at the 

EGM held on 14th August 2015.

Annual Report of the Board of Directors Contd.
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Auditors’ Report
The Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements is given on 

page 165.

Accounting Policies
The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of the 

Financial Statements are given on page 173 to 187. There were 

no changes to the Accounting Policies adopted during the year.

Interest Register and Directors’ interests in 
Contracts
Directors’ interest in contracts or proposed contracts are 

disclosed on page 159 to 161 and have been disclosed at 

meetings of the Directors and recorded in the Interest Register 

as per Section 192 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. The 

Directors did not have any material interest in any contract of 

significance to the Group’s business, other than those disclosed 

on page 159 to 161, “Directors’ Interest in Contracts” of this 

Report.

During the year, entries made in the Interest Register consisted 

of Directors’ Interest in Contracts, remuneration paid to the 

Directors and renewal of Directors’ and Officers’ liability 

insurance. The Interest Register is available at the registered 

head office of the Company, in keeping with the requirements 

of the Section 119(1)(d) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

Directors of the Company
Names of the Directors and their profiles including the names 

of the Directors who held office and resigned during the year 

have been disclosed on page 26 to 29 of the Annual Report. 

Review of Performance of the Board and Board 
Sub-Committees
The review of performance of Board and Board Sub-

Committees were carried out during the year by way of a 

discussion during the Board Meetings.

Board and Board Sub-Committee Meetings
The number of Board meetings, Audit Committee meetings, 

Remuneration Committee meetings and Related Party 

Transactions Review Committee meetings held during the year 

and the attendance of Directors at these meetings are given 

on page 105 of Corporate Governance Report. The Board 

established a ‘Related Party Transactions Review Committee’ 

on 31st December 2015.

Directors’ Remuneration
The Directors’ remuneration paid by the Company and the 

Group is disclosed in note 30.2 to the Financial Statements.

Directors’ Interest in Shares
The Directors’ shareholdings are disclosed on page 229 of this 

Report. 

   

Corporate Governance
The Board is committed to maintain high standards of 

Corporate Governance, the process by which the Company is 

directed and managed. The Corporate Governance Report is 

given on page 101 to 134 of the Annual Report. 

Risks and Internal Controls
The Enterprise Risk Management Report is given on page 

144 to 150 of the Annual Report, which includes information 

pertaining to material foreseeable risks of the Group and the 

mitigation actions.

The Directors accept the ultimate responsibility for the system 

of internal control of the Company and the Group. The systems 

are geared to provide reasonable assurance that the assets of 

the Group are safeguarded and that all transactions conducted 

as relevant, properly authorised and duly recorded. Further 

details of the internal control system in operation are also 

contained in the Directors’ Statement on Internal Controls on 

page 135, Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in reration 

to Annual Financial Statements on page 164, Corporate 

Governance on page 101 to 134, and the Audit Committee 

Report on page 136 to 137 of the Annual Report.

Taxation
The tax liability of the Company and its subsidiaries has been 

computed according to the provisions of the Inland Revenue 

Act No. 10 of 2006 and amendments thereto. The applicable 

provisions under the Board of Investments (BOI) law have been 

taken into consideration for taxation of subsidiary companies.

The method of computation of income taxes of the Company 

and the Group has been depicted in the note 2.2.3 and 23 to the 

Financial Statements and discussed in detail in Financial Capital 

Report on page 51 to 54 in this Report.
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Corporate Donations
The Group and the Company made Rs. 0.18Mn (2015 - Rs. 

1.82Mn) and Rs 0.05Mn (2015 – Rs. 0.30Mn) donations during 

the year respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment
The book carrying value of property, plant and equipment as 

at the reporting date amounted to Rs. 28.21Mn (2015 - Rs. 

29.76Mn) and Rs. 1,471.2Mn (2015 - Rs. 1,229.1Mn) for the 

Company and Group respectively. Capital expenditure during 

the year for the Company and Group amounted to Rs. 11.5Mn 

(2015 - Rs. 5.3Mn) and Rs. 272.1Mn (2015 - Rs. 819Mn) 

respectively.

Details of property, plant and equipment are given in note 3 to 

the Financial Statements.

The Company, Resus Energy PLC does not own any land, 

buildings and investment properties. 

A qualified independent valuer carried out a revaluation of the 

Company’s subsidiaries’ freehold land on 31st March 2016, 

and the carrying value of freehold land has been adjusted 

accordingly. The details of market value of freehold lands as 

per the valuation report are given in note 3.3 to the Financial 

Statements and the Directors are of the view that these values 

reflect the current market values of freehold lands of the 

Group. 

The Directors are of the view that the carrying values of 

Group’s fixed assets do not substantially differ from their 

market values and no indications of impairment have been 

noted as of the date of this Report.

Stated Capital and Distribution for Share 
Repurchase
The Board of Directors of Resus Energy PLC, by its resolutions 

dated 1st April 2015 and 15th July 2015 resolved to 

recommend to the shareholders of the Company to reduce the 

stated capital of the Company to Rs. 300,000,000/- in terms of 

Section 59 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and repurchase 

up to a maximum of 71,542,858 ordinary shares from and out 

of the issued ordinary shares of the Company at a price of Rs. 

24/- per ordinary share in accordance with Section 56 of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. 

Consequently, shareholders of Resus Energy PLC at the Extra 

Ordinary General Meeting held on 14th August 2015 approved 

the following via special resolutions;

i. Reduction of Stated Capital

The stated capital of the Company is reduced to Rs. 

300,000,000/-. Accordingly, the stated capital as recorded in 

Companies’ Form 6 dated 23rd September 2010 filed by the 

Company with the Registrar General of Companies was Rs. 

1,674,882,957/- be reduced by Rs. 1,374,882,957/- to Rs. 

300,000,000/-. 

However, prior to the said capital reduction, the stated capital 

shown in the Financial Statements of the Company was Rs. 

1,539,882,957/- excludes the redeemable preference shares 

issued by the Company. Accordingly, the reduction in the 

stated capital in the books of account of the Company is Rs. 

1,239,882,957/- to reflect Rs. 300,000,000/- stated capital after 

the said capital reduction represented by 125,200,002 ordinary 

shares. There is no change to the number of shares in issue 

before and after the capital reduction. 

ii. Payment of consideration for repurchase of shares

The payment by the Company of the consideration for the 

repurchase of upto a maximum of 71,542,858 ordinary shares 

in the Company from its shareholders on the basis of four (04) 

ordinary shares for every seven (07) ordinary shares held by 

such shareholders at a price per share of Rs.24/- amounting to 

a total sum of Rs. 1,717,028,592/-, being (a) a distribution by 

the Company in terms of Section 56 of the Companies Act No. 

7 of 2007 and (b) a major transaction of the Company in terms 

of Section 185 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. 

Share Repurchase by Resus Energy PLC
Out of 71,542,858 ordinary shares offered for repurchase 

by the Company after the approval of the shareholders at 

the EGM, the Board of Directors resolved at its meeting on 

15th September 2015 to repurchase a total of 66,809,739 

ordinary shares based on the applications received from 

the shareholders for the acceptance of the repurchase 

offer. Accordingly, the Company distributed a sum of Rs. 

1,603,433,736/- on 18th September 2015 to the shareholders 

who accepted the repurchase offer at a fair and reasonable 

basis determined by the Board. The remaining number of 

ordinary shares in Resus Energy PLC subsequent to the 

repurchase and cancellation of those repurchased shares 

amounts to 58,390,263 with effect from 9th November 2015. 

Annual Report of the Board of Directors Contd.
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The repurchase of shares by Resus Energy PLC was carried 

out in accordance with the applicable provisions set out in 

the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the Listing Rules of the 

Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) and the Articles of Association 

of the Company. The Board is satisfied that, the Company will 

immediately after the repurchase of shares satisfy the solvency 

test as defined in Section 57 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 

2007. A certificate of solvency has been obtained from the 

Auditors certifying that the Company will satisfy the solvency 

test immediately upon the payment of consideration for the 

repurchase of shares along with an opinion from the Auditors 

that in their opinion the repurchase price is a fair value as 

required in terms of Section 64 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 

2007.

There were no new shares issued during the financial year. 

The movement in the stated capital is given in note 12 to the 

Financial Statements.

Shareholdings
There were 3,058 registered Ordinary Voting Shareholders as 

at 31st March 2016 (3,280 – as at 31st March 2015).

The distribution of shareholdings is shown on page 228 to 

229 of the Annual Report. This gives information on top 

twenty shareholders’ names, number of shares held and the 

percentage held by each shareholder with Public holding 

percentage and the distribution schedule of the number of 

holders in each class of equity securities and the percentage of 

their total holding. 

Each of Director’s including the Managing Director’s direct and 

indirect holdings in shares of the Company at the beginning and 

end of each financial year are given on page 229 of the Annual 

Report. 

There were no Employee Share Ownership Plans and Profit 

Sharing Plans prevailed during the year for the Company and 

the Group. 

Share Information
Information relating to earnings, dividends, net assets and 

market value per share is available in “Share Information” on 

page 228 to 229 and “Financial Highlights” on page 14 of the 

Annual Report along with information on share trading.

Substantial Shareholdings
The twenty major shareholders as at 31st March 2016 are 

given on page 228 of the Annual Report.

Dividends and Share Repurchase
The details of share repurchase is disclosed under the heading 

of “stated capital and distribution for share repurchase” in this 

Report on page 156.

The Directors neither paid any interim dividends nor 

recommended a final dividend for shareholders’ approval at 

the AGM.

Environment Protection
The Directors confirm that the Company and its subsidiaries 

have not engaged in any activities, which have caused 

detriment to the environment. The activities are carried out 

in accordance with the Group Environmental Management 

System to preserve the environment.

Statutory Payments
The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge and belief 

that all statutory obligations due to the Government and to the 

Employees have been either duly paid or adequately provided 

for in the Financial Statements. Details are given on page 60 of 

Financial Capital report.

Related Party Transactions
The Directors confirm that Section 9 of the CSE Listing Rules 

and the Code of Best Practices on Related Party Transactions 

issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka 

pertaining to Related Party Transactions have been complied 

with by the Company and the Group with effect from 1st 

January 2016. 

Events after the Reporting Period
No circumstances have arisen since the Reporting Date which 

would require adjustments to or disclosure in the Financial 

Statements except those disclosed in note 28 to the Financial 

Statements.

Going Concern
The Board of Directors is satisfied that the Company and 

its subsidiaries will have adequate resources to continue its 

operations without any disruption in the foreseeable future. 

Accordingly, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to 

prepare Financial Statements on Going Concern basis.
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Auditors
The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group for the 

year have been audited by Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered 

Accountants, who are recommended for re-appointment.

The Audit Fees payable and fees paid to them by the Company 

for other services rendered for the year under review are as 

follows;

Audit Fees and Expenses - Rs. 489,493/- (2015 – Rs. 

391,639/-)

Fees for non-audit services - Rs. 425,463/- (2015 – Rs. 

555,591/-)

The Directors have recommended a resolution to be passed at 

the forthcoming Annual General Meeting for re-appointment of 

Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors and authorizing the Directors 

to fix their remuneration.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 

the Auditorium of the Development Holdings Private Limited, 

3rd Floor, No. 42, Navam Mawatha, Colombo 02 on 29th June 

2016 at 3.30 p.m. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting 

appears on page 230 of the Annual Report.

By order of the Board of Directors,

H A S Madanayake G A K Nanayakkara

Chairman Managing Director

Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) Limited

Secretaries

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016

Annual Report of the Board of Directors Contd.
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Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Directors’ Interest in Contracts with the Company    
Related party disclosures as required by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard-LKAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ are detailed in 

note 30 to the Financial Statements. In addition, the Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business in an 

arm’s length basis with the entities where the Chairman or a Director of the Company is the Chairman or a Director of such entity 

as detailed below.

    

Company Director Nature of Transaction  Amount Rs. 

 2015/16  2014/15 

Giddawa Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Limited

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara Dividend Income  39,150,000  222,231,855 

Mr. H A S Madanayake Funds Received  73,500,000  75,500,000 

Mr. U G Madanayake 

(appointed w.e.f 26.06.2015)

Funds Transferred  (42,677,700)  (7,500,000)

Mr. C V Kulatilaka Proceeds from Share Repurchase  155,599,632  -   

Mr. P K Jayawardena 

(resigned w.e.f 13.08.2015 ) 

Reimbursement of Expenses  (11,323,054)  -   

Mr. I S Somaratne 

(appointed w.e.f 14.10.2015)

Conversion of Preference Shares to 

Ordinary Shares

 145,000,000  -   

Upper Agra Oya Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara Dividend Income  -    153,478,782 

Mr. H A S Madanayake Interest Income on loans  -    13,500,000 

Mr. U G Madanayake 

(appointed w.e.f 26.06.2015)

Funds Received  77,900,000  84,500,000 

Mr. C V Kulatilaka Funds Transferred  (53,760,000)  (1,500,000)

Mr. P K Jayawardena 

(resigned w.e.f 13.08.2015 ) 

Inter Company Loan Settlement  -    135,000,000 

Mr. I S Somaratne 

(appointed w.e.f 14.10.2015)

Proceeds from Share Repurchase  64,873,297  -   

Reimbursement of Expenses  (11,256,886)  -   

Okanda Power Grid 

(Pvt) Limited

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara Dividend Income  -    208,659,463 

Mr. H A S Madanayake Funds Received  66,500,000  102,000,000 

Mr. U G Madanayake 

(appointed w.e.f 26.06.2015)

Funds Transferred  (20,650,000)  (3,000,000)

Mr. C V Kulatilaka Proceeds from Share Repurchase  147,156,152  -   

Mr. P K Jayawardena 

(resigned w.e.f 13.08.2015 ) 

Reimbursement of Expenses  (9,110,342)  -   

Mr. I S Somaratne 

(appointed w.e.f 14.10.2015)
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Company Director Nature of Transaction  Amount Rs. 

 2015/16  2014/15 

Ella Dendro Electric 

(Pvt) Limited

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara Funds Transferred  (526,029) (200,000)   

Mr. H A S Madanayake    

Mr. U G Madanayake 

(appointed w.e.f 26.06.2015)

Mr. C V Kulatilaka 

Mr. P K Jayawardena 

(resigned w.e.f 13.08.2015 ) 

Mr. I S Somaratne 

(appointed w.e.f 14.10.2015)

Upper Huluganga (Pvt) 

Ltd

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara Reimbursement of Expenses  (3,864,011)  -   

Mr. H A S Madanayake Funds Transferred  (9,091,598)  (12,914,806)

Mr. U G Madanayake 

(appointed w.e.f 26.06.2015)

Mr. C V Kulatilaka 

Mr. P K Jayawardena 

(resigned w.e.f 13.08.2015 ) 

Mr. I S Somaratne 

(appointed w.e.f 14.10.2015)

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Ltd Mr. G A K Nanayakkara Reimbursement of Expenses  (3,864,011)  -   

Mr. H A S Madanayake Funds Transferred  (90,633,350)  (15,618,474)

Mr. U G Madanayake 

(appointed w.e.f 26.06.2015)

Mr. C V Kulatilaka 

Mr. P K Jayawardena 

(resigned w.e.f 13.08.2015 ) 

Mr. I S Somaratne 

(appointed w.e.f 14.10.2015)

Gomale Oya Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Ltd

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara Reimbursement of Expenses  (2,458,917)  -   

Mr. H A S Madanayake Funds Received  60,100,000  -   

Mr. U G Madanayake  

(appointed w.e.f 26.06.2015)

Funds Transferred  (89,934,172)  (74,274,783)

Mr. C V Kulatilaka 

Mr. P K Jayawardena 

(resigned w.e.f 13.08.2015 ) 

Mr. I S Somaratne 

(appointed w.e.f 14.10.2015)

Directors’ Interest in Contracts Contd.
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Company Director Nature of Transaction  Amount Rs. 

 2015/16  2014/15 

Rawanakanda Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Ltd

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara Reimbursement of Expenses  (115,896)  (270,398)

Mr. H A S Madanayake

Mr. U G Madanayake 

(appointed w.e.f 26.06.2015)

Mr. C V Kulatilaka 

Mr. P K Jayawardena 

(resigned w.e.f 13.08.2015 )

Mr. I S Somaratne 

(appointed w.e.f 14.10.2015)

Panasian Power PLC Mr. G A K Nanayakkara Reimbursement of Expenses  -    (3,273,124)

Mr. H A S Madanayake Dividends Received  59,130,916  -   

NDB Group Mr. C V Kulatilaka Preference Share Redemption (67,500,000) (67,500,000)

Preference Share Dividends paid (3,870,617) (11,465,828)

Interest Income from NDB Wealth 

Money Plus Fund

21,945,299 13,642,086 

*Loans Received from NDB Bank 

PLC

445,000,000 -

*Capital repayments on term loans 

to NDB Bank PLC

(32,700,000) -

*Interest paid on term loans to NDB 

Bank PLC

(18,019,031) -

Consultancy Fees paid to NDB 

Investment Bank

(10,404,918) -

*These transactions occurred between NDB Bank PLC and fully-owned subsidiaries of Resus Energy PLC, namely, Giddawa Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited, Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited and Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited.
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Interim Financial Statements    

• Three months ended 30th June 2015 12th August 2015

• Six months ended 30th September 2015 5th November 2015

• Nine months ended 31st December 2015 2nd February 2016

• Twelve months ended 31st March 2016 19th May 2016

Distributions - Share Repurchase

• EGM for shareholder approval for   
Capital Reduction and Share Repurchase 14th August 2015

• Distribution of Consideration for Share Repurchase 18th September 2015

 (4 shares for every 7 shares held at the price of Rs.24/- per share) 

• Cancellation of Repurchased Shares 9th November 2015

Annual Report for the year ended 31st March 2015

• 12th Annual General Meeting 26th June 2015

Annual Report for the year ended 31st March 2016

• 13th Annual General Meeting 29th June 2016

Financial Calendar
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The following statement which should be read in conjunction 

with the Auditors’ Statement of their responsibilities, as set out 

in their report, is made with a view to distinguish the respective 

responsibilities of the Directors and the Auditors, in relation to 

the Financial Statements. 

The Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 requires that the Directors 

prepare the Financial Statements for each financial year giving 

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

and the Group as at the end of the financial year and the 

profit or loss of the Company and the Group for the financial 

year and present it to the shareholders. These Financial 

Statements comprise a Statement of Comprehensive Income, 

which presents a true and fair view of the profit or loss of the 

Company and the Group for the financial year and a Statement 

of Financial Position, which presents a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at the end of 

the financial year which complies with the requirements of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

The Directors consider that in preparing the Financial 

Statements disclosed on page 166 to 225, the Company has 

used appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and 

supported by reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates, 

and that all Accounting Standards (LKASs/SLFRSs) which they 

consider to be applicable have been followed. The Directors 

also ensure that the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting 

and Auditing Standards Act No. 15 of 1995 and Listing Rules of 

the Colombo Stock Exchange have been followed and complied 

with.

The Directors have the responsibility for ensuring that the 

Company keeps accounting records which disclose with 

reasonable accuracy of the financial position of the Company 

and which enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements 

comply with the provisions of the Companies Act No. 7 of 

2007. 

The Directors are required to provide the Auditors with every 

opportunity to take whatever steps necessary to enable them 

to form their audit opinion. The responsibility of the Auditors 

in relation to the Financial Statements appears in the Report 

of the Independent Auditors on page 165. Messrs Ernst & 

Young, Chartered Accountants, the Independent Auditors of 

the Company has examined the Financial Statements and the 

related records and information. Their opinion on Financial 

Statements is given on page 165.

The Board of Directors accepts responsibility for the integrity 

and objectivity of the Financial Statements presented. The 

Directors have general responsibility for taking reasonable 

steps to safeguard the assets of the Company and in this 

regard to give proper consideration to the establishment of 

appropriate internal control systems, with a view to preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities. 

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, 

all taxes, duties and levies payable by the Company and its 

subsidiaries and all contributions, levies and taxes payable on 

behalf of and in respect of the employees of the Company and 

its subsidiaries and all other known statutory dues as were 

due and payable by the Company and its subsidiaries as at the 

reporting date have been paid, or where relevant provided for 

in the Financial Statements. 

The Directors are satisfied that the Company and its 

subsidiaries have adequate resources to continue in business 

for the foreseeable future, and have continued to adopt the 

Going Concern basis in preparing Financial Statements for the 

Company and the Group.

By order of the Board, 

Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) Limited 

Secretaries

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in 
Relation to Annual Financial Statements



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 165

Independent Auditors’ Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE 
SHAREHOLDERS OF RESUS ENERGY PLC

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
Resus Energy PLC, (“the Company”), and the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company and Its Subsidiaries (“the 
Group”), which comprise the statement of financial position 
as at 31 March 2016, and the statement of profit or loss, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. (set out on pages 166 to 225.)

Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the 
preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards and for such internal controls as Board determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 
31 March 2016, and of its financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
As required by Section 163(2) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 
2007, we state the following:

a) The basis of opinion, and scope and limitations of the audit 
are as stated above.

b) In our opinion :
- We have obtained all the information and explanations that 

were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting records have been kept by 
the Company,

- The financial statements of the Company give a true and 
fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2016 
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, and

- The financial statements of the Company and the Group 
comply with the requirements of Section 151 and 153 of 
the Companies Act No 07 of 2007.

19 May 2016
Colombo
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 Group Company
As at 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

 Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,471,196,681 1,229,091,757 28,212,063 29,758,950
Intangible Assets 4 126,752,566 126,752,566 - -
Investments in Subsidiaries 5 - - 659,467,767 832,096,858
Investments in Associates 6 365,144,265 504,198,507 313,265,529 411,600,000
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 8 - - - 145,000,000
Deferred Tax Assets 17 988,791 601,721 - -
  1,964,082,303 1,860,644,551 1,000,945,359 1,418,455,808

Current Assets
Inventories 9 6,355,928 6,396,509 - -
Trade and Other Receivables 10 66,048,646 98,276,442 529,831,499 845,170,851
Other Current Financial Assets 8 3,961,280 1,941,382 1,865,578 1,092,601
Income Tax Recoverable  8,585,138 10,075,108 8,584,042 10,074,009
Cash in hand and at Bank 11 48,415,135 690,511,070 20,606,153 688,939,464
  133,366,127 807,200,511 560,887,272 1,545,276,925
Total Assets  2,097,448,430 2,667,845,062 1,561,832,631 2,963,732,733

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Stated Capital 12 300,000,000 1,539,882,957 300,000,000 1,539,882,957
Other Components of Equity  18,169,390 12,256,245 - -
Revenue Reserves  632,646,405 834,845,150 311,072,572 624,041,773
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent  950,815,795 2,386,984,352 611,072,572 2,163,924,730
Non-Controlling Interest  5,845,202 2,500,000 - -
Total Equity  956,660,997 2,389,484,352 611,072,572 2,163,924,730

Non-Current Liabilities
Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities 14 86,863,640 86,566,019 - -
Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 13 858,398,542 - - -
Employee Benefits Obligations 15 9,874,380 8,999,723 8,077,425 6,907,985
Deferred Tax Liabilities 17 6,146,157 885,646 - -
  961,282,719 96,451,388 8,077,425 6,907,985

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 16 35,721,844 106,870,378 942,682,634 726,675,405
Other Current Financial Liabilities 14 - 66,224,613 - 66,224,613
Income Tax Liabilities  7,158,688 6,938,266 - -
Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 13 136,624,182 1,876,065 - -
  179,504,714 181,909,322 942,682,634 792,900,018
Total Equity and Liabilities  2,097,448,430 2,667,845,062 1,561,832,631 2,963,732,733

I certify that the financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

R D Rathnasekara
Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.
Signed for and on behalf of the Board by:

H A S Madanayake G A K Nanayakkara
Chairman Managing Director

The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out in page 173 to 225 form an integral part of these financial statements.

19th May 2016
Colombo, Sri Lanka

Statement of Financial Position
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 Group Company
Year ended 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

 Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Continuing Operations

Revenue 18 393,049,638 575,575,817 81,076,217 638,730,876

Cost of Electricity Generated  (73,445,818) (90,424,145) - -

Gross Profit  319,603,820 485,151,672 81,076,217 638,730,876

Other Operating Income 19 15,895,611 1,768,101 33,521,140 1,768,101

Administrative Expenses  (84,435,499) (118,516,573) (49,554,718) (72,726,497)

Share of Profits of Equity  

 Accounted Investees - Associates 6.3 40,150,218 20,693,151 - -

Profit from Operating Activities  291,214,150 389,096,351 65,042,639 567,772,480

Finance Income 20.2 892,637 2,712,913 106,900 2,458,783

Finance Cost 20.1 (61,014,336) (51,038,780) (5,784,953) (22,473,319)

Net Finance Cost  (60,121,699) (48,325,867) (5,678,053) (20,014,536)

Other Expenses 21 - (376,919) - (723,338)

Profit Before Tax 22 231,092,451 340,393,565 59,364,586 547,034,606

Tax Expense 23 (30,775,707) (35,841,210) (3,125,166) -

Profit for the year from  

 Continuing Operations  200,316,744 304,552,355 56,239,420 547,034,606

Discontinued Operation

Loss after tax for the year from  

 Discontinued Operation 7.4 - (280,501,536) - (68,246,627)

Profit for the year  200,316,744 24,050,819 56,239,420 478,787,979

Attributable to:

 Equity Holders of the Parent  200,455,751 (60,253,848) 56,239,420 478,787,979

 Non-Controlling interest  (139,007) 84,304,667 - -

  200,316,744 24,050,819 56,239,420 478,787,979

Earnings / (Loss) Per Share - Basic / Diluted 24

 From Profit/(Loss) for the Year  2.24 (0.48)

 From Continuing Operations  2.24 1.76

 From Discontinued Operation  - (2.24)

Dividend Per Share 25 - - - -

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out in page 173 to 225 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Profit or Loss
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

 Group Company
Year ended 31st March 2016  2016 2015 2016 2015 

 Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Continuing Operations

Profit for the year from Continuing Operations  200,316,744 304,552,355 56,239,420 547,034,606

Other Comprehensive Income:

Other Comprehensive Income not to be  

 recalssified to Profit or Loss in subsequent periods

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on  

 Defined Benefit Plans 15.4 1,032,480 (721,324) 187,304 (206,245)

Deferred tax effect on Actuarial gain/loss 17.1 (100,892) 37,401 - -

Revaluation of Lands 3.1 9,653,121 - - -

Share of Other Comprehensive  

 Income of Equity Accounted Investees 6.1 34,867 (64,766) - -

Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)  

 for the year, net of tax from Continuing Operations  10,619,576 (748,689) 187,304 (206,245)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year,  

 net of tax from Continuing Operations  210,936,320 303,803,666 56,426,724 546,828,361

Discontinued Operation

Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year from  

 Discontinued Operation  - (280,501,536) - (68,246,627)

Other Comprehensive Income:

Net gain/(loss) on Cash Flow Hedges  - 3,803,568 - -

Other Comprehensive Income for the year,  

 net of tax from Discontinued Operation  - 3,803,568 - -

Total Comprehensive Income/(Expense) for the year,  

 net of tax from Discontinued Operation  - (276,697,968) - (68,246,627)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax  210,936,320 27,105,698 56,426,724 478,581,734

Attributable to:

 Equity Holders of the Parent  209,950,327 (57,198,969) - -

 Non-Controlling interest  985,993 84,304,667 - -

  210,936,320 27,105,698 - -

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out in page 173 to 225 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company  Note Stated Revenue Total 
   Capital Reserves Equity 
   Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance 1st April 2014   1,539,882,957 145,460,039 1,685,342,996
Profit for the Year   - 478,787,979 478,787,979
Other Comprehensive Income / (Expense)   - (206,245) (206,245)
Total Comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the year   - 478,581,734 478,581,734
Balance as at 31st March 2015   1,539,882,957 624,041,773 2,163,924,730
Profit for the Year   - 56,239,420 56,239,420
Other Comprehensive Income / (Expense)   - 187,304 187,304
Total Comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the year   - 56,426,724 56,426,724
Capital Reduction  12.1.1 (1,239,882,957) 1,239,882,957 -
Share Repurchase  12.1.2 - (1,603,433,736) (1,603,433,736)
Cost incurred on Capital Reduction and Share Repurchase   - (5,845,146) (5,845,146)
Balance as at 31st March 2016   300,000,000 311,072,572 611,072,572

Note “A” - Super Gain Tax
In accordance with the Finance Bill passed in Parliament on 20th October 2015, the Super Gain Tax (SGT) was levied on each company of 
a group of companies, of which the aggregate of the profits before income tax of all subsidiaries and the holding company in that group 
of companies, exceeds Rs.2.0Bn as per the audited financial statements, for the year of assessment commenced on 1st April 2013, at the 
rate of 25 per centum, on the taxable income of each such company, for such year of assessment, notwithstanding that the profit before 
income tax of any such company does not exceed Rs.2.0Bn.

However, for the purpose of taxable income in relation to a company which has entered into an agreement with the Board of Investments 
of Sri Lanka (BOI) under section 17 of the BOI Law, No. 4 of 1978 and has become liable to income tax after expiration of its period of tax 
exemption as per such agreement, means the before income tax profit of such company, as per the audited financial statements.

Resus Energy PLC (formerly known as Hemas Power PLC) and its subsidiaries being in the Hemas Group during 2013/14 financial year 
where Hemas Group had earned an aggregate of Group profit before income tax exceeding Rs.2.0Bn were liable for Super Gain Tax. 
However, the Company, Resus Energy PLC, was not liable for SGT as it reported a tax loss for the year under concern. The subsidiary 
companies of Resus Energy PLC which have entered into BOI agreements but already expired their tax exemption regimes as per such 
agreements were liable for SGT on their accounting profit before income tax as per the audited financial statements for the financial 
year ended 31st March 2014. Accordingly, the Resus Energy Group’s SGT exposure as calculated in accordance with above provisions 
amounted to Rs.30.1Mn. The said SGT liability was fully paid by those respective companies in three equal monthly installments 
commenced from 31st October 2015.

According to the Part III of the Finance Act No. 10 of 2015, which was certified on 30th October 2015, the Super Gain Tax shall be 
deemed to be an expenditure in the financial statements relating to the year of assessment which commenced on 1st April 2013. The Act 
supersedes the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, hence the expense of Super Gain Tax is accounted in accordance 
with the requirements of the said Act as recommended by the Statement of Alternative Treatment (SoAT) on Accounting for Super Gain 
Tax issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, dated 24th November 2015. As such, the said SGT payment of Rs. 
30.1Mn have been charged to the opening consolidated retained earnings of the Group and restated the same as at 01st April 2015.

Revaluation Reserve    2015/16 2014/15 
    Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year    12,256,245 12,256,245
Land Revaluation Surplus attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent   5,913,145 -
Balance at the end of the year    18,169,390 12,256,245

Revaluation Reserve represents the surplus derived from revaluation of lands of the Group, the details of which are given in note 3.3 to 
the financial statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out in page 173 to 225 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flow

 Group Company
Year ended 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

 Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows From/(Used in) Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before Tax from;
Continuing Operations  231,092,451 340,393,565 59,364,586 547,034,606
Discontinued Operation  - (280,501,536) - (68,246,627)
  231,092,451 59,892,029 59,364,586 478,787,979
Adjustments for;
Depreciation 3 34,291,284 45,163,453 7,714,743 8,200,376
Amortisation Charge  - 1,113,133 - -
Provision for Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity 15.4 2,112,482 1,694,974 1,562,089 1,309,060
Finance Cost 20.1 61,014,336 51,038,780 5,784,953 22,473,319
Loss/(Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets 19 49,043 (1,768,101) 136,914 (1,768,101)
Share of Loss from equity accounted  
 investees - discontinued Joint Venture 7.4 - 131,945,009 - -
Share of Profit from equity accounted  
 investees - Associate 6.3 (40,150,218) (20,693,151) - -
Loss on Disposal of Subsidiary 7.5 - 376,919 - 723,338
Loss on Disposal of Joint Venture 7.4 - 148,556,527 - 68,246,627
Profit on Partial Disposal of Associate 6.2 (15,944,654) - (33,658,054) -
Dividend Income from equity accounted  
 investees- Associate 18 - - (59,130,916) -
Finance Income 20.2 (892,637) (2,712,913) (106,900) (2,458,783)
Operating Profit/(Loss) before  
 Working Capital Changes  271,572,087 414,606,659 (18,332,585) 575,513,815

Decrease / ( Increase ) in Inventories  40,581 - - -
Decrease / ( Increase ) in Trade and  
 Other Receivables  32,227,796 (102,330,310) 315,339,352 (669,803,111)
Decrease / ( Increase ) in Financial Assets  (2,019,898) 32,168,480 (772,977) 166,572,412
(Decrease) / Increase in Financial Liabilities  (65,926,992) (60,085,835) (66,224,613) (59,278,711)
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade and Other Payables  (71,148,534) (238,432,883) 216,007,229 68,554,188
Cash Generated from Operations  164,745,040 45,926,111 446,016,406 81,558,593

Finance Cost Paid  (54,497,583) (19,846,519) (5,784,953) (2,786,202)
Gratuity Paid 15 (205,345) - (205,345) -
Taxes Paid  (50,363,019) (23,718,206) (1,635,199) (218,353)
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities  59,679,093 2,361,386 438,390,909 78,554,038

Cash Flows From/(Used in) Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 3 (272,103,113) (165,784,696) (11,525,753) (5,300,289)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  5,310,983 6,824,261 5,220,983 6,824,261
Acquisition of Intangible Assets  - (560,000) - -
Dividend Received from equity  
 accounted investees - Associate 6.1 59,130,916 - 59,130,916 -
Net Cash transferred upon  
 Derecognition of Subsidiaries  - (104,721,941) - -
Acquisition of Subsidiaries  - (260,620,510) - -
Finance Income Received  892,637 2,712,913 106,900 2,458,783
Net Cash Flows From/(Used in)  
 Investing Activities  (206,768,577) (522,149,973) 52,933,046 3,982,755
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 Group Company
Year ended 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

 Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows From/(Used in) Financing Activities

Proceeds from Interest Bearing Loans and  

 Borrowings - net of transaction costs 13.1 1,046,661,496 543,872,023 - -

Proceeds from Disposal of Joint Venture 7.1 - 531,753,782 - 531,753,782

Proceeds from Disposal of Subsidiary 7.5 - 71,515,896 - 71,515,896

Proceeds from Partial Disposal of Associate 6.2 131,992,525 - 131,992,525 -

Consideration Distributed for Share Repurchase 12.1.2 (1,603,433,736) - (1,603,433,736) -

Capital Repayments  

 - Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 13.1 (70,145,000) - - -

Payments for Transaction Costs  

 - Share Repurchase  (5,845,146) - (5,845,146) -

Dividends Paid - Preference Shares  - (31,192,261) - (19,687,117)

Tax on Dividends Paid by Subsidiaries  (4,350,000) - - -

Proceeds from Share  

 Repurchase by Subsidiaries 5.1 - - 367,629,081 -

Investments in Subsidiaries 5 - - (49,999,990) -

Net Cash Flows From/(Used in)  

 Financing Activities  (505,119,861) 1,115,949,440 (1,159,657,266) 583,582,562

Net Increase/(Decrease) in  

 Cash and Cash Equivalents  (652,209,345) 596,160,853 (668,333,311) 666,119,355

Cash and Cash Equivalents  

 at the beginning of the Year  688,635,005 92,474,152 688,939,464 22,820,109

Cash and Cash Equivalents  

 at the end of the Year 11 36,425,660 688,635,005 20,606,153 688,939,464

Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash in Hand and at Bank 11.1 48,415,135 690,511,070 20,606,153 688,939,464

Bank Overdraft 11.2 (11,989,475) (1,876,065) - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end for the  

 Purpose of Statement of Cash Flow  36,425,660 688,635,005 20,606,153 688,939,464

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out in page 173 to 225 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flow Contd.
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1. Corporate Information
1.1 General
Resus Energy PLC (the ‘Company’) is a public limited liability 

company listed on Colombo Stock Exchange incorporated and 

domiciled in Sri Lanka. The Company and its subsidiaries have 

the registered office at No. 250/1, Torrington Avenue, Colombo 

07. The ordinary shares of the Company are being traded on 

the Colombo Stock Exchange.

1.2 Consolidated Financial Statements
The Consolidated Financial Statements of Resus Energy 

PLC as at and for the year ended 31st March 2016 comprise 

the Company and all its subsidiaries and associates whose 

accounts have been consolidated therein (the ‘Group’).

Resus Energy PLC does not have any identifiable parent of its 

own. The Company is the ultimate parent of the Group.

1.3 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations
There were no significant changes in the nature of the principal 

activities of the Group and the Company during the financial 

year under review. Activities of the Group are described in 

more detail in the ‘Group Structure’ on page 10.

All subsidiaries of the Company as at reporting date have been 

incorporated in Sri Lanka.

The Directors have made an assessment of the Group’s ability 

to continue as a Going Concern in the foreseeable future, and 

they do not intend to liquidate or to cease trading activities in 

any of Group entities.

Resus Energy PLC

The Company was incorporated on 11th June 2003, with the 

objective of investing in power generating companies and to 

carry on the business of a venture capital company including 

investment in shares, stocks, options, funds, debentures, 

debenture stocks, bonds, obligations, or securities or acquiring 

any other interest whatsoever in any company, public authority, 

or business concern, investing in ordinary shares in a company 

engaged in any project specified in section 21H (1) (i) to (iv) 

of Inland Revenue Act No. 38 of 2000 as amended by the 

Inland Revenue (Amended) Act No. 37 of 2003 and to dispose 

of such investments of such terms and conditions as may be 

thought fit either in the name of the Company or any nominee. 

The Company was engaged in investing in power generating 

companies and related venture capital activities during the year 

under review.

The Company’s name was changed to Resus Energy PLC 

from Hemas Power PLC with effect from 5th December 

2014 consequent to the 75% ownership change from Hemas 

Holdings PLC to a consortium comprising NDB Capital Holdings 

Limited, ACL Cables PLC and Trydan Partners (Pvt) Limited. 

Group Entities

Fully-owned subsidiaries

The Company acquired 100% of shares in Giddawa Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited, a special purpose entity with rights to 

develop a 2.0MW hydropower project located in Giddawa, 

Digana in the district of Kandy in September 2006 and 

commenced its commercial operations in October 2008. 

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited generated and transmitted 

8.71GWh of electricity during the year under review (7.88GWh 

– in 2014/15). 

In January 2008, the Company acquired 100% of shares in 

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited, a special purpose entity 

with rights to develop a 2.4MW hydropower plant located 

in Maliboda, Deraniyagala in the district of Kegalle and 

commenced its commercial operations in September 2011. 

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited generated and transmitted 

7.20GWh of electricity during the year under review (7.81GWh 

– in 2014/15). 

The Company also acquired the entirety of ordinary shares of 

an operational hydropower generation company, Upper Agra 

Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited (formerly known as Senok 

Mark Hydro (Pvt) Limited) in December 2009. Upper Agra 

Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited generated and transmitted 

8.33GWh of electricity during the year under review (8.85GWh 

– in 2014/15). 

The Company has 100% ownership in three special purpose 

entities having rights to develop hydropower projects. Gomale 

Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Limited 

and Upper Huluganga (Pvt) Limited have development rights to 

build 1.4MW hydropower project in Maliboda, Deraniyagala, 

1.5MW hydropower project in Panvila, Digana and 1.9MW 

hydropower project again in Panvila, Digana respectively. 

All three Projects  were progressing with development and 

construction work as of the reporting date.

Associates

The Company completed the acquisition of 29.3% equity 

stake in Panasian Power PLC in April 2013 and sold part of 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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its investment during the year (November 2015) reducing its 

equity stake down to 22.3% as of the reporting date. Panasian 

Power PLC owns two operational hydropower projects, 

namely Rathganga hydropower project and Manelwala 

hydropower project while two Padiyapelella projects were 

under development and construction. The Company continued 

to recognise Panasian Power PLC as an associate company in 

its Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st 

March 2016 based on equity method of accounting.

Others

The Company has deferred the development work of Ella 

Dendro Electric (Pvt) Limited (a subsidiary company formed to 

develop a biomass project in Elpitiya).

1.4 Date of Authorisation for Issue
The Consolidated Financial Statements of Resus Energy PLC 

for the year ended 31st March 2016 were authorised for issue 

by the Board of Directors on 19th May 2016.

2. General Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, promulgated 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA-Sri 

Lanka) and comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 

No. 7 of 2007 and the listing rules of the CSE.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on 

a historical cost basis, except financial instruments at fair value 

through profit or loss that have been measured at fair value 

and defined benefit obligation is recognised as the present 

value of the defined benefit obligation.

The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, 

which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

2.1.1 Going Concern
After considering the financial position, operating conditions, 

regulatory and other factors and such matters required to 

be addressed, the Directors have a reasonable expectation 

that the Company possesses adequate resources to continue 

in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they 

continue to adopt the Going Concern basis in preparing the 

Financial Statements.

2.1.2 Basis of consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial 

statements of the parent and its subsidiaries as at 31st March 

2016. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or 

has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 

investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its 

power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an 

investee if, and only if, the Group has:

I. Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it 

the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the 

investee)

II. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its 

involvement with the investee

III. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its 

returns

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or 

similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant 

facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power 

over an investee, including:

I. The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of 

the investee

II. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

III. The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee 

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to 

one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation 

of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over 

the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of 

the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a 

subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included 

in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the 

Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control 

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive 

income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent 

of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this 

results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial 

statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in 

line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets 
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and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating 

to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated 

in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a 

loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the 

related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling 

interest and other components of equity while any resultant 

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment 

retained is recognised at fair value.

Non-Controlling Interests represent the portion of profit or loss 

and net assets that is not held by the Group and are presented 

separately in the Consolidated Statement of profit or loss 

and within equity in the Consolidated Statement of Financial 

Position separately from parent shareholders’ equity.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for 

the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, 

adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line 

with those of the Group.

(b) Associates (equity accounted investees) and Joint 

Ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant 

influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the 

financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is 

not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the 

parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights 

to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the 

contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, 

which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities 

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or 

joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control 

over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are 

accounted for using the equity method. However, the Company 

does not have any interest in joint ventures during the year 

under review.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate and 

joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount 

of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the 

Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture 

since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate 

or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the 

investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of 

the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. 

Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of 

the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change 

recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint 

venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when 

applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised 

gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group 

and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent 

of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an 

associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the 

Statement of profit and loss and represents profit or loss before 

tax.

The financial statements of the associate and joint venture are 

prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When 

necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting 

policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines 

whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its 

investment in associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, 

the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that 

the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. 

If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of 

impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount 

of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then 

recognises the loss as “Share of profit/(loss) of associates and 

joint ventures” in the Statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint 

control over the joint venture, the Group measures and 

recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any 

difference between the carrying amount of the associate or 

joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control 

and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds 

from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition 

method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the 

aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at 

the acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-

controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business 

combination, the Group elects whether to measure the 
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non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value or at 

the proportionate share of the acquiree’s fair value or at the 

proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and 

included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial 

assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and 

designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 

circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition 

date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in 

host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the 

previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition 

date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in 

profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer 

will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 

Contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or 

liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of 

LKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, 

is measured at fair value with changes in fair value either in 

profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income 

(OCI). If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of 

LKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate 

SLFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is 

not remeasured and subsequent settlement is measured at fair 

value with changes in fair value either in profit or loss or as a 

change to the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the 

aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount 

recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable 

assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the 

net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration 

transferred, the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any 

accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment 

testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, 

from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s 

cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the 

combination transferred; the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit 

and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the 

goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included 

in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the 

gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of 

in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values 

of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-

generating unit retained.

2.1.3 Comparative Information
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by 

the Group and are consistent with those used in the previous 

year. Prior year figures and phrases have been restated or 

reclassified where necessary to conform to the current year 

presentation.

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.2.1 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that 

the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue 

can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment 

is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable net of trade discounts, and 

sales taxes.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met 

before revenue is recognised:

(a) Electricity Supplied

Revenue from electricity supplied is recognised upon delivery 

of electricity to Ceylon Electricity Board. Delivery of electrical 

energy shall be completed when electrical energy meets the 

specifications as set out in Standardised Power Purchase 

Agreements (SPPA) is received at the metering point.

(b) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and 

interest bearing financial assets classified as available for sale, 

interest income or expense is recorded using the Effective 

Interest Rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts 

the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 

expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, 

where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial 

asset or liability.

Interest income earned by subsidiaries is included under 

finance income in the Statement of profit or loss and the 

interest income earned by the Company from its venture 

capital activities is shown under Revenue.

(c) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to 

receive the payment is established.
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(d) Others

Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

2.2.2 Foreign Currencies
The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements are presented 

in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is also the Group’s functional and 

presentation currency.

For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency 

and items included in the financial statements of each entity are 

measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the 

direct method of consolidation and has elected to recycle the 

gain or loss arises from this method.

(a) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the 

Company at the functional currency rates prevailing at the date 

of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate 

of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

All differences are taken to the Statement of profit or loss 

with the exception of all monetary items that forms part of a 

net investment in a foreign operation. These are recognised 

in other comprehensive income until the disposal of the 

net investment, at which time they are reclassified to profit 

or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange 

differences on those monetary items are also recorded in other 

comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical 

cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 

rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 

items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 

value is determined.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items 

is recognised in line with the gain or loss of the item that gave 

rise to the translation difference (translation differences on 

items whose gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive 

income or profit or loss is also recognised in other 

comprehensive income or profit or loss respectively).

(b) Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated 

into Sri Lankan Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing 

at the reporting date and their Statements of profit or loss 

are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

the transactions. The exchange differences arising on the 

translation are recognised in other comprehensive income. 

On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other 

comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign 

operation is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss.

2.2.3 Taxation
a) Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and 

prior periods are measured at the amounts expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the Commissioner General of Inland 

Revenue. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 

amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted on 

the reporting date in the country where the Group operates and 

generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items 

recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in 

the Statement of profit or loss.

The provision for income tax is based on the elements of 

income and expenditure as reported in the financial statements 

and computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland 

Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and the amendments thereto.

Resus Energy PLC - Parent

As per section 23 of Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006, 

Resus Enery PLC is classified as a venture capital company. 

Accordingly, the company enjoyed a 5 year tax exemption 

period from the year of assessment 2003/04 and ended in 

2007/08. After expiration of aforesaid tax exemption period, in 

terms of section 48 of the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act 

No. 9 of 2008, the Company was liable for income tax for the 

first 3 years at 5%, 10% and 15% respectively. After expiration 

of the above 3 year concessionary tax period, the Company 

was liable for income tax at 12%.

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited–fully-owned subsidiary

Pursuant to the agreement entered into with the Board of 

Investments of Sri Lanka (BOI), profits of Giddawa Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Ltd are exempted from income tax for a period of 

five (5) years reckoned from the year of assessment as may 

be determined by the BOI, in which the company commences 

to make profits or any year of assessment not later than two 

(2) years from the date of commencement of commercial 

operations of the company, whichever is earlier.

After expiration of the aforesaid tax exemption period, the 

profits of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited shall be charged 

for income tax at the rate of 10% for a period of two (2) years 

immediately succeeding the last date of the tax exemption 

period.
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After expiration of the aforesaid two years concessionary tax 

period at the rate of 10%, the profits of the company shall, for 

any year of assessment, be charged at the rate of 20%.

Accordingly, the profits of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd 

were exempted from income tax up to 2012/2013. For 2013/14 

and 2014/15 profits were liable for income tax at the rate of 

10%. As per the BOI agreement, the profits of Giddawa Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited for 2015/16 were liable for income tax at 

the rate of 20%.

However, as per section 59E and the Fifth Schedule of the 

Inland Revenue Act, profits and income of any person or 

partnership from operating any project for producing any 

alternative energy including operating any mini hydropower 

project (any hydropower project which generates less than 10 

Mega Watts electricity), shall be taxable at the rate of 12%. 

In accordance with section 48C of the Inland Revenue Act, 

profits of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited were charged 

for income tax at the rate of 12% for 2015/16, being the less 

burdensome rate applicable for the company for 2015/16.

Other income of the company was liable for income tax at 28%.

Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited–fully-owned 

subsidiary

Pursuant to the agreement entered into with the BOI, profits 

of Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Private) Ltd are exempted 

from income tax for a period of five (5) years reckoned from 

the year of assessment as may be determined by the BOI, in 

which the company commences to make profits or any year 

of assessment not later than two (2) years from the date of 

commencement of commercial operations of the company, 

whichever is earlier.

After expiration of the aforesaid tax exemption period, the 

profits of Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited shall 

be charged for income tax at the rate of 10% for a period of 

two (2) years immediately succeeding the last date of the tax 

exemption period.

After expiration of the aforesaid two years concessionary tax 

period at the rate of 10%, the profits of the company shall, for 

any year of assessment, be charged at the rate of 20%.

Accordingly, the profits of Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Ltd were exempted from income tax up to 2012/13. For 

2013/14 and 2014/15 profits were liable for income tax at the 

rate of 10%. As per the BOI agreement, the profits of Upper 

Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited for 2015/16 were liable 

for income tax at the rate of 20%.

However, as per section 59E and the Fifth Schedule of the 

Inland Revenue Act, profits and income of any person or 

partnership from operating any project for producing any 

alternative energy including operating any mini hydropower 

project (any hydropower project which generates less than 10 

Mega Watts electricity), shall be taxable at the rate of 12%. In 

accordance with section 48C of the Inland Revenue Act, profits 

of Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited were charged 

for income tax at the rate of 12% for 2015/16, being the less 

burdensome rate applicable for the company for 2015/16.

Other income was liable for income tax at 28%.

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited–fully-owned subsidiary

Pursuant to the agreement entered into with the BOI, profits 

of Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Ltd are exempted from income 

tax for a period of five (5) years reckoned from the year 

of assessment as may be determined by the BOI, in which 

the company commences to make profits or any year of 

assessment not later than two (2) years from the date of 

commencement of commercial operations of the company, 

whichever is earlier.

After expiration of the aforesaid tax exemption period, the 

profits of Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited shall be charged 

for income tax at the rate of 10% for a period of two (2) years 

immediately succeeding the last date of the tax exemption 

period.

After expiration of the aforesaid two years concessionary tax 

period at the rate of 10%, the profits of the company shall, for 

any year of assessment, be charged at the rate of 20%. 

Accordingly, the profits of the company were exempted from 

income tax up to 2015/16.

Other income was liable for income tax at 28%.

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Limited – fully-owned subsidiary

Pursuant to the agreement entered into with the BOI, profits of 

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Ltd are exempted from income tax for a 

period of five (5) years reckoned from the year of assessment 

as may be determined by the BOI, in which the company 

commences to make profits or any year of assessment not 

later than two (2) years from the date of commencement of 

commercial operations of the company, whichever is earlier.

After expiration of the aforesaid tax exemption period, the 

profits of Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Limited shall be charged for 
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income tax at the rate of 10% for a period of two (2) years 

immediately succeeding the last date of the tax exemption 

period.

After expiration of the aforesaid two years concessionary tax 

period at the rate of 10%, the profits of the company shall, for 

any year of assessment, be charged at the rate of 20%.

However, no commercial operation has been started as of the 

reporting date.

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited – fully-owned 

subsidiary

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited has not been granted 

any specific tax holidays under the BOI agreement. Therefore, 

as per section 59E and the Fifth Schedule of the Inland 

Revenue Act, profits and income of Gomale Oya Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Limited shall be taxable at the rate of 12%. However, 

no commercial operation has been started as of the reporting 

date.

Upper Huluganga (Pvt) Limited – fully-owned subsidiary

Upper Huluganga (Pvt) Limited intends to enter into an 

agreement with the BOI to obtain income tax exemptions 

as per the prevailing laws and regulations. However, no 

commercial operation has been started as of the reporting 

date.

Panasian Power PLC - associate

Manelwala Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, which is a subsidiary of 

Panasian Power PLC was exempted from income tax up to the 

year of assessment 2013/14 under the BOI agreement. From 

2014/15, it was liable for income tax at the rate of 10% for a 

period of two years and thereafter at 20%. Panasian Power 

PLC is enjoying a tax holiday at present under section 18A of 

the Inland Revenue Act which shall continue up to the financial 

year ending 31st March 2018.

b) Deferred Taxation

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on 

all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax 

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 

financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 

temporary differences except,

i) Where the deferred income tax liability arises from the 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 

that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable 

profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with 

investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 

ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the 

temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable 

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 

foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible 

temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and 

unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 

differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and 

unused tax losses can be utilised except:

i) Where the deferred income tax asset relating to the 

deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 

a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 

affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or 

loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated 

with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint 

ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the 

extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will 

reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be 

available against which the temporary differences can be 

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed 

at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 

longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to 

allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 

reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 

become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 

deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 

tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset 

is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax 

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the 

reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised in correlation to the 

underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if 

a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 

against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate 

to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

c) Tax on dividends

Tax on dividends declared by the Company and its subsidiaries 

is recognised in equity.

2.2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost, net of 

accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing 

component parts of the Property, Plant and Equipment and 

borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the 

recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of Property, 

Plant and Equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, 

the Group derecognises net book value of the replaced part, 

and recognises the new part with its own associated useful 

life and depreciation. Likewise, when a major inspection 

is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount 

of the Property Plant and Equipment as a replacement if 

the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and 

maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of profit or 

loss as incurred.

When items of Property, Plant and Equipment are subsequently 

revalued, the entire class of such assets is revalued. Any 

revaluation surplus is recognised in other comprehensive 

income and accumulated in equity in the asset revaluation 

reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 

decrease of the same asset previously recognised in the 

Statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is 

recognised in the Statement of profit or loss. A revaluation 

deficit is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss, except to 

the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset 

recognised in the asset revaluation reserve.

Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is 

eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset 

and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the 

asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the 

particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis over the 

estimated useful lives of all Property, Plant and Equipment.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant 

part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or 

when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 

or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 

asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 

the Statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.2.5 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, 

a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 

inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether 

fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a 

specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right 

to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly 

specified in an arrangement.

Finance leases that transfer to the Group substantially all of the 

risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, 

are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair 

value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of 

the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned 

between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 

so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 

balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in 

finance costs in the Statement of profit or loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. 

However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group 

will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is 

depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the 

asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating 

expense in the Statement of profit or loss on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term.

2.2.6 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 

construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or 

sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. 

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they 

occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that 

an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.2.7 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 

value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location 

and conditions are accounted for as follows:

• Raw Materials - At weighted average cost basis

• Consumables and Spares - At weighted average cost basis

• Goods-in-Transit and Other Stocks - At actual cost

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 

ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion 

and the estimated costs to sell.

2.2.8 Financial Instruments- Initial Recognition and 
Subsequent Measurement
i) Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified 

as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans 

and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-

for-sale financial assets, as appropriate and determine the 

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in 

the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, 

directly attributable transaction costs.

The financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade 

and other receivables and other financial assets.

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on 

their classification as follows:

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with 

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective 

Interest Rate method (EIR), less impairment. Amortised cost 

is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 

on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 

EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the 

Statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment 

are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss in finance 

costs.

Loans and Receivables mainly consist of trade and other 

receivables.

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include equity and debt 

securities. Equity investments classified as available-for-sale 

are those, which are neither classified as held for trading nor 

designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities 

in this category are those which are intended to be held for an 

indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response 

to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market 

conditions.

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial assets 

are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains 

or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the 

available-for-sale reserve until the asset is derecognised, at 

which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other 

operating income, or determined to be impaired, at which time 

the cumulative loss is reclassified to the Statement of profit or 

loss in finance costs and removed from the available-for-sale 

reserve. Interest income on available-for-sale debt securities is 

calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised 

in Statement of profit or loss.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets to 

determine whether the ability and intention to sell them in 

the near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable 

to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and 

management’s intention to do so significantly changes in the 

foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these 

financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans 

and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the 

definition of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent 

and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or 

until maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category 

is permitted only when the entity has the ability and intention to 

hold the financial asset accordingly.

For a financial assets reclassified out of the available-for-sale 

category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has 

been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over 

the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. Any difference 

between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows 

is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the 

EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, 

then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the 

Statement of profit or loss.
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Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial 

asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 

derecognised when,

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 

expired

ii) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 

received cash flows in full without material delay to a third 

party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either,

-  The Group has transferred substantially all the risks 

and rewards of the asset, or

-  The Group has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 

has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 

from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, 

and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of 

the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of it, 

the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing 

involvement in it. In that case, the Group also recognises an 

associated liability. The transferred assets and the associated 

liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 

obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over 

the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 

carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

ii) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is 

any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of 

financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of 

financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there 

is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more 

events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset 

and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash 

flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that 

can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the 

debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant 

financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal 

payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or 

other financial reorganisation and where observable data 

indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated 

future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic 

conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first 

assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists 

individually for financial assets that are individually significant, 

or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 

significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence 

of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial 

asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a 

group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics 

and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that 

are individually assessed for impairment and for which an 

impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not 

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been 

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 

between the assets carrying amount and the present value of 

estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit 

losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of 

the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial 

asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable 

interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment 

loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of 

an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised 

in the Statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to 

be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued 

using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash 

flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The 

interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the 

Statement of profit or loss. Loans together with the associated 

allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect 

of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or 

has been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, 

the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or 

decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment 

was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is 

increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a 

future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to 

finance costs in the Statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at 

each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an 

investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-

for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or 

prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its 

cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative 
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loss measured as the difference between the acquisition 

cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on 

that investment previously recognised in the profit or loss, is 

removed from other comprehensive income and recognised 

in the Statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity 

investments are not reversed through the profit or loss; 

increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised 

directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, 

impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial 

assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount 

recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as 

the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair 

value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously 

recognised in the profit or loss.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on 

the reduced carrying amount of the asset, using the rate of 

interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose 

of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is 

recorded as part of finance income. If, in a subsequent year, 

the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase 

can be objectively related to an event occurring after the 

impairment loss was recognised in the Statement of profit or 

loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of 

profit or loss.

iii) Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified 

as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans 

and borrowings, other financial liabilities or as derivatives 

designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 

appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its 

financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value 

and, in the case of loans and borrowings, and other financial 

liabilities carried at amortised cost. This includes directly 

attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other 

payables, bank overdrafts, loans and borrowings, and other 

financial liabilities.

Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their 

classification as follows;

Loans and Borrowings / Other Financial Liabilities

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised 

in the Statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are 

derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate 

method (EIR) amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 

discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 

an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in 

finance costs in the Statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under 

the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 

from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the 

terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 

exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the 

original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in 

the Statement of profit or loss.

iv) Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 

amount reported in the Statement of financial position if, and 

only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 

the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 

a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously.

v) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active 

markets at each reporting date is determined by reference to 

quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. (bid price for 

long positions and ask price for short positions),without any 

deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the 

fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. 

Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market 

transactions; reference to the current fair value of another 

instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash 

flow analysis or other valuation models.
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vi) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair 

value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into 

and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are 

carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as 

financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of 

derivatives are taken directly to the Statement of profit or loss, 

except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is 

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash Flow Hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging 

instrument is recognised directly as other comprehensive 

income in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective 

portion is recognised immediately in the profit or loss as other 

operating expenses.

Amounts recognised as other comprehensive income are 

transferred to the Statement of profit or loss when the hedged 

transaction affects profit or loss, such as, when the hedged 

financial income or financial expense is recognised or when 

a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of 

a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts 

recognised as other comprehensive income are transferred to 

the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the forecast transaction or firm commitment is no longer 

expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognised in equity is transferred to the Statement of profit or 

loss. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or 

exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation 

as a hedge is revoked, any cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognised in other comprehensive income remains in other 

comprehensive income until the forecast transaction or firm 

commitment affects profit or loss.

2.2.9 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is 

an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 

exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 

required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or 

cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its 

value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless 

the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 

independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 

Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 

recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 

written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in 

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, 

recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. 

If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 

valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated 

by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded 

subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including 

impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement 

of profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with 

the function of the impaired asset, except for a property 

previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other 

comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also 

recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of 

any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at 

each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 

previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist 

or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group 

estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable 

amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 

only if there has been a change in the assumptions used 

to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 

impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so 

that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 

recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that 

would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no 

impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 

Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss 

unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case 

the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31st March 

and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may 

be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the 

recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which 

the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the 

cash-generating unit is less than their carrying amount, an 

impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to 

goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.
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Fair Value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as financial 

assets held for trading, financial derivatives, and non-

financial assets such as certain classes of Property, Plant and 

Equipment at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value 

related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial 

assets that are measured at fair value or where fair values 

are disclosed are summarised under the respective notes. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 

or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 

to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability

 or

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most 

advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be 

accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability 

is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 

market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair 

value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 

a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits 

by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 

to another market participant that would use the asset in its 

highest and best use. The Group uses valuation techniques that 

are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the 

use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 

unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair 

value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as 

follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement as a whole.

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 

markets for identical assets or liabilities

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

directly or indirectly observable

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial 

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether 

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, 

such as properties and significant liabilities, such as defined 

benefit obligations. Involvement of external valuers is decided 

upon annually after discussion with and approval by the 

Group’s Board Audit Committee wherever necessary. Selection 

criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence 

and whether professional standards are maintained. The Board 

Audit Committee whenever necessary after discussions with 

the Group’s external valuers decide which valuation techniques 

and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date the management analyses the 

movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are 

required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s 

accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies 

the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the 

information in the valuation computation to contracts and other 

relevant documents. The management in conjunction with the 

Group’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair 

value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources 

to determine whether the change is reasonable. This includes a 

discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has 

determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 

the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability 

and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further 

details as to how they are measured are provided in note 26.

2.2.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Statement of financial 

position comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term 

deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the Group statement of cash flows, cash 

and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as 

defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

2.2.11 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 

obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 

is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 

benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
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estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where 

the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, 

for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement 

is recognised as a separate asset but only when the 

reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any 

provision is presented in the Statement of profit or loss net of 

any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions 

are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where 

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting 

is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 

is recognised as a finance cost.

2.2.12 Retirement Benefit Liability
(a) Defined Contribution Plans –Employees’ Provident Fund 

and Employees’ Trust Fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan 

under which an entity pays fixed determinable contributions 

into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive 

obligation to pay further amounts.

Employees are eligible to Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF) 

contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) contributions 

as per the respective statutes. These obligations come within 

the scope of a defined contribution plan as per LKAS -19 on 

‘Employee Benefits’.

The Company contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments 

of employees to Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ 

Trust Fund respectively. The contributions made are expensed 

to Profit or Loss as and when the contributions are made.

(b) Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity

In accordance with the Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, a liability 

arises for a defined benefit obligation to employees. Such 

defined benefit obligation is a post-employment benefit 

obligation falling within the scope of Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard LKAS -19 on ‘Employee Benefits’.

The liability recognised in the Statement of financial position 

is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the 

reporting date. The calculations performed annually by a 

qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method 

(PUC). Any actuarial gains and losses arising are recognised 

immediately in other comprehensive income. The discount rate 

has been derived considering the yield of government bonds.

However, as per the payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, 

this liability only arises upon completion of 5 years of continued 

service.

The gratuity liability is not externally funded.

2.2.13 Business Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that 

engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues 

and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses 

that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other 

components. All operating segments’ operating results are 

reviewed regularly by the Group’s Managing Director (MD) to 

make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment 

and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial 

information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the MD include items 

directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 

allocated on a reasonable basis.

2.3 Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates 
and Assumptions
The preparation of the Group Financial Statements requires 

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 

and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at 

the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about 

these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 

require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the 

asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group accounting policies, 

management has made the following judgments, which have 

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 

financial statements:

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax 

losses (except the tax losses accumulated in the Company) 

to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 

available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant 

management judgment is required to determine the amount 

of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the 

likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with 

future tax planning strategies.
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Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key 

sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 

financial year, are described below. The Group based its 

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the 

financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances 

and assumptions about future developments, however, may 

change due to market changes or circumstances arising 

beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in 

the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash 

generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the 

higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available 

data from binding sales transactions on an arm’s length basis 

of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental 

costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is 

based on a discounted cash flow model.

Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of defined benefit plans-gratuity is determined using 

actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making 

assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases 

and retirement age. Due to the long term nature of these 

plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. All 

assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

2.4 New Accounting Standards became effective 
during the year
There were no new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards became 

effective for the periods commencing on or after 1st January 

2015.

2.5 Effects of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
issued but not yet effective
Certain new accounting standards and amendments / 

improvements to existing standards have been published, that 

are not mandatory for 31st March 2016 reporting periods. 

None of those have been early adopted by the Group.

SLFRS 9-Financial Instruments

SLFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in LKAS 39-Financial 

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. SLFRS 9 includes 

revised guidance on the classification and measurement of 

financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for 

calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general 

hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward 

the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial 

instruments from LKAS 39. SLFRS 9 is effective for annual 

reporting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018, with 

early adoption permitted.

SLFRS 14-Regulatory Deferral Accounts

SLFRS 14 is an interim standard which provides relief for first 

time adopters of SLFRS in relation to the accounting for certain 

balances that arise from rate-regulated activities (‘regulatory 

deferral accounts’). The standard permits these entities to 

continue to apply their previous GAAP accounting policies for 

the recognition, measurement, impairment and derecognition 

of regulatory deferral accounts.

SLFRS 14 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 

or after 1st January 2016.

SLFRS 15-Revenue from Contracts with Customers

SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for 

determining whether, how much and when revenue is 

recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, 

including LKAS 18-Revenue, LKAS 11-Construction Contracts 

and IFRIC 13-Customer Loyalty Programmes.

SLFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 

or after 1st January 2018, with early adoption permitted.

Management believes that the SLFRS 14 would not be 

applicable for the Group, as it is an existing SLFRS preparer/

does not involve in rate regulatory activities. Pending the 

completion of the detailed impact analysis, possible impact 

from SLFRS 9 and SLFRS 15 is not reasonably estimable as of 

the reporting date.
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
3.1 Group
 Balance Additions Revaluations Disposals Balance 
 As at    As at 
Gross Carrying Amounts 01.04.2015    31.03.2016 
At Cost/Valuation Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Freehold Land 52,102,130 2,144,749 9,653,121 - 63,900,000
Civil Construction at hydropower plants 568,222,907 9,331,600 - - 577,554,507
Office Equipment 7,514,252 3,052,166 - (2,045,454) 8,520,964
Furniture and Fittings 13,354,278 1,740,229 - (7,661,579) 7,432,928
Plant and Machinery at hydropower plants 555,641,496 835,347 - - 556,476,843
Computer Equipment 4,350,227 3,388,740 - - 7,738,967
Motor Vehicles 29,801,701 3,427,600 - (154,140) 33,075,161
Generators 313,600 1,034,152 - - 1,347,752
 1,231,300,591 24,954,583 9,653,121 (9,861,173) 1,256,047,122

Capital Work-in-Progress
Hydropower Project Construction Expenses 141,921,772 247,148,530 - - 389,070,302
 141,921,772 247,148,530 - - 389,070,302
Total Gross Carrying Value 1,373,222,363 272,103,113 9,653,121 (9,861,173) 1,645,117,424

  Balance Depreciation Disposals Balance 
  As at Charge  As at 
Depreciation  01.04.2015 for the Year  31.03.2016 
At Cost  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Civil Construction at hydropower plants  44,317,584 9,122,624 - 53,440,208
Office Equipment  2,101,793 828,405 (713,281) 2,216,917
Furniture and Fittings  5,167,817 1,175,028 (3,635,855) 2,706,990
Plant and Machinery at hydropower plants  77,157,684 16,737,702 - 93,895,386
Computer Equipment  3,103,279 914,622 - 4,017,901
Motor Vehicles  12,062,349 5,410,875 (152,011) 17,321,213
Generators  220,100 102,028 - 322,128
Total Depreciation  144,130,606 34,291,284 (4,501,147) 173,920,743

Net Book Values - As at 31st March    2016 2015 
    Rs. Rs.

Freehold Land    63,900,000 52,102,130
Civil Construction at hydropower plants    524,114,299 523,905,323
Office Equipment    6,304,047 5,412,459
Furniture and Fittings    4,725,938 8,186,461
Plant and Machinery at hydropower plants    462,581,457 478,483,812
Computer Equipment    3,721,066 1,246,948
Motor Vehicles    15,753,948 17,739,352
Generators    1,025,624 93,500
    1,082,126,379 1,087,169,985

Capital Work-in-Progress
Hydropower Project Construction Expenses    389,070,302 141,921,772
Total Carrying Value of Property, Plant and Equipment    1,471,196,681 1,229,091,757
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3.2 During the year fixed assets additions and cash payments
During the financial year, the Group acquired Property, Plant and Equipment to the aggregate value of Rs. 272,103,113/- (2015 

- Rs.819,377,282/-). Cash payments amounted to Rs. 272,103,113/- (2015 - Rs. 542,927,282/-) were made during the year for 

acquisition/construction of Property, Plant and Equipment.

3.3 Details of Properties of the Group
Revaluation of Freehold Lands

The Group uses the revaluation model for measurement of lands of its subsidiaries. The Group engaged Messrs Perera 

Sivaskantha & Company, an independent certified valuer, to determine the fair value of its lands. Fair value is determined by 

reference to market based evidence. Valuations are based on the active market prices, adjusted for any differences in the nature, 

location or condition of the specific property. The date of most recent revaluation was 31st March 2016.

Valuation Technique Used: Market Comparable Method - This involves evaluation of recent active market prices of similar assets, 

making appropriate adjustments for differences in size, nature, location, condition of specific property.

Significant Valuation Inputs: Price per Perch for Land

Sensitivity of the fair value measurement to inputs: Estimated fair value would increase/(decrease) if; price per Perch increases/

(decreases)

        

Name of Subsidiary company Location of freehold Freehold Cost/ Market Revalued Revalued 

 Land Land Extent Net Book Price per Amount Amount 

   Value Perch  as No. of 

    (approx.)  times of 

   Rs. Rs. Rs. Cost

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited Giddawa, Digana, Teldeniya 1A - 3R - 30.90P 9,031,395 40,000 12,500,000 1.38

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited Dikkellakanda, Maliboda,  

 Deraniyagala 0A - 3R - 31.83P 1,774,395 23,000 3,500,000 1.97

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited Imewatta, Magala, Deraniyagala 1A - 0R - 26.91P 2,144,749 20,800 3,900,000 1.82

Ella Dendro Electric (Pvt) Limited Kurudugahahatapma, Elpitiya 23A - 2R - 29.3P 29,040,095 11,600 44,000,000 1.52

  25A - 10R - 38.94P 41,990,634  63,900,000 1.52

Freehold Buildings

 Location of freehold No. of Total Sq. ft. of 

Name of Subsidiary company Buildings Buildings Buildings

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited Giddawa, Digana, Teldeniya 2 4,103

Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited Lindula, Talawakelle 2 5,078

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited Dikkellakanda, Maliboda, 

  Deraniyagala 2 3,504

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited Imewatta, Magala, Deraniyagala 2 2,518

  8 15,203

The Carrying Value of above Buildings is reflected under civil construction at hydropower plants.
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3.4 Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security against bank facilities
Land, buildings including civil structures and power generating equipment of hydropower projects with a total carrying value of 

Rs. 1,221,035,919/- have been pledged as security against bank loans obtained by below subsidiaries during the year (2015 - No 

assets have been pledged).

Name of Subsidiary company Lender  Carrying Value as at 31st March 2016 (Rs.)

      Loan Capital 

    Hydropower  outstanding 

    Plant and  as at 31st March 

  Freehold Land Civil Structures Machinery Total 2016 (Rs.)

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited Sampath Bank PLC  

 and NDB Bank PLC 12,500,000 236,022,240 131,210,876 379,733,116 348,119,564

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited Sampath Bank PLC  

 and NDB Bank PLC 3,500,000 190,305,582 208,677,307 402,482,889 332,374,055

Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power  

 (Pvt) Limited Sampath Bank PLC  

 and NDB Bank PLC - 97,786,477 122,693,274 220,479,751 192,522,630

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited Sampath Bank PLC 3,900,000 89,935,839* 124,504,324* 218,340,163 110,017,000

  19,900,000 614,050,138 587,085,781 1,221,035,919 983,033,249

*These amounts are reflected under Capital work-in-Progress as at 31st March 2016.

3.5 Fully Depreciated but still in use
The cost of fully-depreciated property, plant and equipment of the Group which are still in use amounts to Rs. 3,265,270/- (2015 - 

Rs. 2,551,582/-).

There is no permanent fall in the value of property, plant and equipment which requires a provision for impairment.

There were no restrictions existed on the title to the property, plant and equipment of the Group/Company as at the reporting date.

3.6 The useful lives of the assets of the Group are estimated as follows:
   2016  2015

Civil Construction at hydropower plants   41 - 60 Years  41 - 60 Years

Office Equipment   3 - 8 Years  3 - 8 Years

Furniture and Fittings   3 - 8 Years  3 - 8 Years

Plant and Machinery at hydropower plants   27 - 33 1/3 Years  27 - 33 1/3 Years

Computer Equipment   3 Years  3 Years

Motor Vehicles   4 - 6 Years  4 - 6 Years

Generators   8 Years  8 Years

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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3.7 Company 

  Balance Additions/ Disposals/ Balance 

  As at Transfers Transfers As at 

Gross Carrying Amounts  01.04.2015   31.03.2016 

At Cost  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Computer Equipment  3,502,334 3,388,743 - 6,891,077

Motor Vehicles  29,022,441 2,875,000 - 31,897,441

Office Equipment  5,193,209 2,660,569 (2,045,454) 5,808,324

Furniture and Fittings  11,655,055 1,621,289 (7,661,579) 5,614,765

Generators  313,600 980,152 - 1,293,752

Total Gross Carrying Value  49,686,639 11,525,753 (9,707,033) 51,505,359

  Balance Depreciation  Balance 

  As at Charge for Disposals/ As at 

Depreciation  01.04.2015 the year Transfers 31.03.2016 

At Cost  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Computer Equipment  2,529,631 784,217 - 3,313,848

Motor Vehicles  11,516,347 5,317,206 - 16,833,553

Office Equipment  1,176,890 549,871 (713,281) 1,013,480

Furniture and Fittings  4,489,221 963,957 (3,635,855) 1,817,323

Generators  215,600 99,492 - 315,092

Total Depreciation  19,927,689 7,714,743 (4,349,136) 23,293,296

Net Book Values - As at 31st March    2016 2015 

    Rs. Rs.

Computer Equipment    3,577,229 972,703

Motor Vehicles    15,063,888 17,506,094

Office Equipment    4,794,844 4,016,319

Furniture and Fittings    3,797,442 7,165,834

Generators    978,660 98,000

Total Carrying Value of Property, Plant and Equipment    28,212,063 29,758,950

3.8 During the year fixed assets additions and cash payments
During the financial year, the Company acquired Property, Plant and Equipment to the aggregate value of Rs.11,525,753/- for cash 

(2015 - Rs. 5,300,289/-).

3.9 Fully Depreciated but still in use
The cost of fully depreciated assets of the Company which are still in use as at 31st March 2016 amounts to Rs. 2,436,954/- (2015 

- Rs. 662,302/-).
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4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group
   Balance Additions Balance 

   As at  As at 

   01.04.2015  31.03.2016 

Gross Carrying Amounts   Rs. Rs. Rs.

Goodwill   126,752,566 - 126,752,566

   126,752,566 - 126,752,566

Impairment   Balance Impairment Balance 

   As at Charge As at 

   01.04.2015 for the Year 31.03.2016 

   Rs. Rs. Rs.

Goodwill   - - -

   - - -

Carrying Value - As at 31st March    2016 2015 

    Rs. Rs.

Goodwill    126,752,566 126,752,566

    126,752,566 126,752,566

The Company and its subsidiaries annually carry out impairment tests on all its tangible assets. The business acquisition to which 

the goodwill is attributable is valued based on the earnings growth method. Assumptions applied in such computations are 

reviewed each year.

Goodwill as at the date of Financial Position has been tested for impairment and found no impairment for the carrying value. 

Recoverable values for the above test was estimated based on value in use of the acquired assets on business combination in the 

normal course of business.

Following business acquisitions resulted in recognition of Goodwill in prior years;

     Rs.

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Ltd     20,405,018

Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd     106,347,548

     126,752,566

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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5 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES  

 Effective Holding  No. of Shares Company

Ordinary Voting Shares 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

     Rs. Rs.

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited (note 5.1) 100.0% 100.0% 1,525,003 1,630,999 152,500,268 163,099,900

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited (note 5.1) 100.0% 100.0% 29,471,949 43,662,513 305,456,558 452,612,710

Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited  

 (note 5.1) 100.0% 100.0% 7,166,140 9,926,706 144,010,791 208,884,088

Ella Dendro Electric (Pvt) Limited 75.0% 75.0% 7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,000

Rawanakanda Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd 100.0% 100.0% 10 10 100 100

Upper Huluganga (Pvt) Ltd 100.0% 100.0% 2 2 20 20

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Ltd 100.0% 100.0% 2 2 20 20

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd 100.0% 100.0% 5,000,001 2 50,000,010 20

     659,467,767 832,096,858

5.1 Share repurchase by Subsidiaries;
Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited and Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited carried 

out share repurchases on 26th August 2015 upon obtaining approval from Resus Energy PLC, being the parent company of the 

said subsidiaries and in accordance with applicable provisions and guidelines in Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and Articles of 

Association to facilitate capital restructuring of the Group.

Accordingly, the Company’s investments in said subsidiaries changed as follows;

 Giddawa Hydro Power Okanda Power Grid Upper Agra Oya Hydro 

 (Pvt) Limited (Pvt) Limited Power (Pvt) Limited

 No. of Shares Rs. No. of Shares Rs. No. of Shares Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,630,999 163,099,900 43,662,513 452,612,710 9,926,706 208,884,088

Conversion of preference shares  

 to ordinary voting shares (note 8.1) 1,450,000 145,000,000 - - - -

Share repurchase by subsidiaries* (1,555,996) (155,599,632) (14,190,564) (147,156,152) (2,760,566) (64,873,297)

Balance at the end of the year 1,525,003 152,500,268 29,471,949 305,456,558 7,166,140 144,010,791

* Resus Energy PLC received the consideration for the shares repurchased by its fully-owned subsidiaries during the year. 

Accordingly, Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd, Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Ltd and Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd distributed 

a total sum of Rs. 367,629,081/- to Resus Energy PLC.
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6 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
Panasian Power PLC - quoted investment

6.1 Carrying value of Associates under equity method of accounting 

 Effective Holding No. of Shares Group

As at 31st March 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Group     Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year 29.3% - 146,500,000 - 504,198,507 -

Share of net assets transferred - 29.3% - 146,500,000 - 490,616,073

Share of net profit after tax - - - - 36,089,678 13,647,200

Share of other comprehensive  

 income/(expense) - - - - 34,867 (64,766)

Net dividends received during the year - - - - (59,130,916) -

Partial disposal during the year (7.0%) - (35,000,000) - (116,047,871) -

Balance at the end of the year 22.3% 29.3% 111,500,000 146,500,000 365,144,265 504,198,507

 Effective Holding No. of Shares Company

 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Company     Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year 29.3% 29.3% 146,500,000 146,500,000 411,600,000 411,600,000

Partial disposal during the year (7.0%) - (35,000,000) - (98,334,471) -

Balance at the end of the year 22.3% 29.3% 111,500,000 146,500,000 313,265,529 411,600,000

6.2 Gain/(loss) on disposal of shares in Panasian Power PLC
Resus Energy PLC sold 35,000,000 shares in Panasian Power PLC in the month of November 2015 at the price of Rs 3.80 per 

share. This resulted in a reduction of equity ownership stake in Panasian Power PLC from 29.3% to 22.3% as at 31st March 2016.

    Group Company 

    Rs. Rs.

Net disposal proceeds    131,992,525 131,992,525

Carrying value of the disposed stake    (116,047,871) (98,334,471)

Disposal gain/(loss)    15,944,654 33,658,054

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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6.3 Summarised financial information of Associates; 

 Panasian Power PLC Group’s share
For the period ended 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

  12 months 4 months 12 months 4 months

Revenue  287,187,421 112,145,922 76,617,670 32,858,755

Operating expenses  (87,020,358) (29,730,478) (23,215,840) (8,711,030)

Finance income  2,757,689 4,572,625 735,714 1,339,779

Finance cost  (52,797,371) (17,923,647) (14,085,615) (5,251,628)

Non-controlling Interest  368,419 1,560,665 98,289 457,275

Profit before tax  150,495,800 70,625,087 40,150,218 20,693,151

Tax expense  (15,220,196) (24,047,614) (4,060,540) (7,045,951)

Profit after tax  135,275,604 46,577,473 36,089,678 13,647,200

Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)  130,692 (221,043) 34,867 (64,766)

Total Comprehensive Income/(Expense)  135,406,296 46,356,430 36,124,545 13,582,434

The Group has neither contingent liabilities nor capital and other commitments towards its associate.

7 DISPOSAL OF NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS DURING 2014/15
7.1 Disposal of investment in unquoted Joint Venture
Heladhanavi Limited

On 24th October 2014, the Group disposed its 47.06% equity stake held in Heladhanavi Limited to its joint venture partner, 

Lakdhanavi Limited. The share of profit/(loss) accrued to the Group from the joint venture operation upto 24th October 2014 has 

been recognised under equity method of accounting in its consolidated financial statements.

 Heladhanavi Limited Group’s share of values on divestment 

ASSETS as at 24th October 2014 as at 24th October 2014

Cash and Short-term Deposits 14,409,789 6,781,077

Other Financial Assets 1,102,396,000 518,774,560

Trade and Other Receivables 3,461,312,033 1,628,852,632

Inventories 85,307,068 40,144,500

Property, Plant and Equipment 828,648,231 389,952,087

LIABILITIES

Defined Benefit Liability (1,045,000) (491,765)

Trade and Other Payables (1,438,493,148) (676,937,915)

Other Financial Liabilities (2,606,875,487) (1,226,764,868)

Total identifiable net assets 1,445,659,486 680,310,309

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of non-current investment recognised in 2014/15  (148,556,527)

Net cash inflow on disposal of non-current investment  531,753,782
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7.2 Carrying value of Joint Venture
Heladhanavi Limited - under equity method

  Group
    2016 2015 

    Rs. Rs.

Carrying value at the beginning    - 808,451,750

Group Share of Profit/(Loss) accrued to the Group    - (131,945,009)

Group Share of Other Comprehensive Income    - 3,803,568

Carrying value transferred to disposal of investment    - (680,310,309)

Carrying value at the end    - -

7.3 Summarised financial information of Joint Venture - Discontinued Operation
Heladhanavi Limited

 Heladhanavi Limited Group’s share
For the year ended 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

   7 months  7 months

Revenue  - 6,770,277,980 - 3,186,012,944

Operating expenses  - (6,899,400,797) - (3,246,776,619)

Finance income  - 11,493,532 - 5,408,721

Finance cost  - (162,753,879) - (76,590,055)

Profit/(Loss) before Tax  - (280,383,164) - (131,945,009)

Tax expense  - - - -

Profit/(Loss) after Tax  - (280,383,164) - (131,945,009)

Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)  - 8,082,582 - 3,803,568

Total Comprehensive Income/(Expense)  - (272,300,582) - (128,141,441)

7.4 Group’s share of Profit / (Loss) from Discontinued Operation

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit/(Loss) after tax from Operations up to the  

 point of disposal (Note 7.3)  - (131,945,009) - -

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of non-current investment (Note 7.1)  - (148,556,527) - (68,246,627)

Porfit /(Loss) after tax from Discontinued Operation  - (280,501,536) - (68,246,627)

Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Parent  - (280,501,536)

Non-Controlling interest  - -

  - (280,501,536)

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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7.5 Disposal of investment in unquoted Subsidiaries
Butama Hydro Electricity Company Limited

During 2014/15, the Group disposed of its interest in one of its subsidiaries, Butama Hydro Electricity Company Limited for USD 

535,000 received in two tranches. In addition to this, the Purchaser reimbursed an agreed amount of subsequent expenditure 

to the Company. The resultant loss of Rs. 723,338/- and Rs. 376,919/- are reflected in the Statement of Profit or Loss for the 

Company and the Group respectively for the year ended 31st March 2015.

Disposal Gain / (Loss) for 2014/15 

    Values on disposal 

    as at 31.01.2015 

    Rs.

Group

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents     243,551

Trade and Other Receivables     296,819

Property, Plant and Equipment     71,501,277

Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables     (147,987)

Total identifiable net assets     71,893,660

Non-Controlling interest     (846)

Net assets attributable to equity holders     71,892,814

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of non-current investment     (376,919)

Net cash inflow on disposal of non-current investment     71,515,896

Company

Net cash inflow on disposal of non-current investment     71,515,896

Carrying value of the non-current investment     83,769

Carrying value of receivable from Butama Hydro Electricity Company Limited    72,155,465

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of non-current investment     (723,338)

8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Loans and receivables

Investment in Preference Shares (Non- 

 Current financial assets - note 8.1)  - - - 145,000,000

Loans to Company Officers (Current financial assets - note 8.2)  3,961,280 1,941,382 1,865,578 1,092,601

Total loans and receivables  3,961,280 1,941,382 1,865,578 146,092,601

Total Non-Current (note 8.1)  - - - 145,000,000

Total Current (note 8.2)  3,961,280 1,941,382 1,865,578 1,092,601
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8.1 Investment in Preference Shares - Non-Current Financial Assets
 No of Shares Group Company
 Relationship 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

    Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Investment in Preference  

 Shares in Giddawa  

 Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited Subsidiary - 1,450,000 - - - 145,000,000

  - 1,450,000 - - - 145,000,000

Conversion of Preference Shares

In pursuance of the decision of the Board of Directors of Resus Energy PLC to restructure the capital of the Group, it was resolved 

on 1st April 2015 to convert the one million four hundred and fifty thousand (1,450,000) cumulative redeemable non-voting 

preference shares held in Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited by Resus Energy PLC to ordinary shares by varying the rights 

attached to the Preference Shares by conferring on the holder thereof the rights set forth in Section 49(2) of the Companies Act 

No.7 of 2007, viz., the right to one vote on a poll at a meeting of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited on any resolution for each 

share held, an equal share in dividends paid by Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited and an equal share in the distribution of the 

surplus assets of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited on liquidation.

Resus Energy PLC, being the holder of the said Preference Shares issued by Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited approved the 

said conversion by way of a special resolution in terms of Section 99 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 on 01st April 2015.

8.2 Current Financial Assets - Loans to Company Officers

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,941,382 1,941,033 1,092,601 1,383,293

Loans granted during the year  5,255,032 1,767,404 2,720,298 876,861

Less: Repayments  (3,235,134) (1,767,055) (1,947,321) (1,167,553)

Balance at the end of the year  3,961,280 1,941,382 1,865,578 1,092,601

9 INVENTORIES

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Spare parts  4,547,468 5,844,811 - -

Goods in transit  1,256,761 - - -

Consumable items  551,699 551,698 - -

  6,355,928 6,396,509 - -

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade Receivables  44,214,730 68,180,170 - -

Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments  19,904,418 26,041,257 17,125,602 21,216,173

Other Receivables  1,361,217 3,486,734 354,452 43,747,010

Dividends Receivable from Subsidiaries  - - - 573,674,198

Other Receivables - Related Parties (10.1)  568,281 568,281 512,351,445 206,533,470

  66,048,646 98,276,442 529,831,499 845,170,851

As at 31st March, the ageing analysis of Group Trade Receivables is as follows;

 Total Current < 30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days > 120 days 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

2016 44,214,730 7,342,860 13,968,366 22,903,504 - - -

2015 68,180,170 16,424,292 21,932,983 29,822,895 - - -

10.1 Other Receivables - Related Parties
 
 Group Company
 Relationship 2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 98,525,345 2,631,737

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 48,300,859 12,053,708

Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 97,541,224 28,829,692

Ella Dendro Electric (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 59,897,622 59,371,593

Panasian Power PLC Associate 568,281 568,281 568,281 568,281

Rawanakanda Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 386,292 270,396

Upper Huluganga (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 25,870,415 12,914,806

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 124,693,505 15,618,474

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 56,567,902 74,274,783

  568,281 568,281 512,351,445 206,533,470

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 Group Company
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

11.1 Favourable Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances
Cash in hand and at Bank  48,415,135 690,511,070 20,606,153 688,939,464

  48,415,135 690,511,070 20,606,153 688,939,464

11.2 Unfavourable Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances
Bank Overdraft (note 13)  (11,989,475) (1,876,065) - -

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the  

 Purpose of Statement of Cash Flow  36,425,660 688,635,005 20,606,153 688,939,464
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12 STATED CAPITAL - GROUP/COMPANY
12.1 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares
 2016 2015
  No of Shares Rs. No of Shares Rs.

At the beginning of the year  125,200,002 1,539,882,957 125,200,002 1,539,882,957

Capital Reduction (note 12.1.1)  - (1,239,882,957) - -

Share Repurchase (note 12.1.2)  (66,809,739) - - -

Issue of new Shares (note 12.1.3)  - - - -

At the end of the year  58,390,263 300,000,000 125,200,002 1,539,882,957

12.1.1 The Board of Directors of Resus Energy PLC, by its resolutions dated 1st April 2015 and 15th July 2015 resolved to 

recommend to the shareholders of the Company to reduce the stated capital of the Company to Rs. 300,000,000/- in terms of 

Section 59 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and repurchase upto a maximum of 71,542,858 ordinary shares from and out 

of the issued ordinary shares of the Company at a price of Rs. 24/- per ordinary share in accordance with Section 56 of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

Consequently, shareholders of Resus Energy PLC at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 14th August 2015 

approved the following via special resolutions;

a. Reduction of Stated Capital

The stated capital of the Company is reduced to Rs 300,000,000/-. Accordingly, the stated capital as recorded in Companies’ Form 

6 dated 23rd September 2010 filed by the Company with the Registrar General of Companies was Rs. 1,674,882,957/- be reduced 

by Rs. 1,374,882,957/- to Rs. 300,000,000/-. However, prior to the said capital reduction, the stated capital shown in the financial 

statements of the Company was Rs. 1,539,882,957/-, excludes the redeemable preference shares issued by the Company. 

Consequently, the reduction in the stated capital in the books of account of the Company is Rs. 1,239,882,957/- to reflect Rs. 

300,000,000/- stated capital after the said capital reduction represented by 125,200,002 ordinary shares. There is no change to the 

number of shares in issue before and after the capital reduction.

b. Payment of consideration for repurchase of shares

The payment by the Company of the consideration for the repurchase of upto a maximum of 71,542,858 ordinary shares in 

the Company from its shareholders on the basis of four (04) ordinary shares for every seven (07) ordinary shares held by such 

shareholders at a price per share of Rs.24/- amounting to a total sum of Rs. 1,717,028,592/-, being (a) a distribution by the 

Company in terms of Section 56 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and (b) a major transaction of the Company in terms of 

Section 185 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

12.1.2 Share Repurchase by Resus Energy PLC
Out of 71,542,858 ordinary shares offered for repurchase by the Company after the approval of the shareholders at the EGM, 

the Board of Directors resolved at its meeting on 15th September 2015 to repurchase a total of 66,809,739 ordinary shares 

based on the applications received from the shareholders for the acceptance of the repurchase offer. Accordingly, the Company 

distributed a sum of Rs 1,603,433,736/- on 18th September 2015 to the shareholders who accepted the repurchase offer at a fair 

and reasonable basis determined by the Board. The remaining number of ordinary shares in Resus Energy PLC subsequent to the 

repurchase and cancellation of those repurchased shares amounts to 58,390,263 with effect from 9th November 2015.

The repurchase of shares by Resus Energy PLC was carried out in accordance with the applicable provisions set out in the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) and the Articles of Association of the 

Company. The Board is satisfied that, the Company will immediately after the repurchase of shares satisfy the solvency test as 

defined in Section 57 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. A certificate of solvency has been obtained from the Auditors certifying 

that the Company will satisfy the solvency test immediately upon the payment of consideration for the repurchase of shares along 

with an opinion from the Auditors that in their opinion the repurchase price is a fair value as required in terms of Section 64 of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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12.1.3 There were no new shares issued during the financial year.

12.2 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions of Classes of Capital
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per 

share on a poll at a meeting of the Company.

13 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

   2016   2015 

  Amount Amount Total Amount Amount Total 

  Repayable Repayable  Repayable Repayable 

  Within 1 year After 1 year  Within 1 year After 1 year 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Group

Long-Term Loans (note 13.1) 124,634,707 858,398,542 983,033,249 - - -

Bank Overdraft (note 11.2)  11,989,475 - 11,989,475 1,876,065 - 1,876,065

  136,624,182 858,398,542 995,022,724 1,876,065 - 1,876,065

Company

Bank Overdraft (note 11.2)  - - - - - -

  - - - - - -

13.1 Long-Term Loans

Carrying value of Long-term Loans Group Company
As at 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non-current portion of the long-term Loans  858,398,542 - - -

Current portion of the long-term Loans  124,634,707 - - -

Total long-term Loans at amortised cost  983,033,249 - - -

Movement and classification of Long-term Loans Group Company
As at 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At the beginning of the year  - - - -

Loans obtained during the year  1,060,017,000 - - -

Transaction costs  (13,355,504) - - -

Interest payments  (38,464,129) - - -

Interest charged to Profit or Loss  44,980,882 - - -

Capital repayments during the year  (70,145,000) - - -

At the end of the year at amortised cost  983,033,249 - - -

Classified as current liabilities (repayable within one year)  124,634,707 - - -

Classified as non-current liabilities (repayable after one year)  858,398,542 - - -
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13.2 Details of Long-term Loans

Lender Currency Facility  Balance Outstanding at amortised cost  Purpose Interest rate Repayment Tenure

   Group  Company

   2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

National Development  

 Bank PLC* LKR 445,000,000 408,732,783 - - - Syndicated facility Fixed for each year Repayable in 20-32 quarterly 

Sampath Bank PLC* LKR 505,000,000 464,283,466 - - - for capital in the range of installments commenced

       restructuring 8.25% to 10.75% from December 2015 

 

Sampath Bank PLC** LKR 200,000,000 110,017,000 - - - Hydropower project  AWPLR + 0.75% Repayable in 72 monthly 

       financing  installments commencing 

         from April 2018

Total  1,150,000,000 983,033,249 - - -

13.3 Analysis of Long-term Loans by lending financial institute and loan type:

 National  

 Development Sampath Sampath Total - Group

 Bank PLC* Bank PLC* Bank PLC** 2016 2015 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year - - - -

Loans obtained during the year 445,000,000 505,000,000 110,017,000 1,060,017,000 -

Transaction costs (6,677,752) (6,677,752) - (13,355,504) -

Interest payments (18,019,031) (20,445,098) - (38,464,129) -

Interest charged to Profit or Loss 21,129,566 23,851,316 - 44,980,882 -

Capital repayments during the year (32,700,000) (37,445,000) - (70,145,000) -

Balance at the end of the year at amortised cost 408,732,783 464,283,466 110,017,000 983,033,249 -

Analysis of Long-term Loans by period of repayment:

Repayable 

 - within 6 months from year end 29,694,675 34,154,079 - 63,848,754 -

 - between 6 months and 1 year 28,333,325 32,452,630 - 60,785,955 -

 - between 1 and 5 years from year end 249,439,610 284,923,297 41,423,042 575,785,949 -

 - later than 5 years from year end 101,265,173 112,753,460 68,593,958 282,612,591 -

 408,732,783 464,283,466 110,017,000 983,033,249 -

*Syndicated banking facility

National Development Bank PLC and Sampath Bank PLC lent these long-term loans under syndicated loan agreements to 

operational subsidiary companies of the Group, namely, Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) 

Limited and Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited for the purpose of financing Distributions in Group Capital restructuring exercise. 

The subsidiary companies fully utilised the term-loan facilities offered under the said syndicated loan agreements as at 31st March 

2016. 

The said subsidiaries are offered bank overdraft facilities to a total sum of Rs. 60Mn by NDB Bank PLC under these syndicated 

agreements. 
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*Securities for above syndicated banking facility

Primary concurrent mortgage over immovable project assets, movable project assets including project documents (licences, 

approvals, agreements, contracts, bonds), book debts, insurance proceeds, receivables of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, 

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited, and Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited in covering 100% of the syndicated loan 

balances.

A separate primary concurrent mortgage over the shares of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) 

Limited and Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited held by Resus Energy PLC in covering additional 5% of the syndicated 

loan balances with a Power of Attorney.

Conditional corporate guarantees issued by Resus Energy PLC on behalf of above subsidiaries which shall be enforceable if the 

syndicate loan dues cannot be recovered by the lenders due to title related issues of project lands. However, for Upper Agra Oya 

Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, this corporate guarantee is unconditional.

**Project financing loan facility

Granted to Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited for the construction of 1.4MW hydropower project in Deraniyagala.

Unutilised amount of this bank facility as at 31st March 2016 amounted to Rs 90 million.

Interest paid on this loan has been capitalised under project cost of Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd in accordance with LKAS 

23 - Borrowing Costs.

**Securities for above project financing loan facility

Primary mortgage over immovable and movable project assets including project approvals of Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) 

Limited for Rs 170million.

Primary mortgage bond for Rs 30million over entirety of shares issued by Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited to Resus 

Energy PLC supported by a Power of Attorney from Resus Energy PLC.

Corporate Guarantee issued by Resus Energy PLC for Rs. 200 million.

Details of assets which have been pledged against above bank facilities are disclosed in note 3.4 to the Financial Statements.

14 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
 Group Company
Other Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Other Payables  2,885,630 2,588,009 - -

Preference Shares  83,978,010 83,978,010 - -

Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost  86,863,640 86,566,019 - -

Preference Shares  - 66,224,613 - 66,224,613

Other Current Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost  - 66,224,613 - 66,224,613

Total Other Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost  86,863,640 152,790,632 - 66,224,613

Preference share liability of Rs. 83.98Mn includes redeemable preference shares issued by Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd to 

Hemas Holdings PLC and Hemas Pharmaceuticals (Pvt) Ltd amounting to Rs. 81.0Mn and preference shares issued by Upper 

Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd to Watawala Plantations PLC amounting Rs. 2.98Mn. 

The Company redeemed the remaining 67,500 preference shares issued to National Development Bank PLC on 31st May 2015. 

With that, the said preference share liability was fully redeemed.
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15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS - GRATUITY

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At the beginning of the year  8,999,723 8,471,374 6,907,985 5,392,680

Current Service Cost  1,212,509 970,797 871,290 715,865

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation  899,973 724,177 690,799 593,195

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation  (1,032,480) 721,324 (187,304) 206,245

Derecognition of Subsidiaries  - (1,887,949) - -

Benefits Paid during the year  (205,345) - (205,345) -

At the end of the year  9,874,380 8,999,723 8,077,425 6,907,985

15.1 Net Benefit Expense
Current Service Cost  1,212,509 970,797 871,290 715,865

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation  899,973 724,177 690,799 593,195

Total Expense recognised in Statement of  

 Profit or Loss in deriving Operating Profits  2,112,482 1,694,974 1,562,089 1,309,060

15.2 Messrs. K A Pandit Consultants and Actuaries, carried out an actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan - gratuity on 

31st March 2016. Appropriate and compatible assumptions were used in determining the cost of retirement benefits. The principal 

assumptions used as at 31.03.2016 are as follows:

 2016 2015

Method of Actuarial Valuation: Projected Unit Projected Unit

 Credit Method Credit Method

Financial assumptions

Expected return on Plan Asset: N/A N/A

Discount Rate: 11% 10%

Salary Increment Rate: 9% 9%

Staff Turnover Ratio: 1% p.a. for all service groups 1% p.a. for all service groups

Demographic assumptions

Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured Lives  

 Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate A67-70

Retirement Age 55 Years 55 Years

15.3 Sensitivity of Assumptions Employed in Actuarial Valuation
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the key assumptions employed with all other 

variables held constant in the employee benefit liability measurement, in respect of the year 2016.

The sensitivity of the Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Financial Position is the effect of the assumed changes in 

discount rate, salary increment rate and employee turnover rate on the Total Comprehensive Income and Employee Benefit 

Obligation for the year is as follows.
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Increase/(Decrease) Group

2016

Company

2016

in
Discount

Rate

in Rate
of Salary

Increment

in Rate of 
employee 

turnover

Effect on
Total 

Comprehensive
Income

(Reduction)/
Increase

for the year

Effect on
Statement

of Financial
Position

(Reduction)/
Increase in the

Liability as at
the year end

Present 
Value

of Defined
Benefit

Obligation

Effect on
Total 

Comprehensive
Income

(Reduction)/
Increase

for the year

Effect on
Statement

of Financial
Position

(Reduction)/
Increase in the

Liability as at
the year end

Present Value
of Defined

Benefit
Obligation

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

+1% - - 736,199 (736,199) 9,138,181 541,018 (541,018) 7,536,407

-1% - - (835,070) 835,070 10,709,450 (600,175) 600,175 8,677,600

- +1% - (843,172) 843,172 10,717,552 (605,931) 605,931 8,683,356

- -1% - 755,387 (755,387) 9,118,993 555,274 (555,274) 7,522,151

- - +1% (93,586) 93,586 9,967,966 (50,014) 50,014 8,127,439

- - -1% 106,575 (106,575) 9,767,805 55,923 (55,923) 8,021,502

Sensitivity analysis is an analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true on 

different count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not following the 

parameters of the sensitivity analysis.

15.4 Changes/movements in the Defined Benefits Obligation

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Amounts charged to Statement of Profit or Loss:

Current Service Cost  1,212,509 970,797 871,290 715,865

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation  899,973 724,177 690,799 593,195

Total Expense included in Statement of Profit or Loss  2,112,482 1,694,974 1,562,089 1,309,060

Remeasurement Gains/(Losses) in Other Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial changes arising from changes in Demographic Assumptions  1,885 - 918 -

Actuarial changes arising from changes in Financial Assumptions (835,070) 767,962 (600,175) 496,226

Experience Adjustments  (199,295) (46,638) 411,953 (289,981)

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation included in OCI  (1,032,480) 721,324 (187,304) 206,245
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15.5 Undiscounted Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years from the Date of Reporting:

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Within the next 2 Years  1,078,647 381,880 568,799 205,108

Between 3 and 5 Years  829,192 922,139 685,707 536,156

Between 6 and 10 Years  19,676,422 15,672,974 18,350,924 14,176,060

Over 10 Years  - - - -

Employee Benefit Liability has not been externally funded.

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade and Other Payables  13,662,512 86,606,874 6,217,460 8,156,230

Other Payables - Related Parties (note 16.1)  - - 930,055,068 713,572,447

Preference Share Dividends Payable  2,180,187 - 2,180,187 -

Sundry Creditors including Accrued Expenses  19,879,145 20,263,504 4,229,919 4,946,728

  35,721,844 106,870,378 942,682,634 726,675,405

16.1 OTHER PAYABLES - RELATED PARTIES
 Group Company
 Relationship 2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 223,867,447 148,654,403

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 351,925,669 277,421,110

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary - - 354,261,952 287,496,934

  - - 930,055,068 713,572,447

17 DEFERRED TAX ASSET/LIABILITY 
 Group
 Deferred Tax Asset Deferred Tax Liability
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  601,721 4,148,939 885,646 25,029,967

Income/(Expense) arising during the year  

 recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss  389,716 (3,584,619) 5,162,265 3,088,475

Deferred Tax effect on Actuarial gain/loss recognised in the OCI  (2,646) 37,401 98,246 -

Derecognition of Subsidiary  - - - (27,232,796)

Balance at the end of the year  988,791 601,721 6,146,157 885,646
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17.1 Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) and its income tax implications relate to the following;  

 Statement  Statement of Other Comprehensive
 of Financial Position Profit or Loss Income
The closing Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)  2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

balances relate to the following; Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (5,364,279) (431,159) (4,835,711) (6,711,685) - -

Defined Benefits Plan - Gratuity 206,914 147,234 63,162 38,591 (100,892) 37,401

Deferred Income Tax (Expense)/Income   (4,772,549) (6,673,094) (100,892) 37,401

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (5,157,366) (283,925)

17.2 The Company has not recognised deferred tax asset on its carried forward unused tax loss of Rs. 209,293,584/- as at 31st 

March 2016 (2015 - Rs. 210,917,583/-) as it is not probable that temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 

taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying value of the unrecognised deferred tax asset on the unused carried forward tax losses of the Company is estimated 

to Rs. 25,115,230/- (2015 - Rs. 25,310,110/-) at the rate of 12%, the income tax rate applicable to venture capital companies.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed by the Company at each reporting date with the view of recognising to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

18 REVENUE
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Supply of Electricity  371,104,337 557,352,151 - -

Dividend Income  - - 59,130,916 606,120,100

Interest Income from Related Parties  - - - 16,000,533

Interest Income from Investments  21,945,301 18,223,666 21,945,301 16,610,243

  393,049,638 575,575,817 81,076,217 638,730,876

19 OTHER OPERATING INCOME 

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets  (49,043) 1,768,101 (136,914) 1,768,101

Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Shares in Panasian Power PLC (note 6.2) 15,944,654 - 33,658,054 -

  15,895,611 1,768,101 33,521,140 1,768,101
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20 NET FINANCE COST
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

20.1 Finance Cost
Interest Expense on Overdrafts  1,500,869 32,367 563,919 29,025

Term Loan Interest  47,426,867 18,225,928 - 2,608,870

Preference Share Dividends  11,713,949 31,192,261 5,146,004 19,687,117

Bank Guarantee Charges  75,030 148,307 75,030 148,307

Other Interest Expense  297,621 1,439,917 - -

  61,014,336 51,038,780 5,784,953 22,473,319

20.2 Finance Income
Interest Income on Staff Loans  275,357 218,676 101,600 120,112

Interest Income-Others  617,280 2,494,237 5,300 2,338,671

  892,637 2,712,913 106,900 2,458,783

Net Finance Cost  60,121,699 48,325,867 5,678,053 20,014,536

21 OTHER EXPENSES
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Loss on disposal of Subsidiary (note 7.5)  - (376,919) - (723,338)

  - (376,919) - (723,338)

22 PROFIT BEFORE TAX
 Group Company
Stated After Charging all expenses including  2016 2015 2016 2015 

the following :  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Depreciation (note 3)  34,291,284 45,163,453 7,714,743 8,200,376

Directors’ Fees and Emoluments (note 30.2) 

 - Short-term employment benefits  19,251,560 17,734,147 19,251,560 17,734,147

 - Post-employment benefits  2,255,973 2,025,288 2,255,973 2,025,288

Donations  180,795 1,818,449 47,950 296,000

Auditors’ Fees and Expenses  1,077,551 895,072 489,493 391,639

Non-Audit Services  720,181 707,969 425,463 555,591

Staff Costs;

 - Defined Contribution Plan Costs - MSPS, EPF and ETF  3,384,560 2,901,553 1,176,720 1,360,099

 - Defined Benefit Plan Costs - Gratuity (note 15.1)  2,112,482 1,694,974 1,562,089 1,309,060

 - Other Staff Costs  42,127,106 39,948,525 18,553,213 17,366,617
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23 TAX EXPENSE 
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Current Tax Expense (note 23.1)  19,538,442 18,561,659 - -

Under/(Over) Provision of Current Taxes in respect of Prior Year (720,990) 3,560,506 - -

Deferred Tax Charge / (Reversal) (note 17.1)  4,772,549 6,673,094 - -

Share of Tax Expense of equity accounted investees  

 - associate (note 6.3)  4,060,540 7,045,951 - -

Unclaimable Economic Service Charge (ESC)  3,125,166 - 3,125,166 -

Total Tax Expense included in Statement of Profit or Loss  30,775,707 35,841,210 3,125,166 -

23.1 Reconciliation between Current Tax Expense and the Accounting Profit
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit / (Loss) before tax from Continuing Operations  231,092,451 340,393,565 59,364,586 547,034,606

Profit / (Loss) before tax from Discontinued Operation  - (280,501,536) - (68,246,627)

Proft / (Loss) before tax  231,092,451 59,892,029 59,364,586 478,787,979

Income not subject to tax  (137,184,946) (84,187,879) (81,235,661) (625,954,575)

Consolidated adjustments  35,336,983 194,525,419 - -

Aggregate allowable expenses  (19,754,169) (65,381,808) (6,916,630) (8,108,665)

Aggregate disallowed items  51,862,871 82,763,280 26,470,876 31,168,709

Total Statutory Income / (Loss)  161,353,190 187,611,041 (2,316,829) (124,106,552)

Tax Losses Brought Forward and Utilised (note 23.2)  - - - -

Taxable Profit / (Loss) from Business  161,353,190 187,611,041 (2,316,829) (124,106,552)

Other Sources of Income  628,783 863,274 - -

Total Taxable Profit / (Tax Loss)  161,981,973 188,474,315 (2,316,829) (124,106,552)

Income Tax @ 12% / 10%  19,362,383 18,490,912 - -

Income Tax @ 28%  176,059 70,747 - -

Current Income Tax Expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss  19,538,442 18,561,659 - -

23.2 Tax Losses
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Tax Losses Brought Forward  (210,917,583) (86,811,031) (210,917,583) (86,811,031)

Adjustments  3,940,828 - 3,940,828 -

Tax Losses incurred during the year  (2,316,829) (124,106,552) (2,316,829) (124,106,552)

Tax Losses utilised during the year  - - - -

Tax Losses Carried Forward  (209,293,584) (210,917,583) (209,293,584) (210,917,583)

The Company has not recognised deferred tax asset on its carried forward unused tax losses as it is not probable that the

temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profits will be available against which the temporary 

differences can be utilised.

The details of which are disclosed in note 17.2 to the Financial Statements.
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24 EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE

24.1 Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

24.2 The following reflects the profit/(loss) and share data used in the Basic/Diluted Earnings/(Loss) Per Share computation.

    2016 2015 

    Rs. Rs.

Amount used as the Numerator:

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to Ordinary Shareholders for Basic Earnings/(Loss)  

 Per Share from Continuing Operations    200,455,751 220,247,688

Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year attributable to Ordinary Shareholders for  

 Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Share from Discontinued Operation   - (280,501,536)

Total Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to Ordinary Shareholders for  

 Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Share    200,455,751 (60,253,848)

Number of Ordinary Shares Used as the Denominator:

Weighted Average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year applicable to  

 Earnings/(Loss) Per Share - Basic/Diluted    89,604,649 125,200,002

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share - Basic/Diluted

 From Profit/(Loss) for the Year    2.24 (0.48)

 From Continuing Operations    2.24 1.76

 From Discontinued Operation    - (2.24)

24.3 There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year.

25 DIVIDEND PER SHARE 
Group/Company

    2016 2015 

    Rs. Rs.

Interim Dividends Paid    - -

Final Dividend Approved    - -

Total Dividends    - -

Dividend Per Share    - -

The Board of Directors of the Company neither paid any interim dividend nor recommended a final dividend for the year and the 

previous year.

However, the Company undertook a share repurchase on the basis of four (04) ordinary shares for every seven (07) ordinary 

shares held by such shareholders who accepted the repurchase offer at a price per share of Rs. 24/- and distributed  

Rs.1,603,433,736/- on 18th September 2015.
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26 FAIR VALUE
Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments that are carried 

in the financial statements.

26.1 Financial assets 
 Carrying amount Fair value
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Group

a. Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss  - - - -

b. Held to maturity investments at amortised cost  - - - -

c. Loans and Receivables at amortised cost:

 - Trade and Other Receivables  65,480,365 97,708,161 65,480,365 97,708,161

 - Other financial assets - staff loans  3,961,280 1,941,382 3,961,280 1,941,382

 - Amounts due from related parties  568,281 568,281 568,281 568,281

 - Cash and cash equivalents  48,415,135 690,511,070 48,415,135 690,511,070

d. Available for sale financial assets at fair value  - - - -

Total  118,425,061 790,728,894 118,425,061 790,728,894

Company

a. Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss  - - - -

b. Held to maturity investments at amortised cost  - - - -

c. Loans and Receivables at amortised cost:

 - Trade and Other Receivables  17,480,054 64,963,183 17,480,054 64,963,183

 - Other financial assets - staff loans  1,865,578 1,092,601 1,865,578 1,092,601

 - Amounts due from related parties  512,351,445 780,207,668 512,351,445 780,207,668

 - Cash and cash equivalents  20,606,153 688,939,464 20,606,153 688,939,464

d. Available for sale financial assets at fair value  - - - -

Total  552,303,230 1,535,202,916 552,303,230 1,535,202,916

26.2 Financial liabilities
 Carrying amount Fair value
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Group

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss  - - - -

b. Other financial liabilities at amortised  

 cost using effective interest method:

 - Current portion of long-term borrowings  124,634,707 - 124,634,707 -

 - Non-current portion of long-term borrowings  858,398,542 - 858,398,542 -

 - Other non-current financial liabilities  2,885,630 2,588,009 2,885,630 2,588,009

 - Non-current Redeemable Preference share liability 83,978,010 83,978,010 83,978,010 83,978,010

 - Current Redeemable Preference share liability  - 66,224,613 - 66,224,613

 - Bank overdraft  11,989,475 1,876,065 11,989,475 1,876,065

 - Trade and other payables  35,721,844 106,870,378 35,721,844 106,870,378

 - Amounts due to related parties  - - - -

Total  1,117,608,208 261,537,075 1,117,608,208 261,537,075
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 Carrying amount Fair value
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Company

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss  - - - -

b. Other financial liabilities at amortised  

 cost using effective interest method:

 - Current Redeemable Preference share liability  - 66,224,613 - 66,224,613

 - Trade and other payables  12,627,566 13,102,958 12,627,566 13,102,958

 - Amounts due to related parties  930,055,068 713,572,447 930,055,068 713,572,447

Total  942,682,634 792,900,018 942,682,634 792,900,018

There is no significant difference between carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and Company’s financial assets and 

liabilities.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 

current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-

term maturities of these instruments.

Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest 

rates, specific country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. 

Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected losses of these receivables. As at 31st March 2016, 

the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of allowances, are not materially different from their calculated fair values.

The fair value of loans from banks and other financial liabilities were estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates 

currently available for debts on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Fair value of the unquoted ordinary shares has been estimated using a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The valuation requires 

management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including forecast cash flows, the discount rate, credit risk and 

volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management’s 

estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity investments.

26.3 Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation 

techniques.

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted ) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 

directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 

market data

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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As at 31st March 2016, the Group held the following financial and non-financial assets carried at fair value on the statement of 

financial position:

Group 

Assets measured at fair value  31.03.2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Freehold Lands - non-financial asset  63,900,000 - 63,900,000 -

Available for sale financial assets  - - - -

Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss  - - - -

  63,900,000 - 63,900,000 -

During the reporting period ended 31st March 2016, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements.

Financial liabilities are not measured at fair value.

27 ASSETS PLEDGED
The Group has pledged hydropower project assets against the interest bearing loans obtained during the current financial year. 

Accordingly, the hydropower project assets of Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited, 

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited and Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited have been pledged to National Development Bank 

PLC and Sampath Bank PLC. The Company has provided corporate guarantees on behalf of above subsidiaries as an additional 

security against these Group borrowings.

Details of assets pledged have been disclosed in note 03 and 13 to the financial statements.

28 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no material events occurring after the reporting period that require adjustments to or disclosures in the financial 

statements.
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29 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
29.1 Capital Expenditure Commitments
Group

The Group’s commitments for acquisition/construction of property, plant and equipment incidental to the ordinary course of 

business as at 31st March 2016 are as follows:

 Capital Expenditure Commitment as at
 Capital Expenditure  Incurred as at 31st March 31st March 

 Budget reporting date 2016 2015 

 Rs millions Rs millions Rs millions Rs millions

Construction of Gomale Oya mini hydropower plant 249 216 33 175

Construction of Moragaha Oya mini hydropower plant* 332 110 222 316

Construction of Upper Huluganga mini hydropower plant 325 26 299 312

Total 906 352 554 803

*Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Limited, a subsidiary of Resus Energy PLC has established a Letter of Credit (LC) in favour of an Austrian 

based equipment supplier (Gugler) to import electromechanical equipment for the 1.5MW mini hydropower plant which was under 

construction as at the reporting date. The value of the electromechanical equipment committed for acquisition under the said LC by 

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Limited amounts to Euro 510,000 (Rs. 85Mn approximately), of which Euro 102,000 (equivalent of Rs. 16Mn) 

has already been paid as an advance payment against an irrevocable unconditional advance payment bank guarantee. However, 

the balance payment of Euro 408,000 (Rs.67Mn approximately) due to the supplier has not been provided for in the financial 

statements as equipment has not been delivered to Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Limited as at 31st March 2016.

The Group intends to incur the above stated capital commitments in the ensuing financial year ending 31st March 2017.

Company

The Company has no commitment to acquire property, plant and equipment as at 31st March 2016.

29.2 Lease Commitments
The Company has leased out office premises (No. 250/1, Torrington Avenue, Colombo 7) under an operating lease agreement.

The lease agreement includes clauses to enable upward revision of the rental payments on a periodic basis to reflect market 

conditions. There are no restrictions placed upon the Company/Group by entering into this lease.

Future minimum rentals payable under operating leases are as follows:

  Company/Group
    2016 2015 

    Rs. Rs.

Within One Year    3,150,000 -

Between One and Five Years    6,780,375 -

After Five Years    - -

Total    9,930,375 -

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Following operating lease charges have been recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss on straight-line basis over the lease 

term.

  Company/Group
    2016 2015 

    Rs. Rs.

Operating lease expense under Administrative Expenses    3,126,075 -

There are no contingent rent provisions in the lease agreement nor any material provisions that have impact on dividends and 

borrowings of the Company/Group.

29.3 Contingencies
The Department of Inland Revenue have raised income tax assessments by disputing the venture capital status of Resus Energy 

PLC and the treatment of interest income in tax returns for the years of assessment 2008/2009, 2009/2010, 2010/2011, 2011/2012 

and 2012/13. For the years of assessment 2008/2009 and 2009/2010, the Tax Appeal Commission resolved that assessments are 

without legal effect as the assessor has failed to give valid notice of assessment to the Appellant (Resus Energy PLC) as required 

by Section 164 of the Inland Revenue Act. 

The aggregate value of the assessed income tax for the years of assessment 2010/2011, 2011/2012 and 2012/13 amounts 

to Rs. 29Mn for which no provision has been made in these financial statements. The Company has filed appeals against the 

assessments.

The contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2016 on guarantees given by Resus Energy PLC, in respect of bank guarantees, bid 

bonds and performance bonds amounted to Rs. 4,386,167/- (2015 - Nil).

29.4 Litigations
There were no material litigations against the Group as at reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosures in the 

financial statements.

30 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
“The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with parties who are defined as related parties as per 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 on ‘Related Party Disclosures’, the details of which are reported below:“  

     

The Company is in compliance with disclosure requirements in accordance with section 9.3.2 of the CSE Listing Rules on Related 

Party Transactions.
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30.1 Details of significant related party disclosures:
              Subsidiaries Associate Other Group Companies

Terms and Conditions Recurrent/
Non-
recurrent

Giddawa Hydro Power 
(Pvt) Ltd

Okanda Power Grid 
(Pvt) Ltd

Upper Agra Oya Hydro 
Power (Pvt) Ltd

Ella Dendro Electric 
(Pvt) Ltd

Rawanakanda 
Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Ltd

Moragaha Oya 
(Pvt) Ltd

Upper Huluganga 
(Pvt) Ltd

Gomale Oya Hydro 
Power (Pvt) Ltd

Panasian Power PLC NDB  Group 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Nature of Transaction Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Preference Share Redemption As per Agreement Recurrent 14  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (67,500,000)  (67,500,000)

Preference Share Dividend received/
(paid)

As per Agreement Recurrent  39,150,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (3,870,617)  (11,465,828)

Preference Share Conversion Group Capital 
Restructuring 

Non-recurrent 8.1 145,000,000 

Reimbursment of Expenses Payable on demand Recurrent (11,323,054)  -    (9,110,342)  -    (11,256,886)  -    -    -    (115,896)  (270,396)  (3,864,011)  -    (3,864,011)  -    (2,458,917)  -    -    (3,273,124)  -    -   

Funds Received Settlement of related 
party current accounts 

Recurrent  73,500,000  75,500,000  66,500,000  102,000,000  77,900,000  84,500,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    60,100,000  -    -    -    -    -   

Funds Transferred Settlement of related 
party current accounts 

Recurrent (42,677,700)  (7,500,000)  (20,650,000)  (3,000,000)  (53,760,000)  (1,500,000)  (526,029)  (200,000)  -    -    (90,633,350)  (15,618,474)  (9,091,598)  (12,914,806) (89,934,172) (74,274,803)  -    -    -    -   

Inter-company Loan Settlement As per Agreement Recurrent  -    -    -    -    -    135,000,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Interest on inter-company Loan As per Agreement Recurrent  -    -    -    -    -    13,500,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Dividend Income Recurrent  -    222,231,855  -    208,659,463  -   153,478,782  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   59,130,916  -    -    -   

Consideration for Share Repurchase Group Capital 
Restructuring 

Non-recurrent 5.1 155,599,632  -    147,156,152  -    64,873,297  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Interest Income from NDB Wealth 
Money Plus Fund

As per prevailing terms 
on the Unit Trust 

Recurrent  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    21,945,299  13,642,086 

*Loans Received from NDB Bank PLC As per Agreement Recurrent 13.3  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    445,000,000  -   

*Capital repayments on term loans to 
NDB Bank PLC

As per Agreement Recurrent 13.3  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (32,700,000)  -   

*Interest paid on term loans to NDB 
Bank PLC

As per Agreement Recurrent 13.3  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (18,019,031)  -   

Consultancy Fees paid to NDB 
Investment Bank

As per mandate Recurrent  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (10,404,918)  -   

Net Aggregate Value of Related 
Party Transactions

359,248,878  290,231,855  183,895,810  307,659,463  77,756,411 384,978,782  (526,029)  (200,000)  (115,896)  (270,396)  (94,497,361) (15,618,474) (12,955,609)  (12,914,806) (32,293,089)  74,274,803) 59,130,916 (3,273,124) 334,450,733  (65,323,742)

Net Aggregate Value of Related 
Party Transactions - Recurrent

58,649,246  290,231,855  36,739,658  307,659,463  12,883,114 384,978,782  (526,029)  (200,000)  (115,896)  (270,396)  (94,497,361)  (15,618,474) (12,955,609)  (12,914,806) (32,293,089) (74,274,803) 59,130,916  (3,273,124)  334,450,733  (65,323,742)

 As a % of Group Revenue 15% 50% 9% 53% 3% 67% (0%) (0%) (0%) (0%) (24%) (3%) (3%) (2%) (8%) (13%) 15% (1%) 85% (11%)

Net Aggregate Value of Related 
Party Transactions - Non-recurrent

300,599,632  -    147,156,152  -    64,873,297  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 As a % of Equity 49%  -   24%  -   11%  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 As a % of Total Assets 19%  -   9%  -   4%  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.

*These transactions occurred between NDB Bank PLC and fully-owned subsidiaries of Resus Energy PLC, namely, Giddawa Hydro 

Power (Pvt) Limited, Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited and Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited.

Terms and Conditions :

Sales and Purchases of goods and/or services to related parties were made at on the basis of the price lists in force with non-

related parties, but subject to approved discounts. Fees relating to rendering of services were made at agreed prices.

30.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel
According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 on ‘Related Party Disclosures’, Key Management Personnel (KMP) are 

those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or indirectly. As 

the Company is the ultimate parent of the subsidiaries, the Board of Directors of the Company has the authority and responsibility 

for planning or controlling the activities of the Group directly or indirectly. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company 

(Executive and Non-Executive) are KMPs of the Group.
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30.1 Details of significant related party disclosures:
              Subsidiaries Associate Other Group Companies

Terms and Conditions Recurrent/
Non-
recurrent

Giddawa Hydro Power 
(Pvt) Ltd

Okanda Power Grid 
(Pvt) Ltd

Upper Agra Oya Hydro 
Power (Pvt) Ltd

Ella Dendro Electric 
(Pvt) Ltd

Rawanakanda 
Hydro Power 

(Pvt) Ltd

Moragaha Oya 
(Pvt) Ltd

Upper Huluganga 
(Pvt) Ltd

Gomale Oya Hydro 
Power (Pvt) Ltd

Panasian Power PLC NDB  Group 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Nature of Transaction Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Preference Share Redemption As per Agreement Recurrent 14  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (67,500,000)  (67,500,000)

Preference Share Dividend received/
(paid)

As per Agreement Recurrent  39,150,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (3,870,617)  (11,465,828)

Preference Share Conversion Group Capital 
Restructuring 

Non-recurrent 8.1 145,000,000 

Reimbursment of Expenses Payable on demand Recurrent (11,323,054)  -    (9,110,342)  -    (11,256,886)  -    -    -    (115,896)  (270,396)  (3,864,011)  -    (3,864,011)  -    (2,458,917)  -    -    (3,273,124)  -    -   

Funds Received Settlement of related 
party current accounts 

Recurrent  73,500,000  75,500,000  66,500,000  102,000,000  77,900,000  84,500,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    60,100,000  -    -    -    -    -   

Funds Transferred Settlement of related 
party current accounts 

Recurrent (42,677,700)  (7,500,000)  (20,650,000)  (3,000,000)  (53,760,000)  (1,500,000)  (526,029)  (200,000)  -    -    (90,633,350)  (15,618,474)  (9,091,598)  (12,914,806) (89,934,172) (74,274,803)  -    -    -    -   

Inter-company Loan Settlement As per Agreement Recurrent  -    -    -    -    -    135,000,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Interest on inter-company Loan As per Agreement Recurrent  -    -    -    -    -    13,500,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Dividend Income Recurrent  -    222,231,855  -    208,659,463  -   153,478,782  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   59,130,916  -    -    -   

Consideration for Share Repurchase Group Capital 
Restructuring 

Non-recurrent 5.1 155,599,632  -    147,156,152  -    64,873,297  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Interest Income from NDB Wealth 
Money Plus Fund

As per prevailing terms 
on the Unit Trust 

Recurrent  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    21,945,299  13,642,086 

*Loans Received from NDB Bank PLC As per Agreement Recurrent 13.3  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    445,000,000  -   

*Capital repayments on term loans to 
NDB Bank PLC

As per Agreement Recurrent 13.3  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (32,700,000)  -   

*Interest paid on term loans to NDB 
Bank PLC

As per Agreement Recurrent 13.3  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (18,019,031)  -   

Consultancy Fees paid to NDB 
Investment Bank

As per mandate Recurrent  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (10,404,918)  -   

Net Aggregate Value of Related 
Party Transactions

359,248,878  290,231,855  183,895,810  307,659,463  77,756,411 384,978,782  (526,029)  (200,000)  (115,896)  (270,396)  (94,497,361) (15,618,474) (12,955,609)  (12,914,806) (32,293,089)  74,274,803) 59,130,916 (3,273,124) 334,450,733  (65,323,742)

Net Aggregate Value of Related 
Party Transactions - Recurrent

58,649,246  290,231,855  36,739,658  307,659,463  12,883,114 384,978,782  (526,029)  (200,000)  (115,896)  (270,396)  (94,497,361)  (15,618,474) (12,955,609)  (12,914,806) (32,293,089) (74,274,803) 59,130,916  (3,273,124)  334,450,733  (65,323,742)

 As a % of Group Revenue 15% 50% 9% 53% 3% 67% (0%) (0%) (0%) (0%) (24%) (3%) (3%) (2%) (8%) (13%) 15% (1%) 85% (11%)

Net Aggregate Value of Related 
Party Transactions - Non-recurrent

300,599,632  -    147,156,152  -    64,873,297  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 As a % of Equity 49%  -   24%  -   11%  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 As a % of Total Assets 19%  -   9%  -   4%  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

a. Key Management Personnel (KMP) compensation

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Short-term employment benefits  19,251,560 17,734,147 19,251,560 17,734,147

Post-employment benefits  2,255,973 2,025,288 2,255,973 2,025,288

  21,507,533 19,759,435 21,507,533 19,759,435
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The Company also has an obligation towards a post-employment benefit plan for the Executive Director. The liability arising from 

the post-employment benefit obligation has been provided for, based on an actuarial valuation and is disclosed under Employee 

Benefits Obligations in note 15 to the Financial Statements.

The Executive Director is entitled to a structured incentive scheme which is linked to performance. The Company contributes 

towards a post-employment contribution plan for the Executive Director. In addition to their salaries, the Company provides non-

cash benefits to KMPs.

There are no share-based payments made to the Directors during the year. No loans were granted to KMPs of the Company.

b. Transactions with close family members of KMPs

Close family members are defined as spouse or dependant. Dependant is defined as any one who depends on the respective 

Director for more than 50% of his/her financial needs.

There were no transactions with the close family members of KMPs during the year.

c. Transactions with Companies on which Key Management Personnel (KMP) have Control or Significant Influence over

The transactions with companies on which KMPs have significant influence are disclosed in ‘Directors’ Interest in Contracts’ on 

page 159 to 161 and note 30.1 to the Financial Statements.

Trydan Partners (Pvt) Ltd in which Mr. G. A. K Nanayakkara, the Managing Director of Resus Energy PLC holds more than 50% of 

voting rights and functions as a Director of Trydan Partners (Pvt) Ltd has purchased 1,027,399 shares of Resus Energy PLC time 

to time during the year from the stock market in the ordinary course of its business. Timely announcements of these transactions 

have been notified to the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Trydan Partners (Pvt) Ltd held 10.77% stake in Resus Energy PLC as at 31st March 2016 (2015 - 8.17%).

d. Terms and Conditions of Transactions with the Companies on which KMPs have Control or Significant Influence over

Outstanding balances at the year-end relating to the companies on which KMPs have control or significant influence over are 

set out in note 10.1 and 16.1 to the Financial Statements. These balances are unsecured, interest free, and settlements are on 

demand. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables for the year ended 

31st March 2016.

e. Transactions with Group entities

The Company has carried out transactions with Group entities in the ordinary course of business. The details are set out in note 

30.1 to the Financial Statements. The Group has not recorded any impairment for receivables relating to amounts owed by Group 

entities. (2015-Rs. Nil)

No other significant transactions had been taken place during the year with the parties/entities in which key management 

personnel or their close family members were involved.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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31 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Information based on the primary segments ( Business Segments)

 Thermal Power Hydro Power Others Group
 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revenue
Segmental Revenue - - 371,104,337 557,352,151 81,076,217 638,730,876 452,180,554 1,196,083,027
Intra Segmental Revenue - - - - (59,130,916) (620,507,210) (59,130,916) (620,507,210)
Total Revenue - - 371,104,337 557,352,151 21,945,301 18,223,666 393,049,638 575,575,817

Results from Continuing Operations:
Operating Profit/(Loss) - - 315,029,625 442,523,833 (23,815,475) (53,427,482) 291,214,150 389,096,351
Net Finance Cost - - (54,443,646) (28,311,485) (5,678,053) (20,014,382) (60,121,699) (48,325,867)
Other Expenses - - - - - (376,919) - (376,919)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax - - 260,585,979 414,212,348 (29,493,528) (73,818,783) 231,092,451 340,393,565
Tax Expense - - (27,650,541) (35,841,210) (3,125,166) - (30,775,707) (35,841,210)
 Profit/(Loss) for the Year from  
 Continuing Operations - - 232,935,438 378,371,138 (32,618,694) (73,818,783) 200,316,744 304,552,355

Profit / (Loss) from Discontinued  
 Operation - (280,501,536) - - - - - (280,501,536)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year - (280,501,536) 232,935,438 378,371,138 (32,618,694) (73,818,783) 200,316,744 24,050,819

Attributable to:
 Equity Holders of the Parent - (280,501,536) 232,935,438 294,066,471 (32,479,687) (73,818,783) 200,455,751 (60,253,848)
 Non-Controlling Interest - - - 84,304,667 (139,007) - (139,007) 84,304,667
 - (280,501,536) 232,935,438 378,371,138 (32,618,694) (73,818,783) 200,316,744 24,050,819

Assets and Liabilities
Non-Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment - - 1,359,931,053 1,120,779,242 111,265,628 108,312,515 1,471,196,681 1,229,091,757
Investments in Associate - - 365,144,265 504,198,507 - - 365,144,265 504,198,507
Other Non-Current Assets - - 988,791 601,721 972,733,296 1,388,696,858 973,722,087 1,389,298,579
Segmental Non-Current Assets - - 1,726,064,109 1,625,579,470 1,083,998,924 1,497,009,373 2,810,063,033 3,122,588,843
Eliminations/Adjustments       (845,980,730) (1,261,944,292)
Total Non-Current Assets - - 1,726,064,109 1,625,579,470 1,083,998,924 1,497,009,373 1,964,082,303 1,860,644,551

Segmental Current Assets
Current Assets - - 1,055,801,425 812,548,112 561,453,373 1,545,843,023 1,617,254,798 2,358,391,135
Eliminations/Adjustments       (1,483,888,671) (1,551,190,624)
Total Current Assets - - 1,055,801,425 812,548,112 561,453,373 1,545,843,023 133,366,127 807,200,511

Total Assets - - 2,781,865,534 2,438,127,582 1,645,452,297 3,042,852,396 2,097,448,430 2,667,845,062
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 Thermal Power Hydro Power Others Group
 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non-Current Liabilities
Segmental Non-Current Liabilites - - 953,205,292 234,543,403 8,077,427 6,907,985 961,282,719 241,451,388
Eliminations/Adjustments       - (145,000,000)

Total Non-Current Liabilities - - 953,205,292 234,543,403 8,077,427 6,907,985 961,282,719 96,451,388

Current Liabilities
Segmental Current Liabilities - - 657,128,826 877,320,210 1,002,921,497 852,435,631 1,660,050,323 1,729,755,841
Income Tax Liabilities - - 7,158,688 6,938,266 - - 7,158,688 6,938,266
Eliminations/Adjustments       (1,487,704,297) (1,554,784,785)

Total Current Liabilities - - 664,287,514 884,258,476 1,002,921,497 852,435,631 179,504,714 181,909,322

Total Liabilities - - 1,617,492,806 1,118,801,879 1,010,998,924 859,343,616 1,140,787,433 278,360,710

Other Segmental Information
Acquisition of Property,  
 Plant and Equipment - - 260,577,360 800,595,807 11,525,753 18,781,475 272,103,113 819,377,282
Revaluation of Lands - - 5,153,121 - 4,500,000 - 9,653,121 -
Depreciation of Segmental Assets - - 26,576,541 36,911,004 7,714,743 8,252,449 34,291,284 45,163,453

Other Non-Cash Expenses
Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity - - 550,393 385,914 1,562,089 1,309,060 2,112,482 1,694,974

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units and three reportable segments were identified.

Thermal Power

The Group discontinued this business segment in previous financial year with the disposal of Group’s equity interest in Heladhanavi 

Limited on 24th October 2014.

Segment’s results attributable to the Group up to its discontinuation in previous year are presented including the disposal loss 

incurred by the Group. The Group did not have any interest in assets and liabilities of this segment as at the reporting date,

31st March 2016.

Hydro Power

Represents the Group’s major continuing line of business. This includes three fully-owned operational hydropower plants with an 

aggregate capacity of 7.0MW. Group has 22.3% stake in Panasian Power PLC which has two operational hydropower plants with 

an aggregate capacity of 5.4MW. The Group recognises its interest in Panasian Power PLC under equity method of accounting.

Aggregate operational results, assets and liabilities of hydropower segment are presented under this segment.

In addition to operational plants, capital work-in-progress of Group’s fully-owned hydropower plants under construction and their 

liabilities are aggregated under this segment.

Others

This segment represents venture capital activities of parent company, Resus Energy PLC, its related assets and liabilities and 

Group’s interest in assets and liabilities of Ella Dendro Electric (Pvt) Limited, the company formed to develop

a biomass project.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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32 GROUP COMPANIES
 Proportion of

 Ownership Voting Ownership Voting Principal 

 Interest as at Power as at Interest as at Power as at Activities 

 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2015

Subsidiaries

Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited 100% 100% 100% 100% 2.0MW mini hydropower plant - operational

Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) Limited 100% 100% 100% 100% 2.4MW mini hydropower plant - operational

Upper Agra Oya  

 Hydro Power (Pvt) Limited 100% 100% 100% 100% 2.6MW mini hydropower plant - operational

Ella Dendro Electric (Pvt) Limited 75% 75% 75% 75% 3.0MW biomass power plant - under feasibility

Rawanakanda Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd 100% 100% 100% 100% Under feasibility

Upper Huluganga (Pvt) Ltd 100% 100% 100% 100% 1.9MW mini hydropower project - pre development stage

Moragaha Oya (Pvt) Ltd 100% 100% 100% 100% 1.5MW mini hydropower Project - under construction

Gomale Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd 100% 100% 100% 100% 1.4MW mini hydropower project - under construction

Associates

Panasian Power PLC 22.3% 22.3% 29.3% 29.3% 2.4MW and 3.0MW mini hydropower plants -  

     operational and 3.5MW mini hydropower plants -  

     under construction

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these 

financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group has loans 

and other receivables, trade and receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that arrive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s senior management is supported by 

the Board of Directors (BOD) that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the 

Group. BOD provides assurance to the Group’s senior management that the Group’s financial risk-taking activities are governed 

by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Group 

policies and Group risk appetite. It is the Group’s policy that all derivative activities for risk management purposes are required to 

be approved by Board of Directors of the parent company, Resus Energy PLC.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

1. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. Market risk of the Group primarily comprise of three types of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk, and other price risk, 

such as equity price risk. The Group’s exposure to commodity price risk is insignificant. Financial instruments affected by market 

risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, and available-for-sale investments.

The overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential 

adverse effects on the entity’s financial performance, while optimising the returns to shareholders.

Financial risk management is carried out by finance division of the Group under risk management policies approved by the 

Board which set out the principles and procedures with respect to risk tolerance, delegated authority levels, internal controls, and 

management of foreign currency, interest rate and counterparty credit exposures and the reporting of exposures.
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1.1 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates.The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-

term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. As end of 

the reporting year, 31st March 2016, the Group did not have significant portion of loans and borrowings at variable interest rates 

as it has fixed the interest rate on a significant portion of long-term debt. 

 Group
As at 31st March 2016 2015
  Rs. % Rs. %

Long-term Loans at variable interest rates  110,017,000 11% - -

Long-term Loans at fixed interest rates  873,016,249 89% - -

Total  983,033,249 100% - -

The Company did not have any long-term borrowings as at reporting date.

Changes in market interest rate (Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate - AWPLR) will have the following sensitivity on Group’s 

finance cost.

Increase/(decrease) in AWPLR, ceteris paribus

Effect on profit before tax - 2016

    Group Company 

change in basis points:    Rs. Rs.

+100    - -

-100    - -

The Group’s profitability for the year is not affected by change in AWPLR as the borrowing cost incurred on loans at variable 

interest rate is capitalised in the project cost in accordance with LKAS 23 - Borrowing Costs.

Changes in deposit interest rate will have following sensitivity on interest income from investing excess cash.

Increase/(decrease) in deposit interest rate, ceteris paribus

Effect on profit before tax - 2016

    Group Company 

change in basis points:    Rs. Rs.

+100    3,694,631 3,547,728

-100    (3,694,631) (3,547,728)

1.2 Equity price risk
The Company’s listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market values of 

the securities. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

The Company holds 111.5Mn shares in Panasian Power PLC as at the reporting date. The market value of this investment as 

at 31st March 2016 at the price of Rs. 3.20 per share amounted Rs. 356.8Mn. However, the Group carries the investment in 

Panasian Power PLC based on equity method of accounting in its consolidated financial statements. The Group does not have any 

equity investments classified as available for sale, therefore sensitivity analysis is not provided for this.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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1.3 Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange rate changes is minimised by positive negotiations with 

banks and application of financial risk management techniques. The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk derives from 

electromechanical equipment imports to its hydropower projects. The sensitivity of financial statement implications on assumed 

fluctuations in exchange rates are not reasonably estimatable due to unknown prices of future equipment orders as at the reporting 

date. Therefore, a sensitivity analysis is not shown as the Group is not aware of future equipment prices as at the reporting date.

2. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 

to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its 

financing activities, including deposits with banks, and loans given to subsidiaries. The credit risk arising on trade receivables 

primarily relates to the financial health of Ceylon Electricity Board being the sole customer of the Group.

 Group Company
As at 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade and other receivables  65,480,365 97,708,161 17,480,054 64,963,183

Amounts due from related parties  568,281 568,281 512,351,445 780,207,668

Other financial assets  3,961,280 1,941,382 1,865,578 146,092,601

Income Tax Recoverable  8,585,138 10,075,108 8,584,042 10,074,009

Cash and cash equivalents  48,415,135 690,511,070 20,606,153 688,939,464

Total credit risk exposure  127,010,199 800,804,002 560,887,272 1,690,276,925

2.1 Cash deposit instruments
Investment of surplus funds is made only with approved counterparties by the Board of Directors of Resus Energy PLC. 

Counterparty exposures are reviewed by the Board of Directors on an annual basis, and updated throughout the year. The limits 

are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial losses from potential counterparty’s failure. The 

Company has invested Rs. 18.7Mn in NDB Wealth Money Plus Fund, a Unit Trust managed by NDB Wealth Managment Limited 

as at 31st March 2016 (2015 - Rs. 660.4Mn).

The risk exposure distribution of the said Fund as at 31st March 2016 is demonstrated as follows;

Credit Rating of instruments Exposure as a %  

 of the total Market Value

AAA 2.00

AA- 24.00

A+ 2.00

A 8.00

A- 36.00

BBB+ 6.00

BBB 13.00

BBB- 1.00

Others 8.00

 100.00



Resus Energy PLCAnnual Report 2015/16 224

A distribution of cash deposit instruments as at the reporting date is shown below.

 Group Company
As at 31st March  2016 2015 2016 2015 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Unit Trust - NDB Wealth Money Plus Fund  18,724,312 660,392,086 18,724,311 660,392,086

Banks - savings deposits  29,690,823 30,118,984 1,881,842 28,547,378

  48,415,135 690,511,070 20,606,153 688,939,464

Bank deposits above represent cash held in savings and current accounts at NDB Bank PLC and Sampath Bank PLC.

2.2 Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by the Group within Group’s established policies, procedures and controls relating to customer 

credit risk management. Outstanding receivables from Ceylon Electricity Board are regularly monitored.

Large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The 

calculation is based on actual incurred historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying 

value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements. The Group does not hold collateral as 

security.

3. Liquidity risk
This is the risk that the Group will encounter in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by 

delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 

flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, and intercompany borrowings. The Group assessed the concentration of 

risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. Access to sources of funding is sufficiently available and debt 

maturing within 12 months can be either settled or rolled over with existing lenders.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at 31st March 2016 - Group On demand Less than 3 to 1 to > 5 years Total 

  3 months 12 months 5 years 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - - 124,634,709 575,785,949 282,612,591 983,033,249

Other financial liabilities - - - 83,885,630 2,978,010 86,863,640

Trade and other payables - - 35,721,844 - - 35,721,844

Income tax liabilities - - 7,158,688 - - 7,158,688

Bank Overdraft 11,989,475 - - - - 11,989,475

 11,989,475 - 167,515,241 659,671,579 285,590,601 1,124,766,896

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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As at 31st March 2015 - Group On demand Less than 3 to 1 to > 5 years Total 
  3 months 12 months 5 years 
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 66,224,613 - 83,588,009 2,978,010 152,790,632
Trade and other payables - - 106,870,378 - - 106,870,378
Income tax liabilities - - 6,938,266 - - 6,938,266
Bank Overdraft 1,876,065 - - - - 1,876,065
 1,876,065 66,224,613 113,808,644 83,588,009 2,978,010 268,475,341

As at 31st March 2016 - Company On demand Less than 3 to 1 to > 5 years Total 
  3 months 12 months 5 years 
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - - -
Trade and other payables - - 942,682,634 - - 942,682,634
 - - 942,682,634 - - 942,682,634

As at 31st March 2015 - Company On demand Less than 3 to 1 to > 5 years Total 
  3 months 12 months 5 years 
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 66,224,613 - - - 66,224,613
Trade and other payables - - 726,675,405 - - 726,675,405
 - 66,224,613 726,675,405 - - 792,900,018

Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital 
ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue 
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes managing capital during the years ended 31st March 
2016 and 31st March 2015. With the view to facilitate restructure of the capital of the Group to reflect an optimum structure on 
the basis of its current investment portfolio and maximise returns to its shareholders, the Group carried out share repurchases 
followed by capital reductions during the year in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. The Group 
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is debt divided by total capital employed. The Group’s policy is to maintain an optimal 
capital structure at appropriate gearing level to attribute the maximum debt tax shields to the equity holders of the Group whilst 
cautiously managing the level of distress on debt.

A summary of Group’s capital structure is depicted below.

As at 31st March    2016 2015 
    Rs. Rs.

Interest bearing borrowings and financial liabilities    1,081,886,364 154,666,697
Equity    956,660,997 2,389,484,352
Total Capital Employed    2,038,547,361 2,544,151,049
Gearing ratio    53.1% 6.1%
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   Restated Restated 

Year Ended 31st March 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

A) Summary of Operations
Revenue 393,049,638 575,575,817 543,675,974 230,334,030 4,510,004,413

Gross Profit 319,603,820 485,151,672 455,829,384 173,191,649 500,559,929

Share of results of equity accounted  

 investees-Associates 40,150,218 20,693,151 - - -

Profit before finance cost and tax 292,106,787 391,432,344 373,455,365 101,680,584 329,459,736

Profit before Tax 231,092,451 340,393,565 332,192,175 87,653,564 251,099,650

Tax Expense (30,775,707) (35,841,210) (16,070,196) 1,102,253 (1,274,034)

Profit after tax from Continuing Operations 200,316,744 304,552,355 316,121,979 88,755,817 249,825,616

Profit/(Loss) after tax from  

 Discontinued Operation - (280,501,536) (478,711,058) 193,696,028 -

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 200,316,744 24,050,819 (162,589,079) 282,451,844 249,825,616

Profit/(Loss) attributable to  

 Equity Holders of the Parent 200,455,751 (60,253,848) (259,130,805) 282,451,844 249,825,616

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Non-Controlling Interest (139,007) 84,304,667 96,541,726 - -

 200,316,744 24,050,819 (162,589,079) 282,451,844 249,825,616

B) Summary of Financial Position

Capital and Reserves

Stated Capital 300,000,000 1,539,882,957 1,539,882,957 1,539,882,957 1,539,882,957

Other Components of Equity 18,169,390 12,256,245 8,452,677 3,878,256 (58,209,528)

Revenue Reserves 632,646,405 834,845,150 960,777,707 1,313,716,489 1,214,197,270

Equity Attributable to  

 Equity Holders of the Parent 950,815,795 2,386,984,352 2,509,113,341 2,857,477,702 2,695,870,699

Non-Controlling Interest 5,845,202 2,500,000 737,916,000 2,500,846 2,500,846

Total Equity 956,660,997 2,389,484,352 3,247,029,341 2,859,978,548 2,698,371,545

Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities 961,282,719 96,451,388 184,156,655 220,740,297 401,280,216

Current Liabilities 179,504,714 181,909,322 205,853,090 19,460,522 1,993,776,839

Total Liabilities 1,140,787,433 278,360,710 390,009,745 240,200,819 2,395,057,055

Total Equity and Liabilities 2,097,448,430 2,667,845,062 3,637,039,086 3,100,179,367 5,093,428,600

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,471,196,681 1,229,091,757 1,693,441,460 1,189,134,688 2,548,808,006

Investments in Associate 365,144,265 504,198,507 - - -

Investments in Joint Venture - - 808,451,750 1,373,716,684 -

Other Non-Current Assets 127,741,357 127,354,287 885,611,428 295,850,946 153,953,078

Current Assets 133,366,127 807,200,511 249,534,448 241,477,049 2,390,667,516

Total Assets 2,097,448,430 2,667,845,062 3,637,039,086 3,100,179,367 5,093,428,600

Five Year Summary
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   Restated Restated 

Year Ended 31st March 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

C) Key Indicators
Earnings/(Loss) per Share

 From Profit/(Loss) for the Year (Rs) 2.24 (0.48) (2.07) 2.26 2.00

 From Continuing Operations (Rs) 2.24 1.76 1.75 0.71 2.00

 From Discontinued Operation (Rs) - (2.24) (3.82) 1.55 -

Net Profit/(Loss) Margin (%) 50.9% 4.2% -29.9% 122.6% 5.5%

Net Assets per Share (Rs) 16.28 19.07 20.04 22.82 21.53

Dividend per Share (Rs) - - 0.75 1.40 2.00

Dividend Payout (%) - - 33.2% 70.2% 60.7%

Dividend Cover (Times) - - 3.01 1.43 1.65

Interest Cover (Times) 4.8 8.1 10.6 7.3 4.2

Current Ratio (Times) 0.7 4.4 1.2 12.4 1.2

Gearing (%) 53.1% 6.1% 8.9% 7.1% 12.9%

Return on Equity (%) 12.0% -2.5% -9.7% 10.2% 8.9%
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Share Information

Twenty Major Shareholders 

As at 31st March 2016 2015

Name of shareholder No. of Shares % No. of Shares

 1 ACL Cables PLC 18,515,403  31.71  43,202,607 

 2 NDB Capital Holdings Limited 10,764,220  18.43  40,524,455 

 3 Trydan Partners (Pvt) Ltd A/C No.2 3,423,784  5.86  7,988,827 

 4 Trydan Partners (Pvt) Ltd A/C No.1 2,864,210  4.91  2,240,811 

 5 Global Rubber Industries (Pvt) Ltd 1,845,288  3.16  -   

 6 Seylan Bank PLC / Thirugnanasambandar Senthilverl 1,667,280  2.86  -   

 7 Employees Trust Fund 1,586,400  2.72  1,586,400 

 8 Bank of Ceylon Account No. 1 1,117,700  1.91  1,117,700 

 9 People’s Leasing & Finance PLC / C. D. Kohombanwickramage 1,094,525  1.87  -   

 10 Mr. D. V. K. Sirithunga 878,578  1.50  978,578 

 11 Almar Trading Co (Pvt) Limited 492,200  0.84  492,200 

 12 Mr. H. Beruwalage 419,200  0.72  419,200 

 13 Pan Asia Banking Corporation / S. R. Fernando 399,156  0.68  -   

 14 Pan Asia Banking Corporation / Almar International (Pvt) Limited 398,700  0.68  -   

 15 Tangerine Tours 278,200  0.48  -   

 16 People’s Leasing & Finance PLC / L. P. Hapangama 265,704  0.46  -   

 17 Mr. D. P. Pieris 246,057  0.42  747,477 

 18 Miss. Durga Sithampalam 232,000  0.40  -   

 19 Mr. Beruwalage Dulshan Thivanka 227,600  0.39  -   

 20 National Savings Bank 203,341  0.35  1,627,415 

46,919,546  80.36 

Shares held by the balance shareholders 11,470,717  19.64 

Total Issued Shares 58,390,263  100.00 

Analysis of shareholders according to the number of shares as at 31st March 2016  

Shareholdings Resident Non-Resident Total 

No. of

Shareholders

No. of 

Shares 

Percentage

(%)

No. of

Shareholders

No. of 

Shares

Percentage 

(%)

No. of

Shareholders

No. of 

Shares

Percentage 

(%)

1 to 1,000  2,029  880,589 1.51 9  6,803 0.01  2,038  887,392 1.52

1001 to 10,000  791  2,772,372 4.75 10  52,284 0.09  801  2,824,656 4.84

10,001 to 100,000  173  5,195,821 8.90 11  405,051 0.69  184  5,600,872 9.59

100,001 to 1,000,000  24  5,142,859 8.81 2  1,055,674 1.81  26  6,198,533 10.62

over 1,000,000  9 42,878,810 73.43  -    -    -    9  42,878,810 73.43

 3,026  56,870,451  97.40 32 1,519,812 2.60  3,058 58,390,263 100.00

Categories of 

Shareholders    

 No. of  

Shareholders

No. of Shares

Individual   2,916  10,561,466 

Institutional     142  47,828,797 

 3,058  58,390,263
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Computation of % of Public Shareholding

As at 31st March    2016 2015 

    No. of Shares No. of Shares

  

Over 10% Holding  

 ACL Cables PLC     18,515,403   43,202,607 

 NDB Capital Holdings Limited     10,764,220   40,524,455 

 Trydan Partners (Pvt) Limited     6,287,994   -   

    35,567,617  83,727,062 

Directors’ Direct Shareholding  

H A S Madanayake (Non-Executive Chairman)     -     -   

G A K Nanayakkara (Managing Director)     112,000   182,000 

U G Madanayake (Non-Executive Director)     -     -   

C V Kulatilaka (Non-Executive Director)     -     -   

I S Somaratne (Non-Executive Director)     1,000   1,000 

Prof. K A M K Ranasinghe (Independent Non-Executive Director)    -     -   

U P Egalahewa PC (Independent Non-Executive Director)     -     -   

     113,000   183,000 

Directors’ Indirect Shareholding   

H A S Madanayake (Non-Executive Chairman)     -     -   

G A K Nanayakkara (Managing Director)     5,897   22,200 

U G Madanayake (Non-Executive Director)     -     -   

C V Kulatilaka (Non-Executive Director)     -     -   

I S Somaratne (Non-Executive Director)     900   900 

Prof. K A M K Ranasinghe (Independent Non-Executive Director)    -     -   

U P Egalahewa PC (Independent Non-Executive Director)     -     -   

     6,797   23,100 

lssued Ordinary Shares as at 31st March    58,390,263 125,200,002

Less:  

 Over 10% Shareholding     35,567,617  83,727,062 

 Directors’ direct and indirect Shareholding     119,797  206,100 

 Shareholding of other partner in consortium-Trydan Partners (Pvt) Limited     -     10,229,638 

Public Holding    22,702,849 31,037,202

Public Holding as a % of lssued Shares    38.88% 24.79%

  

Share Trading Information     2016 2015

Market Price  

 Highest (Rs.)    27.40 20.00

 Lowest (Rs.)    18.10 16.70

 As at Year ended (Rs.)     22.20 18.90

No. of Trades    4,807 3,881

No. of Shares Traded    17,652,736 106,839,973

Value of Shares Traded (Rs.)     426,985,520   1,913,699,224 

Market Capitalisation (Rs.)     1,296,263,839   2,366,280,038 

Price Earnings Ratio* (Times)     9.91   10.74 

*Based on EPS from continuing operations
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of RESUS Energy PLC will be held at the Auditorium of 

the Development Holdings Private Limited, 3rd Floor, No. 42, Navam Mawatha, Colombo 02 on Wednesday, the 29th day of June 

2016 at 3.30 p.m. for the following purpose:-

AGENDA

1. To receive and consider Reports of the Directors, the Statements of Accounts of the Company and the Group for the year 

ended 31st March 2016, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 

2. To elect Mr. I S Somaratne, Director, retiring by rotation in terms of Article 24(2) of the Articles of Association of the Company. 

3. To re-elect Mr. H A S Madanayake, Director, retiring by rotation in terms of Article 24(6) of the Articles of Association of the 

Company. 

4. To re-elect Mr. C V Kulatilaka, Director, retiring by rotation in terms of Article 24(6) of the Articles of Association of the 

Company. 

5. To reappoint as a Director Mr. U G Madanayake who has reached the age of 80 years and who vacates his office in terms 

of Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. Notice is hereby given to propose the undernoted ordinary resolution in 

compliance with Section 211 of the Act, in relation to his re-appointment. 

 “Resolved that Mr. U G Madanayake who has reached the age of 80 years is hereby re-appointed a Director of the Company 

and it is hereby declared that the age limited of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 shall 

not apply to the said Mr. U G Madanayake.”

6. To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorize 

the Directors to determine their remuneration. 

7. To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations to Charity.

By order of the Board of

RESUS Energy PLC

Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) Ltd

Secretaries

Colombo, Sri Lanka

19th May 2016

Note:

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote in his/her place.

A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

A Form of Proxy accompanies this Notice.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office, No. 250/1, Torrington Avenue, Colombo 7, not less 

than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

Notice of Meeting
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I/We …………………………………………………………………...………………………………………………...….…................................................…………

of ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….....................................................………………

being a Member/s of RESUS ENERGY PLC do hereby appoint …………………….....……….........................……………………………………....

……………………… of ………………………………………………….......……………………………………................................................……………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..or failing him/her

Mr. H A S Madanayake or failing him
Mr. G A K Nanayakkara or failing him
Mr U G Madanayake or failing him
Professor K A M K Ranasinghe or failing him
Mr. C V Kulatilaka or failing him
Mr. U P Egalahewa PC or failing him
Mr. I S Somaratne

as my/our Proxy to vote and speak for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of RESUS Energy PLC 
to be held at 3.30 p.m. on Wednesday, 29th June 2016 at the Development Holdings Private Limited, 3rd Floor, No. 42, Navam 
Mawatha, Colombo 02 and at any adjournment thereof. 

  For Against
1. To receive and consider Reports of the Directors, the Statements of  Accounts of the Company 

and the Group for the year ended 31st March 2016,  together with the Report of the Auditors 
thereon.

2.  To elect Mr. I S Somaratne, Director, retiring by rotation in terms of Article 24(2) of the Articles 
of Association of the Company. 

3. To re-elect Mr. H A S Madanayake, Director, retiring by rotation in terms of Article 24(6) of the 
Articles of Association of the Company. 

4. To re-elect Mr. C V Kulatilaka, Director, retiring by rotation in terms of Article 24(6) of the 
Articles of Association of the Company. 

5. To reappoint as a Director Mr. U G Madanayake in terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007

“Resolved that Mr. U G Madanayake who has reached the age of 80 years is hereby re-appointed a Director of the Company and 
it is hereby declared that the age limited of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 shall not apply 
to the said Mr. U G Madanayake.”

6. To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Company for the 
ensuing year and to authorize the Directors to determine their remuneration.

7. To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations to Charity.

 

………………………………………… ………………………………………… 
Signature of the shareholder/s NIC/Passport No. 

Dated this ……………………… day of ……………………………… 2016

Note: 
1. Please delete the inappropriate words.
2. Instructions as to completion are noted on the reverse hereof.

Form of Proxy
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION

1. Kindly perfect the Form of Proxy after filling in legibly your name in full, address and by 

signing in the space provided. Please fill in the date of signature.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend 

and vote instead of him/her. 

3. Please indicate with a ‘X’ in the spaces provided how your proxy is to vote on each 

resolution. If no indication is given the proxy in his/her discretion will vote as he/she thinks 

fit. 

4. In the case of Corporate Members, the Form of Proxy must be completed under the 

Common Seal, which should be affixed and attested in the manner prescribed by its Articles 

of Association.

5. If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power of Attorney should also 

accompany the completed Form of Proxy.

6. The completed Form of Proxy should be addressed to the Secretaries and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company at No. 250/1, Torrington Avenue, Colombo 7 not less 

than Forty Eight (48) hours before the time appointed for the meeting.

Form of Proxy Contd.



Name of the Company
Resus Energy PLC 

  

Legal Form 
Quoted Public Company with limited liability, 

the ordinary shares of the Company were listed on the 

Colombo Stock Exchange on 8th October 2009

  

Date of Incorporation
11th June 2003 

  

Date of Re-Registration under the Companies Act 
No 7 of 2007
11th September 2007 

  

Company Registration Number
PV 415 PB PQ 

  

Accounting Year End 
31st March  

  

Registered Office 
No. 250/1,  

Torrington Avenue, Colombo 7, Sri Lanka.  

Telephone: +94-11-7731731

Facsimile: +94-11-7731555

  

Tax payer Identification Number (TIN)
114340405  

  

Directors  
Mr. H A S Madanayake - Non-Executive Chairman 

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara - Managing Director

Mr. C V Kulatilaka - Non-Executive Director

Mr. U G Madanayake - Non-Executive Director 

(appointed w.e.f. 26th June 2015)

Mr. I S Somaratne - Non-Executive Director 

(appointed w.e.f. 14th October 2015)

Professor M K Ranasinghe - Independent Non-Executive 

Director

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC - Independent Non-Executive Director

Resigned during the Year

Mr. P K Jayawardena - Non-Executive Director 

(resigned w.e.f. 13th August 2015)

  

Audit Committee 
Professor M K Ranasinghe - Chairman

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC 

Mr. I S Somaratne - (appointed w.e.f. 14th October 2015)

Mr. P K Jayawardena - (resigned w.e.f. 13th August 2015)

  

Remuneration Committee
Mr. U P Egalahewa PC - Chairman

Professor M K Ranasinghe 

Mr. H A S Madanayake 

  

Related Party Transactions Review Committee
Mr. U P Egalahewa PC - Chairman

Professor M K Ranasinghe 

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara 

Mr. I S Somaratne

  

Company Secretaries
Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) Limited

51/1A, Fife Road, Colombo 5, Sri Lanka.  

Telephone: +94-11-4510709 Facsimile:+94-11-2587490 

  

Company Registrars 
S S P Corporate Services (Pvt) Limited

No. 101, Inner Flower Road, Colombo 3,

Sri Lanka.  

Telephone: +94-11-2573894 

  

Auditors  
Ernst & Young 

Chartered Accountants

No. 201, De Saram Place, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka.  

  

Bankers  
Sampath Bank PLC 

National Development Bank PLC

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

Memberships of Associations 
Small Hydro Power Developers’ Association

  

Investor Relations 
RESUS Energy PLC 

No. 250/1,  

Torrington Avenue, 

Colombo 7, Sri Lanka.  

Telephone: +94-11-7731731

Facsimile: +94-11-7731555

Corporate Information



A N N U A L

R E P O R T
2 0 1 5 / 1 6


